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INVESTMENT CASE
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Structural tailwinds in

attractive markets

Oppoartunity to g ow masket share in meaning‘ul
high retum marke:s that are bacxked by
infiastructure investment and long term growth
drivers

Read more on Our Market Place
onpages 8to 9.

Strong execution track record

Hill & Smith’s autonomous model has delvered
strong performance over the long term. Our

aglle business madel has been Key to Mitigating
chaltenges argund supply chan, fabour and COVID

Our model is scalanle and supported oy an
ambitiols management team

(_B Read more in ocur Operational and Financial
Review on pages 22 to 31.

Focus on high value

niche applications

Qur increasig focus on high value, fast growing
mche markets fuels orgamic growth and generates
figher gross margins and strong cash conversion

Read more on Qur Divisions
on pages 3 and 13.

Portfolio management

Our structured and disciplined approach to
acquisitions and disposals means we are
increasing the quality of the operaling companies
that rmake uo the Grouo and ensuring tha: they are
each aligned to long term growh drivers

Active management within our opeating
companies drives gross margin improvermeant
and allows reinvestment in arcas of ralent and
nnovation.

@ Read more on Our Business Model
on pages 10to 11.

Purpose and sustainability

We have a clear and well-understood purpose
Our products are focused on increasing the
sustanability of infrastructure and making
transport safer

Read more on Qur Sustainability Plan
on pages 32 to 57.

Strong balance sheet and

cash generation

High and improving returns convert into strong
cash generation, allowing investrment to further
grow the business and deliver a sustainable,
progressive dividend policy

Read more in our Operational and Financial
Review on pages 30 to 31.

FIVE-YEAR TRACK RECORD
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HIGHLIGHTS

GROUP HIGHLIGHTS:

Underlying* Change Statutory Change
31 31 Constant 31 31
December December  Reported Currency December  December Reported
2022 20210 % % ocC*™ % 2022 2021n %
Continuing Operations ¥ o -
Revenue £732.1m EBZ52Zm +17% +12% +14% £732.1m £6252m +17%
Operating profit £97.1m £77 3m +26% +17% +14% £78.5m £48 9 +61%
Operating margin ) 13.3% 12 4% +90bps 19_.79_6 7 8% +290bps
Profit before tax £87.9m £712m +23% £69.3m £42 8m +62% )
Earnings per share 85.4p 700p +22% 7 66.7p 35.8p +876%7
Total Group ™
7 Farnings per share ) 91.9p 77 9; +18% 71.0p ;413 0o +6H5%
Dividend per share 35.0p 3" Op +13% 35.0p 3" 0o +13%
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS:

Record trading performance

02

14% organic constant currency
revenue and profit growth

Growth significantly driven by US
businesses which represented 64% of
Group operating orofit

Operating margin increased by 90bos

to 13.3%, reflecting strong operational
aerformance, oncing actions and

aortfolio evolution

Strong performance highlights the

resilience of our chosen long term -
end markets and focus on higher

growth businesses

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Significant progress on portfelio
management

Announcement of two value
enhancing acquisitions 1n
Qctober 2022:

—  National Signal, a high growth US
off grid solar hghting business,
for £242m

—  Widnes Galvansing, expanding
our galvanmizing footprint in the
UK, for £3 9m

Acquisition of Endure Composites
in February 2023 for £28.7m further
accelerating our US composites
growth strategy

Acquisiion of Korns Galvanizing in
March 2023 for £9.4m, supporting
growth in attractive US galvanizing
market

Dignosal of France Galva in October
2022 for £62 Om reduces our
exposure to lower growth, lower
margin French galvanizing market

Refreshed financial framework reflecting
Group's growth potential

Improved cash generation in second
half, with year-end covenant leverage at
0.7 times

Final dividend of 22p proposed, a

16% increase on 2021, in line with the
Group’s sustainable and progressive
dividend policy

Well-positioned in structurally growing
end markets and expect to make further
progress in 2023, despite macro-
economic uncertainties



GROUP AT A GLANCE

GROUP SUMMARY

Qur porfolio: As at 31 December 2022,
the Group consisted of 30 commpanies
operatng from 57 sites in five countries,
through which we atm to dehve high
levels of organic growth and st-ang
cash conversion These companies a'e
sunported by a head office tean who
ofter support and leadership in areas
ncluding capital allocation, M&4, health
& safety, tax, leqgal and sustainabihity,

[% ROADS &
SECURITY
Supplying products and services to
suppor: road and highway infrastructure
ncluding temporary and permanent road
safety hariiers, renewable energy hghting
and power solutions, intelligent traffic
solutions, street hghting colurmns and
bridge parapets. The security portfolio
Includes hostile vehicle mitigation
selutions, fugh security fencing and
automated ga‘e solutions

Profit

N\

Roads & Security
% Group Revenue 36%
% Group Opérating 19%

Our operating framework: We cperate

a decentralised autonomous ooerating
model, which benefits from high
accountatiliry, agility and customer
intimacy, and helps us to at:ract talented
penole who want to make a hfference.

ENGINEERED
SOLUTIONS

Supplying engineered steel and
compastte solubions with low emboedied
energy for a wide range of infrastiuctuce
maixets including energy generation and
distribution, maring, rail and housing The
division also supplies seismic protection
soluticns and engineered oipe supports
for the water, power and liquid natural
gas markets

Engineered Sclutions

40%

36% 45%

Sustainability built in: Our p-oducts and
services help transport become safer and
infrastructue become more sustainable,
with our customers benefitting through
the value that ow orodusis and services
provide

E GALVANIZING
SERVICES

Supplying a service that dramatically
ncreases the sustainaniity and
maintenance free ife of steel products
This ingludes structural steelwork,
lighting, bridges, agriculiural equiparent
and other products for the ndustnal and
infrastructure marke:s

Galvanizing Services

24%

Stock Code HILS
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INTERIM EXECUTIVE CHAIR'S LETTER

Alan Giddins

Dear Stakeholder

2022 has been a year in which
we have delivered record
revenue and profits degpite
the challenges of a difficult
macro-economic backdrop.
We have also made significant
progress in delivering on our
M&A strategy.

Performance Highlights

On a continuing operations basis the Group
had revenue of £732.1m (2021 £625 2m) and
oderating profit of £97.1m (20271 £77 3m),
representing an organic revenue and operating
profit growth af 14% Operating margins
impraved from 12.4% te 13.3% Continuing
aperations reflects the disposal of Zrance Galva
during the year, with the France Galva results
heing shown as discontinued operations in
acth the current and orior year figures.

Underpinning these results was a strong
performance across both our Galvanizing

and Engineered Solutens divisions, delwering
organic operating profit growth of 23% and
24% respectively By contrast, cur Roads &
Securtty division saw broadly flat earnings
during the year, impacted by delays in strategic
road network projects in the UK and certan
operational 1ssues in our US Roads business

while we saw lower cash conversion in the
first half of the year as we made a strategic
decision to hold higher levels of stock in the
face of significant supply chain uncertainties,
we saw much improved cash generationin
the second half of the year at 93%, giving rise
to a full year cash conversion of 51%. As at

31 December 2022 total net debt was
£1197m (2021: £144 7m), leaving financing
headroom of £237 91 on the Group's
borrowing faciliies Return an capital
employed was 19.2% (2021 17 1%)

Board and Employees

In July, Paul Simmons stepped down as Chief
“xecutive of Hill & Smith, and [ was asked

by the Board to take on the role of intenim
Executive Charir. Paul joined Hill & Smith in
September 2020, and | would like to thank
him for bis contribution during this penod

Since the half year we have made five new
Managing Director appointmen:s Those
include our first two femate Managing Directors
within the Group, Rachel Preen at Prolectric
Services, our UK solar lighting business and
Rose Mary Clyburn at Hill & Smuth Inc, our US
roads busmess Being able to attract and retan
key *alent 15 absclutely critical 1o our business,
and it is something that | and the Board have
as one of sur key pnonties

2022 has thrown up a range of challenges tor
our wider workforce In the first half of the year
we faced a number of supply chain chailenges,
as well as increased energy costs, partcularly
in the UK. In the second half of the year we
have seen significant inflation and related
economic uncertainties, inflation impacted
input costs into our business, but also created
significant cost of hving pressures for our
employeas 1 am pleased that our busmesses
have responded so proactively, using in-year
salary reviews, one-off cost of iving payments,
crisis loans and variable pay awards to help
support our lower Income employees

Dunng the year we also sat up a Chanitahle
Donation Matching Programme The
programme matches chantable funds raised

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Repart and Acgcounts 2022

by our employees on an apblicalon basis
and was available 'o emnloyees in all our
ope-atng junsdictions During the year we
have matched donations benefitiing causes
such as DEC Ukraine, War Child, Uzraime
Humarntanan Appeal, Cance” Reseg-ch UK
and Many mrore, and we were delighted o
support these fundraisings

Governance

The Board continues to be comntted to

the highest standards of governance, and
staxeholder consideranons remarn central

-0 the Boards decision-making. Our full
Corporate Governance Report, including
details of our compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code, 15 s&t out on
sages 7410 85 This includes a number of
changes which we have made duning the year
to our governance approach to roflect the fact
I have taken on an executive mle dunng the
second half of the year.

As approved at the Company's AGM, In
November 2022 the Company drooped
"Holdings” from 1ts name and simphfied it
to Hill & Smith PLC We also refreshed the
Groun's logo

Health & Safety

The importance of health & sa‘ety cannot

be over-estimated. Our employees nightfully
expect w0 be kept safe at work and the Board
of Hill & Sith takes therr responsibilities
extiemely senously, with health and safety
being a standing iterm on each Board agenda
Lost Tirme Injury Reports are momitored
carefully, and | have been extremely pleased
by the progress that has been made, with the
Lost Time Injury Rate dechining from 1.7 t0 1.2
(see pages 20 and 21 for more detals).

Strategy

Hill & Smith has a very clear strategy. We
focus our capital itz our highest growth
markets, consistent with ocur purpose, and
behind our best management teams We
then seek to complermnent this with setective
MR&A At the heart of our strategy lies our
autonomous business model, which 1s about
giving ownership to our local teams to dive
performance in their businesses. 1£1g also
about excellence in execution, both when we
are acquinng businesses, but also where we
see underperformance in our portfolio and
there is a need to take proactive performance
and management actions.

M&A Activity

GOne af the areas | committed to giving greater
focus to was driving our M&A strategy In
Oclober we announced two acquisitions,
National Signal, a California-based market
leader in solar ighting serving the US marke:,
and Widnes Galvanising. Widnes Galvanising
gives us a stronger foothold in the

northwest of the UK, and as a result 1s highly
somplementary to our Joseph Ash business
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Hill & Smith has a
very clear strategy.
We focus our capital
~into our highest
growth markets,
consistent with

our purpose, and
behind our best

Stock Code HILS

Since the year end we have made two further
acquisitions in february 2023 we acquned

Endurd Composites, a designer, manufasture”

and supoher of engineered composite
solutions hased in Houston, Texas, and in
March 2023 we announced the acguisiion
of Korns Galvamizing, which specialises in
spIn galvanizing, and s based in Johnstown,
Pennsylvama

We alzo made one material disposal dunng
the yeal, France Galva SA. The deal ~eceved
shareholder aaoroval on 5 Septermber 2022
and completed on 4 October 2022, The
decision to sell France Galva reflected our
view That the French market would continue
to be extremely competitive and as such

we would not be able to meet our targeted
returns through owning the business Further
information on the disposal can be found on
nage 146

Sustainability and ESG

The Groun s mindful of our impact on
climate change and sustainability Thisis

felr throughout the business and durning the
course of 2022 we have made good ssogress
inthis area Lucinda Farmngton-Parker joined
as Groun Head of Susiamaxilily in February
72022 and has been responstle for helping
drive our ESG strategy Inevitably we are at
the start of a long journey, but | have been
impressed by the progress made 10 date and
the commitment of our senior management.
Since becoming =xecutive Char, | have
Jjomned our Z3G Committee, which reports to
the Board

.

Dividend and Annual

General Meeting

The Board has proposed a final dwidend of
22 0o (2021 19 Op) which, if aporoved, would
cesulim a full year dividend of 35 00 (2021

37 0p). anincrease of 13%, while keeping
dindend cover of around 2 5 times underlying
eairnings

The Annual General Meeting of the Company
will he hetd a: 17,00 a m on Thursday 25 May
2023 at Cranmore Park Conference, bven: &
—xhibition Centre, Cranmore Avenue, Shivley,
Wwest Midlands, B0 4LF, United Kingdom

The meeting is an deal fo-um for raising any
questions you may have of yous Board, and

! hope many of you will take advantage of

this opportunity. | very much look forward 1o
meeting you there

Looking Ahead

Hill & Smith has a very effective business
model and a very strong culture We a-e
facing into a number of high growth end
markets driven by infrastructurc spend,
particularly in the US, which shoutd allow
us to continue 1o deliver attractive earnings
growth through the cycle Combined with a
SToNg Semor managamen: team and a highly
committed workforge, | feel very confident
about the medium and long te'm prospects
for the Group.

Alan Giddins
Interim Executive Chair

8 March 2023

Stadium at West Ottawa High School Michigan, galvanized by V&S Galvanizing

i
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OUR PURPOSE AND STRATEGY

Macro drivers
Increasing poputation
Urbanisation
Climate change

Increasing health and
safety regulations

Creating ;m&m

Sustaﬂab|e " . < Inrastrucitre salety

Enabling technology

infrastructure . Vision Ze1o

----- B L L T T R T T T TR T

and safe transport Applications

and niches

th roug h | n n Ovatl O n - Systemalic process

Faster growing niche
opportunities
Criticat applications

Read more on Our Market Place
onpages8to9.
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Organic growth
+ Autonomous cperating rmodel
© Agility/proximity 1o market
Premium on talent
* Innovation

D L T T P T T Py

Portfolio management
+ Disciplined M&A

— Fit with purpose and market drivers
- Strategic rationale

— Fast growing niche markets

— Credible organic growth plan

D Y R L L L L L LT T T T T P T TR

ESG
* Protecting the world
+  Saving and enhancing lives
~ Heailth & Safety
- Talent and diversity

Sustainable governance

tsssssnan TR L TR T P Y P

Financial model

+ Organic profit growth/strong cash
CONVErsion

Conservative financial leverage

Allocate capital to high growth/return
opportunities (M&4A and organic)

2 Sxoundertying earnings dwvidend policy

@ Read more on Our Business
Model on pages 1010 11.

Stock Code HILS

4. WHAT?

seseserrrreeansnsrnrannEnTy vemservesnnssns

Superior
long term
stakeholder
value

Read more on Qur Investment Case
an the inside frant cover.

Read more on Qur Business Model
on pages 10to 11.

@ Read more on Our Approach to
Sustainabhility on pages 3210 57.

140d3d D1934vdls




NICHE MARKETS

We focus on fast growing niche markets that have high
barriers to entry and deliver high margins.

SUpportive mark
atons that a portance o our customer.
s a small part of a larger 2

Power station, Will County, IHinois.
Supported by TPG

GALVANIZING SERVICES ERED SOLUTIONS ROADS & SECURITY
Hot-dip galvanizing ensures that steel W e e : 5 ; ey : LTI
products fast for decades without SR ] P T A R B FE RN
the need for retreatment, and that '

the steel is fit for recychng when the

product eventually reaches the end

of s Ife It has stieng sustainabihity

credentials. We take great care 10

ensure that the process does not

adversely impact the envi-onment

The end markets that cur UK and US
galvanizing businesses serve a: @ many
and varied including growth inducries
such as road and rail infraszuctize
water treatment co

and electrical ranzimys

distrizunion. Qur ooeraing

larget above indusiy growth Jates
through theughtfulineesineens and
SLpENol service

i
snder S
Beiand 5
In the LS, we expect 1e Bone

“am hoth increased cn-shis ne o

manufacturing and nghmiaauenee

spend as a result of the lnvesvons

Infrast-uctue and ok A B

winencly
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TRENDS

MACRO DRIVERS

INCREASING POPULATION

By the late-2030s the world’s population is forecast tobe ¢ 9 0Obn,
compared with 8.0bn in 2022. This increase in population, an
increasing proportion of whom are aged, will drive an increase in the
need for safe, sustainable infrastructure.

Effect

As the population increases, the need for infrastructure investrnent
increases accordingly to ensure congestion does not increase
potution or erade economic productivity or guality of life,

Qpportunities

The increase in infrastructure investrnent required is an opportunity for
all our operating companies, as they supply products W e 1uads, rad,

water treatment, and transmission and distribution markets.
QOur galvanizing plants supply preducts across all sectors,

URBANISATION

The population of peaple living in towns and cities is Increasing, with

more than half of the world's population now {iving in urban areas. The

UN believes that by 2050, this proportion will increase ta two thirds.

Effect

Increasing population density creates the nsk of insufficient
infrastructure, and increased pailution due 0 industrial activities
Gavernment and private funding will be needed to address these
concerns.

Opportunities

Increased urbanisation generates opportunities for our companies
that supply into roads, rail, water treatment, and transmission &
distnbution markets as well as general building construction and
includes products such as galvanized steel, pine supports and
hangers, and cooling towers.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The world is expenencing the drastic effacts of climate change.
Greenhouse gas emissions are more than 50% higher than 20 years
ago. Global warming is causing long-lasting changes to the Earth's
climate system.

Effect

To keep global warming to-a minimum of 1.5°C, infrastructure needs
to be transitioned to clean energy sources To mitigate against the
extrerna weather events caused by global warming, infrastructure
needs to become more resilient.

Opportunities

We produce a number of preducts that help to reduce climate change

and imprave infrastructure resilience, protecting aganst extreme
weather.

Qur galvanized steel is 100% recyclable, reducing the renewal of steel

structures. We aiso have cormposite products which are corresion
resistant and lightweight; including cooling towers which use 25%-
45% less energy than more traditional systems; and fire-resistant
utifity poles.

Qur solar lighting towers and hybrid generators reduce greenhouse
gas emissions during construction activity,

HEALTH & SAFETY LEGISLATION

Health & safety requirements are increasing across the glebe as
pecple and governments demand higher standards of safety and
persomihealth

The lnpacts of more demarzdinq ﬂandams are Seen across our
- mﬁﬂmﬁ fn;m the impiementation of new requirements for crash
TGS po

DUMIncludmg seismic restraints, termporary and permanent
- Grish-haiier and utifity poles.

MARKET DRIVERS

SUSTAINABLE MATERIALS

Materials that do not deplete non-renewable resources and help the
construction industry achieve net zero carbon emissicns are becoming
increasingly required

Effect

The drive towards sustanablity will impact the choice of matenals placing
a premium on low-embaodied carbon materals and matenals that are
surtable for the circular economy.

Opportunities

Our composites products are used in a numher of applications including
bridge decks, boardwaiks, cooling towers, utllity poles and waterfront
intrastructure.

We expect the range of applications to increase as acceptabrlity of the
products continues tG increase

DECARBONISATION

The US and UK Governments have both agreed to meet the carbon
reduction goais of the Paris Agreement.

Effect

Governments are requiring organisations to make a net zero commitment and
start to take appropriate action. The impacts of this are widespread and both
present an opportunity to play a meaningful part in the transition and place a
requirernent on businesses, including Hifl & Smith, to reduce their own carbon
production.

Opportunities
We aim to be at the forefront of decarbonising all processes across our
businesses, so we are the supplier of choice.

ENABLING TECHNOLOGY

As sensing and data become less expensive and mare pravalent it can lead
to breakthroughs in how systems function

Effect

Within Hill & Srnith's markets, the Roads market 13 an early adopter.
Connected technology is used to increase the safety of road workers and
reduce congestion through road works 10 minimise the economic impact.
The effect of enabling technology will be felt across all markets in the
medium term,

Opportunities

We are actively looking at how this type of technology can be incorporated
into more of our preducts, having implemented this in our US reads product
portfalio.

VISION ZERO

Vision Zero is a strategy to eliminate af traffic fatalities and severe injuries,
while ncreasing safe, healthy, equitable mobility for all. First implemented
in Sweden in the 1990s, Vision Zero has proved successful across Europe
and has recently been adopted by the US Gavernment in their National
Roadway Safety Strategy to reduce the 40,000 p.a. US road deaths.

Effect

Rroad systerns are being designed to eliminate deaths, acknowledging

that human error is inevitable. This places a greater onus on the road

infrastructure ard will drive the implernentation of new technology and
- higher standards.

We aim to be atthe forefront of the development of Vehicle Restraint

Systerns (‘VRS’}eﬁd*ﬂmive safety systems 1&mpond to the latest trends
i, ¥isk ¥

“fur & eorrwamesm :hat.ﬂs. UK and Australia area&tye mboth ternporary and
germanent Vﬁsamipasswe safety produects. -

pice such as bridge flapses, fai sccidents and
Wrofie incidents. This leads to an increased focus

We are focused on ﬁyﬁier developing our resilient infrastructure products
fatmnt utility poles and composite products for the

w
waterfront and ot g Tiarkets.

Stock Code HILS
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DRIVING ORGANIC GROWTH

Autonomous operating model Premium on talent

We operate a decentralised autonomous operanng model, Talented peaple are fundamental to the success of our

which benefits from a highly accountable management, agity decentralised operating madel. 99% of our employees a-e employed
and customer intimacy, with the ability to attract talented by our operating companies We place great importance on

pecple who want to make g difference Ourindividual operating atrracnng, developing, and retanming exceptional pecple from across
companies are encouraged and incentivised to exercise agility the whole community, We seek 10 create an environment m which
and entrepreneunalis, and we allow them rcom to do so This indeadual difference 1s respected and everyone can give therr bes:

aporoach ensures that decisions a‘e made zlose 10 the market
and that our Jusingsses can respond rapidly ooth to epportunities
and o changes in their competitive environment

We recruized a Head of Reward and a Head of Talent into ouwr
small Group HR team who advise on culture and poelicy. create
development programmes, and manage the career and capasiity
development of high potential talent. Qur operating companies
are suppo-ted by a comrmunity of R professionals who enable
the ey emmployment strategies, programmes, and processes,

o ensure that the business attracts and retans the skills and
capabilities required o deliver the strategy

More information on the Group's aporoach to talent and diversity
can be found on pages 44 10 48

Innovation

Innovation s instrumental tn supporting our long term organic
profit growth targets We are committed fo innovating products in
*he medium term that meet evolving customer and market needs
We continue to accelerate our rate of innovation through our
innovation workshops

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

A disciplined M&A approach

Acquisitions form a key element of the Group’s growth strategy. All potential

| acquisitions are tghtly evaluated to ensure they fit with our purpose and can

‘ deliver sustainable organic profit growth. During the year we made good progress
| in building our Mg&A pipeline and we will develop this further in 2023

During 2022, we completed the disposal of France Galva which reduces our
exposure to the lower growth, lower margin French galvamizing market We
acguired National Signal, a tugh growth designer and manufacturer of off-gnd solar
lighting solutions i California, and Widnes Galvanising, to expand our geographic
footprint into the northwest of the UK.

In early 2023 we have also acquired Enduro Composites and Kons Galvanizing,
both businesses based in the US.

.

10 Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Vehicle safety barrier by Hill & Smith Infrastructure, A9 Drumochter

Sustainability

The majority of our revenue is dernved
from products and services that make
infrastructure more sustainable or <eep
penole safe For example, our composite
products, due ta therr low weight and high
strength have lower embaodied energy
than *raditional marternals. In recen:

yedars we have added solar nowered
lighting solutione o our sortfaho, helping
our customers to reduce their cabon
emissions. Similarly, our galvanizing
services extend the life of steel products
oy decades, reduning carbon emissions
by preventing rusting and ensuring that

at the end of the product’s bie the steelis
fit for recycling. Qur purpose ensures that
sustainability 1s a natural part of everything
that we do

More information on the Group's approach
0 sustainaoiity can be found on nages
32to41.

Health & Safety

The health, safety and wellbeing of

our employees s a key focus across

all operating companies All sites are
committed to minimising the nsks that
our people and visitors ‘ace dally, ensunng
that their oolicies, nrocedures, and nigk
assessments are followed ncreasingly
the Group adopts measures to mamrain
a safe working environment and to
ensure work related rnsks are effeciively
dentified and controlled Our manitaning
programmes help to spot issues at the
earliest opportunity and lessons are
learned f:om any events that do occur.

More infarmation on the Groud's approach
to health & safety can e found on pages
42 10 43

Governance

As an international group, we recognise
that acting ethically tpwards our
ermployees and gther stakeholders shows
DU commitment to doing business ina
responsible manner

More information on the Groua's aoproach
12 sustainanle governance can oe found
on pages 50to 57

FINANCIAL MODEL

Qur financial made! 1s based on strong
cash generation This allows us to
allocate capital to accelerate organic
growth, to make high quality acquisitions
and to mamtaim a sustainable,
progressive dividend policy

Qur objective 1s to deliver annual cash
conversion above B0% and we seek (0
maintain conservative leverage, targeting
a covenant net debtt to EBITDA ratic of
1.0to 2.0times

-

Capital Allocation Priorities

1. Reinvesting for organic growth
We allocate capital to support orgarc
growth, with the focus on higher
return niches and growth markets

2. Targeted acquisitions to
enhance growth
Acquisitions must it with our purpose
and strategy. We follow a structured
approach to acguisitions based on a
clear set of finanoial criteria, and we
expect acquisitions to achieve returns
above our Group WACC within a three-
year imeframe

3. Sustainable and progressive
dividend growth
We understand the importance of
providing consistent ang growing
returns to our shareholders, and
the Group's strong levels of cash
generation allow us to invest in
organic and inorganic growth while
paying a progressive dividend
We target dividend coverofc 25
times underlying earnings.

We use return on invested caprtal (ROIC)
to measure our overall capital efficiency
with a target of achieving returns in
excess of 18%, above the Group's cost of
capital, through the cycle.

Stock Code HILS
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WHAT WE DO -
DELIVER LONG TERM STAKEHOLDER VALUE

Through ouf international group of companies we aim to deliver long term
value for all our stakeholders by fulfilling our purpose and strategy.

® h A
EMPLOYEES PORTFOLIO COMPANIES
Talented people are fundamental to the success In order to achieve sustainable profitable organic growth, our
of our decentrahised model We aim to arowvide safe, ooerating companies seek to create and provide products that our
high-guality jobs for our employees worldwide, customers need They are supported by the resources of a larger
offering the potential for career development group grving them access 10 cash for capital investment, for product
and socie-economic mobility. We are comritted innovation, plart and equipment and development. in return they
to ensuring that we provide stable, inclusive must operate within a discipiined framework of clear strategic and
emafoyment for all members of the communmity in financial prionities, whilst at the sarre time applying the appropriate
successful and sustanable businesses. level of corporate governance and reporting.
\. AN
4 ™ ™ ™\

CUSTOMERS

COMMUNITIES AND SUPPLIERS

SHAREHOLDERS

N

Our autonomous ooerating
companies can work directly with
their local cemmunities in supporting
their economic aspiratiens and local
chartable intiatives.

_/

Our Supphers work closely with our
operating companies and we have
strong relationships that ensure a fair
and equitable financial arrangement.

Our Customers have confidence

in our expertise and our ability to
suppart critical projects. They benefit
from the value that our diverse range
of products and services provide.

Forour investors, we aim to deliver
superior shareholder returns through
our strategy and scalable business
model. We operate across several
geographies and therefore are not
dependent on one economy for
our success. We are focused on
territones where there are existing
high levels of investment, driven

ty the need to upgrade or replace
existing ageing infrastructure.

This drives high cash generation
that we are able to redistribute

to our shareholders through our
arogressive divigdend policy.

Hill & Smith PLC + Annual Report and Accounts 2022




DIVISIONS

Solar LED lights, Burnley
General Hospital

a ROADS &
SECURITY

Burnley General Hosoital was looking
for reliabie year-round lighting to
llumrinate its staff car park With no
mains oower supply, they needed

a solution that would save on the
high costs of a Distribution Network
Operator connecthion to get power o
the site. Prolectric’s AES Solar LED
street ights, with smart control and
Passwve Infra-Red sensors that ensure
the lights work from dusk until dawn
throughout all seasons, were the
ideal solution. Prolectric designed
the ighting layout to BS 5489-1:2020
highway standards ard installed the
lights using their n-house team.

Sustainability Improvements

The solar powered lights are zero
carbon and need no mains power,
saving energy use from the gnd. They
are quick and easy to install with no
trenching, ducting, or cabling and
need no maintenance, so have zero
runmIng costs.

Protectric Services
www rolectric ¢o uk

.

StormStrong® utility poles, Maine

ENGINEERED
SOLUTIONS

A uilty company in Maine, USA
contacted our Creative Composites
Groun to discuss SlormStrong”,
‘storm proc® unlity poles Maine faces
several challenges. it 1s geographically
dispersed with harsh, unpaved terrain
often i between customers and
power hubs, and 15 also impacted each
year oy deep freezes, thick snow and
ice, and heavy rainfall StormStrong®
noles are equal to Maine's toughest
condittons They absorb significant
impact energy, commaonly caused by
severe storms In addition they are rot
and woodpecker proof,

Sustainability Improvements

StermStrong *poles, having low
embodied carbon and reducing
rehiance on woed, stand up to the
mast extreme weather, terrain and
environmental condimons to help
create a resilient grnid and to protect
utility customers

Creative Composites Group
www.creativecompositesgroup.com

Galvanized pig lift, Perbrokeshire

E GALVANIZING
SERVICES

Beneath the Wood, an award-winning
vegan sanctuary based in Wales,
needed ammal {ifting equioment that
would help them care for their pigs
They sought a solution that was strong
and modular enough to accommodate
different size animals Once this

was designed it was dehvered 1o our
Joseoh Ash, Walsall, site 1o be treated
with a galvanized coating to prolong
the life of the equipment

Sustainability Improvements

Hot-dip galvanizing provides a

long-ife, low-maintenance corresion
protection, safeguarding the steel from
atmospheric attack, which causes rust
and weakening.

Joseph Ash
www |osephash.co.uk

Stock Code HILS
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The Creative Composites Group’s
Fiber-reinforced polyral (3 RPY frre-
resistant utilty pales can be used to
protect the grid from the excess.ve
heat generated by typical brush/
grass fires. FireStrong™ utility poles
mantaim thewa structural integrity
after a fire, so they can be kept In
serv.ce, In addition, the integration
of an irreversibie temperature
monitoring system helps utiity
workers determine whether pole
strength retention was successful.

Utitity poles are engimeered to

last up to 75 years n some of the
harshest environments with little
to no maintenance Adding fire-
resistant poles further increases
their durability and longevity in
fire-prone areas As a result, poles
will be Jess susceptible to damage
and degradation caused by the
heat from a fire. A third-party
testing agency tested the poles by
simutating a chaparral wildfire. Qur
FireStrong™ poles withstood three
runutes at 2,100°C and retained
100% of their design strength

o

FireStrong™ Self-Monitoring
Composite Pole Systems

FireStrong™ poles include an
irreversible temperature manitoring
system that ‘s placed around the
pole. The system 1s engineered

to continuously monitor the
temperature experenced by the
pole and permanently record the
highest temperature measured

on its surface. Dunng post-fire
mspections, utility workers can
compare this measurement to a
temperature vs. strength retention
chart for the particular type of FRP
pole, to evaluate whether the utility
pole has to be replaced. This step
helps shorten the amount of tme
required for inspections without
sacrificing the quality of the results

The key benefits of non-
combustible FireStrong™ poles
are ignition prevention, increased
grid resiliency and cost savings
A gnd protected by FireStrong™
power poles will be less likely to
experience a failure due to fire As
a result, they wiil not need to be
rermoved and replaced, meaning
utility companies will not need

to invest time and money into
performing these operations, and
end customers will not need to
suffer through gnd downtime

i1

The key
benefits of non-
combustible
FireStrong™

poles are ignition
prevention,
increased grid
resiliency and
cost savings.”

Stock Code HILS
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Waterways and docklands

Dockside camels Piers & walkways

An attractive option to protect both FRP composite material does
vessels and piers from damage, not leach, flake or rot into water
FRP composite material's ability systems and can replace wood in
to resist corrosion in a harsh marine applications

Pier protection

Fiber Reinforced Polymer ('FRP’) large
diameter pilings and wale beams arc
the ideat solution for pier protection a— o
systems designed to withstand high
energy impacts from marine traffic

saltwater environment makes it an
environmentally friendly solution

ooooon

—
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Flood defences
Maritime guide walls FRP flood protection. Movable
FRP flexible fender system that dams that can be raised and
hends under vessel contact but lowered during changing
then recovers without breaking water levels

Rural

Flood doors
Specialist composite flood
doors that significantly

reduce the volumes of

Agriculture
Galvanized
farm buildings

Wetlands boardwalks
Composite low embodied
energy planks for lightweight
environmentally friendly
walkway solutions

Green bridges

BEBO Arch System is a standardised
patented precast concrete arch system
for the design and construction of grass

Trail bridges

covered bridges, tunnels, culverts and ather Lightweight, strong,

underground structures portable and longlasting
low embodied energy
FRP bridges for parks

and trails




Suburban

@PE

Temporary safety barrier
Metal and concrete

work zone protection for
roadworks and traffic
management

D&

Zoneguard
temporary barrier
Protects road work
employees, whilst
allowing continued
safe traffic flow

@E

Crash cushions

The Smart Cushion®
crash attenuator, with
remaote monitoring, is
a revolutionary, speed-
dependent product

Roadside barrier
Metal roadside
crash protection

Windfarms
Composite blade
refurbishment and
steel platforms

that varies stopping
resistance during v
an impact

Trailer bodies
Galvanized retal

@ chassis

Work zone solar

powered lighting
@ @ @ Sustainable solar
powered lighting
Bridge parapets Road message backed up by
Bridge-side crash boards innovative technology @
protection integrated Traffic and industry leading
@ @ Solutions enhance remote monitoring and Constructicn
transportation and contral Galvanized

improve safety and structural steel

Bridges ove
Galvanized road mobility in and around
bridges work zones. Includes

internet connectivity
with moter vehicles




Solar fields
Galvanized
steel frames for
solar panels

- | ENERGY 20y,

Electrical

substation

Electric transmission
solutions using

steel and composite
materials

LNG Plant

Metal grating and
flooring and engineered
support products,
including cryogenic pipe
supports thal provide
isolation and insulation

Electrical
transmission poles
Steel transmission
poles and anti-wildfire
composite poles that
do not biodegrade

Paper mills

FRP products that
have the durability and
abrasion resistance
to outperform
conventional
materials in harsh and
acidic environments

@&

Data centre
security systems
Palisade perimeter
security fencing,
hostile vehicle and
entry protection

Town

&

MASS temporary
security fencings
Highly visible
temporary safety
solution protecting
sites, workforces and
pedestrians

Street signs
Street sign materials

Composite rail
platforms

FRP corrosion
resistant structures
and lightweight
panels providing
cost effective and
convenient soluticns

Composite
railcar chassis

FRP lightweight highly
energy efficient floor
panels and door
jambs for refrigerated
freight cars
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Haotels {A/C)

Modular cooting tower

Apartments design detivering low Solar powered street lights
{Fire doors) lifecycle costs, durability Solar lighting for streets, car
Fully tested, and sustainability parks and footpaths offering
accredited apartment powerfut and reliable year-
entrance doors for round lighting without noise wr
use in internal and emissions

external applications

Hospital {A/C)

. :
¢

Apartments Seismic and anti- Pedestrian ‘ :
(Balconies) vibration cooling safety Street lights |
Structural shapes towers for criticai bollards Manfjfa?t“’e and ?
for both residential rooftop applications,  Impact dlStI’Ibuti(?n. of st_eel' :
and commercial that bridge the testeq and aluminium lighting
applications, gap between security columns ;
with minimum sustainability and bolla.rc.is :
maintenance energy efficiency prowdm.g
requirements pedestrian @ i

protection :

L8 8 4 {

Sculptures i
Galvanized steel .
works of art for
private and public
display

o

MProTeCTIONT®
Masonry supports @ @

and wind posts

Providing steel Composite . . L

support systems pedestrian walkways Hosl,le Veh_n:le M_lt_lgat.mn

for buildings ' Low maintenance Host|_le Vehu:lg Mitigation
@ lightweight FRP solutions ranging from small

recreational and single gate installations to

Parking and Electric charging public access large state e\:'ents requiring
security gates points elevated boardwalks a full secure island site
Manufacturers of Charge points and sidewalks

parking control incorporated into our

equipment street lighting columns




V&S Galvanizing’s Columbus plant
supported a farming project for
Plenty Unlimited based in San
Francisco, California They use Al
and robots to farm, which uses
99% less land and 95% less water
compared with conventionat
farming.

The robotic base needed to be
sustainable and durable. The

V&S team discussed the design
alongside the venting and draining
requirements that were necessary
to make sure that the robotic base
housing would have the bast quality
appearance, coating durability and
corrosion performance and be
appropriate for the wet conditions
that occur in indeor vertical
farming

The robotic design is attached to
the base housing, with the robotic
arm grabbing a row of seedlings
and placing them into a hydroponic

N

planter An even larger robot arm
then flips the planter vertically

and sends it to become one small
section of a 20" tall wall of arugula,
kale and beet leaves A gaivanized
robotic base will last years to
come without worrying about the
durability of the coating system.

The company’s farm is yielding
enough produce to fill 720 acres

of typical farmland, but they are
doing it with just two acres of
vertical farming. Plenty Unlmited
says their farm produces 400
times more food per acre than the
traditional farm. The automated
rabotic technology also means
that besides the clear increase in
food production, vegetation can

be produced without the use of
pesticides and without the risk of
extremne weather, Qut of season
plants can be grown close to home
without adding the carbon footprint
of transport

Galvanizing supports sustainable farming

a1

The robotic

base housing
would have the
best quality
appearance,
coating durability
and corrosion
performance and
be appropriate for
the wet conditions
that occurin
indoor vertical
farming”
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REVIEW

Alan Giddins
i~tar besol

REVIEW OF 2022

2022 was a successiul year, with the Groun
ashieving record revenue and operating profit
The strong performance demonstiates the
resilence of our atractive, jong term end
markets and the benefits of cur portfolio
management actions which have placed

a focus on higher growth, ligher margin
businesses In particular, our US businesses
represented 64% of Group aperating profis,
and this 1s exaected to increase fuithe:
following our recent acquisitions of National
Signal, Enduro Composites and Korns
Galvamzing The results are also testament
to our agile operating model and our talented
local teams, who have successfully navigated
the challenges presented by the external
envIronment

Organic grow'h remains a key focus, and we
are pleased to report that the Group delvered
14% revenue and operating profit growth

from continuing ooerations, on an OCC basis.
In addition, we delivered strong operating
margin progression with FY22 margin
increasing by 90 basis points to 13.3%, which
reflects an improved portfolic mix, operaticnal
geanng and our piicing power offsetting input
cost inflation

2022 saw the Galvanizing Services division
delver a standout trading performance, with
st-ong volume g-owth in the US and both
geographies benefiting from pricing actions
and a strategic focus on fugher margin

customers Our =ngineered Solutions division
{formerly known as Utilitres) also delivered
strong growth, unde-pinned by ouoyan:
demand agross the portfolic, sarticularly in
our US-based businesses

In the Roads & Secunty division, reported
revenue and profit were similar to 2021

levels As oreviously highlighted, the US roads
business expenenced certaim operahonal
chailenges which we have taken action

to address, and we expect an improved
performance in 2023, In the UK, utiksation

of aur temporary safety barrier fleet was
lower than 2027 due to further delays in
strateqic road network projects, however this
was partly offset by & robus* performance

in the wider UK roads and secunty portfolio
including good growth in our off gnd solar
lighting and power business

The G-oup delivered much improved cash
conversion in the second half of 93%, with
year end net debt reducing to 6.7 times
EBITDA on a covenant basis. Our strong
balance sheet underpins the resilience of

the Group and provides us with flexibility to
continue to invest in growth. In November,
we successfully completed the refinancing of
our principal bank debt facility on competitive
terms, providing us with certainty of funding
to support the Groun's growth ambitions

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

STRATEGIC UPDATE

Our strategic decision maxng 15 guided

9y our purpose of "ereating sustanable
infrastruciure and safe transport through
innovation” Our purpose, alongside
consideration of long term macro and market
dnivers, deterrmines our choice of markets and
applications

Organic growth activities are focused on high
value, fast growing, niche cpportunities Our
decentralised autonomous operating maodel
drives high levels of accountability, agibity
and customer intimacy, and allows us to
focus on these opportunities ina way that a
more centralised, volume-driven arganisation
could not

Acquisitions and Disposals
Acquisitions form a key part of the Group's
growth strategy. During the year we have
made progress in building our M&A pipeline,
with a continued focus on high quality
pusinesses with attractive organic growth
potenual In 2023, we will develop the pipeline
further, the Corporate Development team and
Group Presidents will work closely with our
operating company management teams to
unlock attractive acquisition opportunities

All potential acquisitions are tightly evaluated
to ensure they fit with our purpose and core
sirategic goals. Once acguired, we implement
a rigorous and detailed integration plan.
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The strong
performance
demonstrates the
resilience of our -
attractive, long te’-‘rm
end markets and

the benefits of our- -
portfolio managemen

actions which have
placed a focuson. -
hfghef g 'DWth h;gher

In line wizh our Ino-ganic growth strategy, we
acquired two value enhancing ousinesses
dunng 2022 in October we were delighted

to acquire National Signal, a high growth
designer and manufacturer of of-gnd solar
hghting solutions in the US, for £24 2m

The business benefizs from the ongoing
transibon from fossit fuels ' a zerc-carbon
economy and s complermentary to our

20271 acquisiion of Prolectng, a UK market
leade in off-grid sofar energy solutions, and
will furthe” acceterate our strategy n this
attractive grow:h market In the same month,
we announced our acquisition of Widnes
Galvamising for £3.9m, which further expands
the geographic footprint of our UK galvanizing
business into the north west of the UK

Afrer the year end, In February 2023, we
announced the acquisition of Enduro
Composites, a designer, manufacturer and
supplier of engineered composite solutiens
pased in Houston, Texas for £28.7m. Enduro
15 highly complernemnary to our existing

US composites businegss and will further
accelerate our strategy in the exciting and
growing composites market, In March

2023, we announced the acquisition of
Kems Galvanizing based in Johnstown,
Pennsylvania for £6.4m, strengthening our US
galvanizing market presence

Stock Code HILS

During 2022 we completed a numoer of
mporsant and targeted divesiments In
O:zober, we completed the disposal of France
Galva, cui French galvarizing and steet
Iighting column cperations While =rance
Galva was a 3 ofitable pait of the Group,

the forecast growth rates did not ireet the
Group's long term growth ambriions and 125
oaetating Targins were helow the Groud
average Given owr galvant/ing Speratunns
serve local geagraphucal markets, the disposal
has no impact on our higher growlt, nyle-
margin gakvanizing operations n the UK and
US, both of which we remam cormmitted to

in the long term. In addition, our US Roads
husiness exited 175 low margin alashz cones
product ine and we completed the disposal of
two of the three diviskons in our [9ss-making
Swedish road business

Medium Term Financial Framework
Our disciphined financial framework s one of
the key foundations ot the Group's long term
success. Given the significant actions taken
during 2022 to enhance the qualty of the
porfolio, we have reviewed and ecalibrated
our medium-term financial framework

Our refreshed annual performance targets
through the cysle are’

+organic revenue growth 5% /%

- total -evenue growth including
acquisitions 10%+

«operaung profit margin 15%

+  return ononvested capital 18%+
+ cash conversion 80%+

+  covenant leverage 110 2times

This organic growth performance through the
cycle, alongside value enhancing acquisiiions,
will deliver supernior EPS grow:h Our clear
focus on cash generation and returns enables
the cash generated to be re-invested n

high growth, igh return opportunities. This

is all delivered within a disciplined capital
allocation framework while maintaining a
strong valance sheet

ESG

The growih of our business 1s naturally
alignad to our ZSG (Environmental Social
and Governance) agenda our products
and services make infrastructure more
sustainable and increase transport safety

In 2021 we outhned our ESG strategy which
identified our seven priority areas, related
action plans and key metrics. This included
ouwr commitment to achieve net zero for
our Scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2040 and
commiument to the Science Based Targets
intiative {SBT1) to limut global warming
f015°C

In February 2022, we recruited a Head of
Sustainahitity who has been leading an
extensive project 1o baseline our Scooe
3caibon evissions and we are dleased
1 report that we a"e on track to sub it
oul 3BT targets ahcad o the equired
August 2023 deadline Alongside this
ourteams are cantinuing to dove [ocal
crelgy saving intiatives and expglore green

echnology options (o unde pin our CArDonN
reduwon plan

Keeoing ou- employees safe while al work
remains ou number one prionty and in 2022
our gperating companies develaved {ocal
safety imarovement dlans, alongside Group
led mniniatives, ncluding the implementaticn
of nine core lifesaving rules and hazard
identification training While we still have
mare work to do, we are pleased that the
actions taken during the year resulted in a
35% reduction in Lost Time Incidents, with
LTIR ~educing to 1 1, ahead of ou- targe:

of 15

Talent developirent and engagemen’ are
criical to the success of our autonomaous
operating model and a key focus area for our
ESG strategy With this in mind, we expanded
ou- talent management prograrmme and
ntroduced a new apaipach to development
for our Managing Di-ectors, with growth
mindset, =5G and innovation 1dentified as
priority focus areas We aiso ran our second
innovation forum and have further workshops
olanned for 2923 to foster innovation and
share best practice Qur annual engagement
survey showed a good improvement in
employee engagement levels to 51% (2027
55%) During the year we apoointed a Head
of Talent 1o work with our operating company
teams to further iImorove engagenment

n 2023

As an crganisation we want to employ the
best people for the joo, and we xnow that

we can only do this by consicening talented
people from the whole comnrunity. During the
year, we were delighted o appoint our first
two female Managing Directors and to see an
increase In female senior ieaders to 20% Our
established apprenticeship scheme s also

a key intmative for attracting more diversity
Into our business, and in 2022 a third of new
apprentices were female

140d3Y 219314 LS
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW continuec

BOARD UPDATES

In July 2022 Paul Simmaons stepoed down
frome his role as CThief Zxecutive Difizer alan
Giddins, the Groun's Chatr, has takan over ag
wmtenm Cxecutive Shar untl the process o
find a pe-mranent CEO has been comoleted

Juring the year, we anaointed Farrokh
Batliwala as a L3 based Non-executive
Director rarokh’s appointment reflects the
Board's careful succession planning te recruis
Non-execuzive Jirectars with the necessaiy
skills, experience and diversity 1o Suppor: the
Group's higher quatity grow!h agenda

RESULTS FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Group has delivered a strong set of
results for 2022 Revenue was £732 1m
{2021 £625.2m), anncrease of 17% on a
-eportad basis Constant currency revenue
growsh was 12% and OCC revenué growth
was 14% Unde‘lying operating profit was
£S97 “m {20217. £77 3m), an increase of 26%
on a "epe-ted basis Constant currency
operating o ofit growth was 17% and OCC
grow:h was 14% Ooderating marging imaroved
0 13 3% ({2021 12 4%) Underlying arofit
before taxation was £87 9 (2021 £71 2m)
Reported operating orofit was £78 5m (202

£43.9m) and reported profit before tax was
£693m (2021 £42 8m). Underiying earnings
2o shareincreased to 85.4p (2021 70 0p)
and reported earnmgs per share was 68 72
(2021, 35 8p)

The princial reconciing items belween
undertying and reported operating orofit a-e
non cash charges inciuding the amortsation
of acquisihion intangibles of £6 Jm and

the imoarment of acquired intangibles
associated with one of aur securnty
businesses of £4 4m Note 5 ot the financial
statements provides further detalls on the
Group's non-underhying items

DIVIDEND

Based on the strong trading performance,
the Board is recommending a final dividend
of 22 09 per share, making a *otal dividend
for the year of 35.0p per share (2027 31 0p)
The final dividend, 1f approved, wili be paid on
7 July 2023 to shareholders on the register
on 2 dune 2023 Looking forward, we aim to
orovide sustainable and progressive dividend
growth, fargeting a prudent dividend cover of
around 2 5 imes underlying earnings

OUTLOOK

The Group 1s well oositioned in arange

of nfrastuucture markets with atractive,
long tern structural growih divers, The
geographic mix f the portfolio has atso
evolved with a stronges werghting towards
US end rrar<ets These factors, alongside the
nenefiis of our agile, A onoMous ooerating
maodel, piovide the Board with confidence
that Hill & Smith will continue 1o make
good progress in 2023, despite the macro-
ceoncmic headwinds

In the medwm to longer term, the outlook I1s
supported by strong market growth drivers
for both sustaimable infrast-ucture and safe
transport Inparticular, our US ousinesses
are well placed to benefit from the increased
levels of nfragtructure spend appraved under
the Infrastructure Investment and Joos Act
LAY

Hot-dip galvanizing, V&S Galvanizing, Gwego, NY
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% CASE STUDY

V&S Galvanizing -

V&S Galvamzing's New York olan,
situated in Owego, New York State, has
since it opened in 20720, developed a
successful local management team that
has significantly increased sales volumes
and improved the customer experience
in 2022

The team comprises: Eamonn MaCarthy,
oreviously Operations Manager at V&S
Taunion plant, who as the new Plant
Manager was tasked with bringing a
positive attitude and strong team building
skills to New York; Enrigue Vergani, a
twenty-year veteran of the galvanizing
industry, who also transferred from our
Taunton plant and was promoted to
Operaticns Manager, Lora Stadeiman,

a newly-recruited Sales Manager, who
despite being new 1o the galvanizing
industry has several years’ expenence

in steel fabrication markets, and Amber
Jackson, whose career in the company
has progressed from Logistics through
Quality Control to Production Manager

Owego, NY Plant

Building om a great foundation of
baselzad cus:omers that include steel
products for the bridge industry, deep
foundation piles and highway drainage
grates, the management team has driven
oroduction and service improvements
that allow for greater volumes of steel to
move quickly through the facility, resulting
n significant volume increases in the
secend half of 2022 Large contracts
recently secured include Great Lakes
Cheese Plant expansion (1,400 tons),
MMAST Naval Platforms (2,000 tons)

and The Castletocn Bridge repair project
{476 tons). V&S New York is now well-
positioned 1o see its business continue to
grow over the coming years, with a strong
mix of customer end markets supperted
by excellent operaticnal perfermance and
high levels of service

i

V&S New York is
now well-positioned
to see its business
continue to grow
over the coming

Ath a strong
1er end

performance and

high levels of service”
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW continced

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

constant
Reoorted  cuirency 0oCC
. Continuing Operations? 2021 % % %
Revenue 1418 +27 +20 +20
Underlying operating profit! 33.4 +32 +23 +23
Underlying oserating margin %! 23.6%
Statutory operating profit 309
e barg e @11 rote A0 e Foaroal Lfateete oty e exclace certar coosur e g ke s weiel are
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The Galvanizing Services division offers us

hot-dip galvamzing and powder coaung
services with multi-plant faciliies in the LSA
and the UK Hot-dip galvanizing 1s a proven
steel cormosion pratection solution which
significantly extends the service life of steel
structures and oroducts The division benefits
from a wide sectoral spread of customers
who aoerate in readient end markets including
road infrastrusture commercial construction,
transportation, and energy transmission and

| distnbution. The division represents 45% of

2022 underlying ooerating arofit.

: The division delivered an impressive

i performance in 2022, with revenue 20%
higher and underlying operating profit 23%
higher than las® year on an OCC basis. The
dvision mantained supenocr margins, with
underlying operating margin tncreasing to
24 3% (2021 23 6%) The results reflect
strong volume growthin the US, successful
pricing achons taxken to offset input cost
nflation and a deliberate focus on higher
margin customears,

Predoninantly located in the northeast and
midwest of the country, the US galvamzing
business delivered a strong performance,
with 23% QCC revenue growth and record
operating profit. The strong growth 1s
attributable to an 11% increase N production
valurres, improved pnicing to offset cost
input inflation, favourable product mix and
anincreased level of value-add coating
services As a result, the business continued
to maintain superior operating margins, with
customers vatuing the excellent quality of
service provided by our local teams

In March 2023, we were pleased to acguire
Korng Galvanizing for a constderation of
£9.4m. Located in Johnstown, Pennsylvania,
Korns specialises in spin galvanizing and
has a customer base spread across a broad
range of infrastructure related end markets
Karns will be managed by our existing

US galvanizing team and will exaand our
production capacity in the key northeastern
market, and broaden the range of galvanizing
services we can offer to our existing
customer base

26  Hill & Smith PLC - Apnual Report and Accounts 2022

GALVANIZING SERVICES

In the medium ‘o fonger term, the outlook for
LS galvanizing 1s positive, with investment
levels expected ‘o grow ahead of GOP N
arange of US galvanizing end markets,
supported by the 1luA and a more general
mave to the onshoring of certain activities
We have started to quote on some

IJA related peojects and expect 1o see
incremental growthn the bridge and highway
market in the second half of 2023

UK

UK galvanizing delvered 17% organic revenue
growth and record operating profit in 2022
Thus reflects a particwlarly strong first half
with swift pricing actions taken to address
nput costinflation and a focus on tvgher
maigin, service onientated customers. The
second half was more challenging as certan
customers, particularly in the agrcultural
sector, have begun ta feel the effects of
nsing energy costs. Total volumes of steel
gatvanized were 9% lower than 20271.

In October 2022, we were nleased o
announce the acquisition of Widnes
Galvanising Linited for consideration

of £3.9m. The acquisition expands the
geographic footprint of our UK galvanizing
business into the northwest of the UK and the
integration of the business is going well.

While mindful of the wider UK macro-
economic backdrop, the 2023 outlook for UK
galvamzing 1s cautiously positive. Qur team
ae focused on balancing pnice and cost
management to ensure plant profitabfity

15 maximised and planned investments in
sales and marketing will further support

the increased focus on high margin marke:
sectors



StormStrong® sheet pilings supplied by CCG to Lindenhurst Village, NY

Constant
Reported  currency oce
Continuing Operations® 2521 % % %
Revenue 2237 +30 +21 +21
Underiying operating profit ! 26.0 +35 +24 +24
Underlying operating margin %' 11 6%
Statutory operating profit 255
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Our Engineered Solutons division (formerly
known as Utilittes) provides steel and
composite solutions with low embodied
energy for a wide range of infrastructure
markets including energy generation and
distribution, marine, rail and housing The
dwision also supplies engineered supports
for the water. power and hquid natural gas
markets, and seismic protection solutions
for commercial constiuction. While the
division has been renarmmed in 2022, there has
been no change to the partfalio of operating
companies that it includes

The dwvision continued o deliver good resuits
in 2022, with 21% revenue and 24% profit
growth on an OCC basis, With a strong second
half performance, operating margins increased
t0 12 1% (2021: 11.6%), reflecting the qualty of
our faster growing US businesses.

us

Qur US businesses delivered 23% OCC
revenue growth and strong profit growth
aganst robust prior year comparators.
Operating profit generated by our US
businesses represented ¢ 80% of the total
profit for the division in 2022, highighting
the increasing importancze of the US to the
Group’s growth strategy.

Stock Code HILS

Our composites business was the largest
company within the dwasion in 2022 and
continued o see strong demand for its range
of composite engineered solutions including
utility poles, waterfront protection and mass
transit intrastructure, In February 2023 we
were pleased to acquire Endurc Composites
for a cash consideration of £28 7m.

Located in Texas, Enduro Cormposites 1s

a designer, manufacturer and supplier of
engineerad composite solutions and 1 highly
complementary to owr existing northeastarn
and midwestern US business, further
accelerating our strategy in the exciting and
growing composites market.

Qur electricity distribution substation
business delivered impressive profit growth
and s record level of operating profit, with
customer demand increasing as stee! price
challenges subsided and pricing actions were
taken to offset nflanon. The business enters
2023 with a record order book supperted by
high project demand to upgrade electricity
infrastructure,

Qur engineered sunports business also
delvered record orofits with significant
growth due *a higher sales volumes in
catalogue hardware, improved pricing and

asicher orodust mix of project specific
engineered supoorts for key markets
including water treatment and electnc
vehicle producton Dunng the year, the
business successfully navigated supply chan
chalienges, which criabled market share
gan, and 1s well positioned o make further
2rogressin 2023

Prospects for future growth in all our US
businesses are very encouraging We
expact marke: demand to be supported Dy
mvestment to modernise the electnicity grid
and salutions o protect against extreme
weather The outlock is further supported
by multryear planned government spending
onnfrastructure via the I1JA, and onvate
nvestment from US manufacturers and
aroducers to onshore vital comaonents.

UK

Revenue in our UK businesses grew 21%
on an organic basis The industrial flooring
business, In particular, delivered a record
performance, reflecting buoyant dermand
rom data centre and il & gas markets and
successful pricing actions This business
enters 2023 with a good order book and
healthy sales pipeline

Our lower rmargin UK enly based Suiding
product busmess delivered a performance in
line with 2021, having successfully managed
inflationary pressures and supply chain
challenges. The year started strongly with
high levels of customer demand, however
markets cooled in the second half with wider
concerns arocund interest rates and house
prices. We expect end markets to continue to
be challenging in 2023, however the renewed
focus on customer service and delivery under
a new management team should support
sales grow'h through market share gams.

140d3Y J1931vals
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

ROADS & SECURITY

Smart Cushion® crash attenuator, Highway 285, Sheridan, CO supplied by Hill & Smith Inc

Constant

Repeited  currency OCcC

Caontinuing Operations? 2021 % % %

Revenue 2597 +1 -1 +5

Lndetlying operating orofit' 179 +1 -4 17
Lnderlying cperating margm %' 6 9%
Statutory operating orofit/{loss) (7.5}

L ote 4 10100 Freg inial Stater e 15 ant exclone oe 1an ~on-. o ae e e s wteh g @

al Slate ments
M3l T EAS

vxolane,

The Roads & Security division supplies
products and services to support the delivery
of safe road and highway infrastructure,
alongside a range of security products to
protect people, bulldings and infrastructure
from attack. In addition, the division now
includes two businesses which are market
leaders in the provision of off-grid solar
lighting and power solutions

Ravenue and oiofit were broadly m hine with
2021 levels, with evenue 1% lower and
underlying operating profit 4% lower on a
constant currency basis Operating marging
were also rraintained at 6 9% (2027 6 9%)
The 2022 result <eflects an underperformance
N our US roads husiness and as expected,
lower yiisation of the UK temporary safety
harner fleet, offse! by a good pertormance in
the wider LUK Roads & Secunty portfolig

UK Roads

Revenue was 3% higher than 2027 on an
organic hasis. in January 2022, the UK
Government 1ssued its response to the
Transport Committee review on the roll-cut
and safety of smart motorways, which set out
recommendations including pausing the roll-
out of further all lane running schemes until
sufficient safety data i1s available (expected
end of 2024} and the retrofit of additional
emergency refuge areas. The requirement

to redesign projects following this
announcerment, alongside UK Government
uncertainty in H2, resulted in scheme delays
and lower average utilisation of our temporary
safety barner during the year Based on
customer discussions, we expect the lower
level of project starts *o continue into the first
quarter of 2023, however our expectation is

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

that overal! fleet utilisation will Increasa in
2023 ag cantral reservation upgrade projects
cammence after redesign work

In the year, we saw good demand across

the wider UK roads portfolio, particularly for
road safe support structures, with the growth
nartly offsetting the shortfall in the rental
harner fleet In addition, Prolectric, our off-
grid solar energy business, detivered strong
growth and enters 2023 with a good order
book supported by increasing demand for fow
carcon and energy cost saving solutions

US Roads

Revenue was 10% higher than 2027 on an
OCC basis. Operating profit was lower than
last year, mainly due to operational and cost
challenges as previously outlined Actions
have now been taken to address the 1ssues
including refreshing the senior management
team. In May 2022, the business exited from
its low margin plastic drums, cones and
channelizers business, which will enable
greater focus on higher margin, higher growth
opportunities. Overall market demand for
roadside safety products remains strong and
we expect the business to make progress in
2023

In Qctober 2022, we were delighted to
acquire Naugonal Signal for consideration of
£24 2m, with further consideration payabie
of up to £3.3m conditicnal on achievement
of financial performance targets in the three



years post acquisiion Nationa! Signal,
located in Fullerton, Cahfornia, is a designer
and manufacture of off-gnd solar lighting
solutions and taffiz management products
The business oenefits fram the ongoing
sansion from fossil fuels 10 a zero-carson
economy, as well 3s the need to "educe noise
pollution, driven by government legislaucn
and custome demands. The acquisition 15
complermentary to Prolectric, our market
ioading LIK n*f-grid solar energy business and
witl furthe: accelerate our growth strategy

in this attractive market Trading since
acguwisition has been ahead of expectanons
and *he 2023 order book is at a record tevel.

The outlock for US roads remains
encouraging, with demand for tested roadside
safety oroducts supported by the intreduction
of new safety standards and increased levels
of state and federal investment to upgrade US
road infrastructure. The llJA includes a five-
year -eauthorisation of the US federal highway
arogramme, and incremental investment of

& 51109n1n highway and brnidge
improvermens through o 2026 We expect

US roads to oe one of the first ceneficiaries of
the llJA spend

Stock Code HILS

Other International Roads

In Australia, we cantinue to see good
marke* dernand for traffic safety equinment,
supported by signiitcant government
mvestment in land transportinfrastructure
across Austraha through s Infrastruciute
lnvestrent Program During the yea

we invested £5.5n 1n steel and conc-ete
temporaiy ba ner fleet 1o suppo-t mar<et
demand. In Sweden, we completed the
dwestment of the rental and infrastructu‘e
divistens of our loss making road business
during the year and we are assessing oplions
for the remaiming part of that business

140d34 2193LvHLS

Security

Our Security businesses are based in the UK
and provide a range of penmete” securty
solutians including hostile vehucle mitigation
HYMY 1o hoth LK and ternaticnal rarkets
Revenue was 6% ahead of 202 on an OCC
basis. Duing the yeas we have seen an
encouraging recovery in UK and mternational
marke’s for HVM solutions inzluding puhc
place protection, arports, -ail statons and
norts Our UK security barrier rental business
werformed waell, particularly in the second
half, as our security solutions were deployed
to support the Commonwealth Games in
Birrmungharm.

Our perimeter access security business,
Parking Facilities, continued to experience
challenges during 2022 with increased
campetiion in the market and, having
reassessed the value of remaning acquisition
ntangibles, we have recognised a further
impairment charge of £4.4m A planis in
alace to improve customer service and
delivery in 2023

Barkers Engineering’s mesh security fencing, Data Centre, Barcelona
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW connes

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Allocation

The Group follows a disciphned approach o
catal allocauon Fust we allocate capital
10 sU2PCrt organic grow:h, with a focus an
higher return niches and grawth markers We
require oui operating comsanies to manage
waorking capitat efficiently, considering their
respecive growth rates, and we invesl i
capital projects and mnovation to suoport
future organic growth, with around £29m of
2027 capex allocated to growth investments

Second, we allocate capitai to make

high quatity acquisitions, with a focus on
bustnesses which have a clear ahighment
with our purpose and have long term grow'h
potential We follow a structured approach 1o
acquisiuons based on a clear set of financial
critena, and we exdect acquisitions ‘o achieve

raturng above our Group WACC within a three-

year timef:ame Based on our hughly cash
generative model, we are targeting to reinvest
around F50m - £70m each year on value
enhancing acquisiiions In 2022 we spent
£25 6m on the acquisitions of National Signal
and Widnes Galvanizing Our acquisttion
pipeline 1s strong, and 1s focused on high
quality, strategically aligned opportunities

We also aim to orovide sustamable and
progressive dwidend growth, with a targe*
dividend cover of 2.5 imes underlying
eainings We understand the importance of
providing consistent and growing returns 1o
our shareholders as part of our overall capital
allocation framework, and the Group’s strong
levels of cash generation allow us to invest In

i

oigamc and inorganiz growrth while paying a
progressive dividend

We use return on invested caprtal (ROIC) to
rmeasule our overall caprial efficiency, with a
taiget of achieving returns in excess of 18%,
ahove the Goup's cost of camtal, thiough
the cycle We are pleased to report that the
Grouis's ROIC from continuing aperations
2022 increased to 19 2% (202117 1%), the
improvernent reflecting the strong trading, our
disciplined approach to capital investment,
and the steps we have taken 1o improve the
averall qualty of the portfolio

Cash generation

As expected, we saw improved cash
convession in the second half at 93%,
compared to 2% in the first half, with

overall cash conversion for the year a1 51%
Assuming mo-e typical trading patterns, we
expect the Group to deliver improved cash
conversion in 2023, 10 line with our target levet
of 80%+ and consistent with histonz levels
averaging 83% over the last ten years The
caloulation of our underlying cash conversion
ratio can e found in note 4 to the financial
slatements

Ope-ating cash flow before movemen:

n worng caoital was £128.8m {2021
£1328m) The working capital outflow in the
year was £42 6m (2021 £6 8m) The outflow
nartly reflects working capital absorotion

to support good growth, alongside an
increase innventory due to cost inflation
and a tactical increase in stock holding in
certain husinesses to manage supply chain
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shallenges The Group continues o focus on
maximising working capital efficiency, with
working capital as a pe-centage of annuahsed
sales at 18% Debtor days were n line with
axpectations at 60 days (2021 57 days
excluding France Galva).

Caotal expenditure of £31 5m1 (2021 £35 9m)
resresents a multiple of depreciation and
amortisation of 1 b times (2027 1 ¢ times)
Significant investment In the year included
£5.5m on temporary barmer fleet o support
growing demand in the Australian roads
market and £3.0m on tempaorary barrier fleet
for the US Roads market We also invested
£1.9m on rental assets for Prolectric, our fast-
growing UK off-gnid solar hghting and power
business and £2 4m on purchasing a facility
for our US compzosite busimess 2072 spend
was below previous guidance because of
lower investment in the US temoorary barrier
fleet due o mgher dermand for baner sales in
the second half

Ne* financing costs for the penod from
contnuing operations were £9 2m (2027,

F5 1m), ncluding & charge of £1 6m ralating
1o costs associated with the Group's
refinancing of 1ts core revolving credit facility
duning the year {in accordance with {FRS 9)
The net cost of pension fund financing unde-
IAS 12 was £0 Tm {20271 £02m), and the
ameruisaton of costs relating to refinancing
actities was £0.8m (2021: £0.8m).

The Group generated £30 4m of free cash
flow in the year (2021° £51.6m), providing
furnds to suppoert our acquisition strategy and
dividend policy.

Galvanizing pipe extensions at Joseph Ash




The Group generated

£30.4m of free cash

flow in the year,
“providing us with -

~-funds to support our
- acquisition-strategy -
“and dividend poli

Net debt and financing

Net debt at the end of the peniod amounted
to £119 7mi (37 December 2021, £144 7m)
Outflows in the yea included £24 7m for the
2021 intenm and final dwidend and £25 6m
for the acquisifions of National Signal and
Widnes Galvanizing Net deot at the period
end includes lease habilities under I7RS 16 of
£39 3 (2027 £40 6m).

In November 2022, we were pleased t0
renoit the successful completion of the
refinancing of our orincipal bank debt facility
on competipve terms. The new syndicatad
revolving credit fagihty of £250m has an
initial maturity of four years with an option

to extend for a further year at the first
annwersary, providing us with continued
certainty of funding to support the Groun's
growth apportunities. The Group's principal
finanging facilines also comprise $70m
senior unsecured notes with maturities in
June 2026 and June 2029, together with a
further £11 5m of on-dermand local overdraft
arrangements. Throughout the period the
Greup has operated well within these facilities
and at 31 December 2022, the Group had
£237 9m of headroom (£226.4m commutted,
£11.5m on demand).

The principal borrowing facilites are subject
to covenants that are measured bianaually in
June and December, being net debt to EBITDA
of a maximum of 3.0 times and interest

cover of a mimmum of 4.0 times The ratio of
covenant net debt to EBITDA at 31 December
2022 was 0.7 times (31 December 2021-10
times) and interest cover was 21.6 times (31
December 2021 25 4 times)

The Board considers that the ratio of
covenant net debt to EBITUA 15 a key metnc
from a capital management perspective and
targets a ratio of 1.0 to 2 0 tires The Board
would be prepared to see leverage above
the target range for short periods of time if
strategically appropnate.
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Tax

The underlying effective tax rate for the
2emied for continuing oerattions was 22 4%
(2021 21 7%) The tax charge for the year
for continuing anerations was £16 0m (2021
£74 am) and includes a £3.7m credit (2021
£7.1m) in respec: of non-underlying rems,
prinzipally relating o the amortisation of
acguisttion mtangibles Cash tax nad mthe
period was £15.5m {2027 £152m)

Exchange rates

The Group 15 exposed 1O movemenis in
exchange rates when translating the resul:s
of its overseas ooerations nto Sterling
Retranslating 2327 revenue and underlying
operating profit from continuing onerations
using average exchange rates for 2022
would have increased revenue by £29.5m
and underlying operating profit by £5 6m,
mainly due to Sterling's degreciation agans?
the US Dollar A one cent movement in the
average US Dollar rate currently resul*s in an
adjustment of approximately £2 5m 1o the
Group's annual revenues and £0.6rm to annual
underlying operating arofit

Non-underlying items

The total non-underlying itens charged 1
operating profit from continuing operatons
in the Consoldated Income Statement
amounted 10 £78 6m (2021, £28 4m) The
itens were mainly non-cash related and
inctuded the fallowing.

Imparrment charges of £6 4m, nzluding
£4 4m n respec: of acquired intangible
assets of Parking Facilities, one of the
Group’s security businesses

Amortisanon of acquired intangible
assets of £6 0

Further cosis assoclated with the
closure of the UK vanable message signs
business of £1 5m

Loss on disposal and restructuring of
the divisions in our Swedish business
of £1.3m

Costs relating to our exit from low-margin
US road traffic control product operation
of £11m

«  Expenses related to acquisitions and
disposals of £2.3m

The non-cash element of these charges was
£13.4m. Fu-ther details are set out in note 4
of the Financial Statements

Pensions

The Group operates defined benefit pension
plans in the UK and the USA. The IAS 19
deficit of these plans at 31 December 2022
was £7 2m, a reduction of £5.7m from 31
December 2027 (£12 3m, which included

f£4. 1mn ~espect of our French pension
scheme that was disposed of with the France
Galva business during the year). The deficit of
the UK scheme, the largest employee benefit

obligation in the Group, was lower than the
onar year end at £6.5m (371 December 2021
£7.7m) due to the Gioup's deficit recovery
sayments and an increase of 310 basis poin's
i the discount rate dunng the period, In hne
with Increases in bond yields, being partly
offset by lower asset returns

1d0d3d D1931vHLS

The tenmial valuation for the UK scheme
as at April 2022 was finaltsed at the end of
2022 and confirmed that the current cash
contribution level (£3.7m per annum) was
appropriate to deliver the deficrt recowery
plan. The Group continues to be actively
engaged in dialogue with the UK schemes’
Trustees with regards ‘o management,
funding and investment strategies including
DuUy-n options.

Going concemn

After making enquiries, the Directors have
reasonahle expectations that the Company
and 1ts sunsidiaries have adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeahle future and for the period to 30
June 2024 Accordingly, they continue to
adopt the going concern punciple

When making this assassmens, the Group
considers whether it will B2 able o maintain
adequate hgqurdity headroom above the

level of 1ts borrowing faciites and to .
aperate within the financial covenants on
those facilities The Group has carefully
modelied its cash flow outlook for the pernod
W June 2324, considenng the ongoing
uncertainties m glonal economic conditicns
Inthig "base case” scenario, the forecasts
ndicate significant hquidity headroom will

be mantainad above the Group's barrowing
facilities and financial covenants will be met
throughout the penod meluding the covenant
tests at 30 Jupe 2023, 31 December 2023
and 33 June 2024.

The Group has also carried out reverse
stress tests” 1o assess the performance levels
at which either liguidity headroom would fall
below zerp or covenants would be breached
In the period to 30 June 2024 The Directors
do no* consider the resulting performance
levels to be plausthle given the Group's strong
trading performance in the year and the
resilience of the end markets in which we
Operate

Alan Giddins
Interim Executive Chair

Hannah Nichols
Group Chief Financial Officer

8 March 2023
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Following our purpose

of creating sustainable
infrastructure and

safe transport through
innovation, we are
committed to ensuring that
our Envireanment Sccial &
Governance ( ESG') strateqy
provides the foundation

for the successful delivery
of our Graup strategy and
business model.

Our sustamahlity oricnities were identined
following a comp-ehensive matenaliy
assessment camed out in 2021, which also
included comoanng the results to the relevant
Sustamability Accounting Standards Board

i SASE) matenzality miaps, see sage 33 ‘or
more detalls We have maintained the same
sustamability priorites for 2022, however

we will continue to feview and adapt as our
sustainability strategy evolves

Qur Executive Chair, Alan Giddins, has Board
responsibility for ESG and is also a member
of the ESG Commitiee. The ESG Committee
works with our operating companies to
create common sense, actionable plans with
measuradle near and medium term targets.
We were delighted that Lucinda Farrington-
Parker joined as Group Head of Sustainability
in February 2022. Lucinda 1s a key member
of the ESG Committee and 1s leading on the
Group's carbon reduction plans including
establishing a baseline for the Group's

Scope 3 emussions. The ESG Committee
also includes the Group CHO and the Group
Company Secretary, alongside a number of
other Group employees who are passionate
about qur ESG focug areas The Committee
reports directly to the Board on a six-monthly
basis, providing updates on progress made
agamnst targets

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

We have identified seven key priorities for our sustainability plans, across
three key focus areas:

Protecting the world

0'] Greenhouse Gas (GHG’) emissions and enerqgy efficiency

02 Sustainable products - infrastructure

Saving and enhancing lives

02 Sustainable products — safe transport
0 3 Health & Safety
04 Talent development and engagement

0 5 Diversity and inclusion

Sustainable Governance

06 Climate risks
07 Ethical conduct

In addition to the above drionty areas, we will continue to monitor and assess other important
areas of the ESG agenda, e g waler usage and waste management.

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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OUR ROLE IN SUSTAINABILITY

We support the United Nations sustainable development agenda
and are utilising their Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs’)
as a compass to guide our approach to sustainability.

3
o

BEBO arch, flood balancing culverts, N22 Macroom, County Cork
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PROTECTING THE WORLD

We play a key role in protecting the world through both the Our role in saving and enhancing lives has two elements
provision of eur sustamnable infrastructure praducts and Firstly, we have anmportant role in ensuring that the public are
services and through how we minimise our environmental safe when they travel, and secondly we have an opportunity and
fmpact as we deliver those products and services. a responsibility 'o enhance the welfare of our employees, their
families and therr local commurmbes threugh our employment
ESG Focus Areas practices, Deople develooment and community supaort We
GHG emissions and energy efficiency want to be inclusive of all members of society

Sustainable products - infrastructure
ESG Focus Areas
Sustanasle products — Safe transport
Health & Safety
Talent developrent and engagement
Dwversity and inclusion

WDUSTRY. IRNGVATION
UN SDGS 9 KR ISR ASTRUCTURE

1o e 13 o un socs [FEER

RO COMMUNITES

Al

Sustainable governance ensures that our

plans are credible and that we have appropnate
metrics In place to ensure that we deliver on our
promises over the long term,

ESG Focus Areas
Climate risks
«  FEthical conduct

UN SDGs §Kins

Stock Code HILS
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PROTECTING THE WORLD

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY

Why does it matter? Scope 1 & 2 Emissions {tonnes CO,e)

36

We recognise that greenhouse gases are a 2022 2021 2020
majo” contiibutor 1o the climate coisis and
are committed to managing and reducing Scope 1 49,388 53712 52.066
the Group's ermissions 10 suonort the Paris Scope 2 3917 10885 14768
Agreemean goals

Total 58,305 654,59/ 66,774
What have we done? -
In 2027 we committed tc develop science- Reduction % 10% 3% n/a

based targets to reduce our greenhouse gas
emissions under the SBT1'Business Ambition’
for 1 5°C’ Having already established a
baseline for Scope 7 and 2 enussions in
2020, we have been collating our baseline
Scope 3 emissions during 2022 across the
full scope of our organisation, in line with

the International Greenhouse Gas Protocol
guidance. This comprehensive baselining
project, led by our Head of Sustainability
working closely with our operating
companies, has been very successful. We
are pleased to report that we are on track to
submit our targets ahead of the required SBTI
deadlne of August 2023

Alongside measuring and understanding
Scope 3, we have also further developed our
carbon reduction plans and taken action to
reduce Scope 1 and 2 emissions.

The 10% reduction in our 2022 emussions has
been driven by vanious local carbon reduction

intiatives (such as installation of solar panels,

switching forklift trucks to electrnic and use

of HYO in place of diesel) as well as the
disposal of France Galva. We were pleased
that 94% of our UK electnicity requirements
were from renewable sources in 2022 and we
are currently working with our US businesses
on gtate by state plans to move towards
renewable electricity in the next two to

five years.
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A further breakdown of the Group's 2022
emissions Is set out below:

2022 GHG Emissions

@ Scope 1
@ Scope 2



Consumption of natural gas for use in heating
in the galvanizing process contributes 62%
of the Group's total natural gas consumption
and therefore the use of energy in the
galvanizing orocess is a key ‘ocuUs area

for the Group's carbon reduction slan In
2022, we implemented energy efficiency
measures in both our UK and US galvanizing
operations including heat recovery systems,
kettle covers and varniable frequency drives,
which will ail contribute to our emissions
reduction plan. In addition, during the year we
investigated options 1o convert galvanizing
natural gas burners to green elect:icity

using our UK galvanizing site in Telford as a

Breakdown by Energy Type

@ Scope 2

Stock Code HILS:

INDUSTRY. INNOYATION
ANBINFRASTRUCTURE

specific case study Our findings, oased on
this case study, suggest that while electric
gas burne- technology 1s viable, further
upgrades to UK electncity infrastructure or
technology modifications will be required
before this can be considered a feasible
oation and we continue to explore possible
solutions Alongstde this, we are investigating
the viability of hydrogen as a potential
technology, working with Cadent and National
Gas Transmission on therr Hydrogen Valley
project.

@ Scope 1 — Natural Gas

@ Scope 1 - Diesel

® Scope 1 — Propane, gas oil and LPG
® Scope 1 — Others

1

SUSTAINABLE CITIES
AND COMMUMITIES

1

CUIMATE
ACTHON

140d34 D1931vH1S
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PROTECT' NG THE WORI_D continued

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY coviven

During 2022 we established a Group-wide
Sustamability “orum with representatives
from each of our operating companies, to
collaborate on emigsions reduction projects,
sha-e ideas and pest practice and provide
feedback on Group initiatives. We also
oroduced a quarterly =5G newsletter to share
updates with all employees across the Gioup,
and held our first ESG Week In June to raise
awareness of sustainability 1ssues in a fun
and engaging way

We have continued to refine our costed

plan which includes an assessment of the
incrermental capital energy, carbon taxes and
other operating costs to support our carbon
reduchon plan. The result continues to provide
us with the confidence to commit to achieving
a carbon net zero target for Scopes 1 and 2
by 2040. Our current expectations are that the
financial impact of achieving this will not have
a matenal impact on the growth prospects for
the Groug, with modes! levels of incremental
capital investment required

What will we achieve?

In 2023 we will submit emission reduction targets for Scopes 1,2 and 3 10 SBT1 In 2027 we

commizted 1o achieve net zero for our Scope 1 and 2 ermissions by 2040 The high-level steps we

will taxe to deliver on this commitment are outlined below.

Net Zero scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2040

a0
g
§ &
5
&
8
s
£ 20
C)
o

2020 2027

2020-2025

Implementatlon of
galvanizing energy
__efficiency measures. Trial
alternative galvanizing
_ burnertechnologies..

Replace forklift truck gas ofl
with renewables

UK o renewable electnmty
US start tomove to
renewabie electricity

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

2022

2025

2026-2030

10 galvanizing plants
to alternative burner
technology

Replace farklift

truck LPG o1t with
renewables

US moved to
renewable elactricity

Illll-

2030

2035 2040

2031-2035

5 galvanizing plants
to alternative burner
techneclogy

Replace forklit

trick LPG ol weth
renewanles

Remaining businesses
moved to renewable
electricity

@ Scope 2

@ Scope 1
Other

@ Scope1
Natural Gas

2036-2040

Remaining galvanizing

plants to alternative
burner technology

Replace diese! in
commercial vehicle
with renewables



INDUSTRY. IN#OVATION 1 SUSTAINABLE CITHES 1 CLIMATE
AN IMRASTRUGTURE AND COMMUNITIES ACTION

Each of our operating companies 15 also
developing a local carbon reduction plan to
address therr own emissions This includes
Scope 3 which comprises 97% of our overall
GHG emissions. During 2023 we will start

o develop a more detaifed strategy o
reduce our Scope 3 emissions, now we have
established our baseline

Mow wili we measure progress?
We have invested In a sustamability software
solution that we are using to record our GHG
emissions. This will provide greater visibility
of our emissions and allow us to set targets
and measure performance at both a Group-
wide and indnadual operating company level

While our longer term commitment 1 to
achieve net zero {for Scopes 1 and 2) by
2040, we are measuring our near-term
progress throwugh both reduction in our
carbon intensity ratio and the number of
tonnes of CO, e removed. Our near-term
targets and progress agatnst these targets
are set out opposite.

Stock Code HILS

Hot-dipped galvanized canopy,
Newark Airpert, NJ

TARGETS AND ACTUALS

Intensity Ratio (Market-based)
2022 Actual

0.07

2022 Target
2025 Target
2030 Target

No. of tonnes of CO, removed
(vs. 2020 - the base year)

2022 Actual

8,469

2022 Target

1H0d3Y J1931vHLS
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SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS

Event Lite solar powered light by National Signal

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

PROTECT' NG THE WORLD continued

Why does it matter?

The world's nopulation is forecast to be ¢. 9.0bn by the late-2030s
and this will drive extraordinary dernand for chimate fnendly
solutions in our daily ives The Paris Agreement and the UN Climate
Panel have defined soecific sustanability goals and measures
within areas such as access to raw materials, energy, and
infrastructure Our sustainable infrastructure products and services
can play an important rele in addressing the great challenges
assoctated with increasing population ang urpanisation, climate
change and decarbonisation

What have we done?

During 2022, we have built on the work we did in 2021, and supported
by a third party, Route 2, using an autonomcus framework tocl, we
have assessed the sustainahility and value to society of ¢. 55% of the
Group's products and senices by -evenue. This analysis uses a Six
Capitals framework to assess the value to society of our products,
looking first at our supplier base, then our cwn manufacturing plants
and finally, downstream when our products are in use. The Six
Capitals are financial, human, intellectual, manufactured, natural and
soclal and are used to understand how we create value for customers,
investors, employees, communities and other stakebolders.

According to our analysis, for every £1 of revenue generated, our
praduc:s contnibute ¢ £2 of value to society. The results show

a halanced distnbution of econcmic, human, and environmentat
impacts. In each step of the value chain, the benefits of our
business activities substantially exceed the costs to society

Alongside this, our operating companies have started to undertake
Life Cycle Assessments and we exoect this to be an increasing
focus area for our customers gomg forward.



What will we achieve?

During 2023 we will continue to assess the
sustainabiity impacts of our products, to
orovide our stakeholders confidence that our
aroducts have an environmental, or economic,
or social benefit

How will we measure progress?
We have disclosed the results of qur 2022
work opposite and will continue to disclose
work done to assess the sustainabilizy
impacts of our products on an annual basis.

Stock Code HILS

INDUST®Y. INNGVATION I SUSTAMNABLE CITIES 13 SLIMATE
ANDCOMMUMTIES

ANDINFRASTRUGTURE ACTION

CASE STUDY: Galvanizing - reducing carbon
through the avoidance of maintenance

Galvanizing's ability to optimise the durability of steel structures and cumponents has
maortant environmental, economic and social advantages

There are high economic and environmental costs associated with the repeated
painting of steel structures. These burdens can be signi‘icantly reduced by an inival
investment in long term protection The long term durability provided by galvanizing is
achieved with a low environmental burden, especially when compared 1o the energy
value of the steel 1t is protecting, meaning that galvanizing reduces the embodied
carbon of construction

A ~ecent environmental liferime study highlighted marked differences between two
established corrosion prevention systems for stee! structures. The hot dip galvanizing
system had a lower environmental impact for a steel structure with a long service life,
than a traditional paint system Long service life and freedom from maintenance, the
well known advantages of hot dip galvanizing, are the basis for these environrmental
benefits In this example, as shown in the table, a saving of 57,100 tonnes of CO; was
achieved over the 60-year life of the car park.

Painted Steel
Structure (kg CO,
equivalent}

Saving by hot dip
galvanizing (kg CO,
equivalent}

Service  Hot Dip Galvanized
Life Steel Structure (kg
(years) CO, equivalent)

Extracted from Galvanized Steel and Sustainable Construction. Solutons for a Circular Economy,
publ EGGA {2021) and reoroduced with permission of EGGA Galvanizers Association For further
nfarmation www galvanizing org ukscircular-economy

140d3d 01931VHLS
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HEALTH & SAFETY

Why does it matter?

Keeping our employees, customars, and
sunpliers safe is our number one prionty
Ensuning that our employees work in 2 safe
environment and can return home ‘o herr
loved ones at the end of their working day 15
of paramount iImportance.

What have we done?

We are pleased to report that our 2022 Lost
Time Inyury Rate (LTIR" has reduced by 35%
to 1.1 (2027, 1.7). Managing Directors are
required 'o present the investigation and
findings of all LTs to the Executive Board,
reinforcing the importance of xeeping
employees safe and sharing learming.

During the year, we have introduced nine
lifesaving rules that will create an environment
within our operating companies of zero
tolerance for unsafe acts or conditions,
where behaviours wili be recognised and
remforced, and training 1s provided to all. We
alsointroduced hazard identification training,
machine guarding audits, and automated
external defibrllator equipment ensuring
that we can keep ourselves and othess free
from harm.

What will we achieve?
Qur aim s to significantly reduce the number
of lost time incidents we have across the

organisation. To support this objective, we will:

» Increase our Near Miss reporting and
Safety Observation acivity.
Continue to improve the identification
of key risk areas as well as our culture
and approach to Health & Safety in our
pperating companies

+  Move to a three-tiered auditing approach’
introducing self-assessments against our
Group-wide standards, peer-to-peer site
audits and external behavioural audits
that focus on risk.

Continue to drive campaigns focusing on
those areas that represent major nisks for
the Group's operating compantes.

Run a Health and Safety survey in 2023

How will we measure progress?
We will use LTIR as the key indicator to track
and monitor our progress in Health & Safety

Qur LTIR for 2022 was 1 1, well ahead of our
2022 target and a testimony to the work put
nto improving health and safety across our

operating companies, particularly those who
implemented safety imp-ovement olans

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

SAVING AND ENHANCING LIVES

TARGETS AND ACTUALS

Lost Time Injury Rate




GENDER DECENT WORK AND 11 SUSTAMABLE GIES
FQUALITY ECONGNIC GROWTH

AND COMMUNITIES

140d3Y 219341vdLS
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Welders at work, Birtley, County Durham

Nine core lifesaving rules:

Q Plant Mobile =gupment

°Wo(k From Heights

. Line of Fire

. Access & Egress
{Includes Confined Space)

. Lock Out Tag Qut (LOTO)

Reduce
significant

injuries

. Hazardous Cherrmical Control

. Personai Protective Equipment (PPE)

. Lifting & Rigging
. Driving Safety
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continued

TALENT, DEVELOPMENT AND ENGAGEMENT

Why does it matter?

Hill & Smith is a global arganisation with

a strategy focused on sustanable growth
Talented people are ‘undamental to the
success of our autonomous business modsl
and help delver our purpose and growth
ambitions We need a highly engaged and
capable workforce within our operating
companies, and this can only be done by
attracting, develooing, supporting, and
retaining the righ: people. Our oaerating
companies are supported by a community
of HR professionals who enable the kay
employment strategies, programimes and
ofocesses to ensure that the Group attracts
and retans the skills and capabilizies required
to deliver on its strategy

Positive employee engagement and offering
great careers for people and helps increase
our productivity, enhance our reputation, and
deliver our growth olans

What have we done?

Ouw engagement levels increased to 51%

in 2022 (2021: 55%), with animproved 80%
participation rate in our annual employee
engagement survey. The results mdicated a
strong improvement in leadership qualiues,
as evidenced through responses relating

to ine managers. We also saw progression
within diversity and inclusion, with the result
on this index ingreasing to 69% (2021 63%)
The feedback indicated that reward and
recogmtion iz a universal priority focus area,
and this is something that we have heen
proactively reviewing in light of the cost of
Iving ¢risis

In 2022 we expanded our Succession
Flarnirg a1d Talen: Managemert (SPTLY
srogramme to include more employees
This enabled us to gain a deeder view of
talent, identify where we have errployees
wha could potentially move between
operating companies as aart of their career
development and idenufy and nmitigate
sSUCCEsSION nsks. We have seen an increase
In the potential of our senior ieadership
population, reflecung the efforts being
placed on develosing our leaders, as well as
refrashing this populaticn with high quaity
extemnal hires.,

We contnued to provide management and
leadership development, with programmes
starting at supervisor fevel, then moving to
first line manager level and finally a leadershup
programme for more experienced managers
64 supervisors and managers completed

the prograrmmme in 2022. The programme
content and delivery approach were reviewed
in 2022 and improvements have been
dentified for implemnentation in 2023 We
piloted a new approach to developrment for
our Managing Directors. They self-selected
onto workstreams covering our ESG agenda,
developing an innovative mindset, and
cultivating a growth culture.
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SAVING AND ENHANCING LIVES

¢

Warehouse, ATG Access, Haydock

What will we achieve?

Local employee engagement survey action
plans have been developed, focusing on

the key areas identified for improvement in
each operating company Recognising the
importance of acting on the feedback and
openly shaning progress, greater emphasis
will be placed on keeping the communication
pracess ongoing during the year

We plan to comolete a further SPTM review,
as well as cloging out the acnons identified
from the 2022 review These include

hoiding career conversations with high
serforming senior leaders, increased focus on
personal development planning, identifying
opportunities for moves between cperating
companies and identifying mitigation for
succession TIsks.

How will we measure progress?

We will continue to measure progress through
our engagemen’® survey agamst our targets
setin 2021 We will also listen to the feedback
that we continue to get from our employees
duning the year
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LEVERAGING ESG AND CSR

Kathryn Cooper, Head of ESG
Hill & Smith Infrastructure

As Head of ESG at HIll & Smith Infrastructure, a business

that sits within the Grouz's Roads & Security division, | have
been rasponsible for introducing ESG across all Hill & Srrith
Infrastructuce’s divisions This has proved to be an exciting
project and has been more about uncovenng activities that
were already aking place naturally, and being able to celebrate
and report the business’ sustainable and socially responsible
accomphshments

1 am responsible for unlocking ESG opportunities in the

areas of people, planet and purpose for Asset VRS, Hardstaff
Barriers, Hill & Smith Barriers and Varley & Gulliver - four of the
UK's leading vehicle restramt system manufacturers.

Incorporating =SG factors intc day-te-day business activities
allows us to meet clien*s’ needs too, supporting their own
actions to reduce the impact of their activities, ensuring a
long term and sustainable benefit to the envircnment and the
communities they serve. Environmental protection, equality,
social impact and ethics are at the forefront of everything,
more than ever before

As a result of recent achievements, the level of service
arovided to customers across Hill & Smith Infrastructure
has been strengthened, while a consistent and coflaborative
approach to Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR') and
sustainability has teen created throughout the business.

In recent months, colleagues have led and participated in
several projects that have benefited the environment and local
communitics.

] |

I'm really passionate about my role.
In an era of climate change. widening
inequality and increasing stakeholder
pressure, ESG remains an often
underutilised, yet critical rescurce.

My passion is for people and the
planet. Looking after our planet,
and the people on it, is not only the
right thing to do, but engaging with
individuals proactively acts as a
catalyst to increasing efficiency and
effectiveness in other focus areas.”

Mayjor accomphshments include

- Achieving CSR Gold Accreditation for Hill & Smith
Infrastructure Linuted.

Leading along term hicdiversity and wellbeing initiative 1n
conjunction with the SMP Allance {who support delivery
of National Highways construction and mamntenance
programmes), which has pledged to prevent the net loss of
hiodiversity through 1ts activities

Supoorting Apprentices and commitiing to beng members
of the 5% Club that resuited in being invited to the House
of Lords to accept the accreditauon.

Over 10% of staff now trained as Mental Health First Aiders
and this is increasing each month.

Social value projects include a company-wide challenge to
walk the distance from Nottingham to Ukraine, which raised
over £5,000 for the Humanitarian Appeat, and donating more
than 300 Easter Egys collected by staff to vulnerable children
N the Midlands.

Other regular employee activities include food bank and
clothing donations, velunteering oppertunities and tree
olanting.

An increasing number of young people in the workplace are
keen 1o work for a company that is ethical and we as an
organisation are werking towards becoming an employer of
choice, head and shoulders above its competitors when it
comes to contributions to the locat environment, workforce
and communities

Stock Code HILS
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DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Why does it matter?

As an organisation, we aim to employ the best
people for the job ang help them thrive We
know that we can only do this by considering
talented people from the whole community,
making cur business attractive for them to
Jjoin and by providing an environment where
they can be themselves and give therr best,

If we can provide atlractive ooportunities for
our people, and ensure we have a workforce
that s truly diverse, our husiness will perform
0 its absolute potential and achieve our
ambitious economic growth plans, as well as
delwver individual success

As an employer working across a range of
cultures and countries, we endeavolr to
replicate the diversity of the communities
where our companies are hased, 1 the profile
of our own workforce

Everyone 15 actively encouraged to
communicate and share information with
colleagues [tis mportant to us that we
create annclusive culture, where all voices
and perspectives have an oppaortunity 'o
he heard

What have we done?

We have continued to focus on atiracting
mare fernales into our husiness, which has
led to an increase in female senior leaders in
2022, now a* 20%, and in January 2023, we
were delighted to appoint our first two female
Managing Drrectors, Rachel Preen in the UK
and Rose Mary Clyburn, based in the US. We
will continue to focus on how we can mprove
dversity, whilst sticking to our commitment to
always recruit the hest candidate for the role.
Progress is also reflected in the improvement
inour 2022 Gender Pay Gap.

Qur apprenticeship scheme 1s ancther
method of attracting more diversity into our
business. In 2022, our gender splits for new
hire apprentices were 33% female, 67% male.
This includes recruiting females as welding
apprentices, traditionally a role that has
attracted more males. Of our apprenticeship
hires between August 2027 through to June
2022, 16% have a disability, 34% are young
people (being under the age of 24), 3% are
from ethnic minority groups and 11% live in
disadvantaged past codes.
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SAVING AND ENHANCING LIVES continved

Exarrples where ou” operating comganies
have taken proactive s.e0s 10 IMprove diversity
include Hil& Srith Infrastructure being part
of the 5% Club, a movement committed to
provichng ‘earn and learry skills-led training
opportunities Lionweld Kennedy, one of

our UK Engineered Solutions businesses, 1S
now recognised as ane of the top 50 SME
apprenticeship employers in the UK.

We continued with our Workforce Advisory
Panels in 2022, running one face-to-face
session in the UK and one in the US during
May We then ran virtual sessions in Novernber.
We changed the format to mclude interactive
sessions that were led by colleagues from our
operating companies or internal subject matter
experts, rather than senicr managerment.
Topics included Health and Safety, ESG,
Diversity and Inclusion, as well as business
updates on performance We gained valuable
feedback and insights from the process



GENDER
EQUALITY

DECERT WORK AND 11 SUSTAINABLE CITIES
ANDCOMMUMTIES

ECONTMIC GROWTH

What will we achieve?

We will focus locally and at a Group level
onincreasing levels of diversity, so that we
represent the communities that we serve

we will continue to bring together HR leaders
from across our cperating companies so that
we can share best practice and learn from
each other.

We will be building on the success of our

US Women's Network, extending it to all
female colleagues, to raise awareness of the
challenges and barners that some women
may face and to champion them and therr
current and future careers

We will arrange further Workforce Advisory
Panels, where we will be seeking further
feedback on what is working weli and where we
can improve. We will provide business updates,
mvite colleagues from across the business

to present on important topic areas, and also
encourage sharing of good practice that is
happening within our operating companies

Stock Code HILS

We want tc build on the success of our
apprenticeships scheme, recogmsing it 1s
anmaortant way of attracting and retaining
diverse talent We will recruit additienat
apprentices and upskilt existing colieagues
though apprenticeships where feasible to do
50 We will provide managers with additional
information and suppor®, to encourage
increased usage of aparentices 0 the UK. We
will produce an annual newsletter to celebrate
apprenuceship achieverments

How will we measure progress?
We will continue to measure gender

and ethnic diversity at a senior level and
review the engagement survey sceres for
the Inclusion and Diversity index to track
progress.

140d3Y J1931vd1S
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Q\ﬁ SAVING AND ENHANC'NG LIVEScontinued
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ﬁxw 1‘
Birtley Group
" oy ot
Berdey DHI 1JF
TEL0191 4108631
nlo@virdeygramp.cnak

Birtley’s Head of Customer Experience on site, Birtley, County Durham

DlVERSITY AND INCLUS‘ON continued

\

CASE STU

Diversity

Wendy Dollete: Supply Chain Manager at the
Carpenter and Paterson Group (USA)

Wendy joined the company in Y599, iniwalty n an adminiszrative
role in the Engineenng dezartment She has since undertaken

a number of roles, spanning Profect Management and
Procurement, Her current role s Supply Chatn Manager which
involves overseeing purchasing and inventory control for all
branches as well as leading the warehouse operations at the
Waggaman site in New QOrleans.

wWendy 1s focused on improving processes and performance. She
15 also an active member of the Empowerment Group, & Women
in Leadership network within Hilt & Smith that encourages
development and discusses some of the barriers that women
may face.

Wendy says:

"Hili & Smith is a great company to
work for and has actively supported
my career development. | would
definitely recommend working within
the Hill & Smith family to other
women, and encourage them to be
open to opportunities, wherever they
may be.”

Rachel Preen: Managing Director at
Prolectric Services {UK)

Rachel joined Prolectric in 2021 as Commercial Directoi, having
been inspired during the interview process by the compelling
vision shared with her by Chis Withams, Prolectng's founder,
Over the past ten years, Prolectric has fed the way In sustainable
ighting, power and security solutions for the constructon,
infrastructure, ral, and utiities sectors. Prior to joining the Group,
Rachel was working in the renewables sector, making this an
excellent fit for her experience and passion for sustainabihty.

In January 2023 Rachel was p-omoted 1o Managing Director,
where sheas excited to lead the business in delivering Prolectric’s
ambiticus five year growth plan.

Rachel says:

"Hill & Smith’s sustainability agenda
was an important consideration for
me when { was considering taking
the role at Prolectric.”

She goes on to say that she feels
"supported and fifted by the Group”
with her recent promotion. Her
advice to others in building their
careers is to "be yourself, do your
best and trust in the people around
you to recognise your strengths and
help you go further”

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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We recognise that to play

a positive role in society,
we need to act responsibly.
Not just to our employees,
customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders but
also to the environment
and wider society.

CLIMATE RISKS AND TCFD

Why does it matter?

We recognise that chmate change)s a oressing global
issue and as a company we are cormmisted to oromating

a sustainable environment and to provide ugdates on our
progress in doing 5. To that end, we are pleased 10 15sue
our repert in response o the Task Force on Chmate-related
Sinarcial Disclosures {TCFDY recormimengations

What have we done?

The TCZD recommendations encourage companies

to disclose information on ther financial risks and
opportunities due to chmate change, and how they are being
managed. During 2022 we further developed our approach
to assessing the impact of climate change on our business
operations, strategy, and financial planning

How do we ensure good governance?

The Board views oversight and effective managerment

of environmental, social and governance related risks as
essential to the Group's ability to execute its strategy and
achieve long term sustainable growth. The Board receives
quarterly updates on progress around ESG focus areas
including climate related risks and cpportunities In addition,
the annual budget process now includes consideration of
opesating company level carbon reduction plans, and we will
be intreducing a similar focus into the 2023 strategic planning
process which covers a five year timeframe The evaluation of
potential acquisitions also includes assessment of the impact
on our carbon reduction targets The Audit Commuittee s
responsible for overseang the management of climate related
risks and opzortunities and associated metrics and targets.

in addition, the Risk Committee 15 responsible for identifying
and assessing climate related nsks and opportunities and

SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

Hostile vehicle mitigation barriers, London

during the year we developed and impiernented an aporoach o Faribe ails about the R

1o support this assessment.
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WHAT IS THE IMPACT OF CLIMATE RELATED R!SKS AND OPPORTUNITIES ON QUR STRATEGY?

To understand the iroact that chimate could have on our business we pe-formed a high-level assessmen: based on a range of cimate change
soenanns The selacted soenanos epresent a range of goverpment policy interventon from very low (4°C1 o smmbeant (270), to aggressive (1 5°C)
The tineframes were selected afer consideration of the likely timing of ransition ns<s. such as carbon pricing, and when significant physical climate
changes are expected o materialise

Scenario "Global Net Zero by 2050" Announced pledges Higher warmin s ) PR =
Y plecs 9 N Transition Risk (TCFD, 201

Dhwerview Global warming 1s lFmited Forecasts to what ‘ High-emissions

to 1 5°C as the warld extent announced scenario, consistient

reaches global net zero . ambitions and with a future with no

emissians by 2050 " targetsareonpath  pelicy changes to

Transition r1sks more to delwer global , reduce emissions

prevalent. net zero - Physical nsks more

| prevalent
Temperature s . ! -
~15°C ~ ~dC

Increase 1et 2C | c
Timeframes 2025 and 2030 . 2030 ang 2040

During 2027 a nsk assessment wokshop was held with PwC to determine which risks could have
a material iImpact after considenng both potential financial impact and fikelihood The assessment
of climate-related transition risks and opportunities was completed on a sub-divisional and
geographic basis, with physical clmate nisk vulneranility analysis completed for our operational
sites In 2022, we completed physical climate vulnerasility analysis for all new sites acquired dunng
the year The 2021 climate vulnesability analysis run for existing sites remains valid given there has
seen no change in the underlying climate analysis 100l data since last year The assessmen: of
wransinonal risk considered emerging -egulatory requirements, such as carnon prcing

The outout of this assessment has enabled us to idenufy the matenial impacts on our business ansing from each of these selected scenanos.
TAc irpacts ware 28528523 without considering ady act-ons that we nught take Lo Pt gate o7 adast to these future climate change scenanios

11e maw imnacts of the sceranos peinyg

Global warming scenario:
1.5°Cand 2°C

Risk

As the global econcimy transitions to a low
carbon state, we have identified several
potential nsks and opportunities for the Group:

The availability of greener techrology to
adapt to lower emissions

increased demand for renewable energy
may lead to reduced supply or an
increase in the cost of purchase

The introduction of carbon pricing across
our key geographies increases both our
manufacturing costs and the costs of raw
materials

Patential opportunities for the Group
gven the existing focus on sustainable
infrastructure products, for example
galvanizing and certain composite
applications. Further innovation in new
products and services, in line with our
purpose, will present further growth
opportunities. See case studies on
page 53.

Other risks identfied, but not considered
significant at this stage, include the
reputational damage te the Group’s brand due
to climate inaction or negative climate impact
fror production / supply chain.

Stock Code HILS

Impact analysis

Under both scenarios, operating costs, particularly relating ta caroon pnicing, could increase 1f
they are not proactively mitigated. We have therefore assessed the potential financial impact of
carbon pricing relating to our current Scope 1 and Scope 2 emussions.

Carbon Pricing* Gross Risk Impact (Scope 1 & 2)

Annual Impact by 2025 ] 15 | 20°C
Average annual operating cost ncrease F4.7m £4 3m
assuming no proactive carbon reduction (€6 1m) (F5.6m)

plans are undertaken based on 2022 exit
run rate emissions. Figure as at end of
2027 in brackets

Based on 5130 pertonne  Based on 5120 per tonne

Annual Impact by 2030 1 3.5°C 2.0°C
Average annual operating cost increase £7.4m £6.1m
assumming no proactive carbon reduction (£9.6m) (£8.0m)

plans are undertaken based on 2022 exit
rur rate emissions. Figure as at end of
2021 in brackets

Based on $205pertonne  Based on 5170 per tonne

* Carbon pricing assumptions based on PwC's estimates for advanced econemies in 1 5°C and 2°C scenarios.

The Group is commutted to reducing greenhouse gases as demonstrated by our 2040 net
zero ambition, which will substantially mitigate the gross risk exposure to carben pricing The
finangial impact of carbon pricing has been considered as part of the costed plan relating to
our net zero ambition The impast of a potential increase in the cost of renewable energy 1s
not considered matenial based on the Group's current renewable energy consumption As the
Group's adoption of renewable energy increases, future exposure to renewable energy pricing
will partly be offset by self generated energy.

We have completed the assessment of our Scope 3 emissions during 2022 with a view 1o
disclosing them in our 2023 Annual Report in accordance with the SBTi target. Once more 1s
known about likely carbon pricing regimes we will he in a better position to estimate the potental
impact on our supply chain costs
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SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

Rocks Village, Haverhill, MA, composite vehicle bridge deck, supplied by CCG

CLIMATE RISKS AND TCFD coninuea

Global warming scenario: 4°C
Risk

Under this scenanin, we expect (0 see an
ncrease 1IN the frequency and magnitude of
extrerme weather events across our glooal
operations. This could present muluple
chailenges for the Group inchiding:

Damage to operations ‘rom extrerne
weather events

Operational downtime due 10 severe
wea*her conditions

Diffrcult working conditions e.g . extreme
temperature coutd have the ootential 7o
lead to anincrease in absenteelsm

Potential for an increase in the number
of injuries or acaidents when conducting
operations

There are also potential growth opportunities
relating 1o Group products and serwices,
which arovide sclutions for extrerne weather
See case studies on page 53.

Impact analysis

This seenano may include costs relating

to the repair of assets, increased valatlity,
business discontinuity and needed resihency
investments for addressing more severe and
frequent natural disasters that would occur
under a warming of 4°C. Working alorgside
PwC, we have analysed the Group’s exposure
to chimate hazards at 53 of the Group's sites
(20271 67 sites). A summary of the resuits 1s
as follows:

Sites at higher risk**

2021 2022 2022 2040 2040
No of No of % total No of % total
Hazard sites sites sites sites sites
_Flogd 1 1 2% 3 6%
Wind_ 3 3 6% 3 6%
_Ranfall . 5 5 9% 6 % _
_ Heat 6 5 T1% 9
_HaW/Thunderstorms 4 4 8% 4
brought 3 2 4% 4
‘Wildfire 4 4 8% 4
Total unique sites with one or 13 12 23% 18 34%

more high risk hazards

= Carbon pricing assumptions based on PwC's estimates for advanceg economies =1 1 5 Cand 2 C scenarios

** Pw('s climate analysis too! assigned each site, for each hazard, an absolute nazard score from 1 to 100
Sites with hazard scores greater than 70 were deemed higher risk

Based on the above analysis, a* the end of
2022 the Group had 12 sites at higher risk of
one or more climate hazards with heat being
the most significant threat (6 sites, 11%)

The number of sites at higher risk of one or
more climate hazards has reduced compared
to 20271 (13 sites). In 2040 heat is predicted
to remain the most significant threat to the
Group (9 sites, 17%) with heat also seeing the
most significant increase in risk from 2022
t0 2040 (3 additional sites). Qverail, 34% of
sites have been identified to be at higher risk
frarm one or more chmate hazards by 2040.
These sites represent ¢. 20% of 2022 Group
revenues, however the revenue at nsk 1s much
lower as the complete loss of annual revenue
from a site following a climate hazard event
is highly unlikely and the sites also have
mitigations in place. During 2022 operating
companies with sites identfied as higher
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risk progressed thew business continuity
measures. In 2023 we will work with them
to further develop their cusiness continuity
measures and to ensure that the necessary
insurance remams in place.

The resuits of this analysis indicate the
importance of taking action to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions to minimise
transition related nsks. It also suggests that,
while physical climate change presents a
relatively low risk to our future busmness
operations, it may present opportunities for
the Group. Given our focus on sustainable
infrastructure, scme of our operating
companies already provide products and
solutions to address extreme weather
conditions, and we see this as an opportunity
for future growth



How do we manage risk?

The Risx Commitiee is respansile for
identfying, assessing, and nanaging climate
related risks and opoortunities and resorting
significant nisks 1o the Board This includes
consideration of emerging regulatory
requirements, such as carbon pricing

Based on the scenarno analysis and impac:
assessment outlined above, the Board does
not currently consider the impact sufficiently
material over the next five years to he deemed
a Group Principal nsk, however we are
considering chmate change as an emerging
nisicand will momitor accordingly

The impact agsessment has however
identified that sorme of our cperating
companies may be more severely impacted
by future climate change scenarios The Risk
Committee 1s responsible for actively working
with our operating companies to ensure that
appropriate mitigation strategies are in place
using our established Risk Management
process (refer to page 60 for further detarls)

How will we measure progress? —
Group metrics and targets

The Group has set the following metiics and
targets to assess and manage chimate elated
nsks and opportunities

+ We are committed to reducing our Scope
1 and Scope 2 CO.e emissions to achieve
our net zero target by 2040 In the near
T, We are measunng progress through
reduction in our CO.e intensity ratio Refer
to page 39 for further details of progress
to date.

» Duning 2022, we undertook wark to
establish our baseline Scone 3 CO e
emissions and we are on track to submit
our SBTi targets ahead of the required
August 2023 deadline.

= Inaddition, we currently measure water
uysage and waste managemeant and
continue o look at ways of minimising
our environmenta!l iImpact

We note the guidance 1ssued on cross
industry climate related metric categories and
this I1s an area we are planning to broaden
going forward.

PEAGE JUSTICE
ANLESTRY
INSTITUTIONS
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'StormStrong’ Products -

Creative Composites Group, US
StormStrang products include utthty poles,
utility crossarms, hght poles, waterfront sheet
piles, waterfront pipe piles and FRP cooling
towers. They provide resihence, durabilty

and corrosiar resistance 1 both grid and
shoraline anolizations to ensura structural
Integrity In exireme weatner conditions such
as hurncane-force winds, blizzards and deep
freezes Creative Somposites Group also
manufacture FireStrong' fire resistant utility
soles that can protect the gnid from the
excessive haat generated by brush/grass fires
{sea page 14 for further details)

TCFD Elements TCFD Recommended Disclosures Compliant
a Board oversight Y
Governance
b Managemeant's role Y
c. Climate related ris<s and ooportunities ®
Strategy d. Impact of climate refated nsks and opportunities g
e Resilience of the organisation's strategy in
climate scenat10s ®
f Risk identification and assessmen: ™
Risk Management 9. Managing climate related risks ™y

h. Integration into overall risk management process ¢

1. Metrics for chmate retated nisks and

opportunities ®
j1 Scope 1 & 2 GHG metrics ®

Metrics and
Targets j2. Scope 3 GHG metncs ®
k1. Climate related targets - Scope 1 & 2 Y
k2. Ctimate related targets — Scooe 3 ®

Rail Track Flood Resilience — Asset
International Structures, UK

The "Asset BaFix" frack ballast shoulder
retention system adds stability to rai tracks
and provides flood resihence 1o ensure remate
areas of rall networks are not cut off duning
flooding and extreme weather

HVAC vibration isolation systems
— Novia, US

Novia's vibration 1solation roof curis are
designed to withstand significant weather
events, such as hurricanes, to protect Heating
Ventlation and Air Conditioning ' HVAC
systems and ensure fe and safety cntical
facilities remain open and operational Such
faciities include hospitals, pohice and fire
stations, data centres and educationai centres

. S

Stock Code HILS
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continued

ETHICAL CONDUCT

Why does it matter?

As aninternationat Group, we recognise that
acting ethically towartls our errployees and
other stakeholders shows our comimiiment
te dong business in a responsible manner
Protecting ourselves and aur employees;
creating a sense of pride in our emoloyees
tha: we always ‘do the night thing', ensunng
transparency when dealing with customers
and suppliers; supporting the communities
in which we wo-k with fair and equitable
employment palicies and opportunities,
and mainlaining our reputation with all our
stakeholders.

The Group 1s committed to treating all peaple,
whether employed directly by the Group or s
subsidiaries or employed m its supply chan,
fairly and equitably and we are committed

to upholding their human nghts. The Group
recognises all individuais’ basic human rights
and is committed to respecting the Universal
Declaration for Human Rights The Group
and ali its worldwide subsidiaries respect

the human nghts of all those working for or
with us, and of the people in the communities
where we operate We will not knowingly do
business with comparnies, organtsations, ar
incividuals that we believe are not working

1o at least basic human rights standards.

Our Group companies will also comply with
all applicable wage and working-time laws
and other laws or regulations affecting the
employer/employee relationship and the
workslace We opoose the explotanan of all

workess, children and young people, we will
not rolerate forced labour, of labour which
nvolves physical, verbal, or psychological
harassment or intimidation of any kind, and
we will nat employ child labour in any of our
operations Nor will we permit the exploitation
of, or disceimination against, any vulnerable
group

We aim 1o make a positive iImpact on society
from our operations. The Group's business
activities incur a substantial amount of
different taxes, and the Group 1s commitred
to complying with tax laws in the gecgraphies
in which it operates and works closely with
tax authorities in those countries The Group
does not operate in countries considered

as partially compliant or non-comphant,
according to the OECD Tax Transparency
report and blacklisted or grey-listed by the
EU, except for Austraha, where the Group has
aroads business with strategic infentions to
mirror the success of its UK roads business.

What have we done?

The Group is committed to conducting 1ts
business activities responsibly and ethically
and in accordance with the laws and
regulations applicable to the jurisdictions in
which we operate and we have a series of
policies that support this cbjective These
are supported by training and educational
programmes for employees, together with
a Group Cade of Business Condust (CoB%Y)
which underpins all our activities and presides
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over areas such as health & safety, farr,
honest and ethical business oractice, gifis
and entetanment, congucting nternational
business, protechion of indimduals, resources
and assets and at a high level summarnises
the Group's legal and compliance
responsitilities in areas such as anti-bribery
and co-ruption, export laws and regulations
and international fair and open competition
For emoloyees who wish to raise concerns
without fear of reprisal or victimisation, we
provide an external confidential, independent
compliance hotiine and email facility, which
1s avallable in local languages, or they

can contact senior managers within their
business, the Group Company Secretary, or
*he Chair of the Audit Committee, without
fear of reproach During 2022, 12 such issues
ware reported and investigated {2027, 2)

Specific policies have been developed and the
following are avatlable on the wensite
www hsgroup.com

«  Supply Chain Policy

+  Code of Business Conduct
Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy
Modern Slavery Policy
whistleblowing Policy



What will we achieve?

We will regularly review subsidianes’ standard
terms and conditions of purchase, and
standard long term supnly anreements
across the Groua The terms and agreements
must include a number of requirements
concerning ethical operarons, including
orovisions addiessmg a supsher's obhgation
to comply with the UK Modern Slavery Act or
similar local legal obhgations

We will act in accordance with our CoBC,
upholding a zero-‘olerance approach 10
nibery and corruption There were zero
incidents of bribery and cerrustion reported in
2022 (2027 nif)

CASE STUDY:

%

Management undertook a focused audit
In the second half of the year on selected
zinc and resin supplhers relating to its
Galvanizing and Sngineered Solutions
aperating companies in the UK and USA

Head of Legal and a Iocal representative
of the relevant oerating company to
meet with the major zinc supphers to the
galvanizing businésses and the principal
resin sudpher 1o the Creative Composites
Group

.

Ar-angements were made for the Group's

We will conduct annual audi's to ensure that
we fulfit our obligations under the UK Moden
Slavery Act

We will monitor and investigate all
Whistleblowing reports as well as learning
the lessons from such incidents in order to
manage such reports to an accentable level.

We conduct our dealings wrth tax authonties
with honesty, integrity, respect, and fairness
and in a spirit of co-operative compliance

Maodern Stavery audit

The audit consisted of a preanterview
guesTionnaire ‘ogethe” with guestions
and observations made during the
interview, and the historic deahings of the
suppliers with the cperating comrpanies

Notable outcomes concerned the
integration and geographicat location of
supply chains, and the approgriateness
of diigence processes, policies and
functions.

PEACE. JUSTICE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS
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How do we ensure we are

compliant?

« Annual Modern Slavery audits

= Board overaight nf all Whiatlehlowing
Reports
Annual approval of all ethical polcies by
the PLC Board or Executive Board

+  Conttnual monitoring of anline training
10 ensure comphance with relevant
legislation

» Annual certification by Group operating
subsidiaries that they have compled
with pohcies issued oy the Groud, and i
particular with the CoBC

The suopliers had a high percentage of
ntegrated matenal supply sourced from
countries thar were ranked in the top half
of the Global Transparency Index

No major concerns were identified
during the audit, with suppliers also
demonstrating tha* they had appropriate
and robust on-boarding due diligence
processeas, and ther own internal and
suppler policies e g, codes of conduct,
whistleblowng, and training, and
appropniate internal audit functions

Stock Code HILS
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continued

Sustainability Data

Spend on R&D

Percentage of revenue 0.4% 0 3% 0.3% 02% 02%

Environmental penalties £rul £l £l £l £rii

Location-based consumptien (1C0 )

_Scopel o L 49388 5372 52066 53478 56,469
Scope 2 ) o 012404 14383 15335 19,803 24,449

_ Market-based consumption (108l o s o )

_Scopel - B - 49,388 53712 52,066 ) 53478 56,469

_ Scope2* . o BT 10885 14708 19803 24,449
Intersity Ratio*s 097 g 21 oM 013

0 atwowves cootract 'o ouwy allits MK elect ity eaarame s b o coowable SO0 605 T3 wWas 2au<ed v ferewmzaie [ e gy Sua ganize of dngim

Sl Nowe e 202009 ey g et o
. 1An: rebamag to ine, sotise ot e stnety

& B et L exchint

(Lt 1w

* rlenaily Reto s Jeliees ag total suoge 1 & 7 100 e expresses as a "alio to £000s of evenue

No of_workp\a]g(_e fatalines - B B - o] i 0 2 s o
_T:I_O_C_Jf lostume inures - 85 a2 109 119 118
Lost bmeinyary rate CLTRT (The numaoer of fos: tirme riares dended 11 17 15 16 16
by total hours worked multphed by 100,000} B B o o
_No of Near Miss Reports ) aar 2126 955 nfa n/a_
Percentage of sites with access 1o enine HES reporting systems 33% 7% 95% n/a
Percentage of sites covered by 1SO 45001 63% 45% 45% n/a

‘No of Group employees (as at 31 Dec) 3,817 4402 4398 459 4094
Voluntary {Regrettable) attntion rate ) - 14% 14% B% n/a _n/a
Percentage of employees with access to a recognisable Trade Union 1% 18% 18s n/a A
UK Gender Pay Gap o - L) 28% B4%  127% o 125%
Training spend £0.8m ~£06m  EG4m n/a _n_f_a_
No of traimng days o 5626 ang 4,000 n/a n/a
No. of training hours o o 45,010 32952 32,000 . na o n/a
UK Apprentceships B o _ 52 49 34 ) na n/a

_ Employees participating in training and development L 2,386 156 11 N na nja
Percentage of female employees participating in 10% 17% 10% n/a n/a

training and development

Percentage of UK sites utilising the Apprenticeship Levy 89% 57% 49% n/a na

Engagement Survey participaton ) o 80% 67% a0 56% L)

Engagement Score . . . 61% 55% v | 48% nia _
Inclusion Engagerent Score 69% 63% E] 58% n/a
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

j‘é%w
S : F M _F
PLCODIreCtOls - 5 3 2 3
ExecutveBoard 42 4 2 ‘e n/a ) I )
_ No of Subsidhary Directors %7 48 3 66 5 79 3 59 2
_MNa_of Senior Managers® ——— 7" ;0 201 3B 4 /221 40 167 19
_ Percentage of PLT Directors . 82n 38%  6DW 38 7vu o 0% 7% 29% 8% 17%
_Percentage of Executive Board o bImo3En 67w 33% i3 na__ va_ _~a A o n/a
_Percentage of Subsidiary Directors -~~~ 85x  15Wm  94% &% 93% Tm o 98% 4% 9T 3%
_Percentage of Senior Managers* 80 20% 84w 6% 8% 18%  85% 0 15% 0 90% 0%
Totat percentage of Group employees 0% 10% 90% 0% 90% 0% 91 4 9% 9%

froed ro Maragig D

_ Ervironmental fines incurred L o fow o _End

_ Group Water Usage {m’) S o Bdee7 104795

_Soldwaste o landfil {Tornes) 5138 3500

_Recycledwaste (Tonnes) - 18g/m 13,755

_Percentage ofrecycledwaste - 78 IR R

_Scope3 (tC0.€) - fromwaterandwaste B AN

_ Other GHGemissions - CH, (1C0e . 8 gg. &  nla . _nfa
Other GHG emissions — N.O {100.e} 114% 213 194 n/a n/a

~ Ma: <et aased analyss.

! - ki Kby TR
Charitable donabons o o _ EB2000 _ £39.000 ) E21000 £3%000 £30,000
Whistleblowing reports made by employees 2 2 3 v 11

~ Moderr Stavery audits carred out N ~ Yes Yes Yes Yes na

Sustainability Policies
The Group has a number of policies that suppart its Sustanability Plan. These are listed below, and these can be found at https //hsgroun comy/

« Sroduct Responsibility Palicy;, < Conflicts Mineral Pobicy,  « Supply Cnain Pol.cy, = Energy Policy, = Environmental Policy,
«-{ealth & Safety Policy, * Equal Opportunities & Divers ty Policy,  « Talert & Developrert Policy: Tax Strategy Policy
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Our People What matters to our people What we did in 2022
As an employer committed 10 «  Brand + Carried out our third all-employee
aroviding the nght environment Safe working environment engagement strvey — a 6opts Increasc Iin
i which 1o work, we insis: that R Hor OU” engagenrent seore
el e . - emuneration
people connected with the Group Appointed a Group Head of Sustainability
can wark safely, are trained - Wellbaing Develoned slans for talent devel
corectly, oshave nthe nght way, - Job secunity eveloped olans for talent develonment
and comply with all lacal legal and inclusion and diversity as pait of our

CC T , - | ey = ce o 5
and regulatory requirements, Career developrren SSG ‘eaaonx;e (see pages 46 1o 48 for
thus ensunng the sustainability etals).
of the business
Our Companies What matters to our companies What we did in 2022
Our decentralised autonomous +  Operational and financial performance + Acquired a US-based solar-powered hghting
maodel places our comoanies « Cash allocation business, National Signal, bulding on the
cinse to tharr end markets and domain knowledge acquired with Prolectnic

» Product Innovation

under the managemen* of their Services in 2021

- o~ . +
own board of directors, providing Talent and development Acquired a UK-based galvamzing susiness,
agiity, customer inumacy and Widnes Galvanising, increasing our

enteoreneunal activisies Qur presence in UK sustamable infrastructure
comaanies are able to resnond

rapilly 'o opportUNties and 1o Monitareg operazing company

changes In *heir comaetyrve performance
srvirenTment and are rassonsiole + Regulas site visits by Board merrbers
for the delvery of our organic + Provided cash to facilitate capital projects

. growth and the success of our

Contmued our mnovation workshops
Groux strategy

Customers What matters to our customers What we did in 2022

Our subsidiaries engage with - Quality products delivered on time and to the - Invested Iin product development

therr customers on an individual correct specification +Increased our ESG focus to set a baseline
business unit basis Mast - ESG for our Scooe 3 carbon emissions,

businesseas are acCredred

. e - . . e [ 3

wrth a numoes of 190 quality A strong health & safety culture ggﬂr/ldufmed h?alth & safety audits across
standards to provide comfort 1o +  Being treated with respect @ OTOUr SILes

our customers that we are able + Working as a partnership

to deliver solutions which meet

their exacting requirements.

Suppliers What matters to suppliers What we did in 2022

We actively engage with our +  Mutual beneficial arrangements - Operating companies regularly met with
supphers, working closely to -+ Long-term relationships existing and potential suppliers to review
ensure that they provide the . Qualty continuity and quality of supply

night quality of raw materials + Mantained the Group's payment terms at
and services to support our 61 days (2027 64).

commitment to quality products
and to matntaining far cashflow
requirements
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What we did in 2022

Governments and Industry  What matters to governments and industry

We engage with the Government
and our peers by participating

N industry bodies and meetings
10 discuss emerging solicy,
regulation, nnovation and threats
In relation to Infrastruciure
makeis

nevelopment of road infrast-uctu-e
Developmen: of utilibes infrastructure
Tested products

Sustanadle Jroducts

znvironmentally friendly solutions

Tested Road products o Manual for

3gessmng Latety Hardwars UMASH i the
US and Austraha and Standard EN13171n
the LUK

Represented the Group an Governmen! and
Industry safety and aroduct comnuttees,
nctuding the British Standards Institute
{BSI, *he vemzle kestran: Marnufacturers
Associahion, Perimeter Security Suapliers
Association, and the Transpor: Research
Board in the USA.

Discussed the use of composite matenals
with US Government officials,

Local Communities

Ous operating companies engage
with thetr local communtties on
a business-by-business basis
supporing local charities as

well as engaging with local
authontes when seeking 1o
develop their Dusinesses.

What matters to our local communities

Environmental 1ssues
Employment
Healh & Safety

What we did in 2022

Supported our cperating companies to
develop local ESG imitiatives

Matched funding for Ukraimian suppart
charities

Encouraged our soerating companies

1o engage with ther local communities,
supporting local charities on a husiness-by-
business basis

Investors

Our Executive Chair and CFO
engage with our investors
through a series of meetings,
site viaits and presentations,
ensuning thar they set cut our
strategy for delivening long
term sustainable profit growrh
Investors also feed back therr
views on the major corporate
governance 1ssues of the day

What matters to our investors

Sohd dividend performance and lang term
share price growth; and long term sustainable
orofit growth

Operational efficiency

ESG

Ronust coroorate governance and business ethics

What we did in 2022

Appointed a Group Head of Sustainability

Improved our response te ESG, resulting n

- increas ng ou” COP ("Carben Disclosure
Project’} ranking from D to B, and

— ncreasing our MSClrating score from
ATO AA

The Executive Chair and CrO met regularly
with investors and analysts.

Held an Investor site visit at our Hill & Smith
Infrastructure Limited/Joseph Ash Lirmited
galvanizing joint site in Bilston, West
Midlands.

Stock Code HILS
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has an established Enterprise Risk Management Framework that identifies,
evaluates, manages, and monitors risk. Several enhancements have been implemented during
2022 to further improve and embed the risk management process.

Risk Management

Fffective risk management is critical 1o

-he achievement of our strategic d-ivers

of organic g-ow:h, portfolio managemen,
stirong rash generation, and sustainasihity
The Group benefits fr-om an Enterprise Risk
Management Framewaork that 1S integrated
nto the ongoing business activities of our
operating companies.

Responsibilities

While the Board has delegated the ongoing
discussion of sk and nisk management

o the Audit Committee and the Executive
Management, the Board 1s responsible for
the overall stewardship of our system of

sk management and internal control 1t has
established the level of risk tha 1s acceptable
to our ousinesses in *he pursurt of our strategic
ohjectives H has also set delegated authonty
levels 1o orowide the framework for assessing
rsks and ensuring that they are escalated

0 the aopropriate fevels of manageren:,
inzluding up ta the Board where apo-opnate,
for consideration and approval

Figure 1 Risk Management Process

THE PLC BOARD

AUDIT COMMITTEE

OPERATING COMPANIES )

Enterprise Risk Management
Framework

The Grouo operates an =nerpnse sk
Managemen: Fiamewaoik that ensures a
censistent and oroportionate approach

15 used o 1denufy, evaluate, manage, and
moniar nsks across atl our operating
companies The Framework integrates with
the Group's internal controls and compliance
pohcies and s supported by the internal and
external audit programmes. It uses a tiered
approach to nsk management, with risk
reqisters at operating companies linked o the
appropriate Group Principal Risks, with flows
of information and assurance {see Figure 1)
In keening with the Group's envreoreneural
approach, indivigual operating companies
record and manage unique 1sks outside of
the Group's Principal Risks as they see it
This ensures nsk management s effectively
errbedded in 2 way that fits each specific
operating environment and rsk honizon

Sets strategy

companies

Within the Framework the following roles and
resnonsilities exist

The Board
retains overall ownership and
accountablity for risk management,

ensures the Directors have the
approprate skills, knowledge and
experience Lo effectively assess the
Group Principal Risks and carry out their
duties affectively;

evaluates the Group Principal Risks and
oversees therr management,

establishes the Group risk appetite, and

directs the external reporting of nsk and
viability

Determines overall nsk appetite
identifies and manages principal nsks

Oversees the risk management process

»  Reviews and challenges risk inforrration and target pesitions
from operating companies

Identify, assess and manage cperating company level nsks
Set risk targets for identified nsks
- Complete gk improverment actions

Sets nsk management methodology
+ Advises operating companies on best practice
Interrogates and calibrates nisk information from operating

+  Provides challenge and insight
Reports risk information to the Audit Committee
+  Adwvises the Audit Committee on new and emerging risks

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



The Audit Committee

Suppots the Board oy
monitorng and direciing the testing of the
Enterprise Risk Management Framewn-k,
apaetite and associated mternal controls,
mgluding the influencing factors of cutture
and reward,

ensuring there s a hink aetween the Groun
Princinal Risks and the Group's inte-nal
and external andit programnres,

reviewing sufficient internal and external
sources of assurance and information

10 enable i« 1o recommend 10 the Board
where changes may be needed to the
“nterprise Risk Management Framework
and/or Group Principal Risks, and

reviewing the detait of external reporsing

The Risk Committee
Supports the Audit Committee by,

acting as a conduit between the G-oup
and our ooerating BuUsINesses, supporing
the dissermination of the Enterprise

Risk Management Framrework and nsk
appet’te down from the Board and flow
of intormation and assurance back up to
the Board,

helping the executive team to emied the
Enmterprise sk Manageent Framework
by designing and imolementing
supporting systems, procedures, tools
and training,

proactively analysing and challenging
the agsessment, managemen: ang
moniternng of operating business

nsk registers and day-to-day rsi
management; and

Figure 2 Risk Management Framework

ensuring the Board and Audiz Committee
are provided with sufficient informaton 1o
discharge their responsiohties effectively

The Executive Board

Supaorts the Board by
Cnsunng operating companies ale
ef‘ectively embedding the G-oup's
“nterprise sk Managemen: -ranewnik
and are maintaining live nsk registers that
are antively managed,

overseeing completion of ali required
Group reporting of fisk with escalation
of any significant matters to the Risk
Committeg in a timely manner, and

advising the Risk Committee on
appropriate levels of target risk and on
actions that may be required to ensure
effective ident:fication and mitigation
of nisk

Risk Appetite

The Enterpnise Ris< Management Framework
clanfies how risk 1s to be managed in a way
that sausfies the decentralised ooeating
model of the Group (see Figure 2 below) The
approach has allowed the Board to zonsider
its appetite i the light of The G-oup's business
model and carry out a robust assessment
dunng 2022 of the Principal Risks and
Uncertainties that might threaten the Group's
business model, future performance, solvency
and hquidity {see pages 64 to 68 for the
3roua’s Principal Risks)

In commaon with every successful company,
the Board accen:s a levef of risk n pursuit
ofits strategic objectives Hill & Saith PLC
assesses the nsk of action (7 nachion) as
nart of every decision and does not allow the
Group 1o take naks that would harm the long
rermnterests of 1t strategy, sharcholders
and stakeholders, including the environment.
For examole, this might mean,

pursuing or not puUssLuNg an acquisition,
or requinng QF'EHTE‘F assurance and
comiort before proceeding through our
robust due dilgence process,

entenng or not entenng INto contracts
that place an oneious contrac:ual or
reputational burden on the Company,

not entenng geog-ashic locations where
bribery and corruption are accepted or
tolerated, or

not using certain chemicals or treatments
{or changing existing treatments) that are
harmful to the environmen’

A single statement signifying the sk appetite
of the Group 1s difficul’ to articutate due to its
diverse nature, Muttinle geogranhic locations,
mar<ets and products Howeve~, the Boaird
believes that it effecuvely demonstrates its
risk appetite by the decisions 1t has taken
(and not taken) during the year Top-down
assessment of nsk apoetite by the Board 1s
now possible with the introduction of Target
Risk scoring and the adility for the Board to
challenge operating comnanies on specific
sk targets

(Governance

CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Core risk management process

IDENTIFY

Infrastructure

TOOLS, SYSTEMS

AND DATA

APPETITE

ASSESS AND
QUANTIFY

MANAGE

POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

REPORTING AND ASSURANCE

MONITOR

ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES
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RlSK MANAG EM ENTcontinued

Risk in 2022

Risk Committee

The Commites met formally five tnimes
during the year and comprises the Group
Chief Financral Officer, Group Head of Ris<

& Internal Audit, Group Company Secietary,
Group Director of Coroorate Develapmen:,
Group Financial Controller, Gioup Head

of Legal, Gioup IT Director and the Grous
Presidents, plus representatives of the
Group's three husiness segments, The
Commitzee reviews and validates the risk
reperis from the operating companies, sefore
presenting a Group-wide report to the Audit
Commitzea for discussion on both operating
comoany level risks and Group risks
Challenging feedback 1s provided by the Audit
Comrnittee to further question the vahidity
and mitigations of the risks presented and to
identfy others not already considered. This
process ensures that “isks are not just the
product of a bottom-up aporoach but are also
examined from the top-down

Risk Analysis

The Board reviewed in depth feedback
from the operating companies and the
Rsk Commuttee on the Groua's Principal
Risks rollowing detailed denate, the Board
concluded that the Group’s Principal Risk
Register coninued to -eflect the Principal
Risks the Group faced An ncrease o the
exposure from two of our Principal Risks hasg
seen highhighted Global economic outlook
and 1T systems falure, One of our Principal
Risks has seen reduced exposure Talent,
development, diversity, recruitment, and
retention of key employees. The remaining
Principal Risks have remained stable For
further detalls see npages 64 to 68

Risk Activities
Activities undertaken to enhance the Group's
anproach to nsk in 2022 included

iurther integration of the Group I T
Controls Manual into the agsessment of
the IT Systemis Failure Principal rusk,

+  revision 0f the ‘Risk Playbook' to prowvide
a guide *o operating comoanies on bast
practice oreventative {to reduce likellhood
of nisks occurring) and reactive (1o reduce
impact H risks do occur} mitigating
controls, and

virtual seminars and one 10 one sessions
to introduce methodology revisions

and to provide ongoing training on the
orinciples of risk managemen* and use
of the risk management software

TCFD

During the year we further developed the ns<
management aparoach o understand our
exposure from physical and transitional nisks
due to chmate change The detalls of this
can be found on pages 50 to 53 Durng 2322
specific climate change risks wese addedt at
an oneraling company nsk register fevel.

Emerging Risks

Ag parl uf our commitrment (o contnuously
evaluate our strategy and product oftering,
the Risk Committee thoroughly considers
emerging risks in the context of future
opportunities and threats to the Group's
business aodel. Dunng 2022 the Risk
Committee continued the approach
develoged in 2027 todentfy, assess and
monitor emerging nsks A revised list of
potenal emerging nsks the Group could face,

derived fromnsk and audit discussion papers
and reports, mdustry papers and nternal
nput was compiled A materiality exercise
was then comaleted with input from the Risk
Committee, Executive Board and the Char

of the Audis Commities to produce a group
of priosmsed threats and opportunities fiom
the imjual is: Analysis was then completed
0 determine which threats and apporiunities
are al-eady oeing managed through existing
strateqic initiatives and which require action
now to miagate/maximise future impacts
The results from the emerging risks analysis
were presented a* the March 2023 Audit
Comimittee and the onorntised emerging sks
will be monitored throughout 2023

Emerging Risk Timescale

‘Gas or electricity outage / rationing / security of susply

Step change in public infrastructure strategy resulting in reduced
_spend (e g, Polucal regme change of fiscal policy rething

Dechning interest in manual labour employment and campesition with

_ other employers/industries

Industrial action / strikes

{either our own workforce or sunpliers / customers)

Future pandermics and our aailly to respond effecuvely

Shart (0-2yrs)

Medium {3-10yrs)

Medium {3-10yrs)

Short (0 2yrs)

_ _Short {0 2y7s),

Glohal t-ade disputes {e.g, tensions between China and Taiwan and

Implications for operating company supply chain and customer impact

e 1., silicon chip supply)

Medium (3-10yrs)

_Againg workforce

Cype- securiiy controls are outstripped or rendered obsolete by
_Increasingly sophisticated and frequent attacks

Increasing expectation for corporates to achieve net zero on a reducing

smescale

Decarbonisation of the economy and the technology to achieve this

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

_ Medwum (3-10yr1s)

Mediu (3-10yrs)

Medium {3-10y3)

Long {T0yrs+)



Risk in 2023 and beyond
The key focus during 2023 will inciude

further wor< to nature the nsk
management nethodology used across
the Group

further integration of ocur chrate change
risk assessment process, a5 develoned
for TCHD reparting, inta the existing
Emterpnse Risk Manageiment ~ramework,
formahsation and standa-dcation of
Business Continuity Planning across our
operating comoanies,

n-depth review of mitigating controls
and the levels of assurance available a*
ooerating companies fo ascertaim ther
effectiveness,

continued assessment of the Principal
Risks facing the Group and operating
companies including those that might
threaten the Group's business model,

furure performance, solvency and bquidity,

continued evaluation and identification
ol elrerying isis that might disrupt the
business models and strategies of our
operating companies;

further development of our ng<
management software to continually
irmprove the efficiency o reporting to the
Group oM our Dperating susinesses, and
fuither alignment of health & safety and

{1 audits with the control efectiveness
assessments pesformed by aperating
COMDANES.

140d3d 2193LvHlS
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Distribution bay substation, New Philadelphia, OH, supporied by V&S Ailities
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GROUP PRINCIPAL RISKS 2022

Risk Description and Potential Impact

Reduction in public  Derrand for sustainable infrastructu-e and transport s
infrastructure undersinned oy Government spending plans Changes
spending to these plans could have a detnirrental imoact on Group

revenues
e The infrastiuctura Investment and Jobs Act ILIAT,

enacted into law in Novembe: 2027, confirmed a
substantial increase in LS fereral government spending
across a range of Infrastructure areas and Is likely to
benefit demand for the Group's products and services in
the US Despite the current mac c-economic uncertanty
and recent delays in strategic road network projects, we
are confident the UK Government s committed to the
Road Investment Strategy, oresenting future opportunity
for our UK roads businesses.

Mitigation

Our existing entity porifalio contams diverse
oroducts, markets and territories and we will continue
with this aparoach

Market and product development initiatives

Co-operation between Group businesses, leveraging
the Group's size/international footprint and exploiting
Synergres

Exposure to *he benefits from longer term
infrastructure nvestment programmes

Changes in global The Grouo operates i a range of end-user markats

economic outlook around the world and may be affected by political,
and geopolitical econcmic or regulatory developments in any of these
environment COoun'ries
Material adverse changes in the political and economic
environments n the countries in which we operate, have

the potential to put at nsk our abifity to execute our
strategy

As a resulr of continued global macro-economic
. uncertainty and :he threat of recession, an increase in the
risk has been recognised

The Group has a diverse portfoho of operating
companies with exposuie 10 a range of markets and
geographies, imiting exposu:e to any one country of
mar<et sector.

Current and future financial performance 1s
zonunuouslty monitored, facilitating rapid resnonse 1o
changes in market conditions

In fine with our ent-epreneunal model, our decisions
are made close o our Markets and our businesses
ace agle and responsive to changes in therr
competiive landscaoe

Co-operation between G-oup busingsses, leveraging
the Group's size/internaticnal footprint and exploting
synergies

Increase in Increased volatiity, uncertainty and slowdown in
competitive our ma-kets could result inincreased prices and the
pressure emergence of new technologies, leading to a loss of

customers and/or pricing pressure and consequently a
e Ioss of sales and reduced orofits

Holding leading pesitions in niche markets of
sustainable infrastructure and transport safety with
high barriers to entry.

In ling with our ent-epreneurial model, our decistons
are made close to our markets and our businesses
are agile and responsive to changes in therr
cormpetitive landscane

Our operating companias aim 1o provide supenor
products and figh service ievels to customers, whilst
arming to ensure there 15 no dependency on any one
custormer

64  Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



e No change o Increase e Uecroase

Risk Description and Potential Impact

Product failure

The Grouo cperates ininfrastructure markets where it 19
criticat that 1ts oroducts meer customer and legislative
requirements and where the consequences of product
fallure are potentially significan:

Product fallure anging from componeant defects or
war-anty 1ssues may require remediation including the
replacement of defective components or complete
products, resulting in direct financial costs to the Group
and/or wider -eputational risk

140d3y 21D31vHLS

Mitigation

= Products tested, appoved and acorediied by
requlatory bodies

= Quairty control protocols fully implenrented and
continuously Tonite ed

- Contractual contolsin place to minimige econemic
impacts

- Insurance cover maintamed globally with insurance
nartners

- Liigaticn supported/managed by external fegal
specialists

Contractual failure

The Group delivers its commitments 1o Its customers
through a variety of contractual arrangements of both a
short and medium term nature.

Weaknesses 1n the contract zendering process,
inappropriate pricing, misalignment of contract terms,
neffective contract management or failure to comply
with coniractual conditions could result in loss of
revenues, pressure on opetating marging and wider
reputational damage to the Group

»  Thematic Internal Audit review completed across
the Groua during 2027 with recommendations
implemented during 2022

«  Group matenial contract review process enswres
specialist central oversight of key contractual
arrangements

+ Contracts raining for key staff

= Dedicated quantity surveyors and contract managers
N operating companes to control contracts and

mitigate risk

«  Limgaton supoo-ted/managed by external legal
specialists

+ Insurance cover mantaned globally with insurance .
Dartne’s

Supply chain
failure

The Group's husinesses desend on the avalability and
timely delivery of raw matariais and comoonents, which
could be affected by disruption inits supply chain Supply
chain fallures because of performance, cost inflation,
quality and/or insolvency may have an adverse inpact on
the Group's oroduction capacity and lead to an inability
o meet customer requirements, “esulting in a reduction
in revenues, ootential loss of market share and aossible
reputational damage.

Global warming could place further stress on our supply
chain, with extreme weather events impacting supply
becorming mare likely and chronic changes to heat/
rainfall averages potentially impacting where we source
certain materials. Clirmate change transition costs could
alsc inflate the price of the goods we purchase.

During the year, our operating companies continued

to take appropriate action fo manage supply chain
headwinds, Actions taken included implementing
price increases to offset significant inout cost inflation,
securing supply of raw materials and ensuring the
continuity of operations with a backdrop of labour
shortages in certain businesses.

«  Supply chain resiience has been a focus of the Risk
Commitiee during 2022 with angoing monifoning
of operating companies’ ability to respond to the
canunued challenges

« Group wide thematic Internal Audit review of Supply
Chain completed durning 2022 with recommendations
10 be implemented during 2023

» Group procurernent standards, including robust
due diigence of supply chain partners and the
requirement for duai sourcing where available

« Regular interaction and assessment of performance/
financial status of key suppliers.

+ Group oversight of matenal procurement contracts
ensuring robust contractual protections.

+  Goods inwards and stock management processes in
piace to reduce *he kkelihood of defects or a shortage
of raw materials

+ Contingency plansn place throughout the suppiy
chain, such as purchasing additional stock of key
raw materials and securing additional supply chain
capacity.

Stock Code HILS
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PRINC'PAL RISKScontinued

Risk Description and Potential Impact

IT systems failure

The Group relies on the information technology systems
used in the daily operations of its operating comazanes A
fallure or mpairment of those systems o any mability to
effectively implement new systens could cause aloss o®
husiness and/ar damage to the eautanon of the Group,
rogether with signiiicant remedial costs.

Ponr seennty contrals and nrocedures could lead to
our operating companies being susceptible to cyber-
attack, potentially resulting in significant IT failure and
associated disruption

During the year the glosal cybe thieat has continued
to evolve, with increasing numbers of organised
criminal groups undertaking increasingly sophisticated
ransomware and other cyber attacks As a result of
the conflict in Ukrane, the UK's National Cyber Security
Centre PNCSE) has warned of haightered cybe- sk
across UK, US and European busimnesses.

While there has been a mar<ed enhancernent of the
Group's IT secuny controls duting 2022, the Board
consider the nis< to oe heightened due o the increasing
sophistication and frequency of cyber threats across
the worild

Mitigation

The Board mamtans a watching anef on 1T and
oyber ns<, and has overseen signficant investment
ac-oss the Group to enhance IT securnity conirols
and maturity covering areas such as identity
managemen:, IT asset managameant, dackup,
endooint drotacton, ncilent response and
vulnerability management

Wholesale network securty rmprovernien s planned
for 2023,

IT controls mranual setting out a robust set of
information security contrels covenng basic cyber
hygiene, system back-up procedures and hardwara/
sofiware protection Reviews of [T controls
compliance were completed by Internat Audit during
2022, with action plans agreed and monitored.

Quarterly upda‘es established to brief aperating
company leadership *eams on therr -esoonsbifities
relaning to IT rmanagement and information securnity

Segregated business processing systems within each
operating company means tha: any disiupton due
tollegal external activity is unlikely o jeopardise the
Group as a whole

Portfolio
Management

The Group's growth strategies include the acquisition
of businesses around the world that complerment o~
supplerent its existing actvihies Failure to execute

an effective acquisition and integration programme
would have a significant impact on the Group's ability 1o
generate sustainable arofitable growth for shareholders

All potential acquisitions are tightly evaluated
to ensure they fit within our purpose and core
strategic goals

Due diligence protocsls deployed m relation to
assessment of target businesses, ncluding financial,
comivrercial, and legal etc

Board approval required for Group acguisitiens, in line
withits Schedule of Matters Reserved

Contractual protections and assurances sought from
sellers to mitigate subsequent identification of nsks
Post-acquisition integration pians estahlished for afl
acquisitions with regular performance monitonng
and reporting to the Board

Hilk & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



e No change o Increase ° Gegrease

Risk Description and Potential Impact

Lack of investment  The Group aperates in glooal infrastructure marke:s

in product where continuous mnavabon s mtegral to the Group's
development and product offering and where a fallure to innovate
innovation could result i proguct obsolescence, the entry of

new coMpento s and:o° 1oss of marxket share The
develooment of new o1oducis and teshnologies caes
nsk including the failure 1o develop a commeicially viable
attering within an aceeulable anoel ame

Mitigation

Group wide Innovatoen frantework launched during
2027 to encourage and stimulate more nnovation
across the Group. Warkshops were run during 20272
to foster nnovation and share best oracice and
these will zontinue Into 2023

cmirepreneunal cultue fostered through a
decentralised management stucture ensunng
thal Group businesses are aqilc and responsive to
changes in therr comaetiive environmenis.
Acquisitions add innovate products and trechnology
to our poitfolio

Executive Board asproval of product development
proposals within the Group's capital spend approval
policies

Active Intellectual Property managemen: within
indivicdual operating companies overseen by Group.

Dedicated qualty compliance resourzes in
place across operating companies, ensuring
responsiveness 1o regulator and/or customer
approval requirements

Board rmonitering of emerging risks alongside
external soecialist sunport, where pboth the risks
identified and the potential oppoertunities ansing ae
considered

Talent, The changing nature of the demrographics from which
development, we source our employees and the ways in which they
diversity, like o work can make it difficult to attract and retan
rectuitment and hoth skalled and unskilied tabour We need ‘o ensure
retention of key effective reciuitment channels and make he necessary
employees nves:ment to develop and retain high-quality individuals

In key posttions to guarantes the long ‘erm success of
the business We nead to ensure the diversity of our
workforce reflects the communities in which we work,
Withour talented employees we will be unable to delwver
our strategic aims

Cormoetitive local labour markets and the aftermath of
COVID-19 led to challenging recruitment conditions for
our pperating companies in the first half of the year In
the second half of the year these pressures eased due

to rising unemployment and a more difficult economuie
chmate, subsequently time to rec-uit and the number of
vacancles across the Group have both reduced. The 1ssue
does remain though for certain skillse’s that are more
challenging to find and retan, e g., Welders

Our senior leadership gender diversity has improved

N 2022 to 20%, due to both internal promotions and
external hires. Anncreased focus on engagement and
corrective actions following the 20271 engagement survey
has led to an improved score for the 2022 engagement
survey, increasing from 55% to 61%. The process to find a
perrmanent CEQ is underway.

Overall, a reduction n the risk has been recognised for the
perod

Two of our ESG focus areas (talent development
and engagerrent & diversity and mnclusion) directly
address the risk, with improvement nimiatives and
metrics overseen 2y the =5G Commitiee,

Refreshed People Strategy with a greater focus on
internal talent

Head of Reward and Head of Talent roles recruited
during 2022

Contractual orotections and retentions in
ermployment cont-acts of senior management and
other key employees.

Training and development of employees, which
includes a programme of 10D and {_M courses

for senior management and identified potential
successors, and apprenticeship and other vecational
courses for speciahst and technical roles
Appropiniate remuneration and benefits, together with
aonus opportunities and ncentive plans offered to
employees

Recruitment process developed to include
comoetency requirements and skills gap analysis
Talent review process extended in scope to cover
more employees, increasing our visibility of talent

Stock Code HILS
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PR'NCIPAL RlSKScontinued

Risk Description and Potential Impact

Prevention of harm
or injury to people

The Grouois commited to preventing ali health & safety
Incidents and ensuring the health, sa‘ety and wellbeing
of all employees and third pa-ties The Group operates
multiple manufaciunng facilities aiound the world, g
fallure in the Group's health & safety procedures could
lead o mpury or to the death 0" emotoyees or third pa ties

LTIR has educed from * 7in 2021121 1.1 2077 Further
improvement 1s required to reach the 2030 Health &
Safety target of 0 25 and health & safety remains a key
focus area for the Group

e No change o Increase e Degrease

Mitigation

Cutture of zero tolerance in respect of health & sa'ety
viclauons promaoted by the Board and dissemimated

e

throughout Gioup businesses.

Reducuon of the Group's LTI rates 1s a key ‘ocus

for Manageimen: and the Board, with imparovement
meics now established through the 283G Commitiee
Manthly health & safety reporung for all operating
companies via online tools

Monitarnng and seview of LTI rates by Group with all
I'TI events followed up and investigated thoroughly
using the five whys 100t cause analysis and
presented 10 the Executive Board. Improvernent
recommendations are implemented to minimise any
reoCCUrrence.

Deavelopment and roll out {Uan 2023) of our ‘nine life-
saving ules' and non-negotiable safety behaviours’

Frogrammie to add defibnilators to all sites
commenced n 2022,

Regular health & safety site audits

Health & safety forums to monitor oerformance and
share best practice

Txternal health & safely acc-edrrations and
refationshios mamtaned with requlatory bodies.
Health & safety 5 a priority arca of focus for new
acquIsItions

Violation of
applicable laws and
regulations

The Groun's glohal operations must comply with a
range of national and international laws and regulations
including those related 1o modern stavery, anu-brbery
and corruption, human nghts, and emoloyment, GDPR,
trade/expo’t comphance and competition/anti-trust

A faillure to comply with any anphcable laws and
regulations could result incivil or criminal labibties and/
or indivduzl or coroerate fines and could also result

in debarment from Government-related contracts,
restrictions on aoility to wrade or rejection by financial
counterparties as well as repuzational damage

Our exposure to breaching sanctions placed on Russia
is low due to the Group having nc current direct Russian
customers or suppliers Qur export compliance seftware
performs daily screemng of our customer and supplier
databases against global sanctioned and denied party
hsts with any changes in status flagged.

Group Code of Conduct sets out required approach
for ait staff

Staft raiming provided on Modern Slavery red
flags, Anti Bribery and Corruption and Competition
compliance

Prograrmme of audits undeitaken on a cyclical
basis 1o review operating companies’ complance
with regulatory requirements, mcluding for example
simulated ‘dawn raids’.

Software solutions implemented globally to ensure
comphance with trade and export legislation.
Externally hosted whistieblowing hotline available
1o afl employees to allow them to raise concerns in
confidence or anonymously, If preferred

Modern Slavery compliance programme continued
through 2022.

Toolkits 1ssued to all UK operating companies to aid
compliance with GDPR.
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

We aim o comply with the Non-financial Reporting requirements contained in S414CA and S415CB of the Companies Act 2006 The table below,

and the mformation it refers to, 15 intended to help readers understand our position on <ey nan-financial matters

Those sohcies marked with an astensk can 5e found on the Company’s website hsgrou com/who-we-are/governance/our-pchicies/

Reporting requirement

Policies and standards which
govern our approach

Additional information

Environmental matters Savironment pohoy® Sustanabiley Planincluding. 37w 57
=nergy pohoy* Our Approach
Protecting the World
sSaving and enhancing hves
- Sustainable Governance
Ris< TCFD
- Non-financial KPIs
Employees Group Code of Business Conduct* Sustainability Plan inciuding 321057
Traiming and develoament oolicy* Health & Safety
Senior managerent salary policy Succession planning and
Health & Sa‘ety policy™ talent management
G-aus learning and
development
Wellbeing
Risk Talent, diversity, recruimen’
and retention of key employees
Non-financial KPIs
Human rights Recrutment of employees policy Sustanabihty Pran including. 321to 57
Employmen: references policy Siversity & Inclusion
Equal oanortunities and diversity policy* Gender Pay
Board dwersity statement*  Suman rights
Data protection zolcy*
Modern slavery policy*
Community Indwidual subsidiary asproach Non-financial KPlg W
Anti-bribery and corruption Anti-bribery & corruption pelicy* < Sustainadiity Plan including: 32t 57
International competition law policy Sustainable Governance
Gifts & Entertainment polc ,
‘ ) ! potcy Risk: Violation of applicable laws
Whistleblowing policy* and regulations
Description of the Our Purpose and Business Model. 212
business mode! Our Strategy
Our Markets
Description of the principal risk Our Business Model - 21012
and uqcertaintigg §nd impact Our markets 60 to 65
of business activities Risk Framework
Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Employee Engagement - 56 to 57

Non-financial key performance
indicators

Diversity

Lost time injury rate
Greenhouse gas emissions
Water and waste

Stock Code HILS
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Alan Giddins

Appointed to the Board
3 Octoner 2017

Alan was formerly a Managing
Partner and Global Head of
Private Equity at 31 Group pig,
and a member of its Executive
Commitiee He has extensive
experience sitting on the boards
of interna‘ional businesses
Prior to joining 3i, he spent 13
years in investren: banking
adwvising a broad range of quoted
companies. He qualfied as a
Chartered Accountant at KPMG
in 1990 and has a degree In
Economics, Alanis Chair of
Watkin Jones pic and a Non-
executive Director of Big Society
Capital, a leading social impact-
led investor

In July 2022 Alan was asked by
the Beard 1o take on the role of
Executive Chair while a search
was undertaken for a new Chief
Executive,

Hannah Nichols

Appointed to the Board
16 September 2019

Hannah joined the Group in
September 2019 Prior 1o joining,
Hannah had a 14-year career

n BT Group ole, most recently
as Chief Financial Officer, Asia
Middle East and Africa fo-

BT Global Services based in
Singapore. Hannah also held a
number of commercial roles at
Cable & Wireless prior to joining
BT She qualfied as a Chartered
Accountant at Arthur Andersen in
1999 and has a Classics degree
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Tony Quinlan
i

Appointed to the Board
2 Jecember 2019

Tony has had a successful
inte-national career as a ple
Director in major technology,
industnal, enargy and retai
companies He was most

recently CEO of Laird plg, where
he led a successful turnaround
and then took it from listed to
private ownershup under Advent
International. In addition, Tony

1S a Senior Independent Director
and Audit Chair of Costain Group
PLC, Non-executive Director of
Associated British Ports and has
served as Deputy Chair for the
Port of London Authority, where he
atso Chaired the Audit Committee.
Tony qualfied as a Chartered
Accountant in 19971 and has a
degree in Chemistry with Business
Studies.

Annette Kelleher
) +

Appointed to the Board
1 December 2014

Annette has broad senior
management expernence in the
nteinational industnals sector
and 13 currently Chief Human
Resources Officer of Johnson
Matthey PLC Prior to joining
Johnson Matthey, she held a
number of senior human resource
roles m Pilkingten Glass and
NSG Groun Previously, Annette
was a Non-executive Director

of Tribunal Services, part of the
UK's Ministry of Jus:ice. Annette
has a degree in Business Studies
and a Master's degree in Human
Resource Management



@ Audit Commuttes
® Nomimation Committee
® Remuneration Commitiee

.Charr

Mark Reckitt

Appointed to the Board
1 June 2016

Mark 15 a Chartered Accountant
and was Group Strategy Director
of S7iths Group plz from
rebruary 2017 to April 2014,
Divisional President of Smiths
Interconnect from Qctober 2012
to Ap-il 2074 and Non-executive
Director of JD Wetherspoon plc
from May 2012 to May 2016
Prior to jotning Smiths, Mark was
intenm Managing Director of
Green & Black's Chocolate and
before that he held a number

of finance and strategy roles

at Cadbury plc before being
appointed its Chief Strategy
Officer from 2004 to 2070 He

1s Senior independent Non-
exacutive Director and Chairman
of the Audit Committee at
Cranswick pic, where he is also
a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committees,
Mark was also a Non-executive
Director of Mitie Group PLC untif
July 2018.

Stock Code HILS

Pete Raby
|v

Appointed to the Board
Z Decembper 2019

Pete hag been the Chief Executive
of Morgan Advanced Matenals
nle singce August 2075, Prios

to that, he was the President

of the Communications and
Connectivity sector within
Cobham ple, following a nine-
year career with Cobham,

whe-e he held a number of
senor leadership roles covering
strategy, technology, business
transformation, and business
leadership. Prior to Cobham, Pete
was a partner at McKinsey &
Company in London specialising
in strategy and operations inthe
aerosnace, defence, and nower
and gas sectors. He has & PhD

in satellite navigation and a
M.Eng in Electronic and Electrical
Engineering.

Appointed to the Board
1 Apnil 2021

Leigh-Ann joined bp's executive
leadership team as EVP
Innovation and Zagineernng in
March 2022 In this role she

leads bp's giobal scientists

and engineers to deliver

techmical innovation, providing
assurance through the Safety

and Operational Risx and Digital
Security teams and leads digital
innovation through the 1ITRS

and Digital disciplines She was
previously bp's Chief Procurement
Officer, accountable for a safe,
ethical, and competitive supply
chain of £30bn global annual
spend Her main career has been
leading large operational, safety
and engineenng global tearmns and
she was formerly Vice President
of Technical Functions. Leigh-Ann
holds a degree in Mechanical
Engineering, ts a chartered
engineer and Fellow of the Royal
Academy of Engineering and
znergy Institute

Appointed to the Board
T April 2022

Farrokh was formerly President
of the Connect and Control
Techinologies division ot ITT Ing
CITTY, a US hsted industiials
goup Farrckh has significant
nternational operational and
leadership experience. combined
with having held senior roles in
both Strategy and M&A. Prior to
oming ITT, Farrokh held sensor
management roles at both Eaton
Corporation and Pratt & Whitney
Farrokh ltves on the East Coast
of the US and has a degree in
Mechanical Engineering from
Vanderbilt University and an
MBA from Kellogg Scheol of
Management, Northwestern
University.

1H0d3d JONVYNIIAQD

71




Alan Giddins
[tenem B

Dear Stakeholder

I am pleased to introduce
this Governance Report,
setting out how the
business has discharged
its responsibilities during
2022 and its compliance
with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018.

Governance is the third strand of ESG and
plays a crugial role in the evolution of any
business Atits bes’, good governance
enables better, more agile decision making,
adds value to the business, manages informed
risk taking within aporopriate parameters and,
ultimately, protects shareholder interests

The full Governance reacrt can be found on
pages 74 to 83.

Basis of Report
We have used the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2018 (the "Code”) to assess our
governance arrangements dunng 2022. As a
premium listed issuer on the London Stock
Exchange and in accordance with the listing
rules, Hill & Smith PLC has assessed its
application of the Code under the headings of.
+  Board Leadershup and Company Purpose,
Division of Responsibilities,
Compaosition, Succession and Evaluation,
Audit, Risk and Internal Contral, and

+  Remuneration.

Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Board has evaluated its cornphance with
the Code and confirms that Hill & Smch PLC
complied wath the requirements of the Code,
exceptinrelation to the requirement that the
roles of chair and chief executive should not
be exercised by the same individual Since
July 2022 these roles were performed by
myself, in the capacity of Internim Executive
Charr, following Paul Simmons stepping down
from the Board in July 2022

After ca-eful consideration of alternative
options, the Board felt that my adpointment
as Sxecutive Charr was appropriate, A search
for Paul's successcr was started and several
addit:onal governance safeguards around
this dual role have been implemented More
information on this can be found in the
Governance Repo-t on page 76.

Board Dynamics

The Board 1s fully engaged, has open and
constructive interactions with the executive
tear, and has the skills and experience to
oversee strategy, governance and risk. The
main face:s of this responsibiiity comprise.
consideration of the long term direction and
strategy of the Company, the values and
standards within the business; subsidiary
company management performance;
regources, health & safety; nsk management;
and internal controls

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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We will keep risk
high on the Board
agenda, recognising

that a number of the
market challenges
the Group faced in
2022 have flowed
through into 2023

At 31 Decenber 2022, the Board comprised
six Non-executive Directors, myself as
Executive Chair and one Txecutive Director
More information can se found on the Board's
effectiveness in the Governance Report on
nage B0

Board Committees

Throughout the year, the Board was
supporied by an Audit Cornmittee, a
Nomination Committee and a Remuneration
Committee, Outside of the formal Board
structlure, an £ES6G Committes, Risk Committee
and Executive Board all provided input into
*he Board decisicn-making framework.

Board Activities

During 2022 Board members wisited 12 of
our siies to meet with the local managernent
teams and to expand their knowledge of the
relevant operating company’s activities and
end markets. We also undertock our Group
Strategy Day in the US. | will be encouraging
my Board colleagues to continue o take the
opportunity to arrange informal visits to our
operations wherever possible during 2023

The Board spent time reviewing the M&A
pipeline and portfolio management activities,
ultrmnately leading to the disposal of our French
gakvanizing operations in October as well as a
partial exit of our Swedish roads cperations.
The Board also approved the acquisitions of
Widnes Galvanizing and Natonal Signal, both
of which are hughly complementary to our
existing portfolio of businesses



Health & safety continued to oe a prionty
focus for the Board, and we were pleased

0 see an improved trend in relation W our
health & safety KPIs ovar the course of the
year The Board receives an update a2 each
meenung on health & safety aeforrance and
holds the business to account “or any areas
of improvemens

TaT pleased to renort that 85 as a topic ha
haz ganed sigmificant momentum within il
& smith durnng the year The Board received

a number of £SG updates from ous Group
Head of Sustainability and the Board has
been pleased with the enthusiasm shown by
our businesses in embracing the changes
recessary 1o make cur business more
sustainable. You can read more about our
ESG progress on pages 32 to 57 of this report

Stock Code HILS

Looking Ahead

The Boa-d will continue to priontuse goocd
governance within the Group. We will keep
nsx hign on the doard agenda, recognising
that a nuiraer of the rarket challenges the
Group “aced in 2022 have flowed through
into 2023 Health & safety will also -emain a
o0ty The Board will continue to challenge
nanagerrant to ensure that we have the
appropriate level of resou-ce across our
susinesses and that where 1ssucs anse
appropriate actions and learrngs are taken

Alan Giddins
Interim Executive Chair

B March 2023

‘Westminster' HYM Bollards, Royal Albert Hall, London, supplied by ATG Access
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GOVERNANCE REPORT

Hill & Smith PLC is a company
with a premium listing on

the London Stock Exchange.
During 2022, the Company
fully complied with the
provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018,

with the exception of the
requirement that the roles

of chair and chief executive
should not be performed by
the same perscn. Following
Paul Simmons stepping down
from the Board of Hill & Smith
in July 2022, Alan Giddins
was appointed Executive
Chair while a search for Paul’s
successaor was undertaken.

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

BOARD LEADERSHIP

The Board sets the entrepreneurial culture
within which our 2usinesses operate and

Is collectively responsible for the long term
success of the Company The Hill & Smicth
PLC groun comonses the holding company
and s principal oaerating companies,
isted on pages 196 to 198. The Group's
businesses are directly supervised by local
operating boards There are clear lines of
delegated authority and businesses are given
a high deg-ee of autonomy to promote their
actnities in an entrepreneunal fashion

Tre Managing Directors of our busingsses
report to the Group through a Group President
operaung model The Group Presidents are
members of the Executive Board alongside
other senior executives, the Chief Financial
Officer, the Group Corporate Development
Director and the Executive Chair Details of
the Group's business model can be found

on pages 1dto 11

The Executive Chair and Chief Financial
Officer receive regular reports on the
performance of the operating companies,
and the Group Presidents are responsible
for ensunng a consistent appheation of
governance, operational procedures, risk
management, and Group policies and
practices.
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HILL & SMITH PLC BCARD

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE
BOARD

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

RISK ESG
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE

GROUP
PRESIDENTS

OPERATING
COMPANY
BOARDS

ProPower 3-Phase solar power unit, provided by Prolectric




Board framework

The Board operates within a ‘ramework of
Board meetings, discussions and sie visits
The Board 1s supported by three committees
Nominaton, Audr, and Remuneration
Mernhership of these conrmitteas is set out
on pages 84, 88 and 94 of this report The
Board considered whether the Comoany's
ESG Commitiee should be classed as

a Board Commuttee’ In deciding that it
should not be, the Board noted that both the
Executive Chair and the Chief Financial Officer
both sat on the Committee and that the
Board, as a whole, receved reqular updates
from the Committee

STRATEGY

+ Group strategy and
operating plans
Business development
including acguisiticns and
divestments
Major capital investments
and divestitures

INTERNAL CONTROL
. wan t fie

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE

ccession Planning

npliance with the
Company’'s Code of
Business Conduct

Stock Code HILS

The scope of Board decisions

The Board manages the Group with reference
10 a formial schedule of matters reserved

‘or the Board for deciston, which s apolied
across three xey oiliars Strategy, Internal
Conurot and ESG

Qur Section 172 Statement

All Board members are aware of therr
obligations ninder 5172 of the Companies Act
2006 and therr decisicns and congiderations
that have s 172 imphecations are accurately
reflected in Board minutes The Board's 2022
5.172 Staternent can be found on page 78 of
this report

Where other businesses within the Group are
required 10 make a § 172 Staternent, these
reparts can be found within the Annual Report
and Accounts for those entities Directors of
these operating companies have received
additional support from the Group to ensure
that their decisions are fully ~ecorded in

Board minutes

Engagement with shareholders
The Board manages the Group on behalf

of 115 shareholders, and it undeitakes this
responsibility in such a way as ‘o maximise
shareholder value over the long term and o
advance the interests of all of the Group's
stakeholders In thus respect, duning the
year the Executive Chair and Chief Financial
Officer met with msttutional shareholder
representatives both in the UK and US4,
including at one of our principal sites in

the West Midlands. Feedback from these
meetings 15 Included within the matenals
shared with the Board The Board also
receives reports from the Company’s broker
and financial public relations agency on
feedoack from institutional shareholders
following the Group's interim and full year
results announcements.

Feedback and dialogue

All Board directors are available 1o meet with
shareholders to discuss matters and can be
contacted through the Company Secretary.
The Execyutive Chair and Tony Quinian,

Senjor Independent Director are available

to meet with shareholders concerning
corporate governance issues, If so required
No cencerns regarding the running of the
company or any praposed action were
recemved or recerded from shareholders in the
year under review or to the date of this report

The Company Secretary also engages with
shareholders and the investor community
as and when required. Copes of all trading
updates and Interim and Annual Reports are
posted on the Company’s website, together
with details of key financial and shareholder
information, governance statements, Group
pelicies and corporate and organisational
structure.

Hill & Smith PLC Annual General
Meeting (AGM’)

The Hill & Smith PLC AGM was held i derson
last year following two years of government
restnctions on indoor gathenngs due to
COVID While the existence of the virus
continues, the assence of restrictons on
gathe-ings means we anizipate being able
o welcome shareholders again in oerson

N 2023 The detalls of the 2023 AGM can
be found on page 115 and in the Notice of
Meeting

140434 JONYNHIADD

The Company’s Annual Report and Notice of
Meeting are puslished as s00n as the tme
required for thew printing allows, in order to
provide the maximum tirne in advance of

the AGM for feedback to be recerved from
shareholders Proxy votes of shareholders for
the AGM are tabuiated independenily by the
Company's registcars, provided at the AGM
and published on the website shortly after the
conclusion of that meeting
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GOVERNANCE REPORTcominued -

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

76

Role of Executive Chair
(since July 2022)

Fallowing Paul Simmans stepping down in
July 2022, Alan Giddins assurmed the role
of intenim Executive Charr while a search
for Paul's successor was undertaken The
Bnard agreed that a number of governance
safeguards be implemented, including 1) a
formal session al the end of every Board
meeting for Non-executive Directors, which
the cxecutive Chalr is not a part of and i)
that the Semor Independen® Director should
review ail M&A papers independently before
subrmission to the Beard Since the start of
2023 the Executive Chair has also stepped
down from membership of the Remuneration
Committee.

A formal review of the Chair's role

was undertaken in October by the
Seror Independent Director, with sll
recommendations being Implemented.

Role of Chair (January 2022 -
July 2022)

The Chair is respensible for the leadership
and effective wor«ng of the Board. The size

Fahrication welding, Lionweid Kenneady, Middlesbrough
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o the Board ensures all Directors contribute
fuily 1o discussions and decision-making. The
Chair sets the Board agenda and deterntines
how the Board should use the time avallable
ot durning Board meetings, oromoting a
cuiture of ooanness and debate; facilitaning
constructive noard relations and effective
contnbution of hoard members ensyiong
directors receive accurate, timely and clear
infarmation; and providing an opportunity for
the Non-executive Directors to meet without
the Cxecutive Directors present. The Chary
seeks engagement with major shareholders
to understand views on governance and
performance against strategy

Role of Chief Executive

The Chief Executive 15 resaonsinle for the
management of the Comrpany, executing the
Group's strategy and developrment, meeting
financial objectives, iImplementing policies
and mamtaning controls. Along with the Chief
Finarnicial Officer, the Chief Executive orovides
information 1o the Board via written reports
and presentations a* Board meetings

Role of Non-executive Directors
The Non-executive Directors take an active
-ole in challenging strategy and mmanitoring
the pe-formance of the Company, have no
managenal responsibility and are there to
orovide chatlenge, strategic guidance and
spercialist support 1o the Executive Directers
All Non-Executive Directors have sufficient
timme to meet their board responsibilities.
There are clear divisions of responsibilities
petween the leadership of the Board and the
executive leadership of the Group, and these
have been approved by the Board

The Non-executive Directors, led by our Senior
Independent Director, meet iIndependently
without the Chair present and also meet with
the Chalr, ndenendent of management

Executive Board

The Executive Board takes it authority

from the Chief “xecutive {or thenr substitute)
It is not a committee of the PLC Board,

nor a decisior-making body, but provides

a valuable forum for semor executives to
discuss matters of importance.

Meeting monthly and more cften as may

be required, the Executive Board is the
senior management body for the Group and
monitors and manages the performance of
the business, reviews progress agamst the
strategic objectives and formulates budgets
and proposals cn strategy and resource
allocation, receving regular renorts on human
resources, health & safety, internal audit,
compliance, legal, inves:or relations and
corporate affarrs



Board Committees

HILL & SMITH PLC BOARD

Currently zompnses the Executive Char
{who chairs the Committee), and the six
Non-executive Directors

The Committee leads the arccess of
Board appointments and supports the
Board in succession planming for the
Board and senior management, making
reccmmendations o the Board. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Commuttee
can be found at www hsgroup.comn and
mare information on the work of the
Comrmmuttee can be found in the Commriee
Chairs report at page B4

Comanses the Charr of :he Committee
and five Non-exacutive Directors. While
the Zxecutive Chair s invited to attend

meelngs, that individual 15 not a formal
member of the Audit Committee.

Has responsizility for planning and
reviewing the Company’s audit processes,
interim and fult year resuits, internal
controls and risk management systems.
{See pages 86 to 91 for more information.)

The Audit Commuttee s additionally
supported oy the Risk Commutiee,
comanising employees from across
the Group and represenatives from
soma of oul operating companies,
ncluging those in the LS

The terms of reference of the Audit
Commuttee can be found at www hsgroup
corr and more Information on the work
of the Committee can 2e found in the
Comiritiee Chair's report 3t page 26

Remuneration Committee

Currently corrprises the Chair of the
Committee, and five Non-axecutive
vrectors The Executive Chairis nvited 1o
attend meetings

Has responsibility for the creation,
approval and implementaton of the
Company's Remuneration Policy in
respect of Executive Directors, Company
Secretary and senior executives

The terms of reference of the
Remuneraticn Cornmittee can be found at
www hsgroup com and more information
on the work of the Commuttee can be
foundin the Committee Charr's report at
pages 972 10 104

Frequency of meetings

Durtng 2022, the Board met on 10 occasions, the Audit Comirittes on four occasions, the Nomination Committee met four times and the
Remuneration Commitiee met on six occasions All directors were in attendance at all meetings of the Board ' which they were entitled

Audit  Nominations Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Alan Giddins 10/10 - 474 6/6
Tony Quinlan 10470 4/4 4/4 6/6
Pete Raby 10/10 474 4/4 6/6
Mark Reckitt 10/10 4/4 4/4 676
Annette Kelleher 10/10 4/4 4/4 6/6
Leigh-Ann Rwussell 10/10 4/4 a/4 6/6
Farrokh Batlwala* 77 3/3 3/3 474
Paul Simmons™* 5/5 - 11 -
Hannah Nichols 10/10 - - -

* Paul Simmons and Farrokh Batiwala attended all meetings they were entitled 1o

Board visits to operations

Site visits are an important, regular feature of the Board calendar. They provide an excellent opportunity for the Board 10 engage with a wide
group of employees and they also facilitate the Non-executive Directors’ understanding of the businesses

During the year, the Non-executive Directors visited 12 different sites in the UK and US, giving them a detalled insight into the culture and

operations of each business

Stock Code HILS
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Board decision making {S.172)

The Board's interaction with Xey stakeholders 1s set out on pages 58 to 59 The piincipal decisions taken by the Board during the year, along with
how *he Direclors considered stakeholder interests when discharging their duties under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, are set out below

Principatl decision and
stakeholders considered

Dividend
Sharehglders, potential
investars and {enders.

Board's decision making process

Censideration of the financial resources required to
execute our strategy, including organic investment

and acquisition oppertunities; the Group's medium

term rate of organic constant currency growth; and
compliance with borrowing covenants.

Longer term considerations

Ensuring that the Company’s progressive Dividend
Policy is consistent with the Cempany's financial
parformance without detriment to the strength of
the balance sheet and future sustainability.

Capital aliocation

Shareholders, potential iInvesters,
lenders, employees, customers
and operating companies

The Group's budget, approved by the Board, sets the
allocation of capitat to deliver our growth strategy
through product innovation, capital expenditure,
acquisitions, targeted disposats and sustainability.

Balancing investment for future growth and
impraving the quality cf the Group against the
longer term interests of operating companies and
their employees and shareholders.

Acquisitions and disposals
Shareholders, potential
investors, lenders, operating
cormpanies, customers and
future employees.

The Board receives detailed proposals from the
Corporate Development Director on the long term
imptications of disposals and acquisitions and

their effect on the Group's stakehclders. The Board
balances the financial commitrment required against
the risks and anticipated returns, together with

the management and control requirements, while
considering the strategic fit with our purpose, and the
opportunities for geographic or market expansion.

The Group's portfolio management criteria both
far existing operating companries and potentiai
acquisition targels reguires a structured discipline.
We consider acquisitions which are aligned to our
purpose, and which are in market niches with long
term growth drivers ensuring that we can continue
to grow sustainable profits for the benefit of all our
stakeholders.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Targets

Shareholders, lenders,
employees, operating
companies, customers,
suppliers, government, and
society.

The Board recognises the importance of a low
carbon economy and the role that the Group has

to play in achieving this, and is mindful that this

is a high prionty for multiple stakeholder groups.
Accerdingly, the Board focuses on areas where the
Group could make the mast impact. The new Group
Head of Sustainability has focused on establishing
a Scope 3 baseline for our carbon emissions
reduction plan.

The Board recognises the effect that climate
change is having on the natural and business

world and, in keeping with regulation, committed

to TCFD scenario analysis. This analysis presents
both risks and strategic opportunities for the
Group. The Board also considered the value to
society as a whole of the Group's operations and
products, recognising that it must act to minimise
the negative impact from its operations, to ensure a
sustainable future for all, whilst being mindful of the
effect on the Greup's cost base.

Board conflicts

The Board has agreed an approach

and adopted guidelines for dealing with
conflicts, The Board confirms that it was
no* aware of any situations that conflicted

Support available to the Board
The Board 15 supported by the Company
Secretary who, under the direction of the

and information flows between Board

Executive Charr, ensures that communication

All directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary and

are able to take independent professional
advice, when necessary, at the Company's
expenge, although no director felt it necessary

with the interests of the Company, other

than those that may anise from directors’
other appointments, as disclosed in their
biographies on pages 70to 71 Inaccordance
with the Articles, the Board authonised the
Company Secretary to receive notifications
of conflicts of interest on behalf of the Board
and to make recommendations &s to whether
the relevant matters should be authorised by
the Board. The Company has complied with
these procedures.

members The Company Secretasy is also
resoongible for agsisting the Executive Chair
in all matters refating to corparate governance,
incfuding the Board evaluation orocess.

At the invitation of the Board, other members
of the management team attend Board
meetings to present annual budgets, updates
and proposals relating o their areas of
responsibility and reparting on regulatory
compliance, risk management and internal
controls The directors and management of the
Group businesses are also supported by the
central function which includes compliance, risk
management, internal audit, treasury, taxation,
acquisitions and corporate development.
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to seek such advice in the year ended 31
December 2022



COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

Composition of the Board

The indrvidual biographies of the Board
members can oe tound on pages 7/0to 71,
At 31 Decenrber 2022, three quarters of the
Board comprized independent Non-execulive
Drectors

In compliance with the Code and the
Company's Arucles of Association, directors
relire at every Arnual General Meeting (AGM)
and, If deenred appropriate by the Board,
directors are pronosed for re-appoimtment

by shareholders at the forthcorming AGM.
Following this evaluation of the performance
of the Board, and on the recommendation

of the Nomination Coemmittee, the Board

is nreposing that all Directors, with the
exception of Annette Kelleher, who 15 stepping
down from the Board following the AGM,
should stand fo- re election at the Group's
forthcoming AGM In May 2023

Alan Giddins
{Interim Executive Chair)

At 31 December 2022, the Board compnsed

Farrokh Batliwala
{(Non-executive
Director)

Hannah Nichols
(Chuef Financia

PLC Board
Officer)

Mark Reckitt
{Non-executive
Chrector)

L.eigh-Ann Russell
{Non-executive Director)

Stock Code HILS
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Board Profile

Qur dircctors come f:om a broad range of
backg ounds across ndustry, mvestment
management and arofessional services
Their diverse and oalanced mix of skills and
business experence (See page 80), are key
to the e“ective funchioning of the Board and
113 Committoes, ensung matters ase fully
and effectively debated and challenged and
no indwidual or groun dorminates the Board's
decision-making processes

Taking into account the provisions of the
Code, the Board has determined that during
the year under review, none of the Non-
executive Jirectors had any relationship

or circumstance which would atfect therr
performance and the Board considers

all of the Non-executive Directors to be
independent in character and judgement.
Conflicts of interest are dealt with by the
Board as they arise

Annette Kelleher
(Non-executive
Director)

Pete Raby
{Non-executive
Director)

Tony Quinlan
{Non-executive
Director)
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GOVERNANCE REPORTcontinued

Succession planning

The Nomination Commuttee has responsibility
far evaluating medium and long term Board
and cxecutive Board succession planning,
and for making recommendations to the
Board

Araview of talent was underiazen acioss the
Geoup, dentifying potantial future leade s
and therr develooment needs. A formal

360 degree POP process was instigated and
the results were presented to the Board

At a local level, each operating company is
required Lo have its own succession plann
olace, and these are reviewed on a regular
basis by each operating Board and fed
*hrough to the Executive Board via the Group
Presidents

Group Diversity

The Board 1s commizted to ensuring that
rec-uitment into the Group 18 undertaken
based on ment, regardless of age, disabilizy,
matital or civil partner status, pregnancy and
maternity, race, colour, nationality, ethnic

or national origin, religion or belief, gender
or sexual onentation The Board places
significant emphasis on ensuring that gieater
diversity 1s brought into the workforce, to
enhance the quality of decisions through
diffening views and backgrounds.

As part of this commitment, the Group
includes in the annual report, details of the
numbers of men and women at hoard level,
the number of men and women who are
‘senior ranagers’ {1.e, those employees who
report directly to the Managing Directors of
our operating compamies); and the number of
men and women across the organisation as a
whole. See page 49 for more details

Board diversity

The Board 1s committed to ensuring that

It has the nght balance of skills, views and
experience The Board is cognisant of the
Hampton Alexander Review and the Parker
Review regarding gender and ethnic diversity
within the Board, On 31 December 2022, the
Board membership comprised 38% female
and 62% male, and was 13% ethnicatly diverse

® Male
@ Female

Diversity —

Gender

Numbers represent
Board members
with appropriate
experience

Strategy

mergers &
Acquisitions

Health g
Safety

Skills and business
experience of the Board
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Director training and development
All directors are provided with the cpporturnity
and are encouraged to attend regular

trasning 10 ensure they are kegt up to date

on relevan' legal developrments or changes,
best practice and changes to commercial and
financial sk Typical raining expanences
for directors include attendance at seminars,
forums, conferences and working groups, as
well as the provision of information from the
Company Secretary

Evaluating the Board’s performance
This year, the Board performed an internal
evaluation in compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code. The results
showed that Board members were satisfied
with how meetings were conducted, that
appropriate attendees and information were
avallable to them in order to make decisions
and tha! the Group's strategy and execution
was kept under aparopriate review.

The results of the evaluation were considered
at the March 2023 Board meeting and any
material actions a-1sing will be referred to in
suhseguent annual reports

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal Audit

Our Internal Audit team conducted audits
across the breadth of our business, Including
a eview of compliance with the Group
Financial Controls Manual and Group |17
Controls Manual The Audit Comrmitiee
arldihionally received pdates on actions
ansing from prior audts.

The Audit Commuttee also reviewed and
approved the annual audit plans for 2023, as
arepared by the Head of Risk and Internal Audit

Risk Management

The Board has overal| responsitbility for
ensuring that there is a process to idenufy,
evaluate and manage any significant nsks
*hat nay affect the achievernent of the
Group's strategic oyectives and or internal
control and reviewing the effectiveness of
these processes.

The 1sk managemeant and internal control
system is designed to manage, rather

than eliminate, tha rig< of faling to achieve
HusINess obeIIves and can orovide only
reasonable, and not gasolute, assurance
against material missraternent or loss

The assessment and control of <isk are
considered by <he Board o be fundamen:al
to achieving the Group's corporate objectives
An ongoing process for identiying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by
the Groun and assessing the effectiveness

of related controls has geen esiablished

by the Board to ensure an accepranle nsk/
reward prafile across the Group. This routinely
identifies areas for iImproverment The Board
has nerther identified nor heen advised of any
failings or weaknesses during the year which
it has determined to be material or significant

This process has been in place throughout

2022, and up to the date of approving the

Annual Report and Financial Statements.

The key elements of this process are

» acomprehensive system of monthly
reporting from key executives, identifying
performance against budgets and forecasts;

+  analysis of vanances, major business
15sues, key performance indicators and
regular forecasting;

- well-defined policies governing appraisal
and approval of capital expenditure and
treasury operations,

~  six-monthly submissions from all
operating companies detailing the risks
they have identified and what controls
and assurances they have in place 0
mitigate these rnisks;

Stock Code HILS

regutal meetings to identify and discuss
key risks and mitigations with a broad
samale of the senior management team
and the Executive Board members,
“eview Of Lthe co norate risk registar in
termg 0f completeness and accuracy with
the senior management team and the
Executive Directors,

+ the use of a Risk Committee 10 momitor,
validate and report on the Group-wide risk
assessment Jrocess,

+ Audit Comimittee diszussion of the
corporate ris« register and the risk
managenent system with subsequent
reports to the Board, and

+ the emnedding of a semor management
roo-down aparoach to complement the
work of the Risk Committee.

More information on the Group's Princinal
nsks 1s shown o pages 64 to 68

internal Controls

The Board mantains overall respansibilizy

for embedding key controls within the Group
Together with the Audit Committee, the Board
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's nisk
mranagement and internal control systems in
accordance with the UK Governance Code for
the year ended 31 December 2022, and up to
the date of agproving the Annual Report and
Financial Staterments

Additionally, the Board.

+ ensured rraintenance of a sound system
of internal cantrol and risk management;

- reviewed the adequacy and secunty
of the Company's arrangemen:s for
its employees and contractors to raise
concerns, In confidence, about nossible
wrongdoing in financiat reperting or
other matters. The Board continues
1o ensure that these ar-angements
allow proportionate and independent
investigation of such matters and
appropriate follow uz action;
considered and approved the half-yearly
report, any other intenm managemaent
statements and any preliminary
announcement of results,

deciared the intenim dividend and
recornmended the final dividend,

+  approved any significant changes in
accounting polictes or practices; and
- approved treasury policies including

foreign currency expasure and the use of
financral derivatives.

Going Concern

After making enguines, the Directo-s have
reasonable expectations that the Company
and 1ts subsidianes have adeguatle rescurces
to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and for a penod of at least
12 months followsng the azoroval of these
Fiancial Statements Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern principle

When making this assessment, the Group
considers whether it wili be able to maintan
adequate hguidity headroom above the level
of its borrowing faciities and to operate
within the financial covenants on those
facilities. The Group has carefully modelted
its cash flow outloo< for the perod to
December 2024, considenng *he ongoing
uncertainties in gichal economic conditions
In this "hase case” scenario, the foregasts
indicate significant iguidity headroom will
he maintained above the Group's barrowing
facilities and financial covenanss will be
met throughout the penad, including the
covenant tests at 30 June 2023 and 31
December 2023.

The Group has aiso caried out reverse

tress tesis' to assess the performance
ievels at which erther hquidity headroom
would fall below zero or covenants would be
sreached in the penad to 31 December 2023
The Directors do not consider the resulting
performance fevels to be plausible given the
Group's strong trading performance in the
first half and the resihence of the end markets
in which we ooerate

1¥0d3d IINVYNHIAOD
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Viability Statement

The directors have considered the prospects
of the Group over the four-year pernd
imimechately ‘ollowing the 2022 “inancial

yvear Thisionge--term assessment process
sun0rs the Baa-d's statemerns on ooth
viability, as set out nelow, and going concern,
as setout onpage 81 A four-year senod was
dete mined as the mnst aporopriate as 1z 1s
-he remaming penod covered by the Group's
annual straleyic plannng process, which sets
the long term direction of the G-oup and I1s
reviewed at leas® annually by the directors The
Board concluded that a period of longer than
four years would not be meaningful for the
purpose of concluding on longer-term viability.

The strategic planning process considered
metrics which enable assessment of the
Group's key performance indicators (see
nages 200 21)in addition to net debt, iguidity
and financing requirements In conducting the
review of the Group's arospects, the directors
assessed the four-year plan alongside the
Group's current financial position, the Group's
strategy and the anncinal nisks facing the
Groun (all of which are detailed in the Strategic
Reooit on nages 64 to 68) This robust
agsessment considered the impact of the
principal nsks on the business model and cn
future performance, iquidity and solvency.
Stress tests were apphed to the Group's four-
year plan, whereby factors associated with
the economic risks faced oy the Group were
applied to the plan in a numoer of diverging
scenanos The developed stenanos ware
designed to be plausible, yet severe
- adecrease in the UK Government's Road
infrastructure spend,
+afallin galvanizing volumes across all
geographies, and
+ areductionin revenues in the Groud's
engineered Solutions businesses In the
UK and US

In making this viabiiity statemen:, the directors
considered the mitigating actions that would
be taken by the Grounin the event tha* he
prncipal ns<s of the Combany become realised.
The Directors also took nto consideration the
Group's financial posiion at 31 December 2022
with & norrowing faciity headroom of £237 9m
and a history of strong cash generation, with
cash conversion averaging in excess of 80%
over the last ten years The Directo s noted

that the Company had refinanced its core
revolving credit faciity in 2022, entering into

a new agreement with a value of £250m and
animtial maturity of Noverrber 2026, shortly
aefare the end of the four-year assessment
period. However the faciity has an oation o
extend the maturity by one year at the first
anniversary and based on past expenence and
normal market practice, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the extensicn will
he raken Taking this information into account,
the Diractors have assessed the viability of the
Group and, based on the procedures outhined
above in addrion to activities undertaken by the
Board in its normal course of ausiness, corfirm
tha: they have a reasonanle expectation that
the Group will be able to continue In operation
and meet its hlabilities as they fall due over the
aeriod 10 37 Jacember 2026

Fair, Balanced and Understandable
Financial Reporting

The Board receved a recommendation from
the Audit Committee that the Croup’s position
and prospacts had been assessed and
reported onin the Annual Report 1in a way that
was fair, balanced and understandable. Prior
to making the -ecommendaticn to the Board
the Committee reviewed a repo-t received
from -he management responsible for the
preparation of the Annual Report detaifing
how the repor? had been compiled The
Committee considered the information laid
out in the Annual Report and concluded

e et e T
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- thatthe process by which the allocation of
responsibility for the preparation of certain
sections of the Annual Report to indiwiduals
i1 the central team and their review by
external advisors was At for purpose,

«  that theinformation given rearesented
the whole story of the business’
serforrance in 2022 and did not mislead
the reader by excluding aporoonate bad
news That the disclosures of the Grouo's
Husiness segments, and key messages
are consistently delivered throughout the
document, KPIs are clear and appropriate
and linked to both the Group's strategy
and remuneration incentives;

«  thatit was a suitable document to inform
both existing and prospective shareholders
about the financial and non-financial
performance of the business, with the
messages delivered in the Direclors’ Reoort,
inzluding the Operating and Financial
Review and the minancial Siatements being
halanced and consistent and that the report
set out a detatled and far representation of
the Grouo's activities and performance and
that certain matters have aeen identified
and discussed setween management,

*he Audi: Commitiee and the =Y in order
o correctly disclose the performance,
controls and prospects of the Group, and

+ thatthe document allowed shareholders
to follow the whole story of the
Groups financial and non-financial
performance n 2022 giving then a
clear and understandable picture of the
Group's business model, key drivers and
comrmercial operations

The respective responsibilities of the directors
and External Auditor in connection with the
Financial Statements are explaned in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on
page 116 and the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 11840 120




REMUNERATION

About our Remuneration Policy

Stock Code HILS

EXECUTIVE PAY

SHORT-TERM
ANNUAL BONUS,
INCLUDING
50% DEFERRED

SALARY

The current Jirector's Remunerabon Policy
was last approved by shareholders at the 2020
AGM and will be presented to shareholders for
approval in 2023 The ourpose of this policy
1510 be able to recruit and retain Executive
Directors of sufticient calibre to develon and
delivar our ousiness strategy and create
shareholder value, to ensure remuneration
arrangements are in the best interests of the
Group. In hine with the wider workforce and

do nat pay more than 1s approaniate, and do
not reward ‘allure. More information on the
Group’s proposed Remrunaration Policy 15
availlabie in the Policy Table on pages 105

o 109

Executive Director salary package
Executive Director pay arrangerments are
made up of three fundamental elements as
you can see from the giashic abave.

THREE-YEAR
LONGER-TERM
INCENTIVE
ARRANGEMENT

The Group's Remwuneration Committee Report
on pages 94 to 104 sets out the remuneration
of the Executive Directors for 2022

Pay increases

The Remuneration Committee 1s acutely
aware of the pressures facing many
employeeas as a result of high inflation While
each operating company sets therr own pay
policy, the Commuttee has been impressed
with the thought and care our businesses
have taken in supporting our employees
These inctude n-year pay reviews, ‘one of !
cost of living awards, cnsis loans and also
variable uolifts, meaning that those on lower
incomes receive a greater uphft in salary than
highe- earners More information 15 available
on page 107 of the Group's Remuneration
Committee Report

Heritage "Westminster’ HVM Bollards, Westminster Bridge, London

140438 JONYNHHIA09
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Alan Giddins

I~ter = Execitve Coar

Dear Stakeholder

It is my pleasure to make
my report as Chair of the
Nomination Committee. This
report is intended to give an
account of the Committee
and its activity. The core
responsibilities of the
Committee are succession
planning and appointments
at Board level, oversight

of appointments and
succession planning to the
Executive Board and making
recommendations tc the
Board on the composition of
the Board’s committees.

The full terms of reference of
the Committee can be found
on the Company’s website
www.hsgroup.com.

Committee membership

Throughout the year the Committee comprised
myself as the Chair, and subsequently
xecutive Charr, and the Non-executive
Directors Annette Kelleher, _eigh-Ann Russell,
Tony Quinlan, Pete Raoy and Mark Reckitt.
Farrokh Batliwala joined the Commuttee on his
appointment on 1 Apnl 2022

The Committee met four times in the financial
period under review with all eligibie members
of the Commitiee being present on each
oocasion

Date of appointment

Length of service

aa

The Committee
is committed to
ensuring that the
Board, Executive
Board and senior

management team
have the right mix
of skills, experience,
knowledge and
background.”

Non-executive Directors

Following aninitial three-year term, the terms
of Non-executive Directors are reviewed
annually, in ine with their annual retirement
at the AGM The letters of appointmemnt for
the Non-executive Directors are available for
nspecticn at the Company's registered office
and the AGM All Non-executive Directors are
independent, as was | on appointment.

Expected end date

Alan Gidding
Annette Kelleher
Farrckh Batliwala
teigh-Ann Russell
Mark Reckitt

Pete Raby

Tony Quinlan

3 October 2017

? December 2014
1 Aprit 2022

T Aprii 2021

1 June 2016

1 December 2019
1 December 2019

b years 3 months
8 years 1 menth
9 months

1 year 9 months
6 years 7 months
3years 1 month
3 years 1 month

30 September 2026
30 November 2023
37 March 2031

31 March 2030

31 May 2024

30 November 2028
30 November 2028

Hill & Smith PLC - Annuaf Report and Accounts 2022



Chief Executive Appointment

In Juty 2022 Paul Simmons stepped down
fromthe Board and as Chief Executive of the
Group 1was asked by the Board 1o take on the
role of ntenm Executive Chair white a search
was undertaken for a new Chief Cxecutive
Prior 1o the appointment of a search firm, the
Nomination Committes spen: time avaluating
the ey skills and chaiactenisiics required of a
successful Chief Zxecutive at Hitl & Smith A
searcl process s currently ongoing

Board Compeosition and Succession
During the year the Committee has spent
tme evaluating medium and long term Board
cemposition and succession and the skills
and experience needed to deliver the Group's
Strategic Plan A key recommendation from
this evaluation was the need to add a US
hased Non-executive 1o the Board On the
Committee’s recomnmendation the Board
appointed rarrokh Bathwala as a Non
execuive Director, effective from 1 Apnl 2022
Farrokh was formerly President, Connect and
Control Technologies, ITT Inc. prior to which
he held senior management roles at Eaton
Corporation and Pratt & Whithey. Having
grown up i India, =a-rokh now lives on the
East Coast of the US

Stock Code HILS

Annette Kelleher, Char of the Remuneration
Committee, joined as a Non-executive
Director in December 2014 and 15 stepping
down from the Boa-d foilowing the May

2023 AGM n considening an aporopriate
indwvidual to replace Annette as Remuneration
Commuttee Chair the Board felt that 1t would
ne bencfical -0 conside” whathe this role
could be underta<en oy an existing Board
membe” Following appropaate consideration,
Tony Quinlan, who has served on the
Remuneration Committee since December
2019, has been invited 1o take over from
Annette Kelleher as Chair of the Commuttee.

Mark Reckitt, whe s Chai of the Audit
Committes is to step down from the Board
following the May 2024 AGM. Towards the
end of this year the Committee will begin the
process of looking for a new Non-executive
Director who could taks on the Audit
Committee Charr role, while ensuring tha*
there s an appropriate handover period

Executive Beard and Succession
During the year the Commuttee undertook a
revtew of the Executive Board and the skills
required o ensure that the Groun s able to
deliver onits Strategic Plan, While theie was
anpropriate succession N place for certain
roles, the review highlighted the imoortance
of developing the next generation of semior
leaders within the susimess, and this wilibe a
key focus for the Committee dunng 2023,

Diversity and inclusion

The Comirrtee 1s committed to ensurng
*ha: the Board, -xecutive Boad and senior
management team have the nght diverse
mix of s«lis, expenence, knawledge and
background In considering dversity, gender
plays an important role but the Board

also takes nto account socal and ethnic
background, and other cognitive and personal
strengths. New anoointments are made on
merit, and take into account what 1s required
from a diversity and inclusion perspective to
ensure a balanced Board composition

140d3Y IONYNHIADD

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of

this report, the Board will compise three
fernale directors (38%) and five male directors
{62%), with one Board director from an ethnic
minonty background (13%).

Plans for the year ahead

The Committee’s focus It 2023 will be

1o conglude the search for a Groug Chief
Executive and to ensure the Board is
organised to meet 178 listed company
obligations The Committee will also give
particutar eTphasis in “he current year
~owards ensuring approonate develoament
nlans arein 2lace for each membe- of

the Executive Board and that appropriate
consideraton 1s bemng grven to succession .
plannming at the Managing Director level within
our operating comoanies

Alan Giddins
Interim Executive Chair

8 March 2023

Solar street lights and solar bollards, Farnborough, supplied by Prolectric
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Mark Reckitt

Crar

Dear Stakeholder

[t is a pleasure to make

my report as Chair of the
Audit Committee of Hill &
Smith PLC and to explain
how your Audit Committee
and the Group's senior
management team have
managed and continued to
develop and enhance our risk
management processes and
internal audit programmes.

The business model of Hill & Smith delegates
substantial authority to the business units,
which enables an entrepreneurial approach.
Each operating company Is responsible

for ensuring that 1t has an effective set of
internal controls and control environment,
which places responsibility on the Managing
Director and Finance Director of each
operating company. The Group Financial
Controis Manual was launched n 2020 and
provides detalled guidance on the nature and
frequency of the internal controls required

at each operating company. This was
supplermnented in 2027 with the launch of the
Group IT Controls Manual, which sets out the
mimimum levei of IT controls required at each
operatng company to ensure T resilience
and cyer secunty. I T infrastructure and
refated controls remains a Key focus area

for the Committee, resulting in the current
investment plan in 1T and cyoer security

During 2077 internal audit work was
completed "emotely for overseas operating
companies and on-site for UK eperating
companies Internal Audit were abie to
recormrpence the comosletion of on-size
fieldwork ‘or overseas cperating companies
during 2022 due to the removal of COVID
travel restnctions In December 2022, the
Audit Committee aporoved aninternal audit
plan for 2023 which includes a Purchase
Contracts thematic review and development
of an Audit and Assurance Policy, while
continuing the primary work of monitoring our
business units” compliance with our Group
poticies and controls

The Risk Committee, as requested by the
Audit Committee, has continued to build upon
the risk assessment methodology using the
online risk management and reporting tool
which was implemented acress the Group

In 2020 The Comimittee is building a clear
picture of the risks being considered by the
operating companies as well as the actions
te mitigate these risks, which is facilitating
risk appetite discussion. More information on
the risk management process adopted by the
Group can be found on pages 60 to 63

Following Ernst & Young LLP's ('£Y") audit of
the Group's financial statements in relation
to the year-ended 31 December 2021, the
Committee met EY's lead partner to assess
the lessons learned and the improvermnents
that mmight be implemented for this year's
audit. In July 2022, we discussed and agreed

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Each operating
company Is
responsible for
ensuring that it has an
effective set of internal
controis and control
environment, which
places responsibility
on the Managing
Director and Finance
Director of each
operating company.”

the olan for their year-end audit procedures
and the fee for their work in 2022 The audst
of our 2022 financial statemen's is the

third audv that kY have conducted, and the
Commuttee rermain satisfied with therr levels
of rdepercence, objectivity and professtoral
judgarment and the oversight they give to

cur financial staterments The FRC'S Audit
Quality Review team reviewed the audit of
the Group's 31 December 2021 consolidated
financial statements Mo findings arose from
this review.

This Audi: Committee Report explains

how the Committee has discharged its
responsibilities during 2022, and considers
the specific topics of

+ Prnimary areas of judgement considered
by the Committae in relation to the 2022
financial statements;

+ Internal controls,

Risk assessment, management, and
mitigation; and

= Assessment of effectiveness of
external audit,

I trust yvou will find this report a helpful
insight into the activities undertaken on your
behalf. | should be delighted to answer any
questions you might have and hope to see
you at our AGM on 25 May 2023.

Mark Reckitt
Chatr

8 March 2023
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT continued

Committee membership

and purpose

Dunng the year, and 1o the date of thig resort
the Audit Committee comprised

Mark Reckitt,

Annetze Kelleher,

Pete Raby,

Tony Quinlan,

Laigh-Ann Russell and

Farrokh Batlwala tappointed 1 Apnl 2022).

Attendees &t each of the meeungs included
by invitation, the Chair of the PLC Board, the
Groug Chief Executive {(and *he Executive
Chair fallowsng CEO's deoarture), the Group
Chief Financial Officer; the Group Financial
Conzroller; the Group Head of Risk & Internal
Audit, the external auditor, £Y, and, where
appropnate, other advisors Time 15 also
allowed for the Committes to speak with the
external auditor and the Gioup Head of Risk
& Internal Audit without the presence of the
executive management

The overall purpose of the Audit Committes is
ane of oversight and monitonng of the entire
financial reporting and control orocess, to
ensure the integrity of the Group's Financial
Statenents and assurance over them The
Committee ‘ulfils this et by undertaking
the followtng ~oles and responsibilities

monitonng the integnty of the Financial
Satements of the Company and
reviewing sigruficant financial reporting
Judgements contained in them,

reviewing areas of the financial
statements that require particular
judgement;

providing advice (where requested by

the PLC Board) on whether the Annuat
Renort, taken as a whole, 1s farr, balanced,
and understandable, and provides the
informanon necessary for shareholders to
assess the Company’'s financial position,
performance, business model, and strategy,

reviewing the Company's internal financiat
controls, internal control, and risk
managenent systems,

monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function and making
recommendations to the PLC Board,

aporoving the Internal Audit Charter and
audit plan,

reviewing outputs from the Group's
risk management process, ensuring
that gperating companies are correctly
identifying, articulating, and measuring
their risks and mitigating controls;

making recommendations to the PLC
Board about the appointment, re-
appomntment, and removal of the external
auditer, and approving the remuneration,
and terrns of engagement of the external
auditor,

reviewing and rmonitoring the external
auditer's independence and objectivity,

reviewing the effectiveness of the external
audit process, iaking 1o consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requIrerments,

develooing and imoalementing aolicy on
the engagement of the external audito” to
su2oly non-audit services, ensunng there
15 prior aparoval of non-audit services,
rconsidering the nmpact this may have on
Independence, and

reporting to the PLC Board on how 1t has
discharged its responsilifies

Governance

During the year the Committee fully complied
with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018 (“the Code"), in which
Mark Recki't 1s specifically identified, in
keeping with the provisions of the Code, as
the Committee memper having recent and
relevant financial expernence. He1s a quakfied
Chartered Accountant and has previousty held
the positions of Grouo Strateqy Director at
Smiths Group ple from February 2077 <o April
2074 and Chief Strategy Officer at Cadbury
plz fom 2004 10 2010, Hes currently the
Audit Commuttee Chairman and Senior
Indenenden: Director at Cranswick olc.

As Chair of the Audit Committee, Mark
Reckitt has mamntaned regular contact

with the external audit partners at Y as

well as the Group Head of Risk & Internal
Audit outside Committee meetings and
without the management of the business
nresent in these meetings a wide range of
matters are discussed, including specific
issues encountered in therr work across

the Group as well as changes in financial
reporting and governance landscape, the
Company’s readiness to accommodate these
developments, and our approach to managing
risk and assurance generally

Primary areas of judgement
considered by the Committee in
relation to the 2022 accounts

To discharge its responsibility to consider
accounting and financial reporzing integniy,
the Commuttee carefully considers key
judgements appled in the preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, which are
set out on pages 126 to 180 The Commitiee’s
review included consideration of the following
key accounting judgements

Valuation of goodwill and indefinite
life assets

The value of goodwilf and indefinite Iife assets
amounted to £139.9m at 31 December

2022 The review of such assets 1s based

on a calcutation of value in use, using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets
and strategic plans prepared by senior
management and approved by the PLC Board
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of Directors The current uncertain econcmic
conditions around the world mcrease the nsk
of impzairnent and the Comimittee addresses
this by performing hatf-yearly and annual
impairment testing on the carmying value of
goodwill and other ntangible assets across
the relevant cash gene-ating units In 2022,

the Comrrlea reviewedd the results of these
caleulations and considered and challenged
management’s assessment of the sensitvities
1o these assumpiaons and the impact that those
sensitivities may have Business plans are
signed off oy the PLC Board and assessment
models are reviewed and challenged as part
of the audit, for which the external auditor, EY,
arovides reporting 10 the Committee. As part
of this review the Committee paid particular
attention to the assessments made in respect
of Parking Facilities Ltd, ATG Access Ltd, and
Hill & Simith Ine

Parking Facilities — the COVID pandemic
resulted in a weak trading period in 2020 as
several custemer contracts were cancelled
ar postooned and whilst the business saw

a marginal improvement in revenue and
profitabilizy in 2021, ongoing constramts on
custome” budgets contnued to weigh on
demand In 2022, customer activily continuetd
10 be weak and supsly chan challenges,
input cost inflation and operational

1s55ues led to a deterioration in marging
Management's impairment assessment
dentified supply chain and raw matenal
price inflatian pressures as being likely ‘o
continue 1o ympact demand and margins n
the shor! term, while new market entrants

In 2027 were noted as being likely 1o lead

to increasing competition n the medium

to longer term. Management's assessment
concluded that following the impairment
charge of £3.2m recognised in 2321, 2
further deterioration in the outlock meant
that an additional charge of £4.4m in respect
of the remaining intangible assets relating

to the acquisition was required in 2022.

After reviewing management’s forecasts

for future performance and challenging the
assumptions adopted, the Commuttee agreed
with management's conclusions.

ATG Access — in 2021, management’s
impairment assessment concluded that the
pace ¢f ATG's post-pandemic recovery was
likely to be slower than had previously been
anticipated, mainly due to the expectation
of prolonged inactivity in several of its

key sectors and also reflecting increased
competition in the market. As a result,

an impairment charge of £10.8m was
recognised in the 2021 results Trading in
2022 ymproved on 2021 and ATG's outturn
for the year was marginally ahead of previous
expectations, with robust order intake rates
and consistent order backlogs. Taking this
performance into account, management's
impairment assessment in 2022 concluded
that there had been ne significant change

0 the market outlook since the prior year



and therefore that no imparrment was
recommended in the year to 31 December
2022 Management acknowledged, however,
tha* the cash flow projections were sensitive
to the assumed rates of revenue and profit
growth post-2022 and that there were
plausible scenarios that could result in

a further impairment in the future. After
challenging management on aspects of the
business plan and the sensitivity disclosures
in the financial statements, the Committee
supported management's view.

Hill & Smith Inc. — whilst underlying US roads
market conditions remain healthy, Hill & Smith
Inc’s performance in 2022 was impacted

by aperational and cost input challenges

The new MD, who jeined the business in
January 2023, orepared an updated business
plan which was presented to the PLC Board

in March 2023. Board members reviewed

the plan and challenged management, in
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particular on aspects of market segmentation,

customer focus and operational execution
The Board also received and reviewed

the output of an independent study that
management had commissioned to assess
the autlock for the US temporary road safety
barner market over the next 5-10 years, which
was considered when preparing the updated
business plan The financial projections
included in the updated plan assume that
actions taken to address the cperational
issues will be successful, and that short to
medium term revenue growth will be above
long term averages due to the anticipated
federal and state highway spend over the
next five years. The resulting impairment
calculations indicated headroom of £9.6m
{2021: £27.3m). The Commuttee fuither
challenged management on the basis for the
projections included in the updated plan and
In cenclusion, concurred with management's
view that no impairment was required. The

Committer also studied the sensitivities 1o
the forecasts and the impact of possibie
changes in assump:ions, and reviewed
the disclosuras of those senaitivities in the
financial staternents, concluding that they
were aoprapriate

140d3d IONYNHIADD

The disclosures made in respect of the
sensitivities arpund impali ment calculations
can be found in note 13 to *he “mancial
Statements on pages 152 to 158

Defined benefit pension scheme

valuation

Net defined benefit pension obligations under
JAST9 amounted o £7.2m at 31 December
2022. The Committee reviews benchmarks
and assumptions that are provided by the
Group’s actuaries and used to value the
pension lkanilities for the Group's defined
Henefit schemes. The underlying assumptions
based on market condiuons and the
charactenstics of the schemes are reviewed
by managemen: and the external auditor and
renorted on to the Committee

Taxation

The Group makes judgements in relation
“ouncertain tax oositions, regarding the
autcome of negouations with and enquines
from HM Revenue & Customs and other tax
authorities in other junsdictions Judgements .
have been made by management following
discussion with the Group's tax advisors and
internal review The Committee has reviewed
the analysis behind these judgements and
confirms its agreement that the Group's tax
DrovISIONs are aporopriate

Going Concern

The Comrmittee advises the PLC Board on
whether It believes 1t appropnate to adopt

the going concern principle in preparing the
Group's financial statements. tn making

this assessment, the Committee receved
and reviewed management forecasts for

the Group’s future cash flow performance,
chatlenging the assumptions on which those
forecasts are based For 2022, the Commuttee
recelved forecasts based on various
scenanos and considered what would be
required for the Group to breach 1ts borrowing
covenants or extinguish 11s borrowing
facilities in the next 18 months. Following

a robust assessment of the forecasts, the
Comrmittee cancluded that adoption of the
going concern principle was appropriate for
both the interim and full year results. The
Committee also reviewed and approved the
going concern disclosures that are included in
the financial statements
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wWhilst not considered to e pamary areags of
judgement, the Committee’s discussions in
1elation 1o the 2022 accoun:s also ncluded
he fallowing

« Gwen the relatively significant value
of non-underlying items in 2522 the
Comrmittee challenged managerment
an “he presen:ation of those iters The
discussion focused ia-gely on the cos's
of the Group’s activity on acquisiiiong
and disposals, and costs relaiing o
restructuring actions taken in the VS,
ATA and Hill & Smith Inc businesses
The Committee concurred with
management's view, noting that the work
of the external auditor in this area also
supported tha: view.

- Following the acquisitions of National
Signal and Widnes Galvanising during
the year, the Commuttee challenged
management on the acquisition
accounting, focussing on the
appropriateness of farr value adjus: ments
and the aoproach taken to valuation of
acquisttion mtangibles The Comimittee
concurred with management's apnroach,
noting the work of independent valuations
experts in relation o the surchase orice
allocation under IFRS 3

Internal audit

Internal audit function

The inte-nal audit function 1s ove'seen by the
Group Head of Risk & Internal Audit. The Audht
Commitiee annually reviews and aporoves
the Internal Audit Charter that se’s out

«  the function's purpose to evaluate the
effectiveness of internal controls, nsk
management and governance processes
ndependently and objectively

- howthe function will discharge its
responsibility, primarily by preparing
and executing a risk-based audit ptan,
dentifying oppostunities to 1improve
internal control, sk management
and governance processes and by
verifying that improvements agreed with
management are implemented within a
reasonable timeframe.

In accordance with the Internal Audit

Charter, the Audit Commuttee and executive
management ensure that the internal audit
function has free and unrestsicted access

to the Group's records, physical properties,
and personnel pertinent to conducting its
activities and remains free from inappropriate
nmanagement influence or other restrictions
on 1ts ability to perform its work in an
ohjective and effective manner.

Internal control

The Audit Committee is responsible for
ensuring that the Group's system of internal
control is embedded within all operating
comrpanies The Committee monitors the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's

internal control processes through review and
discussion of

+ the proposed internal audit olan, ensuring
that it 15 aligned o the Puncinal Risks
af the business, adjusted to respond 70
unexpected even:s, and recelves “egular
progress undates on the delivery of the
objectives of the plan,

+  the 22 nternal audit reports and findings
presented throughout the year together
with the progress mare hy management
n addressing the 1ssues dentified on a
timely basis,

+  executive management reports and
oresentations including updates on
specific areas provided at the request of
the Committeg;

+ accounting judgernents including the
carrying value of goodwilt and intangible
asse's of ATG Access Ltd, Parking
Faciies Ltd, and Hill & Smuth Ing; and

- external audit reports, ncluding the results
of early audit procedures and the audit
findings In relation to the year end audit.

The 2022 Internal Audit Ptan balanced the
focus of the function between Group-wide
Principal Risks and ojerating comoany-levet
risks. it included a Group-wide thematic
review of supply chain resilience. The review
concluded shat while operating comparies,
generally, responded welk to supply cham
pressures over the last 18 months and
continued to fulfil customer orders, the
approach was reactive and that the operating
companies needed to be more proactive

in therr planning around supply chain
vulnerabilizy and risk mitigation.

Operating company-level reviews, focusing
on baseline internal controls were conducted
at 21 busingss units during the year (seven in
relation to financial controls and 1410 relation
to 1T controls) Where internal audit work
found instances of control weakness, or non-
compliance with Group Policy, the findings
were discussed at the Audit Committee Such
control weaknesses are taken seriously by
management and the Audit Committee seek
to ensure that their cause 18 unde-stood,

and mitigating actions are taken to hmit the
potential for recurrence Plans are discussed
and himelines agreed with the relevant
businesses, and these are monitoed by the
mternal audit function to ensure comphance
Whaere operating companies fail to implement
such corrective actions within a reasonable
period as agreed, the Audit Committee is
informed, and further escalation measures
are taken.

In view of the work of internal audit,

external audit, and Group management i1t 1s
considered unlikely that a weakness at an
individual operating company would have a
materal impact when taken in the context of
the Group as a whole.
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Effectiveness of internal audit

The Audr, Cormmittee 13 responsibie for
M0NIL07Ing and reviewing the effectiveness of
the Groups internal audit funcuon

As noted above, the Audit Cormmittee
eviewed and approved the risk-based

audit pfan and monttared progress with its
comslelion Changes to the plan ansing in the
year, iInciuding the completion of additional
work, we e discussed and approved by the
Audit Committes

Throughout the year the Audit Committee
discussed the internal audit function's outputs
with *he Group Head of Risk & Internal Audit
and executive managemen?. The Audit
Commitiee was satisfied that the internal
audit function 1s operating effectively and that
the level of experience within the function was
appropnate to meet the Groun's needs during
the year

Risk management

The risk management process is
continually <ept under review to ensure that
outcomes from the aperating companies’
risk submissions provide the necassary
information ‘or the Audit Commitiee

o conduct 3 rooust assessment of the
nsks affecting the Group as a whole. A

nsk management and reporting tool has
helped 10 provide the Committee with more
information on how operating companies
percewe therr rigks and how they relate *o
the Group's Principal Risks. Through these
reperts, operanng company management
a7e continually monitored and supported to
ensure ther risk management policies and
risk mitigazons are suitable to meet the PLC
Board's appetite for the nsks identified

Risk management process

Every year the Committee seeks to improve
the Group's risk management processes to
ensure that the Group's Principal Risks are
correctly identified by virtue of a top-down /
bottom-up approach using the experiences
of the Audit Committee and the Group's
operating companies. In this, the Audrt
Committee 1s supported by the Group's Risk
Committee, whose membership can be found
on page 62

The Risk Cormmittee oversees the risk
management process, which is one of
continual mproverment. The nisk management
and reporting tool, launched in 2020, was
further developed dunng the year supported
by a programme of training that was delivered
to all management teams across the Group,
via online webinars and training manuals

The Risk Committee reviews, discusses, and
validates the risk submission data receved
from the operating companies Any nsks
submitted by operating corrpanies that do

not align with the Group's Princioal Risks are
indivigually reviewed and considered in current
and subsequent reviews of the Grouo Pincipal



Risks The Audit Committee has monttored
the resuliant key rigks on the corporate nisk
eqister and dunng the year recewved repots
and minutes from the Risk Commuttee,
detaiing the Group-wide sk assessment
orocess and the movements in majo- r1gks
and upda'es on operaling companies’ 11s<
mizigation activity. together with thei- attitude
1o risk as measured by a target’ nsk score
The Committee uses this information to
determine the nsk annetize within the Group's
operaung companies and heln inform the PLC
Board's overall risk appetite

Duning 2022, the Committee directed that
particular attention be paid to the Pnincipal
Risks around Health & Safety, IT Failure,
Recrutrment and Retention, and Product
Failure. The Committee noted that the
prevention of ha-m or injury to employees
was a magjor area of focus across the Group
and that 11 was a regular *opic of discussion
within the Executive Board as well as the
PLC Board itself while the LTIR performance
has seen an imo-ovement across the Goud
dunng 2072, health & sa'ety remains a

key focus area for the Committee and the
apoette for improvement remams

Juring the year the Commt:ee receved
reqular updates regarding I T resihence and
cyne” segurity from the Group IT Director and
the Chief Information Security Officer. Regular
updates on operating company compliance
with the Group IT Controls Manual were
provided by internal audr,

Mare information on the activities of the Risk
Committee and the Groua's Principal Risks
can be found on pages 60 to 68

TCFD

The TCFD {Taskforce on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures) recommendations,
pubhshed in 2017, encourage comoanies

to disclose information on ther financial
risks and opportuntties arising from climate
change, and how these are being managed

In 2071 the Group engaged PwC to perform
analysis to enable a better understanding
of our climate related nsks, by identifying
transitional and physical risks and
opportunities in future climate scenanos

in 2022 PwC were engaged to perform
assessment of the physical risks for
operational sites acquired in the year The
results from PwC's work were reviewed at
the March 2023 Audit Committee, following
which the Committee approved the 2022
disclosures relating to TCFD which can be
found in the Group’s Sustainabifity Plan on
pages 32t0 57
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Whistleblowing

The Group has a wnitten pohcy which

states that iIf any emoloyee In the Group

has reascnable grounds 1o believe that the
Groun's Code of Business Conductis being
breached by any person o ¢ oup of poodle,
they are anle "o report such incidents through
an externally hosted wterne: repoiting system
and/or a telephone-hased whistieblowing
hotlineg or 1f necessary, to the Company
Seeretary or a Group President or the Charr
of the Audit Commizee This policy can be
faund cn the Group website

Any incidents reported, whather through the
whistlehlowing hotline or direct to *he Company
Secretary or any other member of Group-level
management, are Investigated under the
supervision of the Group Company Secretary
and resolved appropriately. Reports raised by
the Group Company Secretary on these cases,
on the investigative process, the conclusions,
and any lessons 1o be learned from these
events are shared with the PLC Board.

Assessment of effectiveness

of external audit

There are several areas that the Committee
considers inrelation (o the external audnor
performance in discharging the audit and
intertim -eview of the Financial Stazements,
independence and objectivity, and
reappointment and -emuneration,

External auditor performance

The external auditor, Y, provided the
Committee with therr plan *or undertalung the
2022 year-end audit during the Committee
meeting N July 2022. This highlighted the
pronosed approach and scope of the audit
and identified the key issues in detail, being
the valuation of goocdwill in relation to Parking
Faciities, ATG Access Ltd and France Galva
S.A, the nsk of fraud in revenue recognition, and
inventory valuation The Committee debated,
and appropriately challenged the basis for
these areas before agreeing the propesed
aporoach and scope of the external audit. As
events evolved through the year, the audit risks
have accordingly been re-visited by EY This led
o the inclusion of an additional key audit nsk
regarding the valuation of goodwill in relation
to Hill & Smith Inc being reported on, and the
exclusion of the ngk relating to France Galva's
goodwill foliowing its disposal in October 2022.

The external auditor prepared a detailed
report of 1ts findings in respect of the 2022
audrt. The Committee discussed the issues
raised in the report, particutarly in relation

1o the areas highlighted, at their meeting in
March 2023 The Committee questioned and
challenged the work undertaken, the findings
and the key assumptions made, paying
particular attention {o the areas of audit nisk
identified.

Auditor independence and rotation
The external auditor confiraned its oolicies
on ensuring auditor independence and
provided the Comimitiee with a repoit on
their own audit and quahty procedures This
repor: was reviewed during the period under
ieview and the Committee were satisfied

o the audror's indeoendence To maintain
auditor indedendence the Group has a policy
whereby, before any former employee of

‘he external auditor may be employed by
the Group, careful consideration 1s given to
whether the indecendence of the auditor will
he adversely affected, and approval of the
Audit Committee 1s required. There were no
such instances dunng the year

EY were appointed as the Group's auditor in
June 2020, and they have confirmed to us,
that as the partner in charge Hefen MclLeod-
Jones, subject to unforescen changes, will be
the lead partner up t@ and ncluding the audit
for 2024 before being compelled to rotate off
the audit to ensure continued independence

Audit and Non-audit fees

At the December 2022 meeting the
Comnimitree discussed and aoproved the
aroooaed aud fee for 2022

The Committee mamtamed the aoproach of
minenising the non-audit work carned ous

by the external auditor The Committees
Non-audit Services Policy reets the detalled
requirements of audit legislation, which
restrict the use of the external auditor for
actvines including compiling accounting
records, certain aspects of internal audit,

IT consultancy, tax services exceptin
exceptional circumstances, and advice 1o the
Remuneration Committee.

Forany non-audit/additional services set ou”
in section 5 40 of the FRC's ethical standard
2019, the policy orovides for approval, by the
Group Chief Financial Officer, of expenditure
below £50,000, and above that level by the
Audit Committee. A report 1s also submitted
to the Audit Committee of any non-audit
services carried out by the external auditor,
rrespective of value to ensure that the
aggregated spend with the external auditor
will not exceed 70% of the audit fee

During 2022, there were fees of £3,000 (2021.

£4,000) paid to the auditor for non-audit
services relating to other assurance services
In 2022, non-aud* fees represented 0.2% of
audit fees of £1 6m {2021. 0 2%). Further
details of these amounts are included in note
8 of the Financial Statements on page 148,

Mark Reckitt
Chair

8 March 2023
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Annette Kelleher
: [

Dear Stakeholder

As Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and on behalf of
the Board, | am pleased to
share with you our report on
Directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December
2022,

During 2022, the Committee
had a full agenda including
the triennial review of the
Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which will be
presented to our shareholders
for approval at our 2023
Annual General Meeting
(AGM") on 25 May 2023.

The Annual Report on Remuneration (pages
@4 to 104), describes how the current
Remuneration Policy (the ‘Policy’) has been
operated duning 2022 and the proposed
operation m 2023 {subject to approval of the
updated Policy). The updated Policy is set
aut pages 105 to 113, Shareholders will be
asked to approve both the Annual Report on
Remuneration, and the updated Policy at our
2023 AGM

Business context

The Group has delivered record revenue
and profits in 2022, which demonstrates
the business’ resilience to the challenging
headwinds of supply, inflation and a post
COVID marke:place. The Group 1s -eporting,
from continuing operations, revenues of
F£732 1 and operating piofits of £G7.1m

In addition to dehivering robust financial
performange, 2022 has been a year of sohd
D7ogress in improving the quabty of our
portfolio of businesses, We successfully
disposed of our lower growth, lower margin
French galvanising and ighting column
business, exited our Swedish rental and
infrastructure cont-act businesses and

the low margin read traffic control product
portfolio in the US At the same time, we have
successfully completed acquisitons in high
growth markets to complement our existing
busingsses National Signal specialises in
off-grid solar lighting solutions and Widnes
Galvaniging expands the geographic coverage
of our galvanising business in the UK

A number of Board changes have aiso been
made during the year, including Paul Simmeons
stepping down from his role as Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ’) and from the Board
on 18 July and then ceasing employment with
the Group following a period of garden leave.
Alan Giddins, our Non-Executive Chair tock
over as Executive Chair and will remain so
until a permanent CEOC is appointed

In respect of the period Alan Giddins has
served as Executive Chair he has received

a fee equivalent to the previous CEQ’s base
salary of £562,071 per annum with the role
being undertaken on a full tme basis. This wilt
be increased by 4% to £584 544 for 2023, and
until a CEQ 15 appointed, at which point tus fee
will revert to the typical Non-executive Charr
fea. Alan Giddins was not eligible to participate
In any varable remuneration arrangements
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a1

The Group has
delivered record
revenue and profits
in 2022, which
demonstrates the
business’ resilience
to the challenging
headwinds of supply,
inflation and a post
COVID marketplace.”

during 2022 and will also not partizipate dunng
2023 Details of exit arrangernents for Paul
Simmons can be found on page 100

2022 remuneration outcomes

Annual bonus

The 2022 annual bonus for the Executive
Directors was based on finanoial measures
(80% weighting) and personal objectives [20%
weighting). The formulaic outturn ranged
between 70% and 80% of the maximum
bonus avalable

Details of the outturns aganst the financial
performance measures are se* out on page 97

The Committee assessed achieverments
against personal chjectives as set out on
nage 97. Half of the bonus earned by each
Executive Directo” will be deferred into shares
for two years, to ensure long term alignment
with the mterests of shareholders.

The Group has & history of focusing on
financiat performance measures, however
recently, to recognise specific focus on

key matters we have introduced personal
objectives into the Execlitive Directors’ annual
bonus plans. In particular these included
the continued development of the Group’s
ESG strategy and implementing the Group’s
IT and cyber risk strategy with milestones
appropriate to 2022. The Committee was of
the view that these objectives should form
part of a non-financial series of activities
since they are initiatives that will strengthen
our underlying business, support the
Company's overall strategy and facilitate the
delivery of long term sustanable growth.
More information can be found on page 97.
Progress against both the financial metrics
and the relevant milestones is measured
using our KPls, which are embedded within
the executive remuneration framework as
illustrated by the information on page 97.



The Comimittee considered the outturn foi
these elements against the formulaic targets
and agreed that these were appropnate
having regard to averall performance and
exnenence of stakeholders

Ltong term incentive outcomes

With rega:d to our long term performance, our

2020 long term incentive award 15 eligible to

vest based on oerformance from 1 January

2020 1o 31 December 2022, The portion of

this award vesting was determined based

on performance against ~arnings Per Share
“F 1 and Relabive Total Sharshivder Retisn

EUARET ;

Based on EPS grow:h of 14 5% ove the
serigrmanse senod, and delivenng a TSR
that placed the Company between median
and upper guartile versis the FTSE 250
constituen:s (excluding Inves:ment Trusts
and financial services companies), the award
will vest at 43% of the maximum

In determining vestng, the Committee
considered the potential for windfall gans

and conciuded that the value on vesting of the
2020 award did not benefit from windfall gaing
In reaching this conclusion the Committee
noted that the granting of the 2020 award was
delayed untif 25 September 2323, by which
ume the Company's share pnce had largely
recovered from the mar<et wide fall that took
place in the €irst half of 2020 {the 2020 share
awards were granted based con a September
share price of £12 01 versus the March COVID
low of £9.07 and the 2079 award price of

£17 63) Furthermore, the Comoany's share
price was oroadly consistent with the gran®
prze at the end of the 2022 financial year

{(1e 1~ had not bencfitted from a post Cowid
bounce from September 2020} As a result

of the share price at the end of the three year
performance penod, and noting the number

of shares comprised in the award at grant, the
Committee was comfortable that there was no
windiall gain associated with the vesting of the
2027 long term incentive plan award and that
vesting was consistent with the performance
of the Company through the period

Given the combination of financial
performance and nen-financial progress
achieved duning the year, the Committee
awarded vanable say awards inine with the
formula-based outcomes The Comimittee s
satisfied that the Remuneration Policy has
operated as intended and in reaching this
conclusion wok INto account overall Company
performance and other information such as
internal Jay ratios and shareholder feedback

Our new Directors’

Remuneration Policy

Our current Policy was approved by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM recening

95 4% support. The 2023 AGM will mark the
third anniversary of the existing Policy and as
a result we witl seek shareholder anproval for
an updated Policy at the AGM.

During 2022, the Committee conducted

a review of the exisung Pelicy and how
effectively it had operated during the current
Palicy cycle The Cormmittee concluded

that the existing Policy, subject 10 mingr
refinements, rermains appropriate considerning
the Group's remuneration philosophy and will
continue to support the long term sustamnable
arowth stra‘egy of the Group The other
factors noted oy the Cornmittee in reaching
the dezision 10 roll over our Policy
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inciuded that () the curient Policy takes
account of current institutional investor ‘best
praclice’ expecialions and ahgns with relevant
coroorate governance requirements, (it the
Policy provides market consistent fexility

to retine the future choice o oerformance
metrics as strategy evelves, and (ud Lhe
Paolicy 1s exoected 1o provide the anpropriate
flexibility to facilitate the aspomtment of a
new permanent CEO

In the event there was a need o make any
changes to the Policy wirthin the nex: three-
year Palicy period, recogmising a new C=0
will be appointed, the Committee would m the
first instance unde-taxe anproonate dialogue
with mvestors at that trne

To date, sharcholders who grovided feedback
understood the rationale for the aroposed roil
torward of the Policy and were suppotve

of the Committee's approach However,
feednacx also indicated that the Group's
Pohcy was not fully aligned <o some of our
investors' expectations concerning our post-
employment shareholding guidelines. Our
current guidelines were structured so that
shares were held equivalent to 200% of final
year salary {or if less to the maximum held)
for at least one year before the regquirement
reduced t0 100% of salary In ight of the
Teedback received, the stepdown to 100%

of salary after a year post cessation of
employment will be removed and so the 200%
of salary guideline {or less o the maxin~um
held) will operate fo twa years post cessation
of employment bringing the guidelne into full
1A comphance This updated guideline applies
to shares acquired (afte” tax) through vested
LTIP and deferred bonus awaids granted i
and from 2020

Employee pay and stakeholder

engagement

with exceptionally high levels of inflation,
especially in our major markats n the UK and
US, we took a range of actions o support
our emplayees in 2022 Our responses varied
by location based on our understanding of
facal needs The actions taken inciuded lump
sum payirents, targeted salary adjustments
and voucher grogrammes as well as
increased financial education Inlight of the
exceptionally high levels of inflation in 2022,
the Cormpany has set salary increase budgets
at between 5% and 10% for 2023, depending
on country and local circumstances

Gur Board visited 12 of our operating sites
during the year and solicited feedback on

the Company and discussed a broad range
of topics that included remuneration and
how our structures align with strategy

These visits, alied to the operation of our
annual engagement survey, ensure the Board
understands the views of all employees and
can act as needed to ensure we continue to
have an engaged and motivated workfarce,

With regards to engagement with
shareholders, as detailed above, we
concluded a wide-ranging shareholder
consultation process from late 2022 as part
of our 2023 remuneration Policy renewal

Looking forward to 2023

Gur usual practice is te review Executive
Directors’ salaries on an annual bass, In
December, the Committee considered ther
annua! salary increases, effective January
2023 The Committee, recognises that when
Hannah Michols was appointed in 2019 it was

her first PLC C=0 role and she starled on a
below markel rate. Since then Hannah has
grown signifizantly in her role and 1in addition
she has taken responsihility for the delivery
of the Company's IT and Cyber strategy TO
reflect this she has been awarded a 5% pay
increase and her annual long term ncentive
award opportunity 1s to be increased Her
salary increase 1s at the hottom end of the
majority of wider workforce pay nses of
between 5% and 10% The Committee felt

1t was also aapropnate also to ncrease her
Iang term incentive arrangemen: grant from
125% of salary ta 150% of salary for 2023,
and on an ongoing basis, The above changes,
both of whizh can be accommodated within
our existing Policy. will move her towards
the markei rate for an experienced FTS= 253
Chief Financial Officer which 1s considered
appropnate in light of her calinre, her
performance in posT and current expenence.
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With regard to the eperaton of the arnual
bonus plan n 2023, there will e no change
‘o the maximum cpaortunity for the CFO at
125% of salary However, we have refined
our choice of performance metncs to better
reflect our increased focus on profitability,
cash and efficiency in 2023 As a result,

the serformance metnas will be underlying
operating profit [50%), operating cash
conversion (30% and replacing Return on
invested Capital) and sersonal objectives set
against a basket of ESG measures (including
carbon reduction and health and safety) and
individual <ey responsibilities (20%)

The lang rernncentive awards granted in
2023 will -emain subject w0 an egual split of
earmmgs oer share growth taigets and refauve
total shareholder return targets Having
considered internal plans and externai marxe:
expectations for our future performance, plus
the higher annual award level for the CFO for
the 2023 award, the Committee increased the
range of EPS growth targets from 3% - 11%
Da to4% 12%pa With the share price at
the time of writing within 5% to 10% of the
2022 gran: price the Committee does not
envisage there to be the potental for windfall
gams ansing from the 2023 award However,
it will undertake a final review of the terms

of the award onor 1o granting and 7etains
discrenion on vesting 1o adjust formula-based
outcomes {e.g. in the event of a percewed
wind*all gain).

The Non-executive Director fees, including
additional fees, have been increased by 3%
with effec: from vanuary 2023 See page 104
for more details.

On a personal note, 2023 will mark the end
of my thisd term as Non-executive Director
with Hill & Smith and therefore | will be
stepping down from the Board following the
2023 AGM Cur Senior Independent Director,
Tony Quinlan, will succeed men the role as
Comrnittee Chair. | wish Tony the best of
Juck in this role and thank our shareholders
for ther support dunng my *enure as
Commuittee Charr

I beheve our approach to remuneration will
help to enable long term sustaimable growth
while ensuring a responsible approach to
executive pay, and | look forward 1o receving
your support on Resolutions 2 and 3 at our
2023 AGM

Annette Kelleher
Chair

March 2023
8 Mar 93



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Area of focus in 2022

During the year 10 37 December 7022 the Rermmuneration Committee consisted of Annette
Kelleher as Charr, Alan Giddins, Mark Reckitt, Pete Raby, Tony Quinlan, Leigh-Ann Russell,

R E P O RT continued

and rarrokh Bathwala, who was appoinied from 1 Apnl 2022 Durning the year the Committee

considered the following

Remuneration at a glance
Toincentivise our employees to achieve our strategy, we provide market competitive remuneration which is aligned with our shareholders’
experience

Remuneration Policy and structure summary
{More details can be found on pages 95 to 104)

Element Purpose/structure

Reward linked to performance

Operating Profit (at budgeted FX
rates) — outcome against target

Actual

£87.8m

Target £849m

Return on Invested Capital {(at
budgeted FX rates) —
outcome against target

Actual

18.7%

Target 17 9%

Total annual bonus plan — Qutcome,
including achievernent of personai
objectives, see page 97.

Paul Simmons

72%

of masamum opportunity
(prorated to 18 July 2022}

Hannah Nichols

77%

of maximum opportunty

Operation for 2023

Enables the Company to recruit and retain Executive
Directors.

CFO - £374,525 (5% increase)
Executive Chair — £584,554 (4% increase)

To provide post-retirement benefits for Executive
Directors

CFO - 6 5% of salary
Executive Chair - n/a

Performance measures and targets are reviewed and
set annually by the Remuneration Committee, At least
50% of bonus will be based on financial measures

50% of any bonus 1s deferred into shares for two years.

2023 performance measures: Budgeted underlying
operating profit {(50%), budgeted cash conversion {30%);
and individual personal objectives (20%)

Maximum opportunity: CFC: 125% of salary. Executive
Chair. n/a

Threeyear performance period, with & further two-year
holding pericd.

2023 performance measures: Relative TSR {50%) and
growth in UEPS {50%)

Grant size: CFO' 150% of salary. Executive Chai: n/a

To encourage shareholder alignment both dunng and
after employment

200% shareholding for Executive Directors during
employment and for two years after empioyment ends
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The following chart shows Hill & Smith's Total Shareholder Return during 2022
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT continues

Implementation of the Remuneration Policy during 2022
Single rernuneration figure

Total Total

Base Sala'y Taxable Total Fixed Annual Variable “single

Year / fees ! Benefits Pension ~ Pay Bonus - 1P Pay figure™

Alan Giddins 2022 257,241 - - 257,241 - - - 257,241
2020 - : - - - -

Hannah Michols 2022 356,689 12,639 23,185 392,513 345,213 213,002 558,215 950,728
2021 316,300 14,608 22,504 38 417 37660° : 376,601 /H8018

Paul simmons -1 2022 304,005 15,639 36,535 356,179 330,758 110,991 441,749 797,928
2021 545,700 15,608 35471 596,779 720324 463,765 1,184090 1,780,869

Totals 2022 917,935 28,278 59,720 1,005,933 675,971 323,993 999,964 2,005,897
2021 892,000 28,216 57,980 978,196 1,096,925 463776 3,560,691 2,538,887

“t Th= amount of base salary recewved in the year

» Tne taxadle value of az1efits recevad 10 the year Membership ot the Company'’s healthcare schene, ncome pro7acion scheme, 1ersonal accident Insurance, zar {or
cash alowance), il health and Iife aszsurance A total of ENE (2021 £Mil) was daid to @ Simmons in the form of subsistence, whichis subject to PAYE and NIT deducnon

© Pension contributions for eliginle Executva iirectars represent & 5% of therr base salary

0 Annual Bonws s the value of the bonus eared in respect of the fimancia’ penod under review, mcluding the amount deferred nto snares A descrption of how the

norLs pay out was determired car be found cr page 97

- The LT P figure for Paul Simrrons for 2022 reflects the vesting on 29 July 2022 of Buy-Out Award 2 gianted to him over 12,364 shares in connection with an LTIP
award forferted when he jomed Hil' & 3rmith, a3 32t outin the 2020 Directors’ Remuneration Report Juning 2022, it was confirmed that 31 8 of the award would lapse
and therefora that 8,434 shares would vest The valug of £119,931 15 the aioduct of the nurraer of vested shares and the share anice of £13 16 on th2 date of vesting

w The 1IP figure for @aul Simerens for 2021 reflects the vesting ar 30 July 2021 of Buy-0ut Award 1 granted wo him aver 28,557 shares in connecuon with ar LTIP

award forfeited when he joined b1 | & Srmith as set oul in the 2020 Directars’ Rerruneration Report Dunng 2021, 1t was canfirmed tnat the award would vest in fult
The value of £463,766 15 the product of the number of vested shares and the share price of £16 24 on the date of vesting

Fallowing Paul Simmaons stepping down fram the Board on 18 July 2022, the Non-executive Chair, Alan Giddins, becarmne Executive Chair To reflect the additional
respansiylinies associated witn tha role of Executive Charr is arnual fee was increased from £131,390 to £562,071 He was not eligibie to recewe any vanabdle
remuneration in iespect of 2022

a These amnounts relate to the penod which Alan Giddins served as Executive Chair
@ Alan Gidding served as Nan-executive Chairn 2021 and the fees paid to bim for his services amounted to £176,660 See page 100 for maore detals

-3 Pan Simmons stepaed down as CECQ and from the Board on 18 Juiy 2022 In the 2022 table above, rermuneration sarmed to that date is included, except that for

consistency with the other Executive Directars, the full amount of the 2022 bonus, taxable benefits and pension are inciuded in this table Other payments made to
fien are disslosed on page 103

2022 annual bonus

Paul Simmons and Hannah Nichaols were eligible to earn a bonus for 2022 of up to 150% and up to 125% of salary respectively In line with the
Palicy, 50% of any bonus is paid upfront in cash and the remaining 50% 1s deferred into shares for *wo years, with no performance conditions, and
subject, ordinarily, to continued employment.

Any bonus paid to Paul Sirmmons in respect of 2022,15 pro rated ‘o his date of stepping down from the Board, being 18 July 2022
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The extent to which the Executive Directors’

honuses were earnedis surmmarised below

Maximum Actual bonus

Target — 50% of - 100% of Actual earned

Measure Weighting maximum - maximum " performance (% of maximum)

Underhing operating orofit 50% £849n £97 9m £87 8m 34.7%

Retun oninves:ed capital 30% 17 3% 18 9% 18.7% 26.9%
Personal objectives 70%  The honus earned by reference w the satisfaction of sersonal ohjectives

was determimed by the Committee based on s assessment of the extent 1D

which the objectives were achieved, as described below

u Underlying operating profit and returr on invested capital are calculated at pudgeted rates of exchange for the puipeses of calcu.ating the annual bonus

> The targets were restated to include the impact of matenal acquisiions and divestiments dunng the year 50 that the targets werg based on continuing aperations
ard were no more or less challenging than when originally set

The sersonal objectives set for each Executive Director are summansed below, along with the key achievements.

Executive Direc

Paul Simmons

Achievement

Objectives

Calisg a step change i the Group's health and safety
serforrnance and culture Imprave the Group’s LTIR to 3 3i) for
accident rates across the Groud Ensare the irrplemertanonr
of Health & Safety traiving programme for all Executive Soard
mernbers and MDs

Ensure progress against tne Group sustairadility p'an as
disclosed 11 last vear's Annual Report

work with the Group Pregidents to develop an M&A map aligned

with tie Groups strategy =nsure the Group sees a strong pipeline

of hign-quality opportuities and puts itself 0 a position to
execdle on the most attractive gpportLunties Ensure a suocessful
disposa: of France Gava

Work with tn2 Group President o easure that theres a clear plan
0 assure dehvary of the strategy for the US roads

sub-divsion. Ensure that the sub-division 1s set up for long term
success tnrough the existence of ) a well *hought through
strategic plan, (1} a strong management tearm, () a numper of
rew product develonment iniiatives, and (v} strong M&A pipeline

57.5%

Key achievements

Objective subs:antia-ly achieved with good progress made
duning the year, with clear and imaroved reporting up to the
Executive Board and PLC Board LTI= decreased by 35%

m 2022

Qgjective substanua ly achieved with good progiess made
against the Groun's ESG agenda, including reporting a
saselnge for Scope 3 camon emissions See pages 36 10 38
for more details

Objective partly achieved A1 ME&A map bamg developed but
with a pipeiine that was only somewhat orogressed Srance
Galva 2wt completed in the year

Thus oojective was not achieved Operational issuss identihed
poat 2aul's denartdre, Qving nss 1o a number of senor
rmanagemenrt changes al Hilt & Smith inc , and necessitating a
detalled strategic review in H2

Hannah Nichols

Achievement

Cause a step change in the Grouo's heaith and satety
performance and culture Improve the Group's LTIR to 0 90 for
accident rates across the Group Ensure the implementation
of Health & Safery training programme for ail Executive Board
members ard MDs

Ensure progress agamst the Group sustainability plan as
disclosed niast year's Annual Report

Drive further improvement in the Group’'s ability to accurately
forecast aut on a three-month and six-maonth basis, thereby
providing the Board with a tugh level of confidence in the
forecasts contained wathin the Board pack

Provide clear leadership i the delivery of the Group's information
secunty and TR strategy Ensure that the six-manthly 1T

update presentations are focused on hard deliverables Ensure
specific delivery against 1) information security roll out plan {with
completion of crical Email and Web Fiitering workstreams by
end 2022) ) Mizioscf: 365 programme delivery by end H1 2022
and m} ERP strategy development complete a full assessment
of the Croup ERP estate 10 provide a clear road map for future
change requirements based on business need and cost/benefits

82.5%

Objective substantially achieved with good progress made
dunng the year, with ciear and improved repartng up to the
txecutive Board and PLC SBoard LTIR decreased by 35%

N 2022

Objective substantially achieved with good progress made
against the Group's ESG agenda, including reporting a
baselne for Scope 3 carbon emissions See pages 3610 38
for more details

Objective achieved between target and maximum The month
end reporting requirements have been further enhanced
Introduced a monthly nsk and opportunity assessment vs
forecast far each operating company Greater degree of
forecast accuracy evidenced.

Objective achieved between target and maxmum Strong

IT leadership demonstrated throughout the year End point
management tools introduced across the Group Secure
Access Service Edge (SASE" project agreed, to e rolled out
N 2023 individual operating company ERP assessments
undertaken and projec: plans produced

Stock Code HILS
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORTcontinued

In assessing the key achievernents se: out above 0 relation to personal objectives, the Committee datermined that Paul Simmons should receve
57 5% of this aart of the bonusg, Hemg 11 5% of s maximum opportunity (nro-rated to the date he stepped down from the Board, 2eing 18 July
2022}, and *hat Hannah Nichols should :eceive 87 5% of this part of the bonus, aeing 16 5% of her maximurn oo0rtunity

The Committee considered the formulac outurm of the annual bonus for 2022 1o be aporoanate and reflected he financial and non fmancial
ser‘ormance of the business dunng the year, therefore no discretion was applied

The cash bonus and defer-ed bonus ea ned in “egpect of 2022 are as follows

Bonus paid
as an award
Total bonus  Bonus paid in of deferred

Executive Dircctor earned cash (£) shares (£)
Paul Simmons £330,758 £165379 £165,370
Hannah Nichols £345273 £172,607 £172606

LTIP awards vesting in respect of 2022

Paul Simmons and Hannah Nichols were made CTIP awards in 2020 over 66,819 and 35,335 shares respectively. These vested subject to the
achievement of performance condmions based on absolute UEPS growth over the three year performance pernod ended 31 Decernber 2022 (as regards
50% of the award) and TSR relative to the FTSE 250 excluding irvestrment trusts and financial services comparnies (as regards 50% of the award)

Paul Simmons’ 2020 TIP award lapsad in totality when he steaped down from the Board on 18 Juty 2022

0On 2 Ma:ch 2023, the Remruneration Commitiee approved the extent o which the awards vested, and the value ncluded in Hannah Nichols' single
figure of remuneration table as a result 1s set out below

Actual Shares subject to
Performance Targets Vesting performance Actual Vesting the Award Vesting shares Vested value
L=PS Threshold 85p 20% C e . U=PS: 56 80%
PG of
Maximum 12300 100% UFPS0f 91 9p of maximum Hannah Nichols
= . e r

TSR Median 20%  1SRRanked 84 TSR 20.55% 35335 19.298 2131002

Upper Quartile 100% out of 135 of maximum

1 The value of shares 1s caloulated by reference o tne share poce on 2 March 2023, being £13 96 In accordance with the rules of the LTIR Harnah Nichols s entitled
to a further benef). by reference o the dividands patd over the pencd from grant to vesting, amounting to £11,056, and delivered as /92 additional shares

As detalled in the Charr's Invroductory Statement, the Commitiee consideed the potential for any windfall gains associated with the vesting of the
2020 award and concluded that this was not the case having considered poth the numbe- of shares at grant and the value on vesting As a result,
the Committee did not use any discretion in relation to the vesting of the award

Executive Director sharehoiding guidelines
The Company’s guidelines are that Executive Directors must hold 200% of their base salary in shares

In order to meet this requirement irectors are required to build up such by retaining at least hatf of any shares earned through incentive
arrangements until that shareholding requirement 1s met. Shares awarded as part of the deferred bonus arrangements also count towards this
requirement.

Aithough not subject to shareholding requirements, the Executive Char, Alan Giddins, has been included in the table below.

Alan Hannah Paul

Giddins Nichols Simmons

=xIsting

unvested

Shareholding requirement n/a 200% vptions
Current shareholding on 31 December 2022 23,600 3,106 n/a
Deferred shares on 371 December 2022 {amounts net of tax and social security) - 3,966 16,904
Total shares 23,600 13,072 16,904
Share value nased on share price on 371 Decermber 2022 £2786,592 £163,204 £188115
Cur-ent % of salary {(based on salary on 31 December 2022) n/a 43% n/a

Hannah Nichols will be required to retain at least 50% of any shares earned under the LTIP and the deferred bonus scheme until the shareholding
guideling s achieved There was no change in these beneficial interests between 31 December 2022 and 8 March 2023

Under the Company’s current Remuneration Policy, Paul Simmons 15 required to mamntam a post-employment shareholding in respect of shares
acguired pursuant to LTIP and deferred bonus awards to a value equal o 200% of his base salary for a peniod of one year after leaving, and 50% of
this in-service guideline for a further year after leaving In either case, the number of relevan® shares held at leaving must be retained f this is less
than the in-service guidehne.
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Share awards granted during the year

Dunng the year to 31 December 2022 the Commizzee approved awards, unde- the rules of the LTIE to the Executive Directors as follows

1H40d3H IONYNHIAQD

Number of Maximum face Threshold Performance

Date of Award  Type of Award Shares value of Award ¥ Vesting Period end date®

Paul Simmons 16 March 2022 Nil cost ootion 59,511 8788725 20% 31 December 2024
Hannah Nizhois 16 March 2022 NIl cost oplion 31,487 464,748 207 31 December 2024

v Zalculated by reference to a share price of £1.1 78, baing the average of tie mid-mar<es prizes for te tree trading days proar i 16 March 2022

© This award lapsed when 2aul Simrons stepped down from the 3oard on 18 Luly 2022

= After the end of the performance period, the TIP awards wal' be subject to an additioral two-year holding period before they are released

I he nerformance conditions for these awards a-e as follows

Vesting amount

Cormaound annual growth in
UEPS over the performance
period

{50% of the award)

TSR
(50% of the award) **

0% Vesting
20% Vestngs

Maximum Vesting*

Below median
Median

Less than 3%
3%

11% Upper quartile

= Staignt ine vesung will aoply beiweer these two pons
** Retative 10 the FTSE 250 (excluding investrmen® trusts and finarcial services companies)

SAYE

The interests of the =xecutive Diector at 31 Decemaer 2072, in ophions for ordinary shares in the Company, granted under the Company's SAYE

schemes are shown in the following table

Period that aptian s exercisable

Awards
held at Awards
31 Granted =xerzised L ansed held at
Decemiyer  duringthe  duningthe  dunng the JEEETELENTE
Year Grant Price 2021 year year year 2022 From To
Hannah Nichols 2022 £7 94 - 3,778 - - 1Jan 2028 1 July 2028
2019 £9 40 3191 - - 3191 1dan 2023 1 July 2023
Alan Giddins does not particinate in the SAYE
Statement of Executive Directors’ shareholding and interests in shares
Unvested
Subject to  Not subject to Total at
Owned Vested but  performance  performance EEEMT0TEC
Type Qutright  not exercised conditions conditions 2022
Hannah Nichols Shares 3,106 18,803 97,897 -
Market value
options™ - - 2,497 -
SAYE
Options®™ - - - 3,778

i The Market Value oplions were granted under the tax-advantaged part of the ESOS as part of the LTIP award granted in 2020 and are subject to the same

performance conditions as that LTIP award
2 A breakdown of SAYE awards is shown above

Stock Code HILS
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT continues

Loss of office payments and payments to former directors

Paul Simmons stepped down fromy the Board on 18 Suly 2022 and remained an employee untit 31 December 2022 His salary, nension allowance
and Denelits 0 18 July 2322 are included in the single figure rable on page 95, along with the pio-rated bonus earned in resaect of 2022

Ag an emoloyee 0 the Comaany, Paul Sirmimens continued to receive his salary, pensicn allowance and henefits during his penod of ga-den lcave
{from 18 Luly 2022 to 31 December 2022) For the peniod ~ January 2023 1o 17 July 2023, being the balance of tus "2 months’ notice period, he
will conunue 1o receive his basic salay, aid monthly This amounts 10 £304.904 He also receved a contribution of £5,000 im relation 1o any legal
fees that may have oeen incu:red

In terms of any share awards *hat we-e made to Mr Simmrons, the Remuneratnion Coirmitiee operated the -elevant pians in line with the terms of
the plans and exercised discretion whese awards had been previously eained against performance targets while n emoloyment as follows

Existing Buy-Out Award: Paul Simmaons held an award over 12,364 Hill & Smrh shares The award was granted on commencement o*
emzloyment to compensate him for the forfesture of a long term incentive award granted by his orevious employer Mr Simmons retamed this
award and it vested on s normal release date n July 2022 while Mr Simmong remained in emoleyment The number of shares which vested was
reduced o reflect, in the ozinion of the Committeg, the level of actual vesting achieved for the underlying former emplover award that was Hought
out and it July 2022, the Committee determinad that only 68 2% of the award should vest

2022 Annual Bonus: For the peniod of his active employment 10 18 July 2022, noting that Paul Simmons would remain an employee of the
Company &t the end of the 2022 financial year, the Committee determined that he would be ehgible for a pro-rata bonus to 18 July 2022 on the
basis of what was earned based on the targets set at the start of the financial yeas, with 50% paid in cash at the normal time and 50% deferred for
the normal two year defeal period.

Existing Deferred Bonus Awards: On *he hasis that the awards granted under the Deferred Bonus Plan in 20217 and 2022 in resoect of honuses
earned in 2020 and 2027 bad been previously earned the Commuittee determined that the awards would be retained and will be released ‘rom
deferral at their ordinary e, being two years fiom the date of grant.

Long term Incentive Plan Awards: On the basis that the awards granted under the LTIP in 2020, 2027 and 2022 totalling 185,122 shares had not
been earned as at the date of stepping down from the Board, the Corrmittee lapsed the awards.

Na further payments are to be made o Paul Simmons in connection with his loss of offize or the cessation of his employment. There were no
other loss of office payments or payments made to fo-mer Drrectors dunng the year ended 31 December 2022

All payments made were permitted within the Remuneration Policy

Non-executive Directors
Non-executive Director single figure comparison

Toral
Singte
Board Other Taxanle Annual Figure
Director Role Feeg Feeg Benefits Banus LTIP Pensicn 2027
Alan Giddins Chair 98,695 - - - - - 176690
Annette Kelleher Chanr, 62,840 - - - - - 60675
Remuneration
Commitios
Farrokh Bathwala * Non-executive 43,238 - - - - - -
Director
Leigh-Ann Russell ©* Non-executive 53.840 - - - - - 39,206
Director
Mark Reciatt Chair, Audit 62,840 - - - - - 60675
Committee
Pete Rahy Non-executive 53,840 - - - - - 527275
Director
Tony Quinlan Senior 62,840 - - - - - 60675
Independent
Director
Total 435133 - - - - - 450,196

» As the Non-executive Directors do not participate in any vaniable arrangements separa’e sections for fixed and vanable pay are not included.

‘2 The annual fee for the Non-executive Chair for 2022 was set at £181,890 These fees represent those earned by Alan Gidding as Nan-Executive Chair from 1 January
2022 - 18 July 2022 He became Executive Chair on 18 July 2022

2 Farrokh Bathwala was apponted on 1 Apnf 2022
4 Leigh-Ann Russell was apponted on 1 Aprit 2021,

The Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts, only letters of aspomtment, and fees for Non-executive Directors are determined by the
Executive Directors in light of market best practice and with reference to the time commitment and responsibilities associated with the role The
Non-executive Jrectors do not participate in any decision in relation to the determination of therr fees and are not eligible for performance related
Honuses or “he grant of awards under any Group incentive scheme No Jension contributions are made on therr behalf.
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Non-executive Director shareholding

Annctte Kelleher

Farrokh Bathwala !

“ 00

Leigh-Ann Russell B0o -
Mak Reckitt . 4800 4000
Pere Raby . 3300 1.600
Tony Quintan ) 1»,206 1,200

 Farrokn 3athwala was appointed to the Board or 1 Apnil 2022

The:re was no change in these beneficial interests between 31 December 2022 and 8 March 2023 The Non-executive Directors do not hoid any

share awards or share options

Non-executive Direczors do not have a shareholding gudeline, but they are encouraged to buy shares in the Cormrpany

The following parts of the Remuneration Report are not subject to audit

Annual percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees

The table nelow shows the annual percentage change in each Director's salary/fees, benefits and banus between the year ended 31 December

20271 and the year ended 31 December 2022, and the average percentage change in the same remuneration over the same penod in respect of the
employees of the Company on a full tme equivalent basis Although the regulations require us only to show the average percentage change for the

employees of the Company, we have arowded additional disclosure showing the average change for the Group's wider workforce

The average employee changa has been calculated oy reference to the mean of employee pay. Farrokh Bathwala was appointed 1o the Board

during the year ended 3* December 2027 and, accordingly, has been excluded from the table below

Average Wider Hannah Alan Annette lLeigh Ann Mark Pete Tony

employee workforce Nichols Giddins  Kelleher Russell Reckitt Raby Quinlan

Salasy/ 2027 -2022 41% 20%-20% 3.0% 30% 30% 3.0% 390% 30% 30%
fees 2023-2021 2.9% 2.9% 2.0% Z20% 20% 2 0% 2% 2 0% 2 0%
2019-2020 2 9% 29% 2 9% 2 5% 2 5% 2 5% 2.5% 25% 25%

Taxable 2027 -2022 n/a n/a 03% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
benetits 2020-2027 n/a n/a 50% n/a n/a n/a n'a n/a n/a
2016-2020 n/a n/a n/a% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Annual 2021-2022 n/a 44 5%* B%% n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a
bonus 2020-2021 n/a 340 3%* 454.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
2(19-2020 n/a 117 0%* n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/'a n/a

* The honus figures were taken from those seniar executives operating on sirmilar mcentvised arrangements to the CEO and capable of influencing
the Group’s performance

Single figure of the Chief Executive compared to the wider workforce
This 15 our fourth year of reporting tha CEO pay ratio and the table helow sets out our CEQD nay ratio figures in resgect of 2019, 2020 2021 and 2022,

As In previous years, the Company has opted to use option B of the Pay Ratio regulations Gender Pay Gap infermation has -ecently been collated
to meet our Gender Retated Pay Gap { GRPG') reporting reguirements for 2021/22, to dentify the three relevant emiployees. The rationale behung

adopting this option is that data required to meet both BEIS and GRPG regulations has to be collected for our UK-based emmployees and this aption

allows both to e completed efficiently and effectively in the time allowed to make any relevant public statements
Approach to calculation of CEQ remuneration for 2022

Year Method 25th percentile pay ratio Median pay Ratio 75th percentile pay ratio
2022 Option B 391 371 32
2021 Option B 681 6311 411
2020 Option B 267 441 33.1
2019 Option B 4371 331 381
Pay details for the mdividuals are set cut below

2022 CEO 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
Salary £562,071" £23,256 £28385 £33.098
Total remuneration £1,055169" £26,797 £28.385 £33,098

) Paul Simmans stepped down from the 3card on 18 July 2022 This amount represenis his annualised base salary
21 Represents the total of hotn the CEQ's and Executive Chair's single figure [see page 96 for more details)

A significant proportion of the CEO's rerruneraticnis performance related Therefore, the ratios vary year on year depending upon the extent to

which performance related remuneration 1s earned oy reference to the satisfaction of the applicanle conditicns. The Committee considers that the

median ratio for 202215 consistent with the pay and reward policies for employees as a whole.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT continced

Pay for performance

The giraph nalow shows the Company’s | 3R saifonarce over the ten years to 31 Decembe 2022 33 compar=itathe FISE 2080 b

‘b2 Companys perfamance heen zompa-ed ah TSE250, FTSE Smalt Cap ard the FISE All-snare ndises —dowever a nnoary has
been a constituen: of the FTSE250 for six years it was dezided that showing performance relatve 1o Just the ETSC 250 was the imost appropniate
melng 11 also eflects the Company's _TIP award TSR compalator group

CVIDLE YEQrSs

The table below detaills the CCO's single figure remuneration and actual vanable pay outcomes over the same peod

The following chart shows Hill & Smith's Total Shareholder Return during the ten years to 2022.

a0
500 /\
400 hY
300
Q -y o __‘--—.._,_-
5200 __._.—-———_..-"-‘
© - - -
> -
s w
100
[}
31A2/20102 31/12/2013 31/12/2014 0 31/12/2015 31/12/2016  31/12/20017  31/12/2018 3 1/12/2019  31/12/2020 3171272021 31/12/2022
. o Hill & Smith - am = FTSE 250
2013 2014 2015 2076 2017 2078 2019 2020 2021
Jerex Paul
Jirector Mulr Smmons U
CEO single figure 1,084 1835 1894 2,134 2,085 1,506 1,187 980 318 1,781
(£OQD)
Annual benus 6 100 100 100 g4 19 43 19 g 28
(% of max )
LTIP Vesting 50 93 98 100 120 100 3 36 n/a 100

(% of max)

7 Paul Simmans joimed the board on 1 September 2020 and took over as CEQ with effect from 12 November 2020 The CEO single figure for 2020 for P Simmons
reflects his remuneration earned from appaintment, and not JLst for that part of the year for which he wasg CED

Relative importance of spend on pay

2021 % change
Dwvidends paid in respect of the finangial year £24.7m +13 4%
Overall spend on pay (continuing cperations) " £160 8m +7 7%

1 This includes a 1% reduction in the average number of peaple employed by the Group See note & to the accounts on page 147
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Statement of shareholder voting
The following table shows the resuits of the vote on the Annual Remuneration 2eport ' the 2022 AGM and the tinding vote on the cur-ent
Remruneration Policy at the 2020 AGM

For Against Withheld

Remuneration Policy (2020)

% of votes cas! 95.43% 457% 20,570 voles were withheld in
-elation to this ~esolution (0 93%)

Remuneration Report {2022)

I of votes cas: 98 35% T 65% 3845 votes were withheld in
relation to this resolulion (=0.07 %)

Advisors

The Committee assasses from dme ‘o time whether the appointirent of its advisors remmains appropniate or should be put out to tender and

takes into account the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduc! when reviewing Delortte's ongoing appointment During the year and
following a review of four potential advisors including Delortte LLP as the incurmbent advisors, the Caommittee determined, in consideration of good
governance practises and Deloite’s tenure as adwvisors, 1o aspoint Korn Ferry as the Committegs advisers from 1 October 2022,

Karn erry provided independent advice to the Committee, having 2een appomnted by the Committee following a competitive tender process
durning the year Korn Ferry provided advice on market and bes' practice as part of sugporting the Committes with its review of the Directors’
Remuneration policy The fees paid to Korn Ferry for oroviding advice to the Committee in efation to Directors’ remuneration were £42.418. Korn
Ferry provided other human capital related services dunng the yea® to a separate part of the business, but these services were carried cul by a
‘eam sepa-ate 1o the -emuneration advisory team As aresult, the Committee 1s satished that the advice received was otyective and indesenden:
Korn ~erry 15 a member of the Remune ation Consultants Grouo and abides by the voluntary code of conduct of that body, which is designed to
ensure chjective and independent advice 15 given to remuneration commitiees

Deloitte _LP had been retained to arovide independent advice to the Remuneratton Committee as required for in excess of ten years and they
a“e a nmambe- of the Remuneration Consultants’ Groun and, as such, voluntarnly operate *hat group's Code of Caonduct in relation to executive
remunesation consuling in the UK From 1 January 2022 - 30 Septemoer 2022 Delortte provided remuneration advice, share schame advice,
pension advice and corporation tax advice 1o the Group Therr fees for providing “emuneratian advice (o the Committee ancounted tc £27,700 for
he year ended 31 December 2522

The Group Chief Executive Officer and Execurive Charr also attend Remuneration Committee meetings to provide advice and respond to specific
questions but are not in attendance when their own remunerationss discussed The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Remuneration
Committes but 1s similarly not in attendance when his own remuneration is discussed.

How the Remuneration Policy will be implemented for 2023

Executive Directors

Salary

Base salares were rewewed on 16 Decerrber 2022 and as from 1 January 2023 are:
Alan Gidding £584,544
Hannah Nichols £374523

This represents a 4% increase for Alan Gidding. This s in line with other Executive Board members and below the range of mncreases awarded to
the wider workforce,

Hannah Nichols received an increase in her base salary of 5%. See page 93 for more details.
Salary oudget increases for the majority of the G-oup's ooerating companies ranged between 5% and 10% of relevant payrolls

Pension and benefits
Alan Giddins is not eligible to receive a pension The pension contribution for Hannah Nichols will remain 6 5% of her base salary

Annual Bonus
Alan Giddins will not be eligibie to receive an annual bonus during 2023.

The maximum opportunity for Hannah Nichols, will be 125% 50% of the opportunity will be earned for achieving a stretching level of on-target
performance and any bonus earned will be paid as to 50% in cash and 50% n deferred shares
For the 2023 financial year the annual bonus metnics wili be
Underlying ooerating profit; and
= Cash conversion
Together representing 80% of the maximum opporiunity, and weighted 50% and 30% respectively, and

« 20% towards indwidual personal objectives linked to the Company's purpose and strategy and the individual Executive Director’s key
responsibilities.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT continued

LTIP
Afan Giddins will not be eligible to receve a gran unde: the LTIP during 2023

the annual I TIP award tor Hannah Nichals, C=0 will beincreased from 125% of salary, 10 130% of salary for 2323 This award will 2e su2ct 10
performance conditions based on -elative TSR and LEPS growth as set out below

UEPS compound annual
growth rate over three

years (50% of the award) TSR* (50% of the award) Vesting amount
Less than 4% Below madian 0% vesting
4% Median 20% vesting
12% Upaer quartle 100% vesung

= Jelative to Ine F7SE 250 (excluding investrrent trasts and finangial services comsanies)

Further detals relatng to the metne choices and 2023 incentives are sat out in the Chair's introductory etter

Non-executive Directors

The fees of the Non-executive Directors are reviewed reqularly to ensure they are in ine with the market and sothe Company can atract and
retain Individuals of the highest calibre. Any change to the Chair's fees will be approved by the Remuneration Committee with other Non-executive
Director fees being approved by the Board as a whale, following a recommendation from the Chief Executive In December 2022, the Boa-d
anproved a 3% increase In the fees for the Chair and Non-executive Directors

20772
Chair £:81,990
Nan-executive Director £53.840
Senor Independent Director £9.000
Audrr Committee Char £9,000
Remuneraticn Commutise Chair £9.000

. Lpon appointment of a replacemen: CEQ, the Executive Chair will rever: to 2eng the Non-exegutive Charr, with fees reducing accordingly

Annette Kelleher
Chair

8 March 2023
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

1o be approved by shareholders at the 2023 AGM

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy has been subject to a full review by the Committee in

2022 and wili be put to shareholders at the 2023 AGM for approval As ocutlined in the Chair's
Statement, the Committee feel that given the current Policy has delivered a fair relationship
between perfarmance and reward it remains fit for purpose with the only changes limited

to minor amendments to the Policy wording to take account of market developments, best
practice, and feedback from a recent shareholders’ consultation. As a result, with flexibility
inciuded in the Policy to evolve performance metrics with the Company's strategy, the intention
is to roll over the existing Policy. In the event that there was considered a need to make any
changes to the Policy within the next three-year Policy period, the Committee would undertake
appropriate dialogue with investors at that time.

140d34 JONYNYIA0D

The rahle Helow ses out how the proposed Policy specifically addresses the provisions of the LK Corporate Governance Code.

Alignment of the Remuneration Policy to the provisions of the 2018 Corporate Governance Code

Clarity Simplicity Risk

The Policy aligns delivery of our strategic
goals to the remuneration outcomres of
Execubive Directors

Remuneration rewards long term and
sustainanle giowth in shareholder value

The Policy aligns with standard FTSE
markel practice and is made up of

The long term incertive provides
a lin< between the performance of
Executive Directors and long term

- Fixed remuneration - base sala-y, ‘
sustamable growth

appropriate benefiis and pension
“xecutive Directors a e subject o
sha-eholding requirements during and
post-enaloynent

- Short-term element - annual bonus
based on performance dunng the
financial yea  agamns: financial and
non-financial measures Malus and clawoack provisions mitigate

aehavioural nsks by enabling payments .

to be reduced or reclaimed in specific

clrreumstances

~ Long term incentive — vests
over th-ee years acco-ding to
the achievement of stretching
oerformance measures

Predictability Proportionality Alignment to culture

Maxirun opportunity levels for each
compoenent of vanable remuneration are
defined within the Policy

Transparent performance measures and
targets make clear *he possible -ange

of remuneration outcomes and these
patential outcomes are illustrated in

the Policy

Performance measures are inked to

the Company’s st-ategy and aligned
with long term creauon of value for
shareholders

Stretching targets ensure that payments
are only made for strong financial and
non-financial performance

The Committee has discretion (o overnide
formmulaic outcomes to ensure that
remuneration appropriately reflects
overall pe-formance

Variable remuneration 1s based on the
achievement of financial and non-
financial measures which link to the
overall business strategy, culture and
values, As demonstrated through the
inclusion of ESG within the Annual Bonus
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY contined

Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report (not audited)

Thus part of the Renort sets out the proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which, subject to shareholder asp-oval at the 2023 AGM, shall take
ainding effect from the close of that meeting Note, *he Policy agolies only to permanent Sxecutive Directors The nobcy has neen determined oy
the Comazany’s Remuneration Commitiee.

All Policy changes are considered to ne minar / adimimistrazive and therefore a tabular surmmary of Policy changes s not provided

Base Salary

To recruit and retain Txecutive Directors Provides fixed rerruneration for the Executive Directors, which reflects the individual’s experience and the
size and scope of the Sxecutive's “esponsibilities

Operation

Normally reviewed annually and fixed for twelve months
Salaries are determined by *he Remuneration Committee faking
nto aceount a range of factors, which may include but are not

Maximum opportunity

Ordhnanly salary mcreasas will not exceed the range of salary inc-eases
awarded to other employees in the Group (n percentage of salary terms)
However, salary inzreases may be above *his level in certain ciccumstances

imited to: as required, for example to reflect
- the size and scope of the role, +INCrease IN SCope or responsIBility;
+ ndividual and Group performance, «  performange in role, or

- therange of salary iIncreases (in oercentage terms) anotied o an Zxezutive Director being moved to marke: nositicning ovar Lime
the wider workiorce,
No maximum salary opportunity has been set out in this policy report (o

« total orgamsational salasy budgets, and
- oaylevels for comparable roles In companies of @ simila: size
and complexity

Any salary increases may be implemented over such time as the
Rermuneration Committee deems approaiiate.

avoid setting expectations for Executive Di-ectors.

Performance measures
Not applicable

To recruit and retain Executve Directors Ensuses the overall package 1s competitive Participation in the SAYE promotes staff alignmentwith the

Group and a sense of ownership.

Operation

“xecutive Directors are entitled to vanous bengfits including but not
irmited to, membership of the Group's heglthcare scheme, personal
accident insurance, Il health, life assurance and car {or equivalent cash
allowance}

Other benefits may be provided based on individual circumstances
Such benefits may include but are not imited to expatriate, housing,
relocation allowances or ovesseas tax sudonort.

The SAYZ 15 a tax qualifying monthly savings scheme facilitating

the purchase of shares at a discount as permitted by *he apohcable
legslation {cur-ently up to @ maximum discount of 20%) SAYE options
may be exercised in the event of a change of control to the extent
peremitied by the rules of the scheme.

Execunive Directors may also participate in any other all employee share
plan adepted by the Company, on the same basis as other qualifying
employees.

Maximum opportunity

Whilst the Remunergtion Committee has not set an absslute maximum
on the level of benefits Executive Directors receive, the valuc of
benefits 1s set at a level which the Remuneration Commuttee considers
18 approariately positioned against companes of a similar s1ze and
complexity in the relevant market and at rates comoetitive In the area
of ife, accident and health insurance SAYE scherme contribution as
permitted i accordance with The relevant tax legislation. The level of
participation in any other all employee share plan will 9e determined

in accerdance with the rules of that plan and will be the same for
Executive Directors as for other qualfying employees.

Performance measures
Not applicable
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Torecruit and remam =xecutive Jirectors and to 2'ovide post-retirement benefits

Operation

The Group may make a payment either into a defined contnbunion
olan or as a sepa-ate cash allowance Groun contrinutions ar ¢ash
allowanzes are determuined as a percentage of base salary

Maximum opportunity

An amount as a percentage of base salary not exceeding the tyoical
contribution available in respect of the location of eminloyment of
the Director (e g., currently the typical rate avarable to the UK-based
worktorze 15 6 5% of salary).

Performance measures
Not applicable

Annual Bonus

Rewards the achievernent of annual financial targets and/o- the delivery of strategic/individual objectives

Operation
Performance measures and targets are reviewed and set annually by the
Remuneration Commit.ee.

Bonus say out s deternmined oy the Remuneration Committee after the
year end, based on audited perforrange, where asn-oonate, agains’
those targets

The Committag has the discrenion to arend the bonus pay ocut should
any ‘ormulaic output not oroduce an appropnate result for either

the Executive Directors or the Company, taking account of overall
serformance, or Yecause the formulaie sutput 13 Inaap-oDnate n the
context of circumstances that were unexpected or unforeseen at the
start of the performance period.

Where an annual bonus 1s earned, S0% will be delivered in the form of
shares in the Company, deferred for a period of two years. Deferral of any
bonus 1s subject to a de minims miz of £5,000

At its discretion, the Remuneration Commitzee may award dividend
equivalents to reflect dividends that would have heen paid over the
deferral period on shares awarded under the deferred bonus plan. These
dividend equivalents will ordina-ily e paid in shares and may assume the
reinvestment of dividends

Deferred bonus plan will vest in the event of a change of control

Matus and clawbac« provisions apply to the annual bonus as descrbed
below this table.

Maximum opportunity
The maximum bonus onportunity s up to 150% of base salary for the
CEO and ua to 125% of base salary for any other Executive Director

Performance measures

The bonus will be based on the achievernent of targets related to key
business objectives, with the nteasu-es and respective weightings
each year dependent on the Group's strategic ononties Financial
nerformance measures nay include, for example

- measures based on earnmngs per shaie,
«  budgeted profit,

- operating marging, ar

«  return on capital

At least 50% of bonus will be based on financial measures.

Subject to the Remuneration Committees discretion o amend
formulaic outputs, for financial targets, normally 0%of the maximum
is nayable for achieving the threshold performance target (0% below
threshold), 50% at the target level of performance and 100% at
maximum For strategic and indwidual performance measures, bonus
will be earned between 0% and 100% of the opportunity based on the
Remuneration Cormmittee’s assessment of the extent to which the
relevant measure has been achieved

Stock Code HILS

140d3d IONYNUIADD

107



DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY continues

Long Term incentive Plan

Incentivises Executive Directors to achieve higher returns for shareholdars over a longer time frame A clawback apphes to unvested awards
enabling the Comoany 0 Mitigate nsk The post vesting holding neniod ahgns Execuave Jireciors with the interests of shareholde-s over a

fu-ther serod

Operation

The Rermuneration Committee may gant awa-ds as conditional share
awards, nil oost share options or farfertable shares or such other form
as has the same economic effect

Awards are tycally granted annually, and vesting 1s subject to
achievemen: of oerformance measu-es, normally assessed ove af
least three yeas The Remuneration Committee has the discrelion to
adjust the vesting outcome should any formulaic output not reflect
ove-all performance, or because the formulae ourput 15 Inappropna‘es
in the cantext of circumstances that were unexpected or unforeseen at
the grant date, or If there exists any other reason why an adjustmens 1s
aopropriate

Vested shares are subject to an addrtional two-yea~ holding oerniod
before they a-e released (so tha! they can exerzise the award and
acquire they Alternatvely, the Remuna-ation Committes may grans
an award on the basis that the Executive Director can acquire shares
following vesting but that, other than as regaids sales of shares to
cover tax llabiities, the Executive Director 1s not permitted to dispose of
shares until the end of the helding penad

Unvested TIP awards will vest and 2e released early on a change of
control {or other relevant even:s), taxing inta accoun® the extent to
which the performance conditons have been satisfied and pro-rating

-0 reflect the proportion of the performance Deriod that has elapsed,
although the Remuneration Committee has discretion not to apply time
pro-rating Vested LTIP awards which are subject 1o a holding period are
releaged, to the exient vested, in the event of a change of controd

A ts discretion the Remuneration Committee may award dividend
equivalents to reflect dividends that would have been said over the
vesting period and holding penod on shares that vest. These dividend
equivalents will o-dinarily be paid in shares and may assume the
remnvestment of dividends

Malus and clawback provisions apply to the LTIP as described
on page 109

The Remuneration Committee may, at i1s discretion, structure awards
as approved LTIP awards comarising both a tax gualifying option
g-anted under tne Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOST and an
TP award Aporoved LTIP awards enable the participant and the
Company to senefit from tax qualifying option treatment in respect

of part of the award, without increasing the pre-tax value delivered to
the narticipant The aoproved LTIP awards consist of a tax gualiying
option and an | TIP award with the vesting of the LTIP award scaled
hack o take account of any gain made on axercise of the tax gualifying
option. Gther than ‘o enable the grant of up to £60,000 (from April
2023) in value of HMRC approved options as part of an approved LTIP
award, the Comoany will not grant awards to Executive Directors under
the £S0S

Malus and clawback provisions apply to the entire LTIP as described
on page 109,

Maximum opportunity
The annual _TIP maximum i reszect of any financial year (s

e

- (CFEO 175% of base sala-y. and
« Any other Executive Director 50% of base salary

Sha‘es subjest 10 a tax qualifying oplion granted as part of an agproved
LTIP award are not ta<en into account for the aursoses of this imit
because, as referred to in the box above under the heading ‘Ope-aucn’,
the unapproved LTIP ootion s scaled back to reflect the gain made on
the exercise of the tax qualifying ZS05 opfion

Performance measures

Awards vest subject to the achievemeant of performance measures
assessed over the performance penod (normally three financial years)
The nerformance measures are reviewed annually to ensure they
remain relevant and aligned to *he Gioup's strategy.

Performance measures will be based on financial metrics andso- sha-e
price growth -elated metrics, and/cr strategic metncs

Subject to the Jemuneration Committee’s discretion 1o amend
formulaic outouts, for achievernent of the threshold level of
perfarmance {the mimmum level of pe-formance for vesting 1o occurn)
up t0 20% of the maximum oppor:unity will vest for each element

For achievernent of maximum performance 100% of the maximum
nasortunity will vest, there 1s usually straight-line vesting berween these
performance ponts

Where an aption under the ESOS 18 granted as part of an Approved LTIP
award, the same serformance condition asphes 10 the ESOS opuon

as applies to the LTIP award, save as required by the applicable tax
legislation
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Shareholding requirements

To encourage sirong shareholder alignmen: both during and after emoloyment with the Comoany

Operation Maximum opportunity
tach Executive Director 1s required to hald 50% of the shares acquired Naot apphicable

through the _TIP and any deferred bonus olan award {afte” sales
w0 cover tax and any exercise nnce) until the value of therr total
shaeholding 15 equal to 205% of they annual base salary

Performance measures
Not applicable

Shares subject to award under the deferred bonus plan and vested
shares subject ©o awards under the LTIP which are subject to a holding
period count towards the sharehokding requi-ement on a ner of
assumed tax basis

Shares subject 1o LTIP awards which are capable of exercise count
towards the limit on a net of assumed rax hasis.

In addition, a past-employment shareholding requirement witl apply
only to shares acquired pursuani to LTIP and the deferred bonus plan
granted i respect of 2020 and future years but will not apply to shares
surchased o acquired pursuant to all emoloyee share plans and will
not apaly *o LTIP or deferred bonus plan awards granted in respect of
earlier years.

Fost-ematoyment each Executive Directo 1s expected to maintan such
of therr shares which are subject to the post employment shareholding
nolcy as have a vatue equal o the in-service shareholding guideline
{which requires the holding of shares during emngloyment with a value
equal 12 200% of salacy) for a senod of two years afler leaving In gither
case, “he number of ~elevant shares held a0 leaving must oe retained if
this 15 less than the in-service guideline

Share ownershio guidehnes only apply to perrmanent Executive Director
positions and N exceptional ciicumstances the Committee may
disaoply the post-employment share ownership guideline (e g. death)

Recovery provisions

The Commitiee may, at any time within two years following the deterrmination o the annual honus, or two yeass following vesting of the LTIR
detervunc that ralus and / or clawback shall apply in the event of

(1} a material misstatement in the Group's financial results for the bonus year,

(1 the remuneration comsmittes reasonably determiming tha: the participant has been guilty of gross misconduct,

(i) an efror in assessing any applicable nerformance condition;

(v) reputational damage ‘o the Group,

(v} corporate failure; or

(v1) a falure of acceptable health and safety standards.

Before the vesting of an LTIP award, the Remuneration Cemmiitee may also decide 16 reduce or cancel the award if any of the above events occur

Exptanation of chosen performance measures and how targets are set

Performance measures have been selected that reflect the Grouo's strategy. Stretching performance targets are set each year for the annual
bonus and LTIP awards In setting these stretching performance targets the Remuneration Committee wilt take into account a numuer of different
reference points such as the Group’s business plans and strategy

The Remuneration Committee considers that measures such as underlying EPS and profit before tax are closely aligned to the Group's key
nerformance metrics and, in conjunction with other annual bonus metrics, provides a balanced measurement of performance that encourages
sustainable growth.

The EPS and TSR performance conditions attaching to the LTIP algn management's objectives to those of shareholders and rewards for the
delivery of year-on-year growth and delivery of value to shareholders

The Remuneration Committee retains the discretion to adjust the performance targets and measures where it considers 1t appropriate *o do so
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY continued

Operation of share plans

The femuneration Covimittee retains discretion 1o operaze the Company's share plans i accordance with then rules, meluding the ability ‘0 adjust
awa dsn the event of a vanation of canilal or other elevant corporae evant, and se'tle awa-ds, i whole or in 2372, tn cash The Re'runeration
Commitiee would only setlle an Executive Directo”s awa'd in cash in exceptional ciicumstances (such as where there was a regulatory restriction
an the delivery of shares) or i connection with the settlement of tax habilities anising in resoect of the acquisition of shaies.

Statement of considerations elsewhere in the Company

When setuing the oohcy for Directors’ remuneratinn, the Remune-ation Committee has regard o the zay and employment conditions elsewhe:e
within the Group, although emaloyees are not for nally consulted on the Drrectors’ remuneration policy

when developing this Policy, the Rermuneration Committee considered the general workfarce -emunetation, related pclicies, and the alignmen: of
incentives and rewards with e Group's cubure and values

Differences in the group’s policy for the remuneration of employees generally
The Groud’'s remuneration ormedes underpin remuneration across the Gioup, including the remuneration structures below Sxecutive Director level.

The Group aims o rovide @ remune-aucn package that s market competitive In the employee’s Jurisdiction of emaloyment and whichr
1$ appropnate o attract, retain, motivate and reward, without paying more than necessary;,
reflects the roles, responsibifizies, expenence, skills and performance of the individual.
1s farrly and consistently apphed, and
includes an elemen: of incentive to share in the financial success of the Group *hrough annual boruses, brased upon the performance of ndividual
business units, execuiive share aptions, and a UK SAYE scheme, all of which are aligned to the strateqic cbjectives and performance of the Group.

llustrative performance scenarios for 2023 (all £000s)
£2,000K

£1,800k

£1,722k

£1,600k

£1447k

£1.400k
£1,200k
£1,000k

£800k £758K
coook £S5 £585k £585k

£411k

£400k

£200k

£0

Below target Target Maximum  Below target Target Maximum  Maximum plus
share price
Executive Chair CFO appreciation

M Fixed Pay M AnnualtBonus R LTIP M LTIP with 50% Share price growth

The lllustrative performance charts above are based on the proposed Remuneration Policy as set out on oages 10510 113. Note, the Executive Charr
who 15 not subject to the Remuneration Policy, has been included. Uoon appointrment of a new CEO an updated scenerio chart will be presented.
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In developing the scenatios, the following assumptions have been made for the CFO

Consists of total fixed pay — 1.e, hase salary, benefits and pension

+ Base salaryis the latest salary effective a1 ¥ January 2023

« Taxable senefils as per single figuie taole for the yea~ ended 31 Decemnner 2022
- Pensionis 6 5% of salary in the case of the CFO

Consists of

- Total fixed pay, as set out anove,

+Annual bonus pays oul ol 50% of maximum for target perfarmance (e, 62.5% 0° hage salary hbased on a
maximum potential for 2023 of " 25% of base salary)

« LTIP pays out at 20% of maximuir for threshold vesting (1.e, 30 0% of base salary based on a maximum for
2023 of 150% of base salary)

Consists of

= Total fixed pay. as set out above

« Full pay-out of annual bonus - 1e, 125% of sase salary
= Full vesting of LTIP awards — 1 &, 150% of base salary

Consists of
- Iotal “ixed pay, as set out above
«  Full pay-cut of annual bonus — i e, 125% of base salary.

- Full vesting of _TIP awards — 1 e., ~50% of base salary and an assumed 50% increase i the share price for the
purpases of the LTIP award valuation

Approach to recruitment remuneration
The objective of this policy 1s to allow the Remuneration Committee ta offer remuneration packages which

» facihitate the recruitment of individuals of sufficient caliore 1o develop and deliver the business strategy and shareholder value,
- offer a rernuneration package that reflects the key nrinciples of the Group's wider remuneration philesophy, and
+ seekto ensure tha' arrangements are in the best interests of the Company and not 1o pay more than is axxodriate

Individuals will e subject to a remuneration package that 1s consistent with the policy set out above However, the Remuneration Commitiee
retains the discretion to provide the iollowing elements for inclusion in a recruitment package for an Zxecutive Jirector

The Remuneration Cormmittee may make awards on hinng an external candidate o compensate the candidate for

the forfeiture of any award entered into with a previcus employer In deterrmining any such ‘buy-out’ the Remuneration
Comrittee will consider all the relevant factors regarding the forfeited arrangerments which may include the likelihood
of the awards vesting should the external candidate have remained in their orevious employment, the form in which they
were granted {e g, cash or shares) and the tme over which they would have vested Generally, buy-out awards will be
rmade on a comparanke Basis to those remuneration arrangements forferted.

Where considered appropnate, buy-out awards will be subject to forfeiture or claw back on early departure

Subject ta the overall maximum variable remnuneration Imit set out below and o the overail plan LT!P Imits set out under
the policy elerments on page 108, incentive awards may ne granted within the first twelve months of appointment above
the nermal maximum annual award opportunity set out on dage 108 The Remunaration Committee will ensure that any
such awards are inked to the achievement of appropriate and challenging performance targets (that may differ from
those set as part of ongoing policy having had regard to the circumstances of their appointment) and will be forfeited if
performance or continued employment conditions are not achieved

The Remuneration Commuitiee may also alter the performance measures, performance pericd and any deferral
arrangements or holding penod applying to the annual bonus and LTIP if the circumstances of the recruitment mernt
such an alteration; the rationale will be clearly explained in a subsequent Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The maximum level of vanable remuneration which may be awarded to the CEQ, 1s 325% of base salary (consisting
of 160% annual bonus and 175% LTIP)

The maximum level of vanasle remuneration which may be awarded to any other Executive Directar, 1s 275% of base
salary (consising of 125% annual bonus and 150% LTIP).

Stock Code HILS
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY continued

The Remuneration Committee would seek to implement any share awards referred to in this section under the Comnpany's existing share plans
However 1in connection with the recruriment of an Executive Director, the Rermuneranon Committee may implement a new atrangement n
accordanze with sacagraph 24 7 of the Listing Rules

Where a pasition s fitlled mternally any ongoing rerruneration oolgations or outstanding vanable pay elements shal! be allowed to continue

according t the onginal termms, with the exception of pension cont-iautigns which will be reduced in hne with this policy Where necessary, the
Group will pay appropriate relocation costs and the Remuneration Comrmittee will seek to oRsure that no more than necessary 15 said

Fees payable to a newly anaomted Chainman or Non executive Director will pe in ine with the fee policy 0 place a2 the ame of appointment

Service contracts and loss of office payments

The policy on Executive NMirectar service contracts and payment for less of office 1s summarnsed aelow =or the avoidance of doubs, the [eaver
provisions summansed selow 1n relauon wo the LTIP apply to LTIP awards in respect of 2023 and later years, with earher awards beiny suiect 1o
the poiicy anplying at the date of the award

cach cunent Zxecutive Director 1s entitled to 12 months' notice

The Remune-ation Committee may set a notice pericd of between six months and 12 months for any future Executive
Director

Each current Execurive Director is required to give 12 months' notice of termination

The Remune-ation Commitiee may set a notice penoad of between six months and 12 months for any future Sxeoutive
Cirector

Base salary, pension contnibutions and benefits for the duration of the notice period

The Remuneiation Committee alse has discrenan fo incordorate payments under the performance hinked elements of the
nackage unde ‘good leaver scenanos.

- If the Executive Director leaves during the annual bonus pe-formance year, a bonus payment may be made at
the Remuneration Commitee’s discretion Typically for ‘goad leavers’ bonus amoun's (as determined by the
Remuneration Committee) will be pro-rated fo- timein service dunng the bonus year and will, subject tc performance,
be pard at the usual time, although the Remuneration Commuttee retains discretion not 1o apply trme pro-rating and o
accelerate the payment of bonuses in anpropriate circurmstances Where bonus deferral would otherwise apply, the
Remuneration Committee retains discretion to pay the whole of the bonus for the year of cessation in cash

+  Under the Companys LTIP:

- Faparticipant keaves as a "'good feaver” before an award has vesied, that award will ordinanly continue until
the ordinary vesting date, when the extent of vesting will be determined by reference o the exten: to which the
aerformance conditions have been satisfied, although the Remuneration Commitiee reramns discretion to vest
the award soone- (and assess performance conditions accerdingly) The exten: (o which the award vests will
ordinanly be reduced *o reflect the proportion of the performance penod for which the Executive Director was
employed, but the Remuneration Committee has dissreton not to apply this prosartionate reduction The award
will ordinanly be released (o the participant at the end of the anginally anticipated holding penod, although the
Remuneration Committee retzains discretion to refease the award sooner but would do so only 1In exceptionat
crrcumstances {including cessation due to death or dl-heakh)

- Ifa participant feaves for any reason (other than summary dismissal, in which case the award will lapse) after
an award has vested but before it has been released (1 e 1f the participant leaves during that holding period}, the
award will ordinarily be released to themn on the ordinary release date, although the Remuneration Committee
retans discretion ta release the award sconer.

+  Where a deferred bonus plan is granted, if the participant leaves as a "good leaver” during the deferral period, the
award will ordinarily continue and be released at the ordinary release date, although the Remuneration Committee
retains discretion to release the award at the date of cessation or to shorten the deferral period. Otherwise, the award
shall lapse.

redundancy, or any other circumstance that the remuneration commitiee deems appropriate.

» Were an award to be made in accordance with Listing Rule .4 2 then the leaver provisions would be determined at
the tme of the grant.

+ For the purposes of the LTIP and any deferred bonus plan, ‘good leaver' means cessation due to death, injury, ill-health,

In aopropriate circumstances, other payments may be made in the event of a termination of an Executive Director’s
employment in respect of, for example, accrued holiday and legal and outplacement fees. SAY= options may be exercised
an termination of employment to the extent perrritted by the rutes of the scheme, which do not provide discretion for the
Remuneration Committee mn respect of the treatment on termination Awards under any other all employee share plan
wollkl be treated in accordance with the rules of that alan.

If # K Nichols service agreement 1s terminated within one year of a change of control, she shall be paid her salary and an
ainoun’ equal to the value of her benefits for a 12-month perind (less the senod of any notice given)
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Appointments for Non-executive Directors are governed by letters of engagement. Linder the terms of ther engagement, the notice penod to be
given by the Non-executive Directors to the Company s three mon:hs and the Company 1s oohged 1o give the same fength of notice Discretion 1s
‘etaned o terminate with o7 without due nctice o paying any payment in lieu 9° notice dependent on what 15 considered 10 be in the sestinleres:s
of the Company In the narticular circumstances

Where "he Remunerasion Comnmittee retaing discretion, as outlined above, 10wl be used to provide flexibility in cortain siruations, taking nto
account the a-trieular circuirstance of the Directors departure and recent performance o the corpany

Discretion and existing contractual arrangements

The Remuneraton Comimittes reserves the right to make any remuneration sayments and paymonts for ioss of office {and 10 exercise any

discretion in respect of any such payrment) noctwithstanding that they are not i ine with the policy, setr out above, where the terns of the payment

were agreed

(1) hefore the policy came into effect, orovided that the terms of the payment were cansistent with any applicatle shareholder-approved directars’
remuneration policy N force at the time they were agreed or were otherwise aporoved by shareholders, or

() at atime when the relevant individual was net a Director of the Company (or other persan to whom the policy set out ahove anplies) and, in
the opinion of the Remuneration Commuttee, the payment wasz not in consideration for the indwidual becoming a Director of the Company {o:
other such person).

For these purposes "nayments” includes the Remuneration Committec satistying awards of variabie "emuneration and, in refation to an award over
shares, the terms of the payment are "agreed” at the time the award 1s granted

Statement of consideration of shareholder views

The Company 1s committed to ongoing dialogue and seexs shareholder views ahead of ma«<ing significant changes to its -erruneration pohcres.
The Remuneration Comittee consulted with major shareholders in connection with the determination of this policy and took into account
feedbac< received when finalising *s anoroach

Stock Code HILS
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DIRECTORS REPORT

{Other statutory information)

Principal activities and
strategic report

The Company acts as a holding zompany 10
all the Grouo's subsidiaries

During 2022 he principal activities of the
Groug compnsed the manufacture and
sunnly of

Galvanzing Services

Fnoineeared Sclutans

Roads & Secunty products and services

Pages 1 to 69 contain ‘urther details of

these areas of the business and the anncipal
subsidtaries operating within them are se” out
on pages 196 1 198

The Executive Chai's letzer and the Directors’
Strategic Report Include
Information on $172 CA 2006;
an analysss of the development and
performance of the Company's business
during “he financial vear,
Key pe-formance indicators used to
measure the Group's performance,
The position of the Company’s business
a' the end of the {inancial year,
A desciipiion of the onincipal nigks and
uncertamsies faced by the Group, and
The trends and factors likely zo affect
the future development, seiformance
and posticn of the Company's business

Future development

Anindication of likely future developments
it the Group s given in the Strategic Repont
an pages 1 10 69

Statement on corporate governance
The Directors’ Report for the year ended

31! December 2027 comarises sezhions

of the Annual Renort referred to under
Strateg Report, ard 'Goverrance Repart’,
which are incorporated into the Directors’
Report by reference

Results (from continuing
operations)

The Group profit before taxation for the year
amounted to F69 3m (2021 £42 8m). Group
revenue at £732 1m, was 17% up on 2021,
(£625.2m). Operaung profrs at £78.5m, was
up 61% on 2027 (£48 9mj}.

Share capital summary
Exchange trade

The Company’s ordinary shares ae listed on the Man Maiket

of the London Stock =xchange

Class Single class of o-dinary shares of 250 each
Issued share catal 73,/97,883

Todanazsty JU22

Total new ordmnary shares 224,700

1Issued during the year

Issued share capital 80,017,583

1 December 2027

Rights and obligations

All 1ssued shares rank equally Rights and obligations attaching

to the Company's shares are set ou’ in the Company's Articles

of Association

Further details can be found in note 25 on
pages 172 and 173 of the Group Financial
Staterrents

Details of the results for the year are shown
on the Consohdated Income Statement

on page " 26 and the business segment
information 1s given on sages 139 to 147

Dividends

The Drrectoss recomirend the dayment of

a final dividend of 22p per ordinary share
(2027; 19 On} which, together with the

intenm dividend of 13 Op per ardinary share
(2021.12.00 per ordinary share) 2aid on &
canuary 2023, makes a total distribution

for the year of 350 per ordinary share

{2021: 3% Jp per oidinary shae). Subject to
shareholders anproving this recommendation
at the AGM, the final drvidend will be paid on
7 July 2023 to shareholders on the register

at the close of business an 2 June 2023

Tne latest date for recent of Dividend
Re-mvestment Plan elections 1516 June 2023

Share capital

There are no restrictions on the transfer of
shares in the Company provided they are fully
paid up and the Cocmpany does not hold any
lien over therm and as the shares rank equally
none of them carry any special nghts with
regards to control of the Company. Such equal
rights apply to shares acquired through any
of the Company’s employee share schemes
and those shares so acquired carry no lesser
or greater rights than shares acquired in the
Company in any other way Accordingly there
are no restrictions on voung rights attaching
to any shares, whether relating to the level of
shareholding cr otherwise.

The Company is not aware of any
arrangements between shareholders of the
Company that may result in restrictions ¢n the
transfer of ordinary shares or voting nghts

114 Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Resolutions are sought at each AGMto
permit the Company to allot, subject to
shareholder aporoval, new shares under
specific crcumstances They are a function
of addressing funding or share scheme
reeds and rot a tool for emoloving arte-
takeover measures

in relation o the purchase by the Company
of its own shares the -ules relating thereto
are set outin the Company’s Articles of
Association which state that the Direciors'
powers 10 authonse such purchase by the
Company are subject to the provisions of
the relevant statutes and alsc the UK Listing
Authonty requirements, as the Company's
shares are hsted on the London Stoex
Fxchange No shares wee held intreasury

Articles of Association

The -ules -elating to amendment of the
Company's Articles of Association are that

any change must be authorsed by a special
resolution of the Company in a general meeting

Accordingly the following resolutions are to
he put to the members of the Company at the
Company's AGM each year

The authority for making market
purchases of shares greater than 5% of
the Company’s then issued share capital
is imited by the resolution of the 2022
AGM and will be kmited by the resolution
1o e put to the 2023 AGM. The prices

to be paid for such purchases must

be a mimimum price of 25 pence per
ordinary share {the nominal value) and a
maximum price of 5% above the average
of the middle market quotations for
ordinary shares derived from the London
S10c< Exchange Daily Official List for the
five business days Immediately preceding
the day on which any such purchase
takes nlace



The Companies (Shareholders’ Rights)
=egulations 2009 provide that 2 company
can reduce the nonce 2enod for calling
meetngys 1o the shorter penod of 14 clear
days on two condizions fi-stly that the
company offe-s a facilry for shareholders
o vole by electronic means and secondly
that there 1g an annual resolution of
sha-enolde-s aspioving such -eduction

In the required minimum nauce 2enod
Aparoval lo e valling of general meetings
other than AGM's on 14 clear days’ notice
was approved at the AGM on 24 May
2022 to assist the Company in conducting
1ts business and subject to any necessary
ma*ters being pu* to shareholders
prompily. This approval remams effective
untii the earlier of the Company's next
following AGM or 22 August 2023,

Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 January 2023, the Comnpany had
been notified in accordance with Rule 5 of
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the
Financial Conduct Authority of the ‘ollowing
voting rights of the Comrpany

Number of % of issued
ordinary share

Shareholder shares capital
Aberdeen
Standard
investments 7299529 9 12%
Blackock 502732 6 28%
Royal London
Asset
Managemen: 4,272,710 526%
AXA Framlington 3,695,955 4 62%
Vanguard Group 3.608 240 451%
Invescon 3,534,625 241%
Mondrian
Investment
Pa-tners 3,384,450 423%
Charles Stanley 2,915,602 3 64%

Directors

The names of the Direztors of the Company
who served throughout the year, including
brief biographies, are set out on pages
70to71.

Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors in the share
capital of Hill & Smith PLC as at 31 December
2022 are set out on page 1671

Appointment and replacement

of Directors

The appointment and reptacement of
Directors of the Company 15 governed by its
Articles of Association, the UK Corporate
Governance Cede, the Companies Acts and
related legislation. Directers can oe appointed
by ordinary resolution at a general meeting

or by the Board. If a Director 15 aopointed by

Stock Code HILS

the Board, such Director will hold office until
the next AGM and shall then be cligible for
election at that meeting

Conflicts

Under the Companies Act 2006 and the
provisions of the Comnany’s Articles of
Association, the Board s required 2o consider
potental conflicts of interes: The Comoany
has estadlished formal procedures for the
disclosure and review of any conthicts, or
potential conflicts, of interest which the
Directors may have and for the authorisation
of such confhic: matters by the Board To this
end the Board consders and, if approonate,
authorises any conflicts, or potential conflicts,
of interest as they anse and reviews any such
authorisation annually New Directors are
required to declare any conflicts, or pctential
conflicts, of nterest to the Board at the first
Board mesting after his o~ her asoointment
The Boa-d beleves that the procedures
established to deal with confhcts of interes:s
are operating eifectively

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Comoany mamntains an appropr tate level
of Directors” and Officers’ insurance whereby
Directors are Indemnificd agains: iahilities
to third parties to the extent permitted by the
Companies Act 2006

Financial instruments

The financial nsk management objectives and
aclicies are detailed in note 24 on pages '67
0172

Research and development
Dunng :he year the Group spent a total
of £2 Bm (2027 £1 9rn) on research and
development

Political and charitable donations
Chartable donations amounting to £62,000
{2027 £32,000) were made in the year
princepatly to local charities serving the
communities in which the Group operates
There were no political contributions

Employment policies
Details of the Group's employment policies
are available on the Company's website.

Change of control/significant
agreements

There are no agreements between the Group
and its Directors or employees providing for
compensation for loss of office or employment
that occurs because of change of control, other
than revised notice penods and termination
payments for H K Nichols

The Group has a revolving credit facilty and
unsecured notes, which include change of
control provisions Under these provisions, a
change in ownership/control of the Company
could result in withdrawal of these facilities.

All of the Company's share schermes contain
orovisions relating to a change in control.
Dutstanding 2ouons and awards normally
vest and secome exercisable on a change
of control subject to the sausfaction of any
nerformance conditions at that tirre

The Diectors consider that there are no
contractual o other arrangements, such as
thase with rajor supphers, which a-e likely
12 matenally nfluence, directly or indirectly,
the performanre of the business and s
values ~urthermore, there are no contracts
of sigrificance subsisting dunng the financial
year detween any Group undertaking and a
zontrolling shareholder or in which a Director
15 or was matenially interested

Disclosure of information to auditor
The Directors who held office at the date of
aporoval of this Directars’ Report confirm
that, 50 far as they are each aware there 13
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor 15 unaware, each Director
has taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director 1o make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and
has established that the Company's auditors
aware of that information.

Events since 31 December 2022

On 17 February 2023, the Grous acquired
Enduro Composites, Inc for cash
consideration of £28 7m Located in Houston,
Texas, Enduro s a designer, manufacturer
and suppler of engineered composite
solutions focused an industnal and
infrastructure market segmen s

On 6 March 2023, the Group acquired Kerns
Galvanizing for cash consideration of £9 4m
Located in Johnstown, Pennsylvania, Korns
offers hot-dip galvanizing services for steel
fabrizators and iron foundry aroducts

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meetung of the Company
will be held at 11.00 3 m.on Thursday 25 May
2023 at Cranmore Park Conference, Event &
Exhibitien Centre, Cranmore Avenue, Shirley,
West Midlands, B90 4LF, United Kingdom
Notice is sen* to shareholders separately
with this Report, together with an explanation
of the special business to be considered

at the meeting and is aiso available an the
Company’s website at www hsgroup com

Other important dates can be found 1n the
Financial Calendar on page 194,

By arder of the Board

Alex Henderson
Company Secretary
8 March 20723
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report, Strategic Report, the
Directors’ Report and the Financial
Statements
The Directo s a“e respans e for prepanng
the Annual Report, Strateqic Report, the
Directors’ Report and the Groun and Parent
Company =inancial Stazernents in accordance
with apohcable law and ~egulations Cornpany
law requires the Directors to prepare G-oup
and Parent Company Financial Statements
for each financal vear. Under that law they
are required to prepare the Group Financial
Statements in accordance with UK adopted
international Accounting Standards and
apphicable law and have elected (0 prepare
Parent Cormpany financial staterments in
acco-dance with UK accounting standards,
nciuding FRS 107 Reduced Disclosure
Framework Under company law the Direciors
must nat approve the Financial Statemen:s
unless they are satisfied that they give & rue
and fair view of the state of affar s of the
Group and Parent Comrmpany and of ther- profit
o foss for that period In preparing each of
the Group and Parent Company Financial
Staiemrents the Directors are required o
sefect suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently,

make Judgements and estimates that are
reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;

for the Gioua Financial Statemments, state
whether they have been prepared n
accordance wrth UK adopted international
accounting standards,

for the Parent Company Financial
Staterments, state whether applicasle

UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, suzject to any mateal
departures disclosed and explamed in the
Parent Company Financial Statements,

assess the Group and Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related
o geing cancern, and

use the going concern dasis of
accounting unless they either intend

to hguidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, of have
no reahstic alternative but to do so

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounung records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Parent
Zompany's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any trme the financial
posiion of the Parent Comaany and enatle
them to ensure that its Financial Statements
comaly with the Companies Act 2006 They
arerespansible for such internal control as
they deterrmine is necessary 10 engoie the
preparatinn nf Sinancial Statements that are
free rom rmatenai imisstatement, whether due
‘o ‘raud or error, and have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasanably

open o them o safeguard the assets of the
Groud and to prevent and detect fraud and
ather irregularities Under apphcable law and
regulations, the Directors are also responsible
for prepanng a Strategic Report, Directors’
Reoart, Directors” Rermuneration Report and
Corporate Governance Statement that comply
with that law and those regulations

The Directors are resoonsible for the
maintenance and integriy af the corparate
and financial information inciuded an the
Company's website Legislation in the LK
governing the areparation and dissermination
of Fimancial Statements may differ from
legisiation in other jurisdictions.
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Responsibility statement of the
Directors in respect of the Annual
Financial Report

We confirm that to the best oF our knowledge

*he Financial Statements prepared in
acco dance with the aopphcable set of
accounning standards, give a true and

fair view of the assets, iabihries, finangial
positicn and profii or loss of the Comaany
and the unde-ta<ings included in the
consolidalion laken as a whole; and

the Strategic Report includes a fair review
of the development and performance
of the susiness and the position of the
1ssuer and the undertakings included

in the consoldation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
anncpal nsks and uncertainties that
they face We consider the Annual
Report and Accoun's, *aken as a whole,
15 farr, nalanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's
position and performanece, Dusiness
model and strategy

By arder of the Board

Alex Henderson
Group Company Secretary

8 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF HIl I & SMITH PLC

Opinion

In our opinion:;

+ HIlE& Smith PLC's groun financial statements and parent conpany financial statements
{the "inancial s1atements™) give a true and farr view of the state of the group’s and of the
parent comrpany's affairs as at 37 Decemoer 2022 and of the g-oup’s profit for the yea-

than ended,

= the gious financial stateman:s have been proaerly arepared in accordance with UK

adopted international accounting szandaids,

- the parent company financial staiements have heen properly prepared i accordance with
Lnred Kingdom Generally Accented Accounting Practice, and

- thefinancial statements have peen prepared in accordance with the requirements of the

Companies Act Z006

We have audited the financial statements of Hilt & Smith PLC (the ‘parent company’} and 1Its
subsidiaries {the ‘groun’) for the year ended 3 Decembe 2022 which comprise.

Group

Parent company

Consolidated Income Slatement

Company Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Compiehensive Income

Company Statermen: of Changes
In Equity

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Related notes 110 16 to the financial
statements including a summary of
significant accounting oolicies

Consolidated staterment of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash =lows

Related notes 1 to 29 10 the fimancial statements,

inchuding a summary of sigmificant accounting policies

The financial -eporting framework tha: has
aeen apphed inthe preparation of the group
financial starements s applicadle taw and UK
adopted nternational accounting standards
The finangial reporting framewo-k that has
been applied in the preparation ot the parent
company financral staterments is aoolicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including RS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure i rarmnework”

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance

with International Standards on Auditing
(UK} JSAs (UK} and applicanle law Our
responsibiities under those standards

are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our “enort We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s
sufficient and approprrate to orovide a basis
for cur opmion

Independence

We are mdenendent of the groun and parent
comaany in accordance with the ethizal
requirements tha* are relevant to our audit of
the financial swatements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethical Standard as appled to
listed public interest entities, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical ~esponsibilities n
accordance with these requirements,

The non-audit services prohibited by the
FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided
to the group or the parent company and we
remain independent of the group and the
narent company in conducting the audit.

Conclusions relating to

going concern

in auditing the financial statements, we
have concluded that the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’
assessment of the group and parent
company’s ability o continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting included:

We understood the process undertaken
by management to perform the going
concern assessment, including the
evaluation of the ongoing mpact of the
cost of tiving ¢rnsis and other current
globat macro-economic factors on

the Group and the Grouo’s access to
avaiiable sources of Ilquidity,
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We obtained management’s going
concern assessment, ncluding the cash
flow forecasts and covenant calculations
foi the going concern penoad o 30 June
2024 We venfied these forecas's were
consistent with the Hoard approved
forecasts ensunng the anerating

profis, working capital adjust ments

and esultant cashflows in the going
concem assessment matched those in
the furecasts The Group has modelled

a pase case, which is consigient with

the assumztions used in the Group's
impalrment assessments. Additionaily,
twO anmary reverse stress tes's have
been modelled, which determine a) the
additional revenue downside which could
be absobed before the Group runs out
of hquidity and b) the revenue downside
which would be required for the Group to
preach its financial covenants under 1ts
core borrowing facilines;

we obtained the signed agreements,
ncluding for the new “evolving credit
facility signed during the year, for the
Gioup's credit facities and read these to
confirme the terms of these, ncluding the
level o facilities and Hasis of covenan's
we e consistent with those considered in
management's assessment,

We assessed the reasonableness of

the key assumptions underpinring

the Group's forecasts in the context

of othes supoorting evidence gained
fromour audit procedures on goodwill
imparrment reviews including trends in
Group performance and other externail
marke: studies and data, such as analyst
and industry forecasts In particular, we
assessed the achievability of the revenue
arojections in managerrent's base case
and downside scenaiio to the Group’s
performance and external industry
forecasts,

We assessed the historical accuracy of
management’s forecasting for the past
sIx years, by comparing the Group's
actual resulis to Board approved budgets
and -e-forecasts to further challenge

*he prospective financial information
included in the going concern
assessment,

We sensitised management’s
255esSMents USiNg our own
indezendently developed assumptions
far & severe but plausible downside
impact and confirmed these sensitivities
did not give nse to any breach of
covenants or the Group running out of
higuidity:



~ We scrutimised the results of
management's reve se siress test
soenano and assessed whether the
changes to key assumations which
resulted in the Group erther exhausting
all o 1ts hiquithty or 9 eaching covenants
on the Group's aor-owing facilities
were plausible This was achieved by
considenng the drop in revenues required
for the Group to erther run out of lguidity
o breach covenants and comparing this
reduction to the fall in the Groun's actual
results achieved through the course
of the pandemic We also considered
metigating actions, assessing whether
they were within management’s control
and whether they were supported by
higtorical actual mitigation achieved,

+ We tested the clencal accuracy of the
models used o nepare the Group's
going concern assessment through re-
computation of the models, and

+ We ensured the approonateness of the
Group s disclosures concerning the gomg
cangern hasis of oreparation by veniying
‘hese met “egulatory and legislative
requirements

Based on the work we have performred,

we bave nol idenlifed any reaterial
uncertainties relating 1o events or candiions
that, individually ! collectively, may cast
significant doust on the group and parent
company’'s ability o continue as a going
concern for a peniod to 30 June 2024

Inrelation o the group and parent company's
reporting on how they have applied the

UK Coroorate Governance Code, we have
nothing matenal to add or d-aw attention

10 m relation to the directors’ statement In
the financial statements about whether the
directors considered 1t appropriate 1o adopt
the going concern basis of accounting

Du-resaonsipiities and the responsibiities of
the direciors with respect 10 going concern
are descined in the relevant sections of

this report However, secause not all future
events or condiions can be predicted,

“his staterrent is not a guarantee as to

*he group’s ability *o continue as a going
concern

Overview of our audit approach

- We performed an audit of the complete financial information of 5 trading components and 1 non-trading
componant and audit procedures on specific balances for a further 13 comagnents

»  The components where we aerformed ‘ull or specific audr: o-ocedures accounted for 88% of adjusted
operatng profit, 94% of Revenue and 77% of Total assets

+ Risk of inaparopnate inventory valuation

= Revenue recognition - the sk of managemen: override through maopropniate manual journals o revenue or
inappropiate revenue cut-oif
+ Carrying value of goodwill in relation to ATG Access, Parking ~acilities and Hill & Saith Inc

- Overall Groun matenality of £4 1m which ~epresents 5% of adjusted operaing profit

An overview of the scope of the
parent company and group audits
TAILORING THE SCOPE

Qur assessment of audi nsk, our evaluation
of mateniality and our allocation of
serfarmance matenality detemine our auds:
scope for each company within the Group.
Taken together, this enables us to form

an opinion on the censolidated finanaial
statements. We take into account size,

nsk profile, the organisation of the groun
and effectiveness of group-wide controls,
changes in the business environmeant, other
factors such as recent Internai audit results
when assessing the ievel of work to be
performed a* each company

In assessing the risk of material
misstatement to the Group financial
statements, and to ensure we had adequate
quantitative coverage of significant accounts
in the financial statements, we selected 19
components covering entities within the

UK, US, France, Sweden and India which
rearesent the principal business units within
the Group

Stock Code HILS

Of the 19 companents selected, we
pertormed an audit of the complete financial
information of 6 components {"full scope
components”) which were selected nased
an thelrr size or risk cha-acteristics For
the remaining 13 components ("specific
scope components”) we perfaormed audit
procedures on specific accounts within
that corrponent that we considerad had
the potential for the greatest impact on
the significant accounts in the financial
statements either because of the size of
these accounts o- ther nisk profile

The reporting components where we
performed audii procedures accounted for
98% (2021 99%) of the Group’s adjusted
cperating profit 99% (2027 99%) of the
Group's Revenue and 99% (2021, 99%) of the
Group's Total assets,

For the current year, the & full scope
components contnibuted 57% (2027: 79%)

of the Group's adjusted operating profit 48%
(2021, 53%) of the Group's Revenue and 42%
(20271 43%) of the Group's Total assets.

The 13 speaific scope components
contriouted 31% (2021 16%) of the Group's
adjusted operating profit 46% (2021 40%)
of the Group's Revenue and 29% (202"
28%) of the Group's Total assets, The audit
scope of these components may not have
included teshing of all significant accounts
of the component but will have contrnibuted
o the coverage of significant accoun's
tested for the Group For a further 6 trading
componen:s, we performed specified
procedures which as a mimmum, included
procedures over revenue and cash at all &
COMPOonents

Of the remaiming 3 trading components

that together represent 2% of the Group's
adjusted operating profit none are individually
greater than 1% of the Group's adjusted
operating profit. For these components,

we performed other procedures, including
analytical review, testing of consciidation
journats and intercompany elimnations and
foreign currency translation recalculations
to respond 1o any potential risks of material
misstaterment to the Group financial
statements

SINIWILYLS TIIONVYNIS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT continued

TO THE MEMBERS OF HILL & SMITH PLC

The charts below lNustrate the coverage obtamned from the work pesformed by our audit teams

Components Adjusted operating profit Revenue Total assets
2022 201 2022 202" 2022 2021 2022 2021
Full scane Y & . 57% 79% 53% . A2% 43%,
Specific scope 13 14 C 3T% 16% 40% - 29% 8%
Specified » ocedures over trading ) :
CoMmponents e 10% 7%
Specified procedures over non trading
components and consokdaton
adjustments (3%) (4%} 20%
Overall coverage 59% 99% G9%

I he audit scope of the specific scope
components included in the table above rmay
not have included testing of all sigmificant
accounts of the component but will have
contributed to the coverage of significant
aceounts tested for the Groun

Involvement with

component teams

Inestabhshing our overall approach 1o the
Grouo audit, we determined the type of
woik that needed 10 be undertaken a: each
of the componenis by us, as the primary
audit engagenrent team, or by component
auditors from other BY global network firms
operating under our instruction OF the 6
full scope componen:s, audi: procedures
were oerformed on 2 of these direc:ly by
the arimary audit team. Of the 13 saecific
scoDe components, audrt procedures were
performed on 10 of these directly by the
primary audit team

For the remaining 4 full scope and 2
specific scooe components, where the work
was performed by component auditors,

we determined the appropriate level of
Involvemen* to enable us to deterniine tha*
sufficient audit evidence had been cbtained
as a basis for our opinion on the Group as

a whole.

The Group audit team continued 10 follow a
orogramme of planned visits that has been
designed to ensure that the Senior Statutory
Audror visits the full scope companent
locations, During the current vear's audrt
cycle visits were undertaken by the primary
audit team to the component {eams in
France and the US These wisits involved
discussing the audit approach with the
comaonent team and any issues arising from
*herr work, meeting with local management,
attending closing meetings and reviewing
key audit working papers. For France, the
visit occurred earlier in the year given the
component was being dispesed of, to align
with the planned audit procedures.

The primary team interacted regularly with
the component teams where appropriate
during various stages of the audit,

reviewed relevant working papers and were

responsible for the scope and direction of
the audit process. Thig, together with the

additicnal procedures performed at Group
level, gave us appropriate evidence for our
o2ion on the Groun financi@l staterents

Climate change

Stakehaolders are increasingly interested in
how climate change will mpact the Group
The Group has determined tha* <he most
significan: future impacts from climate
change on therr opeations will be from
rransitiomng 1o a lower-carbon economy
(*ransition nsk) and the physizal ris« resulting
rom chmate change, whether event driven
or longer-term shifts in climate natterns
(physical nis<) These are explained on

pages b0 o 53 1n the required Task Force for
Climate relazed “inancial Disclosures and

on pages 60 1o 68 10 the principal fisks and
uncertamties Al of these disclosures form
part of the “Other information,” rathe- than the
audized financial statements. Our procedures
on these unaudited disclosures therefore
consisted solely of considering whether they
are materially nconsistent with the financial
staterrents or our knowledge obtained in

the course of the audit or otherwise apoear
to be matenally misstated, in hne with our
responsitilizies on "Other information”

In planning and performing our audit we
review management's assessment of the
potertial impacts of chmate change on the
Group’s business and any consequential
material impact on its financial staterments

The group has explained in their Graup
Accounting Policies note how they have
reflected the impact of chmate change

in therr financtal statements and in theyr
Sustainability Plan and how this aligns with
their commitment to the aspirations of the
Paris Agreement to achiave a caroon net
zerc target by 2040 for Scopes ™ and 2
Governmental and societal responses o
climate change risks are still developing
with likely larger impact felt in the future as
these crystallise, and, as a result, the Group
cuTently continues to monitor the future
CcoonamIc Mmpact on ther husmess model,
ooerational olans, suppliers and customers
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to achieve this Therefore, as set out above,
the potential future iIMpacts are currently
determined to be of low nskin these financial
statements for the current year

Our audr effort in conaidering *he impact of
chmate change on the financial statements
was focused on evaluating management's
assessment of the impact of climate

nsk, physical and transition, their chmate
commitments, the effects of material
chmate nisks disclosed on pages 50 to 53
and whethe: these have deen aparopriately
reflected in judgements and estimates
following the requi-emen:s of UK adopted
international accounting standards As part
of this evaluation, we performed our own
ris< assessment, supported by our climate
change inte'nal speciahists, 1o detemine
the risks of material misstatement 1n the
financial statemen's from climate change
which needed to be considered in our audit

We also challenged the Directoss’
considerations and completeness of
climate change risks in their assessment of
going concern and viadiity and associated
disclosures

Based on our work we have not 1dentified the
impact of chmate change on the financial
statements to be a key audit matter or o
impact a key audit matter

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the fimancial
statements of the current penod and include
the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement {(whether or not due
to fraud) that we identified These matters
included those which had the greatest effect
on. the overall audit strategy; the allocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team These
matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and 1n our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinton on these matters



Revenue recognition — the
risk of management override
through inappropriate manual
journats to revenue or
inappropriate revenue cut-off
(£732.1m, 2021: £625.2m)

Cut-off

There is a risk of inappropriate
revenue recagnition if deliveries
or revenue from the provision
of services are recorded in the
wrong period. This includes any
estimation of revenue recorded
over time and completion of
projects.

Management override

As revenue 1s a key performance
ndicator for both external
communication and a key input Into
managernent Incentives, we also
dentified a nsk of management
overnde through inapprophnate
manual topside revenue journal
entries bemng processed

The 'evel of nsk associated to this key
audit matter 1s uneharged from the
prior year

mmpmmwams

Stock Code HILS

Ptoneduresm respond tc;» th:s ﬁsk were performed hy bathtbe ﬂtﬁmry audit ‘team and

MSEMOFMMYWW FS00pe. .
ﬁmsmtmnshadbeeﬁammmmei
r.‘.um)bmd

k".

Our audit procedures did not
idantify evidence of matenal
misstatemants reiatad to
revenue recogiition and

we found no evidence of
management bias

Qur procedures performed did
not identify ary unsupported
manual adjustments ta
revenue or a1y unexplained
anomaties from our revenue
analytics

SINIWALYLS TVIONVNIS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT continued

TO THE MEMBERS OF HILL & SMITH PLC

Carrying value of goodwill in We performed detailed testing with suppert from our valuation apectahsts 10 critically 01 te Group s assets, the TGU

relation to ATG Access (£4.7m, assess and cotroborate the key lnputs of the forecast cash flowsincluding RIS T2 s Tast sensItve

2021: £4.7m), Parking Facilities -  independently conatructing our own expectation of the discourt rates for & nazly possibie

{Enit, 2021; £4.4m), and Hill & rmarket pamapantfmmﬁrsi grinciples using mput fromourmem 3pecnanst orarges \'«‘ kﬁy RALMPLINS 18

Smith Inc. (£9.2m, 2021: £8.6m) valuations team; LALE o e Menagemer
analysing the fustoncai ammacy BF butigets versus sctal msu!ts ta.determine. o Y

3 anprasnat2y e the ir‘ta’wqm e
sanstantaniedasien i derand for the refiabilify of cash flow forecasting based on past experignie; asset Note 1311 aceordance

ATG AZGes3 3e0Jrly 50 L1073 thers . Wmm&hﬂﬁy hehudget Bﬂd m@ﬁ&aﬂmﬁbﬂ' &Dﬂﬂd@ﬂﬂg wilh na regairoments

was inhal arcertainty n tne abinty S 145 35
of the anuny 10 1ecIvar resLng in
bistonz imoarments Maragement
have assessad no further imoaairmet
IS NECEsSaty 11 e CJIrent year

Sunseguent tu Tovid-13 and 4

2arking Facilines marufactures

and zells a range af penmeter

aceess secLnty prod Fich
have been imaacted oy 1ncreasad
aommerzal cormpettion and raduced
gQross marging As a resuit of therr
IMzanment testrg N tie cureer:;

engedy
yealr Maragemen: regorded 3 £4 4 - x;ﬁ:ggzﬂ‘gmbmmwmm
imsarmment of the goodwall related o
the Par<irg Faciiues cash generating For Hill & Smith nc. we benchmarked
SR with externally produced market studles, aa&

- thesg growth mtes to be appl:ed‘ sy,
" We further challenged the achievatslity

mmsmmnsmeﬁwmmw :

‘ FmpmgFacﬂﬁes we ohall

Hul & Smiry iz manufa
sellz 3 rarge of sraftiz manag
sS0UloNs as wel' as tne sale

. and rental of crast aresention
products The Hil & Smuth Ing 20U
perfarmance was not ine with
rmanagamen.’s forecasts nor markat
exoectations during 2322 Actions
Fave heen taken o imarove futura
trading performance nut theimnact
01 short tarm cash Fows means trere
15 reduced neadicom and increased
sensitaaty applicable 10 s 26U

The estimazed recaveradle ammount
for 2GUs 15 sun,extve due ro the
nherent uncertainty invored n
forecasting future growtty and
profirabity of the CGUs and the rate
at which the cash flows generated
by the CGUs shouid be discoanted
A relatively small change in ey
assumptions could gve nsetoa
rmatenal change in the estmared
recovarable armount of goodwill

The affact of these matters 1S that,

as part of our nsk assessment,

we determined that the value in

use of goodwill has a high degree

of estimauan uncertainty, with

a notential range of reasonable
ouicomes greater than gur matenahty
far tne Financial Statements as a
whola

T1e Financial Statements (Note 13)
disclose the sensitivity estimated by
the Group

whilst the audit effort in refation to
=il & Srnith Ing has increased year
on year, we consider the overail level
of audit s« associated to this key
audit matter 1s unchanged from tne
prior year
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Risk of inappropriate
inventory valuation
(£113.8m, 2021: £108.1m)
aion of irvene iy ais
DENAQIL DN 23
%pprcpna"* valuation processes Tho
egtanishrrent of stardard costng
sages and the assessmenrt of how
Tuch excess ard absolete mventory
exists reguires judgement to be
anplied n finalising the inventory
valuation and ieval of provisioning
required If these judgerments are not
anproprnate then there s a nsk that
inventary 15 incorrectly valued

Tha ievel of nsk associated to this key
audit matter s Lncharged frorm the
anar year

Weumaimﬁe\mm ‘monmatwenmyr&heid mmwammm
headequany of excess and abisoléte plovisions held -

9SEsBify
agmnsﬁrmmy mssm:ﬁgdmmnanng forecast | pmam:t usag;e T eustomier

Pmoeﬁunes o3 msmnd 10 this rask ware perforrmed by both the )
component wams.

‘ We performed the foflowing audit procedures at § fuil & specific scape; and T
P specified procedures component where inventory is in scope. tﬂvenmly at these
COMPUNEnts represents 30% of the total inventory baiance *

We perfomd wafkmmughs of inventory valuatam me%hods a1 each of the s "uu. 8

SINIWILYLS TYIONYNIA

Tre basis for the vear-end
nventory va Jetion ard
Ine assumotions asedin

as 21ng tha adeguacy of e
exzess and obsaletarwartiy
DIOVIBINNS ATT055 192 3roud 8
corsidered appisnate

et

O aurlit sromeduras
cartimed vangnces between
sandard ard actaal cosis ard
e overheads absored in the
mventoiy va dahian had neer
anotopnately calieulated and
accounted for

Inthe prior year, our audior’s renort included
a key audit matter in -elation to the carrying
value of goodwill for the France Galva CGU
Inthe current year, the =rance Galva division
was disposed of with no yea:-end balances
remaining related to goodwill o intanginle
assets

Given the current sensitivities surrounding
the headroom as disclosed in Note 13, this
yea:, more audht effor: has been focussed

an the il & Smith Inc. CGU Therefore, thes
CGU has specifically neen included in the key
audit mater ~elating to the carrying value of
goodwitl and intangible assets where maore
audit a'tenticn was focussed

Our application of materiality

We anply the concept of materiality

in planring and performing the audit,

in evaiuaung the effect of identified
misstatements on the audit and i forming
our audit opinion.

Stock Code HILS

MATERIALITY

The magnitude of an omission o

misstaternent that, imdividually or i the

3ggregate, could reascnably be expected

o influence the economiz decisicns of the
users of 'he financial statements Mateniality

arovides a basis for determining the natu-e

and extent of cur audit procedures

We determined iratenalty for the Group to
be £4 1 milhon {2027 £3 7 mullion), whichs
5% {2027, 5%) of adjusted ooerating profit
We helieve that adjusted operating n-ofit
provides us with the most relevan:

Starting basis

Adjustments

Materiality

performance measure to the stakehoiders

of the Group as 1t exciudes matenal
non-recurmng items and there‘ore have
determined matenality hased on this number

We determmined matenality for the Parent
Company {0 2e £4 9 mithon (2021 £4.9
mullion), whigh 13 1.5% (2027 1 5%) of equity

We mmally calculated matenality to be £3 8m
based on 5% of forecast adjusted operating
profit The final results we: e higher than
management’s initial forecast. Therefore, we
reassessed inal matenaliy to be £4.7m based
on 5% of actual adjusted onerating profit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT continued

TO THE MEMBERS OF HiLL & SMITH PLC

PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY
The gpphcation o7 ratenahty at fhe mdeadual
account o nalance level 1115 57 at an
AMOUn: W0 redune to an appiontaialy [ow
level the arcoahility that the agagregate of
uncorrected and undetected rmissialemonts
exceeds naterality

Onthe hasis oF JuF 15< 4558335 Nents,
"agethar weh our assessmen of the 5 aun's
overall contr ol envionment, ou- Judgement
was thar performance nalendahly was 757%
G210 7h%) of our planning matenality,
namely £3 Jm (2021 £2 8m) We have set
nerformance marenalty at this percentage
due to our exdectation of misstatements
heing fow

Audr work at comaonent locations for the
surpase of obtaining audit coverage over
significant financial statemen! accounts 1s
undertaken based on a oercentage of cotal
performance materiality The pe-formance
Tateriality set for each cormacnent 1s
sased on the relative scale and nsk o the
component 1o the Group as a whole and

at that compenent I the curent year, the
-ange of perfoimance materality allozated
tocomoonents was £3 370 £1 8m (2327
Lo2mwofl 8m

REPORTING THRESHOLD
Anamount setow which identfied
misstatements are considered as being
cleaily tivial

We agreed with the Audit Comrmittes that
we wodld report 1o themn all uncorrected
audit differences in excess of £0 2m {2027
£0197), which 15 set at 5% of alanning
rrazenahty, as well as differences below
that threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualtative g-ounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected missiaternents
agains® both the quantitatve measures of
natenality discussed ahove and in light of
oher relevant qualtative considerations in
“Orming ou” OpINion

Other information

The other information comprises the
intormation included in the annual report
set out on pages 110 115, other than the
financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon The directors are responsible for
the other information contained within the
annual report

Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other mformation and, except
0 the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
this report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility 1s te - 2ad the other
information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information s Matenally
neonsistent with tho financial stateients
o our knowledge oblaned in the course

a7 the audi or otherwise apoears o be
materally misstated 17 weidentify such
mateal Inconsistencias o apnarent
matenial misstatements we ae ~2qured

to determine whothe this grves -1se to

A matenal nisstarement in the financial
statements themselves ) based o lhe
work we have perforred, we conclude that
there 1s a material misstatement of the
other information, we are required to redort
that fact

We have nothing to repo-t in this regard

Opinions on other matters
prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006

Inour aoimon, the part o7 the directors
recruneralion epo L to Je audied has neen
properly prepaced inaccerdance with the
Caonpares Act 2006

In our apmion, basad on the work undeitaken

in the cowrse of the aud

- rheinformanan given in the sirategic
resors and the directors’ reaort for the
financial year for which the financial
sTatements are n-enared 15 consistent
with the tinancal staterrents, and

+ thestrategic report and the directs s
renart have been drepared in acco-dance
with applicable legal -equirements

Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

In the hght of the knowiedge and
urderstanding of the groun and the daren?
company and 125 environment ob*ained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified
matenal misstatenents in the st-ateqic
report ar the directors’ repor:

We have nothing 1o repot in resoect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2205 requires us 1o report To
you If, 1N our opnNIon.

+ adequate accounting recards have not
been kept by the parent company, or
returns adequate for our audr: have not
been received from branches not wisited
Dy us; or

+  the parent company financial
statements and the part of the Jireclors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

- certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified By law are not
rmade, o

+ we have not eceved all the information
and expfanations we require for our aud:
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Corporate Governance Statement
We have reveewsed the direcrors statement in
relation o gong conzemn, longeterm viability
and *hat oat o' the Soaoate Governance
Statement elating to the groun and
camzanys comphance with the provisions of
the UK Corzorate Governance Code specified
for ou evicw Oy The Listing Rules

Based on he work underiaken as part of
our audll we have concluded that each of
the following clements of the Corporate
Governance Starement s materally
consistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained dusing the audic

+  olectors’ statement with regaids to the
appropnateness of adopting the going
concen »asis of accounung and any
matetial uncertainties identified set out
onoage s’

« Directots exnlanation as o its
assessment of *he companys orospects,
the 2eq10d thus assessment covers and
why the period 1s aporoniate set out on
Dage 82

+ Dnecior's statevent on whethe: 1t has
a rcasonable exoectation that the groun
will e able ©o continue i aanahon and
meetsits hasihties set out an zage 82

+ Direcio's swatement on ‘A, balanced
and undestandanle set out ¢n page 82,

« Boaidsconfrmation that it has cairied
out a robust assessment of the emerging
and ornciaal risks set out on page 81,

+ Thesection of the annual renor: that
describes the review of effectiveness of
risk management and internal controt
gystems set out on page 81, and;

«  The section descrnibing the work of the
audit commitiee set out on page 86

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’
-esponsibilites statement set out on page
116, the directors are ‘esponsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
dwectors determine 1s necessary (o enable
the preparation of financial statements that
are free from matenal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing

the group and parent company's ahility to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors erther intend
to hguidate the group or the parent comoany
of 10 cease operations, or have no ealistic
alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the



audit of the financial statements
Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable
asalrance about whether the finanzial
statemenis as a whole are free “om
maseral misstatement, whether due to
fraud or e-ror, and tossue an aud:=or's

rezn s thatincludes our ommion Reasonahte
asau ance 1s a gh lavel of assurance Hut s
not a guataniee that an audir conducted In

accordance with 18As (LK) will always detect

o matenal misstalement when it exisrs
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error
and a e considered material If, individually
or Inthe aggregate, they could reasonaniy
2e exneciad to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the hasis of
these financial statements

Explanation as to what extent the audit
was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Ireguia ities, ncluding fraud, are instances

of non-cenpliance with laws and regulations

We design procedures inling with gu-
resoonsiolizies, outhned above, to detect
irregulariues, including fraud The ngk of
not derecting a marterial Missiatemen:
dug o fraud s tighe than the fis< o’ not
detecung one resulting fom eron as
fraud may irvalve delinerate concealmrent
by, for exairple, forgey or ntenticnal

misrepresentations, or shrough colfusion The

extent to which our procedures a-e capable
of detecting irregulanities, including faud 1s
detalled below

However, the primary resoonsibility for the
preventon and detection of fraud ~ests with
both those charged with governance of the
company and managemen:

- We obramned an undersianding of
the legal and regulaory frameworks
“hat are apolicaole o the Group and
determined that the most sigificant
frameworks which are direc:ly relevant
to specific assertions in the Financial
S:atements are those that relate o
the reporting framework (UK adopied
international accounting standards,
the Companies Act 2006 and the UK

Corporate Governance Code). In addition,

we concluded that there are certan
significant laws and regulations which

may have an effect on the determination

of the amounts and disclosures in the
Financial Statements being the Listing
Rules of the UK Listing Authonty, the
LS Foreign Corrupt Practices Act,
Swedish, French and incian Companies
ctlegislation, and those laws and

requlations relating to health & safety
and emiloyee ma'ters

» We understood how Hill & Smith PLC
is complying with those framewaorks
by maxing enguiftes of management,

Imernal Audr, those responsible for legal

and comphance procedures and the

Stock Code HILS

Company Secretary We corroourated
ou” enguimes through our review of
Board minutes, papers arovidad o tha
Auchr Commirree and oorresaondence
receved fram regulatory nodies We
also cbserved the oversight of those
cha'ged with governance, the culture
of hanes” and ethical nehavicur and
whearher a strong emohasiz s alaced on
fraud prevention and deterrence, which
may “educe oonoriunities for fraud to
“ake place

We assessed the susceptibilizy of the
Group’s Financral Statements te matenal
miastaterrant, including how frand might
ocour, by meeting with management
from varnous parts of the business to
understand whe-e it considered there
was susceptibility *o fraud We also
cansidered perfarmance targets and
their influence on efforts made by
manageTent to0 manage eanings of
influence the perceptions of analysts

We considered the prograrrimes and
controlg that the Group has estanlished
1o address nsksidentified, o7 that
otherwise preven:, deter and delect fraud;
and how senior management Monto’s
those prograrmes and contols Whe e
the 15k was considered to he higher,

we performed audr: procedures to
address eachidentified fraud risk These
procedures included testing manual
journals and were designed o provide
reazonatle assurance that the Financial
Statements were free “-om traud or error.

Based on this understanding we
designed our audit procedures to dentify
non-comphance with such faws and
regulations Qur procedures involved
Journal entry testing, with a focus on
manual consolidaton journals and
jaurnals inckcating large or unusual
rransacions based on our understanding
of the business, enguiries of internal

and external legal counsel, Group
management, Internal Audit, full and
specific scope component management,
and focused testing, as referred ‘0 1n the
key audit matters section above.

Component teams reported any non
compliance with laws and regulations
through their audit deliverables based on
the procedures detalled in the previous
paragraph. Further, the Group team
communicated any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations
o component tearns through regular
interactions with local EY teams. There
were no significant instances ¢f non-
cemplance with laws and regulations

A further description of our responsioilities
for the audit of the financial statements

is located on the Swnanaial *es0rting
Councii's website at www 2 07g uk/
auditorsresosnsibilities This descriphion
ferms oart of our auditor's ~epor:

Other matters we are
required to address
+ Followng the recommendation from

the audit cormmittee we were appointed

by the company on 19 October 2027 to
audit the inancial s:atements for the
year ending 3" Deceber 2022 and
su9sequent financial periods

The penod of tatal uninterrupted

engagementincluding previous renewals and
reappointments 1s 3 years, caverng the vears

ending 31 December 2020 to
31 December 2022

[he audic cpmion s consistent with the

addinonal repart to the audit commiliee

Use of our report
This reooi s 1made solely to the comoany’s
Temoers, asa sody, I accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
536 Our audit work has neen undertaken
so that we might state to the company's
membes thage raters we are required
"o state o ther o an audror's resort and
for no othe” purpose To the fullest extent
sermitied by law, we (o not accep: or
assume rasponsiaility to anyona other than
-he company and the company's memoers
a3 a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opimons we have formed

Helen McLeod-Jones
(Senior statutory auditor)

for and on hehall of Ernst & Young LLE
Statutory Auditor

Birmingharn

8 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2022

2021
Non- Non
Underlying underlying* Lngdarlying unde-lying* Total

Noves Frin Fir £rm
Continuing Operations
Revenue 3 07h 7Y H252
oo Fsales {389 2) - 1389 2)
Gross profit 23670 - 23610
Uistnibution costs 132.5] - (37.5)
Administiative expenses (1269) 128 4) [1553)
Other goerating meconte o7 - 37
Operating profit 3.4 773 (28 4) 439
Financtal income 0.6 - 06
minancial expense (67) : {67}
Profit before taxation 72 28 4) 47 8
Taxation el (153) o {14 4)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 557 (27 3) 284
Discontinued Operations
Piofit f-om discontinued
Joerations 12 54 sy o83
Profit for the year

. attributable to the owners of

the parent 62" (279) 3472
Basic earnings per share 1" 43 0o
Basic earnings per share -
continuing m 358D
Diluted earmings 2e- share 1 42 50
Diluted ea nings oe” shae -
contnung it B 3545

= The Groap's defrunon of non underlying rems s nckaded 1n the Group Accaunting Pohcies o9 page 137 and further details o~ non-underlying ems are included in
1ote 5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2022

SINAWILYLS TYIONYNIL

Profit for the year

Itams that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or foss

“x:hange differences on t-anslanion of averseas operatlions

Zxchange differences on foreign cur-ency borowings designated as net nvestimert hedyes
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Actianar ffossh'gam on defined bene’it pension schemes

Taxatnon on rems that will not be reclassified o o7 ohit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent

Stock Code HILS 127



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2022

2021
Notes m

Non-current assets

Intangse assets 1 A4
Property alant and eguipment 1933
Rignt-of use assels 382
Coraoration wax ocowaale 16
Delerred tax ussols 7 -1 - 14
4119

Current assets
Asgets held for sale N 3.6
Inventones ? 1081
trade and other recevables ) 1302
Current tax assets 07
Cash and cash equivalents 20 188
n14
Total assets 6733

Current liabilities

Liabities held for sale
Trade and orher hanihfies 2
Currant rax habilities
Prowi1sions 23
Leasc iialties 6

Loans and bor-owings 27

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Other hatbilities 22 (1.9
Provisions 23 (2 4)
Dofer ed tax habibities 17 {12.8)
Retrement aencfit ooligations 27 (12 3)
| ease liabilities 16 (30.1)
Loans and har-owings 22 (121 m
(180 1}
Total tiabilities (333.7)
Net assets 3396
Equity
Share capital 25 200
Share premium 40.9
Other "eserves 4.9
Transiation -eserve 155
Retained earnings 258.3

Total equity

Aparoved by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2023 and signed on its behalf by

A C Giddins H K Nichols
Director Director

Company NuTber 671474
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY z
=
Year ended 31 December 2022 Z
»
—
wy
A
>
o
Share Share Ozher Translation Retamned Total z
cabnal nresum 1eserves” reserve ea nings equty Q
Noey fin £ £ o £ Em 7
AT Lanuary 2071 39 a4 4 449 1772 2401 3205
Comprehensive income
“the yeal - - 347 347
Othe” 2o rarehensive ncome ior the year - - awn 35 18
Transactions with owners recognised
directly in equity
Dividends 17 - - {21.2) (212)
Credil to equity of share-based payments 25 - - - - 25 25
Own shares held oy employee benefit
trust - - - - (15 {13)
Sausfaciion of long term incentive and
de‘erred oonus awards - - - - (0 3) L3H
Tax taken directly 1o the Consolidated
Staterment of Changes in Squity 3 - - - - 12 10
Shares 1gsued 25 a7 25 - - - 26

2!

1 Other teserves represert the premium o0 shares issaed in exchange for skares of subsidianes acquired and £0 2m (2021 £02m) canital rademption reserve

At 31 Decemier 202" g rotal of 711,084 sha-es wee held in an employee benefit trust for the purpose of settling awards g-anted to employees
under equity-settled share based saymen: plans 1he cost of these shares, amounting 1o £71 8m, was included within -etaned earnings at that
date Duning 2022, 35,646 shares have beenissued in settlerment of awards Lo emplayees, leaving 75,438 shares held at 31 Decemper 2022, at a
cost of £1 3m inziuded within retained eanings
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2022
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2021
1m £
Profit before tax fiom 2onunumg 2p2 atons 428
Frahs belore tax fromydiscontnued ooe alons 281
Ada back net financing costs 61
Ouperatmg pre’it - Total Gioud 570
Adjussted for non-cash rems
Sharae-nased payments 78
Losy ort disposal ol subsidig es 04
_ossfigain) on disncsal of non-curen: assets (G
Depreciation of owned assers 209
Amorisation of intangiole assets 7S
2ight-of-use asse: depreciation 103
Gain on lease termination 0™
Release of accrued conungent congideration 09N
Impaiment of non-cu-rent asses 1630
358
Operating cash flow pefore rovement in wao«ang camtal 128
INCrease M INVentares 136)
Inc-easen ecaevailes {79)
(ecreaselncrease in payables 14/
Decrease n pravisions and emsloyee henefits 259
Net movement In wor<ing capitat 97
. Cash generated by onerations 1031
Purchase of asaets for rental to customers 16 7)
Income taxes paid ('52)
Imeerest paid (4.7
Inteiest pad on lease habilities {0.8)
Net cash from operating activities 657
Interest received 06
Proceeds on disposal of non current assets 3.7
Purchase of »aserty, plant and equipmeant 78
Purchase of intangible assets ]
Acguisitions of subsidiaries (71 8)
Disposals of supsidiaries 16
Net cash used in investing activities (257
Issue of new shares 26
Purchase of shares for employee benefit trus®, (8
Diadends oaid 212
Costs associated with refinancing dunng the year -
Repaymen: of lease habilities (103)
New loans and borrowings 553
Repaymen: of loans and borrowings 61.0)
Net cash used in financing activities (36.4)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents net of bank
overdraft 4.2
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft at the
beginning of the year 139
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations -
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft at the end
of the year 18




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Group Accounting Policies
HIIE& Sonithy PLC (formerly "Hill & Snith Holdings PLC™ s a comaany incorporated in the UK The consolidated financial sratements of HHl &
Smirn 20 and ira sussdianes The "Croun™y are presented o7 thevea ended 37 Degamne 2022

SINIWILIVLS TYIONYNIS

The Group minaneia! Statements have heen prepared and aoproved oy the Directors o accordance with internaional acoouning standa-ds
mncontarnly with the seguirernoncs ¢f the Cormpanies Agt 2008 and UK-adoated Internatonal -wnancial Repoiting Standards The Covpany
has electod "o prepare s Pacent Comaany Finanoial Staterents in acco dance with manmal Repasting Standard “ 31 Reduced iscloswe

Franewntk 1017, these are oresened on 0ages 181 0 147

The Accountng Pahcies set out bolaw have, unless otherwise siated, seen aopled conseiently m all Denods presented mn these Grouo —inancial
Statemments Judgements made oy the Directors in the anshoation of these Azzounting Policies that have a signricant effect on the Group
Fmancial Staterents and estimates with a signficant nsk o matenal adpstnent i che next yeac are discussed in note 2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financiai staiements comprise the financial statemenits of the Company, Hill & Sreth PLC, and its subsidiaries as at 31
Decamoer 2022 Supsidianies are entities centrolled by the Group The Groud controls an entity whenmis exposed 10, or hag nights 1o, vanable
-erurns from its involvement with *he entity and has the ability ‘o a®ect those returns th-ough its power over the enhty The acguisiiion date 1s the
date on which controlis transferred 1o the acquirer The financial statements of subsidianes are included in the G-oup Financial Statements from
the date tha: control commences until the date that control ceases

I preparning the consolidated “inancial statements, management has considered the imoact of climate change, ta<ing into account the -elevan:
dizclosures in the Strateqc Reaort, including those made 1n accordance with the recommendations of the Taskiorce on Shneate-ielated Tinancial
Disclosues Thes ncluded an assessment of assets with indefinite and long ives and how they could be impacted by mmeasures taken o address
glooal warming As outhned m the Ooeational and Financial Review on 2age 23, ahysical chmarte change oresents a “elatively low risk io the
Group's ‘uture susiness onerations As such, noissues were identi‘ied har would rmoact the carrying values of such assets or have any other
imaact on the “mancial siatenents

MEASUREMENT CONVENTION

The Grouo Fiancial Statenents aie predag-ed on the histoncal cost nasis excent where the measu:ement of dalances a* fair value s required as
explamnead below Ths Group Tinancial S:atements are presented in Sterling and all values ave stated in nilhon (F ) -ounded o one decimal olas
exzopt where otherwise indizated

GOING CONCERN AND LIQUIDITY RISK @
In deternining the aparopnate basis of oreparation of 1ts financial statements, the 2irectors are required 1o assess whether the Group can
continue in oleraionat existence for the foreseeable future When rmaking this assessiien:, the Groud considers whether it will be anle to
mamrain adequate hquidizy headroom above he level of its horrowing facilines and o opeiate within the finanoial zovenants on those facilities

and a ‘urther £11 5 of on-demand facilities. The Groun refinanced 1ts revolving credis facility in November 2022, entering into a new faciiity with
a value of £250m that s commited until November 2026, with an opion to extend the matu-zy by a further year at the one-year annversary

The Group alsg halds $70m of Senior Unsecured Notes, and other local corrmitted borrowing faciliies of £0 6m The amount drawn down under
these commitled faciliies at 31 Decemoer 2027 was £10/ 4™, which together with cash and cash eguwvalents of £24 8m gave total headroom
0f £237 9m (£226 4m comimitted, £7° 51 on demand) The Group has not made any changes 10 1ts principal borowing facilities between 31
December 2022 and the da‘e of aoproval of these financial statements The only significan: changas 0 iquidity head-oom duning that nenod
were the acquistions of Enduro Composites, which the Groun completed on 17 Fehruary 2323 for an inttial consideration of £28.7m, and Korns
Galvanizing, which the Group acquired on & Ma-ch 2023 for consideration of £2.4m Sunstantial headroorm agamst borrowing facihities remansin
olage post these acquisitions

The anincipal nar-owing facilities a~e subyect 10 covenants that are measured biannually in June and December, being net debt *o EBITDA of &
maxirour of 3 Ox and interest cover o° @ rimmurm o* 4 0x, based on measures as defined in *he faciliies agreements which are adjus:ed from
the equivalent I7RS amounts. The ratio o™ net deat to EBITDA at 31 December 2022 was 0 7 umes and interest cover was 21.6 times Note 24 1o
the Financial Statements sets out more Information on the Groun's objectives, policies and processes for managing 1ts capital, 1ts inancial nsk
management objectives, detalls of 113 financial nstruments and hedging activities, and 1ts exposures to credit and fiquidity fisk

The Group has carefully modelled its cash flow autlook for the period to 30 June 2024, taking account of the current glopal economic conditions.
In thig ‘base case scenario, the forecasts indicate sigmficant iquidity headroom witl be maintained above the Group's borrowing facilities and
financial covenants wilt be met throughout the penod, including the covenant tests at 30 June 2073, 31 Decermber 2023 and 30 June 2024

The Group has carnied out stress tests agains: the base case to determine the performance levels that would result in a breach of covenants or a
reduction of headroom aganst its borrovang faciities 1o nil For a breach of covenants to occur duning the relevant period, the Group would need
to experience a sustained revenue reduction of 26% compared with current expectations throughout the penod from May 2023 through June
2024 Areduction in headroom against bor-owing fazilities to ml would occur if the Group experienced a sustained revenue reduction of 88%
compared with current expectations hetween May 2023 and June 2024 The Directors do not consider any of these scenarios to be slausible
given the generally positive outlook across the infrastructure markets in which the Group operates. The Directors also noted the Group's ability
to continue its operations throughout the COVID-19 pandernic, noting that revenues fell by only 22% in the second quarter of 2020, the worst-
affected peniod Furthermore, the G-oup has several mitigating actions under its contral including mimimising caoizal expenditu-e ‘o crinzal
requirements, reducing levels of discretionary spend, “atianalsing its overhead base and curtailing future dividend payrments which, although not
forecast to be required, could Bie implemented in order to ne able to meet the covenant tests and to conunue to operate within barrawing facility
lirmits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1. Group Accounting Policies continued

Afe making these assessments, the Ureciors have reasonasle expectation that the Corpany and 125 sunsidianes have adequate resources
to sonunugn oparational 2xgtenca ©o7 the foresesabls {utire and for a sennd of atleast 12 months following ne anpraval of th financiat
statemers Accordingly, they continue 1o ados: the going cencern basis in prepaiing the Annual Repors and minanaia! Satements

NEW IFRS STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ADOPTED DURING 2022

The fllowing ameadents and nieosetanons apsly for the firg ame in 2022, and sherefore wee adopted oy the Groun

3

- AmendTEnts 0 1T 35 3 - Hefaienga 1o Concaniual Tamework,

< AMmendments ta 1AS selure intended use

= Amendmentsto 1A5 3/ Onerous Contacts - costs of fulfiling a contract

The amendiments noted above bave not bad a2 matenabirpact on the financigl statements

NEW IFRS STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS TG BE ADOPTED IN THE FUTURE

The fallawing standards and inte: pretations, which are not yet effective and have not oesen eatly adopted by the Groun, will, wheie ~elevant, ne
adopted in future accounting oenods

To be adonted for year-ending 31 December 2023

+ Amendments 1o 1AS 1 - Classification of labilities as current or non cureens

- Amendments 1o IAS B — Definnon of Accounting Tstnates

= Amendmentss o lAS T Disclosure of Acocounting Polizies

+ Amendrenis 1 IAS T2 - Deferred Tax related to Asseis and Labilines ansing f-om a Single Transaczion

There are cunently no “urthes standaids and mre-protaons o be adaoted fo- year-ending 31 December 2024

The anove changes are not expected o have a mateaal imoac: on the Soup

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinanons are accounted for using the acauwsition methad. The 2ozt of an acquisiion s measured as the agg egate of the

consideration transfer-ed, whichis measured at acquisiion date far value Acguisition-related costs @ e expensed as mcured and included n
. nonunderlying costs (see accounting poticy ‘non-underlyng irems’} Fair value adjustments are always considered te be provisional at the firs:

year end date a™er the acquisition o allow the maximun time to elapse fo- management to make a reliable estimate

The Group determines that it has acqurred a business when the acquired set of activities and asscts include aninput and a substantive process
*hat *ogether sigmiicantly contriaute 'o the adility to seate oulputs The acquired process s considered substantive 11 1ts orincal 1o the ability
to contmue Droducng cutputs, and the inauts acquired nclude an organised workforce with the necessary skils, knowladge, or experience to
perfo T that orocess or it significantly contnibutes 1o *he aniity to continue producing eutpuss and s considered unique O sCarce OF CANNOL He
replaced without significan’. cost, effort, or delay in the ability “o continue producing autputs

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GOODWILL

Goodwill on acqusition of subsidiaries is intally measured at cost and compnises the excess o the fair value of the purchase consideration
paid (o7 suasichaiies over the G-aup's share of the air value of the idantifiable asscets and habilities acquired After inial recognition, goodwitl is
measured at cost less imparmean: [osses {se2 accounting sohcy Impairment of asse's’)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER

Dther intangible assets that are acquired by the Grouo as sart of a business combination, such as brands, patents and customer I15ts, are stated
at cost less accurulated amortisation and Impawrment losses (see accounting policy Impar ment of assers} Cost reflacts management's
Judgement of the fair value of the dvidual iIntangiole asset calculated by reference to the net oresent value of future benefits accrung to the
Group from the uthisation of the asset, discounted at an aporepnate discount rate

Certain US brands are considered 1o have an indefinite ife and therefore are sudjec’ to annualimpairment testing (see accounting 2olicy
Impailment of assets’) In determiming that these brands have indefinite lives, consideration was given to the extent of their trading history, which
in all cases exceeds 50 years, their prominence in the markets in which they operate and the nature of the products sold under those brands in
the contex: of potential for future development. For other orands, patents and custorre lists, amortisation 1s provided equally over the estimated
useful economic ife of the assets concerned, currently us to 20 years, Amortisation of such items s recorded as a nen-underlying item withm
admimstiative expenses {note 5)

Where cormputer software is nat an integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the software 1s treated as an intangible asset Acquired
computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred 1o acquire and Sring 1INt use the specific software. An internally
genera’ed Intangsle asset ansing from the Group's development of computer systems (including websites) is recognised if, and only if, *he cos's
ae directly associaied with the production of identifiable and unique software products, controlled by the Group and iths probabie that future
economic benefis will flow to the Group. Amortisation 1s provided equally over the estimated useful economic hife of the assets concerned,
clrrently Lp to seven years.
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1. Group Accounting Policies continued
Trade heences are amortised over the specific e granted to each individuat icence

Anntanginle asset 13 derecogmised upon disonsal (e at the date she recipent ootan
exoecied Ton s use 0 disposal Any gain o 1085 ansing unon derecognition o
ceeds and te zarying aronn? o the asse) s ncluded in the Consoirtated e

wonziol) arwhen no futue economic sencfits are
sel (caloulared as the difference getween he net disnosal

e Satesent

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Hesed ch costs a2 axzensad asincu-ed Develonment expandiures on an mdnadual ooopee:
DU can demony ate

ya oenngnised 45 anin‘anginle 233et when the

= Thetechmical ‘easmility of comoleting the mtangmle asset so that the asset will e avatasle fo1 use or sale,
= tsmtennen to ceralete and 1ts ability and intenaon to use o sell the asse?

+ How the asse® will generate future economic benelils,

+  Theavallaolity oF resources to compolete the asset; and

- The ability to measure reliably the exnenditure duning developirent

The expenditure caprtalised includes the cost of matenals, direct lanour and an appropaate amount of directly attributable overheads “ollowing
intial recogrition of the developmen: expenditure as an asses, the asset 1s carned at cost less any accumulated amaortisation and accumulated
Imparrment losses (see accounung pohcy Imparment of assets’) Amo-usation of the asset beging when developrment 18 cominlete and the asset
15 avallanle for use {tis amortused over the period of exdected futu-e hene’in Amorzisation s ecorded m administanve exacnses DUIng the
neriod of developrrent, the asset 15 Tested for moal-ment annually

Uither development expendizure 1s recognised in the Consolidated Incomre Starement as an expense as incurred

PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Prooerty, plant and cqus>ment are recorded 10 the Group's Conaolidated Statenrent of Finanmal Position a* cost (eas accunulared depreciation
and any recognisedhimaairment loss Cost includes, where aopropnate, directly attiouiable costs meurrad in binging each asset to s presert
condizion and location

Asse'sin the course of const-uction are stared at cost, net of any accumulated imzarrent losses

Ceortain of the Group's Roads businesses routinely genecate revente f-om the rental of assets to customers Sucn assets are accounted ‘or as
alant and equipment 1€ an asset that s held fo- -ental 1s sold, the asser s transferred from pronerty, plant and equisent 1o invenrones ai the
carrying amount when the asse” ceases 1o he rented The 2roceeds f-om the sale of such assets are "ecagrised as revenue in the Consolidated
Income Siatemen:

Deoreciatuon s orowided to wiite off the cost or deemed cost less the estimated residual value of property, plant and eguinment {excluding
assets In the course of construction) by equal mstalments over therr estimated useful economic ives as follows

Buldings and leasehold rmprovements 5o 50 years
Plant, machinery and vehicles un 1o 20 years

No depreciation s provided on freehold land

The residual values, useful ives and methoads of dearecianion of property. piant and equipment are reviewed at each hnancial yeas end and
adjusted praspectively, if anpropnate

An rem of property, plant and equipmrent and any significant part mmally -ecognised is derecogrised upon dissosal (e at the date the recipient
obtains contral) o when no future economic benefits are expected from s use or disposal Any gain or loss ansing on derecogninion o the asset
{calculated as the difference between the nel disnosal 2roceeds and the carying a:rount of the asset) s included in the Censobdated Income
Staternent when the asset 1s derecognised

Repar and mantenance costs are recognised in the Consclidated Income Statement as incurred

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

For goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite Iife, the recoverable amount 1s assessed at each year end date, or when indicasors of
mpairment exist, and an imparment loss 1s recognised, where aporopriate, for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amaunt exceeds Its
recoverable amount Impairment reviews are underta<en ai the level of each significant cash generating unit, which are no larger than operating
segments as detined N IFRS 8 - Segmental renorting

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other non-financial assets, other than inventories (see accounting oolicy Inventories’} and deferred

tax balances {see accounting policy Deferred taxation), are reviewed at each year end date to determine whether there s an indication of
impairment. If such anindication exists, the refevant asset's recoverable amount 1s estimated. An irmaairmen® loss 1S recognised whenever the
carrying armount of the asset or its cash generaung unit exceeds 1ts recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 1s the greater of its value in use and its farr value less costs to sell In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows ave discounted 1o their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects curent mar <e:
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks speaific 1o the asset
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1. Group Accounting Policies contnued
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Groua classifies non-current assets and disvosal goouns as held for sala o thei- carying amount will e -ecovered ymaipally through sale
rather than through conunueg use Dnormtal classificaicn as held for sale non-cur-ent assets and disposal guups are nreasu=d at the lowe
af e grevicu g anrouns and far value less costs to soll with any adjust - renss taken to the Consclidared Incone Staterent The sare
anahes o gams and losses on subsequat “emeasureent Casts 10 sell ave the noremental costs drectly attinutasia to the disposal of an
assel (i alg oud, exatuding finance costa and INcore X exoense

The crtena o1 held Tor sala classification are ragasded as met only when tha sale s highly 2 obabio, and the gsset o0 disonsal grous s avalable
for errmediaie sale in 1ts prezent condition Aztons requited 1 2o Tolete the sate shouldindicate that it s unikely that significant changes 1o the
sate wifl be Made or tha' the dezision Lo sell will 22 withdrawn The Gious must e cormised (o the plan 'o sell the asse? and the sale expected
W be conrple ed wi hne e yea. fow the date o7 the claasdication

Property, plant and egupnent, imtangible assets and 1ght-of-use assets are not depreciated o arortsed once classified as held for sale

Assats and haoihities classiied as held foi sale are oregented seoarately as curent tems i the Gioup's Consolidaed Statemen: of Sinanciat
Position

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and hasilities ae “ecognised in the Group's Consalidated Stazerment of Financial Position when the Group becomes narty to the
contractual provisions af the nstrument,

1"ade recewvables and trade payables are nitally measured a° {21 value Subsequent toniial 1ezogniiing, they are caimed at amortsead cost
usmg he effective nterest method, and in the case o trade recowanles, less any rmoarrent logses Impanrrent iosses are measured usng an
exoucted credit loss meodel The Group uses the sirplified aparoach 1o measure expected credit losses for trade receivables and there‘ore does
not frack changes in credit risk, out instead recognises a loss atlowance nased on Ifetime expected credst loszes at each reporing date Tuithe:
detalls a~e a-ovided In note 24e)

Devative financial instruments of the Group are used to hodge va exposwe o mterest rate and foreign cu-ency sks ansing from sperational,
finanaing and Investment activities

Inaccodance with its treasury policy, the Grous does not hold or 1ssue dervative financial st urents for trading purposes —owever,
derwvatives thar do not qualfy for hedge accounting are accounted for as frachng Inst-uments, as ‘ollows

= Derwative financial instruments are s:ated at farr value The unhedged gamn o loss on remreasurerrent to ‘ar value 1s recognised rrmediately
n the Consclidated Income Statoment

= The far value of foreign exchange cont-azisis the eshimated amount that the 5 oup would receive or say o rerminate such contracts at the
year end date, fa<ing nto aceount the forward exchange rates srevailing at that da‘e

Where derivauve ‘inancial inst-urrents are used to hedge cash How nsk, such as interes: rate swaps, the effective part of any gain o7 loss on
the farr value of cash ‘low hedges 1s recognised in the Conselidated Staterment of Comorehensive Income and in the hedge reserve, while any
ineffective part1s ~ecognised immediazely m the Consohdated Income Statement. Amounts “ecorded in the hedge -eserve are suasequently
reclassified o the Consolidaied Income Siatement when the miterest expense s actually recogmsed.

1o quahfy for hedge accounting the hedging relathonshuy rmust meet several conditions with respect to dacuventation, probabiliy of accurrence,
hedge effectivencss and -eliability of measurement, At the inception of the transacuon, the G-oup documen:s the relationshin between hedging
instruments and hedged nems, ag well as 1ts nsk management objective and stategy for undertaking the hedge transaction. This process
ncludes inking all de-ivatives designated as hedges to specific assets and habilities o 20 soccific firm commitrments or forecast transactions
The Grous also documents its assessrent, at hedge incestion and on a half vearly basis, as 10 whether the derivatives that are used n hedaging
sransactions have oeen, and are likely o continue 1 ve, effective in offsetting changes in tair value or cash flows of hedged items

Interest bearing borrowings are recogrised initially at fair value Subsequent to initial recogniicn, interest beanng borrowings are stated at
amo-tised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the Consolidated Income Siatement over the period
of the bar-owings on an effective interest basis.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash balances and call depostts. Bank overdrafts that a-e edayable on demand and form an ntegral pait of
:he Groun's cash managemaent are, where there s a right of offset, included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FORE!GN CURRENCIES

ransaczions n foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the t-ansaction. Any gain or {0ss on translation of
monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities arising from a movement in exchange “ates subsequent 1o initial measurement 1s included as an
exchange gamn or l0ss 10 the Consclidated Income Statement

Non-mronetary assets and liabiliies that are measured in te-ms of tustonical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the daze of the transacton Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign cur-encies that are stated at fair value are retranslated 1o
the funclional currency at foreign exchange rates ruiing at the dates the fair value was determmed
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1. Group Accounting Policies continued

Fhe agses and habilities of overseas sunsidiary underta<ings, meluding goodwill and “ar valus adjustrents ansimg on acauisition, are transtated
ar rha ctosing exchange -ate Income staterrents and cash flows of such undertakings a“e translated into Sterling at weighrad average rares

of exchange, ather fhan substantal transacions that are ranslaied atl the ~ate onthe date of the transacticn The adjustmen' s 1o penod end
rates a2 ta<en o the cumulatve transiation sose-ve n equity and reparted in the Consolidated Stazerrent af Comprehensive Incone When an
overseas oreation s d sposed o i pas or i full the ~elevant antount i the wanslation -eserve 13 ransforred to nrofit o- loss

on of afinancal bahbilicy designaed as a hedge of a net investren in a foraign ooeration
sarement of Compreliensive ncooe, 2o the excant that the hedge s e*fective To the exten’
*har the nedge s meitective, such differene raecegrised nooofit o loss When the hedged 2a- o7 a net mvestnent s disposed of the
associaicd cumulatve amaunt in the translation -eserve 1s Uansferred (o profis o Inss as an adjustrent (o the pofit or loss on disoosal

The a7ncinat exchange rates used were as follows

2020
Average Closing Average Closing
Sterling o Euro (£1 = EUR) 176 TG
Sterling 2o US Dollar (£7 - USD) 1.38 v 3h
Ste-ling o Swedish Kona {£1 - SEK} 180 12.27
Stecling o Indian Ruonea {£1 = INRY 10771 "00 21
Ste-hing o Australian Jollar (£7 = ALDY 1.83 186

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lowe” 07 cos: and ne: reahsasle value in determining the cos: of raw ma:enals, consumanles and goods pu-chased
for ~esale erther the FI7(} or average £ost method s used desending on the nature o- the inven:ory Cos™ *or wokin poogiess and finished goods
compnses direct maretats, direct fabour and an alaropnate pronoraon of attbaranle averheads.

PROVISIONS

A prowssion 1s recognised in the Consolidated Statentent of Financial Position when the Grouo has a o-eseni legal or constructive ooligation as

a result of a past event, 1t s orobaole that an outflow af economic bene’ns will e required (o settle the obligaton and a reliacle esnma:e can be
made of the amount of the ohgation If the affect of the tirre value oF moeney 1s matenal, provisions a-e determined by discouning the expecied
futu-e cash flows at a pre lax rate that reflects cur-en: market assessments of the tme value of money and, whan anproonate, the nisks specific
0 thehaodity When discouning 1s used, the increase in the provision due o the passage of e 13 “ecogrsed as a fimance cost

A provision for restructunng s recogrised when the Group has anproved a detailed and formal restuctuning slan and the restructuning erher has
commencead or has been announced subhizly Future operaing costs are no: provided for

in accordance with the G-oup's envirenmental palicy and applicable legal requirerrents, a provision fo- site restoration in ~espect of contarminated
land 15 "ecogmsed as an obligabion anses

LEASES

To the extent tha' a nght-cf-control exists ove: an asset subject to a lease and with 3 lease term exceeding one year, the Groud recognises a
rnght-of-use asset, representing the unde-lying lease asset, and a lease hability, renresenting the Group's osligation 1o max<ea lease payments The
right-of-use asset 15 Intally measured at cost, which compnises the initial amount of the lease llamhty adjusted for any lease payrents made at
or before the commencement date any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the dismanthing, -emoval and restoration costs as required
2y the terms of the lease contract

The night-of-use asset I1s subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the comarencement date tc the earlie” of the end of the
useful life of the ngh'-of-use asset o the end of the lease te'm. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease
term 07 the cost reflects the exercise of @ purchase option, depragiation is calculated using the estimaied useful life of the asse’ The nght of-use
assets are glso suject to raview for imparrment {see aczounting policy ‘Impairment of assets’)

The lease lability 1s measured at the present value of the future lease sayments discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate, bemg
the rate that the lessee would have to pay to harrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value 1n a simiiar economic environment
with similar terms and conditiens Future lease payments include: fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate
(tnitially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date), amounts expected to be payable under a residual guarantee and the
exercise price of purchased options where 1t 1s reasonably certan that the option will be exercised Finance charges, representing the unwmding
of the discount rate, are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement over the period of the lease.

Lease payments for low value assets and short teim feases (less than 12 months) are recognised as an expense on a straight-hine basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1. Group Accounting Policies continued
REVENUE

Ravenie 1s meaasurad based on the xonsidesanion soacified i a contract with a custo ner foi the aovision of goods and services The amount
recognised excludes sales taxes and s adusted for any discounts o volume rebates that ae included in the cantract 1L mcluctes consideration
receved lrom the customer for fresget acivities oy = the Lansoosauon actviies ace -equi-ed to fulil a perforrance obligaton If the
srAnsnorahon actvities are determined *o e a sepa-ate perfo mance obligation, an cntity will only fecognise the congideration as revenue

if the entty s deterined 1o be acing as princigal inthe agreement, sthenwise the consideraton -eceived fro~ the custome Lo lranspat

o s reaognsed ner oF theelated cost, rathe than as ovenue The Gioup s o 5 wWITh Sustomes 4o no AN sigrl zan inancing
componens and day Me fenms ace genetally Sustomany 1o e urisdichons m which ea EMzEt

chsudssidiay 008

Fhe Group recognises revenue when il transless contol over a good 07 service 10 a custones The followng informanon sets out the Grous’s
apzoach to the nature and timing of the sausaction of nerformnance oblgations in contracts with custormers neach of 115 opetaung segments
and the related revenue recogninon policies

Engineered Solutions (formerly known as 'Utilities’} and Roads & Security

For standard oroducts that are manufactured, -evenue 1s recogmsed when goods are aczeprad by custormress, whizh is usually on delvery
denending on the Incoterms defined in the contract The Group also enters into certain contracts which -equire customers to nspect and accept
gowds that have been manufactured aut retained in the Group's facilities, in these cases the cusiome 15 deemerd to have accepted the product
when they have orovided evidence of their accentance and revenue is therefore recognised al that point, assuming that the other cntena set out
n 1=RS 168 have oeen me:

Certain of the Groua's businesses i the Znginee-ad Solutions and Roads & Securty segments manufactu-e non-gtandard 2 odusts thatl ave
saecific to customer regurrements and therefore require a high degrees of custcmsation The Group has dete' vined that in these cases a oroduz:
with no alrernative use 1s created Where the contraciual terms a e such that i the contract s terninated by the custorme- then the Groun has a
night o rermaursement of the costs incur-ed ncluding a reasonanle margn, ‘evenue 1s -ecognised over ime e pefore the comrpleted goods ae
delivered 1o the cus:omrer's premises Progress s generally determined using inzut methods (such as costs ncu-red). unless the circustances
o the contiact are such shat outaut methods {such as milestones reached) are considercd more any oprate

ln some cases the Group orowdes installation of 175 oroducts fo customers as an additional service @venua om natallation servicas s
rezogmsed over the aenod that the installaton takes place, which 1z yeneially less than one ronth.

Cer-ain of the Group s ousinesses in these segments engage in conracis with custorers which include varanie consideration This oceurs
where the Group orovides ~etrosnective safes voluimre “enates o coitain customers once, amongst other matters, the quantity of goods
nurchased duning a prederermined period exceeds thresholds snecified in the sales contracl To estimate the vanable conside-ation for these
expected future repaes, the Group apnhes the most hkely amount Trethod to reflecs the consideration that the Group 1s entitled to Variasle
conside-aton 13 only recognisad to the extent that v 1s hughly orooable that the inclusion will not resultin a sigaifican: -evenue reversal in

the future

Cerzain of the Groua's Roads businesses routinely generate -evenue forr the rental of assets to custoners Revenue from these ental
agreements is recognised aver the senod gver which the assets ae avallable to the custoTe-. If an asset thatis held for rentalis sold, the asset
1s transfored from progerty, olant and equipmen: to nventanas a* the casrying amount when the asset ceases '0 be rented The proceeds from
“he sale of such assets ae recogrused as revenue in the Consoldated Income Statement

The Groua classifizs proceeds from the sale of scrao producis generated inthe manufactu-ing arocess within “evenue

Galvanizing Services
Contracts with customers in the Galvanizing Services segment are generally sirple Revenue s -ecognized at a pomtn ime, which 1s when the
galvanized goods are either despatched or collected by the customer

Ihe Group classifies proceeds from the sale of by-products generated during the galvanizing process within revenue,

CONTRACT ASSETS
Contract assets primanly relate 1o the rights 1o consideration for work comaleted but net bilied at the reporting date Contract assets arc
transferred to receivables when the rights become uncondiional

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilitics anise when the G-oup receives consideration from customers based on an agreed 2illing schedule, as established in

the cantract, which may not correspond with the pattern of performance under the contract Where consideration has been received but a
performance abligation not satisfied at the reporting date, a contract liability 1s recaerded and oresented as Deferred Income in the Consolidated
Staternent of Financial Position.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Group operates sension schemes under which contributions by emoloyees and by the snonsoring comoanies are held in trust funds
separated from the Group's finances

Ooligations for contizutions to defined contributien pension schemes are recognised as an expense i the Consolidated Income Statement
as ncurred

The Group's net obhgation n respect of defined benefit pension schemres is calculated separately for each scheme by estimating the amount
of furure benefit that emolayees have eared in return for ther service nthe cur-ant and anor penods. This tenefit is discounted to determine
1ts oresen: value, and the fair value of any scheme assets 1s deducted Tha discount rate s the yield at the year end date on AA rated bonds
that have matunty dates aooroximating to the terms of the Grouo's obligations The calculation s serformed by a quahfied actuary using the
orojected unit method Scheme assets are valued at bid orice
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1. Group Accounting Policies continued
in The Consolidated Income Statement cur-ent and 3as’ Service oo
nenet anhgatons s inctuded in finanzial exoense

ahing profit and the interest cost an the net defined

e -ecognizens in ope

Ml azuanal gains and losses in caloculating the Groups obhganon i esoect of defined neneit schemes are “ecogmised annually and repored m
sed Slatement of Contorchensive Inceme

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Groupissues equty sevtled shase-based paymeants o caeram evloyees nzluding “hase 1 ha o of buy-out awads o7 defored nonus
awa Jds Theian value of shaie prong grant2dis grised az an emnloyee exnenss wiih a oo wnding Ncrease n equtty resarves The
fairvaluess calculated at the grant date and spread over the senad dusimg wheeh the eroaloyees beco ne uncondionally entilled 10 the shares/
options Lhe Blacc Scholes model bas Deen aduoawed as the method of evaluating the far value of the optainns where vesting 15 based on non-
market condinions, while a Monte Carto Sinrulation is used where vesting 1s hased on matket conditions. The amount recognised as an exzense
15 adjusted to -eflect the actual number of awa-ds for which the related service and non-market vesung condiions are exoected 1o be met,

such thal the amoun: ulimately recogmsed as an expense 1s based on the numoer of awards that do meet the related service and non-market
serformance conditions at the vesting date For share-nascd say rent awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of *he share
nased payment is measured (o reflect such conditicns and thereas no adjustrens for differences hetween expected and actual ourcomes

The fair value of amounts payable 10 employees inrespect of share zppreciation nghts settled in cash is ~ecognised as an employee expense
and corresponding increase i abilities The fair value of the habihity 1s ~emeasured at each reporing date and spread over the penod durning
which employees secore uncondisionally entitled to the payment

FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE

Financial income compnses nterest income on funds nvested and gams on the fair value of {mancial assets and habilines al far value through
arofit o loss Interest inceme s recognised as it acoruesiin the Consohdated Income Statement using the effective interast Tethod

Flnancial expense compises ntees. exnerse on Horowings, Interes!t cos' on net nengion schere obligasens, unwinding o discounts,

loases oncthe far value of financial assets and nanidities at “air value through orofit or loss, the interest expense on lease lisbilities and “inancial
expenses 2lated Lo refinanzing Al 5o iowing costs ase recognisedin the Consolidated Incomea Statement uaing the efiestive interest method

NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS

The Group's gccouning vohey for non-underlying 1rers 1s as follows

Non underlying items are presented separately in the Consohdated Income Stateent where in the Directors’ jJudge men:, the quantum, nature o
volalility o° such e s gives further nformation ta obtam a “uller understanding of the underlying pe-formance 07 the business The following ae
included oy the Group in 11g assessment of non-underlying items

« Gains o losses ansing on dimnosal, closure, restructunng o rearganisation of busimesses that do not meel the definition of discontnued
oaeraticns

- Amortisation of intangible fixed assets ansing on acquisititons, which can vary depending on the nature, size and ‘requency of acguisitions in
each financial aeriod

+  Ixpenses associated with acquisitions and dissosals, coma-ising professional fees incurred, any considesation which, unde: IFRS 3
Revised)is required to be treated as a post-acquisition employment expense, and changes in contngent consideration payable on
acquisitions.

< Impairment charges nrespect of tangbie or mtangible fixed assets, of nght-of-use assets

- Changesn the fair value of dervative financial instrumenss

+  Significant past service items or curtailments and settlements relating to defined benefit pension obligations resulting from mateniat changes
In the terms o the schemes.

The non-underlying tax charge or crechz comprises the tax effect of the above non-underlying items.
Details in respect oi the non-underlying items recognised in the current and prior year are set outin note 5 7o the minanctal Statemens.

INCOME TAX

Income tax on the protit or loss for the yearepresents the sum ¢t the tax currently payable and deferred tax Income tax s recognised in
the Consolidated Income Statement except to the extent that it relates to tems either recognised in ather comarehensive income or directly
In equity

Current tax is the expected tax payabte on the taxabte profit for the year. Taxabie profit differs from net profit as repeorted in the Consohidated
Income Statement Decausea it excludes items of ncome o expense *hat are not taxable or deductible. The Grouo's liability for curren? tax s
calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted a2+ the year end date, and any adjustments (o tax payable in respect of drevious yea-s

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax 1s provided in full using the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position liability method and reoresents the tax expected to be
nayable or recoverable on the temporary differences between the car-ying amounts of assets and liabilines for financial -eporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation suraoses The tollowing temrporary differences are not provided for goodwill ne: deductible for tax purposes,

the mitial recognition of assets and halities not -esulang from a ousiness combination that affects neither accounting or taxable arofit and
differences relating ‘o investments in subsidianes 1o “he extent that they will not reverse in the foreseeasle future The armrount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expecied manner of realisaton o settlement of the carrying amount of assets and haliliues, using tax “ates enacted or
substantively enacted at the year end date

Stock Code HILS

SINIWILVYLS TYIONYNIL

137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1. Group Accounting Policies continued

A derered tax assenis recognised only o ne extenl that s 2 obable that future taxasle profits will se avadlable agamst which the asse: o
he zacying aroun: of deferod tax assets 13 aviewed at each year end date and -eduzed w0 the extent that s no longes yooadle thar

11t taxaste profic vl oo availanle o aliow all or nart of the asse* to be “ecoveed

Defar-ed *Ax assets and haubties a'e n'ise whan the

satinds cuoent tax assets and hagiies cnanelt

ORDINARY DIVIDENDS

Swvidends are ecognised as a haoility 1n the peaodin whizh they 4 2 anproved oy (he Comoany’s shaseholde s

OWN SHARES HELD BY FMPI OYFF BFNFFIT TRUST {'EBT?)
Traasactions of the Groun-saonsored EBT are included in the Group Financial Statements In parcular, *he Trusts purchases of shasesinthe
Comoany ase demted diactly to equdty

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Sovernment gant income s “ecogrised where these 13 reasonable assurance that the grant will be receved, and all attached conditions will be
corrahied with When the grant relates to an expense item, 1118 recognised as mcome on a systemaie basis ave” the penods that the relaed
costs, for which s intended to compensate, are expensed Government grant income that 1s in<ed to capitat expenditu-e s deferred to the
Consolidated Statermen: of binangiz! Posiion as Deferred Government Grants i _labihirtes and credited o the Consolidated Income Statement
ovel the life of the related asset

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

whe-e the Grouo enters ito financial guarantee contracis to gua-antee the indebtedness of suosidiary companies, the Groun considers these 1o
be msurance coniracts and reats the quaranies cortract as a contingent hahiliny untif such tme as it oecomres orobable that the Group will be
required wo rake a gayment under the guarantee

ielate tnoncone taxes levied Dy the sa-re taxabon awhanty and the Geoupintends o

2. Accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The 3 e3aration o the Group's consolidated financial atatevents requires Tanagaimen’ 1 ma<e udgerents, estimates and asswnations that
affezt *he apalization of accountng pohicies and ~eao-ted amoun:s of INCove, expenses. asse’s and habilties Actual resuls may diffes from
these esumates

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL (NOTE 13)

Estimates

The detesrrination of whather goodwill and other indefinge fe intangible assets should be impaired requires the estimation af future cash flows
and growth fastars adopted by each cash generating unit ~uthernove. discount rates adshed to these cash flows are determined oy reference
0 the markets n which they operate and are rizk adjusted to reflect nisks and opootunities cxisting for each cash generating umt These faclors
are all a'fected by prevaling market and economuz factcrs outside the Group's cont-ol Further inforvation on this issue, ncluding sensitiity
analyses, 15 included nnoe 13

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS ON PENSION OBLIGATIONS (NOTE 27)

Estimates
in deterrrining the valuaton of the defined bene™t pension deficit, certam estimates and assumptions about the scheme have been made,
notably the inflation rates, discount rates, mortality and pension ncreases Tha faciors a*festing these assumptions are influenced by wider

mac o-economic factors that are targely outside of tha Group's control A sensitivity analysis of the impact of changes in key assumplions s set
outin note 27

TAXATION (NOTES 9 AND 17}

Judgements

Liaoilities for uncertain tax positions reguire managesTent judgements in respect of tax auditissues and exposures i each of the junsdictions in
whizh the Groun operates Where management judges that a "ax position 13 uncertam, a cuirent tax haoihty 1s held for anticioated taxes that ae
considered o be drohable ased on the information avalable The key judgement area for the Group g the prizing of intercompany goods and
services ard other cross border transachions belween subaidianes in different countries.

Estimates

Management 1s required to make an estimate of the current tax hability together with an asscssment of the temporary differences which arise as
a consequence of different accounting and tax treatments. Liaslties for uncertain tax positions also require ranagement estimates in respect
of the amount of tax that may become payable. Management engages with professional advisors in ma<uing its assessment and, If appropriate,
will haise with the relevant taxation authorities to resolve the matter The tax hability 1s reassessed in each peniod (o reflect management’s best
estima‘e in light of the information available Included in the cur-ent tax payable is a liability of £4 & (2021 £4 7m) for uncertain tax positions
Depending on the concliuisions of any tax audits conducted by the tax authorities in the various junsdictions inwhich the Group operates,
manageimen: estimate the range of possible outcornes to be between £nil and £5 7m (20271, £nil to £6 1m) and therefore it 15 possible that, if the
outcomes a-e different to those estimated by management, the difference may sratenally erpact the income tax charge / {credit) in the year in
which the mratter 1s concluded Surther information is set out in note 9 and note *7
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3. Segmental information
BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS
The Groud has three -eon table segiments which gie Roads & Secu iy, Zngineead Solutions and Galvanizing Seivices. The Group's iniarmal
managerent sracture and fnancial «eportng syatens differentiate petween thase soynments and, 0 renaiting managenent have taken the
v ew that they comoiise a reaosting segment on he nasis of the followng econontic characte 1stos

SINIWILYLS IWIONYNIH

sensdre the safery and secutity of roadis

+  The Roads & Security segment contams a gious of ousimesses supplying produc s designad ¢
arel ather natonal mfrast uetue, many of which have zoeen dovelooed o address ratonal and e nananal sa’ety standa-ds, o customners

myvalved i the conztruztion of thatinrastiuciue,
The Engineered Solutions sey nent contains a group of susiresses supslying oroducts chaactznsed 2y a degree of engineerng expertise,
to suble and privare customers insolved i the construcion of facilibes serving “he uthities and other infragiruciure markes, and

+  The Galvanizing Services segment contans a g-oup of cocmpanies supotying galvanizing and refated natenals coaung services o
companies in a wide -ange o° maxets ncluding consuction, agriculiure and nfrastrusture

Corporate costs are allocated to reportable segments in prono tion 'o the ravenue of each of those segments

SEGMENTAL INCOME STATEMENT — CONTINUING OPERATIONS

202
Reported Underlying Reporied Linderlying
operating cperating oneratng 23erating
Revenue profit profit* Revernue prafi profits
£m £m fm £m £ £m
Roads & Sacurity : 7997 {75 179
Fngineered Solutions 2237 255 260
Galvamaing Se-vices “418 323 334
Group 6757 459 773
Net ‘inancing cos's 167 (61}
Profit before taxation 478 /127 .
Taxakon (14 4 (15 5)
284 557

Profit after taxation

~ Urderryirg seeranng orofit s stated aefore non urderlang rems as defined in the Group Sccounting Paboies an nage137 aadais the rreasure of segrent arofit used
9y the Chref Operating Decisior Maker, whe 1s the Chiet Executive Tha renorted operating profiz columns are inzluded as additiora’ informatior

Transachons Detween operating segments are on an arm's length 0asis similar 1o transactions with third parties Galvanizing Services sold
£68m (202! £6 5m) of products and services to Roads & Security and £2 0m (2027 £1 6m) of products and services to Enginesred Solutions
Engineered Solutions sold £1 9m (2021 £3 0m) of products and services (o Roads & Secunity These internal -evenues, along with -evenues
generatad fromwithin ther” own segments. have Jeen ehirinated on consolidalion
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

3. Segmental information continued

inthe “cllowmng tables. -evenue ©om contracts with custores 1s disagy egated by pimary geograshizal rmasket, major praduct/se vice ines and
TN OF revanue ecognition Ravenue 2y onmary 3eograshical marked s defined as he end focation o1 the Grouo's vioduct of service The tac
also nzludes a reconchalion of the disagyregaied reverue with the Group's reponable segmenis

Continuing operations Roads & Security Engineered Solutions Galvanizing Total
207
Primary geographical markets £
UK 3068
Regt of Tnrnpe 3556
Ne~th Amesica 2663
The Middle Zast 38
rest of Asia 77
Rest of the wo-ld 51
6252
Major product/service lines
Manufaciure, suzaly and
instaliaticn o products 457 1
Gavaniang services 173
Rental income 223
6252
Timing of revenue recognition
Products and 3evices transered
at a paint in ume 4620
. Products and services transfered
over e 632
5252

The Groun has no matenal unsatisfied or pastially satished peirformance obligatnng at the halance sheet date that have an expected duianon of
more than one year and therefor e has taken the oractical expedient under IFRS 15 not to disclnse such details

ADDITIONAL SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Capital expenditure and amortisation/depreciation

2021
Impairment Impairmen:
losses, losses,
amortisation arrorisation
Capital and Capital and
expenditure  depreciation expenditure depreciation
£m £m m
Roads & Security 24.4 W03
=ngineered Solutions 4.4 38
Galvarzing Services 8.3 103
1 Total Group 371 44 4
3 Property, plant and equiprment {note 14) 357 209
‘ Intangible assets (note "3} |4 235
Total Group 371 44 .4

The 2022 amount's for imparrment losses, amortisation and depreciation relating to the Roads & Secunty segment include intangible asset
impairment losses of £4 4m relating to Parking Facilities Limited. The comoa-ative for 2627 cluded goodwill and intangible assets impairments
of £5 2m in respect of Parking Facilities and £10.8miin respect of ATG Access
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3. Segmental information continued
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS

Total assets

SINIWILYLS T¢IONVNIZ

UK 2908

Restal Zurape 907
North Aneaca 2732
ALl T30

Reast of the world 50

Total Group
2027
Non-current assets £m
UK 1920
Res” o Europe 432
North A menca 6938
Asia 32
Res: of the world 37
Total Group 4719
2021
Capital expenditure jaigyl
UK 171
Rest of Zurone 36 .
Norih Amenica 209
Asia acn
Rest of the world 14
Total Group 37"

4. Alternative Performance Measures
The Group presents Alternatiee Petformanze Measu-es (APMS') i adait.on to its statutory resulls These are presented i accotdanse w.in the
Guidelines on APMs issued by the Zuropean Securnties and Ma-kets Authonty The snncipal APMs are.

Lnde-lying profit before taxation,

Lnderlying operating profit,

Linderlying ope-ating proft margin;

Organic measure of change in tevenue and underlying coeratng profit,

Underlying cash conversion ratio;

Capitat expenditu-e 12 depreciation and amortisation rato,

Covenant net debt to =BITDA ratio; and

Undertying earnings per share A reconciliation of statutory earmings per share (o underiying earnings per share 1s provided in note 11

Alt underlying measures exclude certain non-underlying items, which are detalled in note 5. References to an underlying profit measure are made
on this basis and, in the opinion of the Directors, aid the understanding of the underlying business performance as they exclude tems whose
quantum, nature or volatility givas further information to cbtam a fuller understanding of the underlying performance of the business. APMSs are
presented on a consistent basis over time to assist in companson of performance
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

4. Alterpative Performance Measures contnyed
RECONCILIATION OF UNDERLYING TO REPORTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2321
£
tindeilying proft oetore tax fom conunuing coeratons Y
Non-underlying rems insluded in ope-atng profs note 5 284
Reported profit before tax from continuing operations 425
RECONCILIATION OF UNDERLYING TO RFPORTFND OPFRATING PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BY SEGMENT
Roads & Security Fngineered Solutions Galvanizing Total
2021 2021
£m £m
Underlying operating profit fro
continuing eperations 473
Non-underbyting itams
Araior tisation of acguisition
mtangibles (59)
Busiiess ren garisation cos:s (45
reaairment of assets 164)
Zxpenses related 1o
azguisrions and disposals A
Losy on disposal of
. subsidiaties 04
Reported operating profit from
continuing operations 439
CALCULATION OF UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN FRONM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Roads & Security Engingered Solutions Galvanizing Total
2027 2021

£

Continuing operations

Linderlying oserating profit

Revenue

Underlying operating profit
margin {%)
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4. Alternative Performance Measures continued

MEASURES OF ORGANIC AND CONSTANT CURRENCY CHANGE IN REVENUE AND UNDERLYING OPERATING

PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Organic

ongtant Surency Teasures exclude the imoact of cucency translausn moveents, acguistans, tisposals and closures of sune
businessas (0 respest of acquisiions, the amoun:s refer-ed o 2oresent the amounts for e canod inshe curers year that the nusin

SLINIWILYLS TYIONYNIA

not held e the one yeae I cesoect of disoosals and ctosures of sunsdiary SUusNesses, the aradits efer-od o epresent the amounts ‘or the

serodim the o

yoar That the nusiness was nos held nthe curent yea G

STl

3TANT Cuttenuy A Nounts oy epaad usmy exchange ges which

srevalledm the current yoa-
Roads & Security Engineered Solutions Gailvanizing Total
Underlying Underlying Underlying Underlying
operating operating operating operating
Revenue profit Revenue profit Revenue profit Revenue profit
Continuing operations £m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
2021 259.7 17.% 2237 26.0 141.8 334 625.2 77.3
Impaczt of exchange ate
movemen!s from 2021 to 2022 54 10 759 Yy 82 24 295 56
2071 ranslated at 2072
axchange ‘ates [A) 265.1 18.9 239.6 28.2 150.0 35.8 654.7 82.9

Acguisiions, disposals ard
closues

Organic growh/(deching) {B)

2022 (C}

Orgartic growth %

(B divided by A)

Constant currency change %
{(C-A) divided by A)

CALCULATION OF UNDERLYING CASH CONVERSION RATIO

Undecrlying operating profit:
Continuing ose-atons

Disgoninued operalions

Calculation of adjusted operating cash flow

Cash generated by operations

235 Purchase of assets for rental to custorrers

Less Purchase of oreoerty, plant and eguipment

Less Purchase of intangiole assets

Less Repayments of lease hahilities

Add. Proceeds on disposal of non-current assets

Add back. Defined benefit pension scheme deficit payments

Add back: Cash flows relating to non-underlying rems

Adjusted operating cash flow

Underlying cash conversion (%)

Stock Code HILS

2021
£

773
87
360

1331
(6 7)
(17 8)
(r4)
{(133)
37
37
27
67 0
78%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

4, Alternative Performance Measures continued

CALCULATION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE TG DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION RATIO

Calcutanion ot capital exsendiure
Purchase of asses for rental o customers
Purzhase of o osedty plant and equiamen:t

Purchase of inTangmle assers

Calculation of deprecianion and amortisasion
Depreciation of prope-ty, plant and equioment (note 3)
Amohsation of developrment cos:s note 8)

Amaorsation of other intangible assets (note 8)

Capital expenditure to depreciation and amortisation ratio

CALCULATION OF COVENANT NET DEBT TO EBITDA RATIO

Repaored net debt (note 20)
Laase haslities (note 16)

Arrounts refated o refinanaing under 1FRS 9

Covenant net debt (A)

Linde:lying operating nroit
Depreciatien of owned assets (note 14)
Right of use asse: dedregiation {note 16)
Arnornzanon of development costs (note 13)

Amorusation of other intangible assets (note 13)

Lnde-lying EBITDA
Adjusted for
_eass nayments (note 14)
Share-based payments expense (note 25)
Annualised EBITDA of subsidianes acquired/disaosed

Covenant EBITDA (B}

Covenant net debt to EBITDA (A divided by B)
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£m

114 /7
(42 6)
7o

1066

7049

1186

1m
2.8
04

1107
1.0



5. Non-underlying items
INCLUDED IN OPERATING PROFIT

Lass on disnesal of subsichanies 14
Business 20 ganisalion Sos's h:

IMnar nent o

Amoiusahion of acquisition intangibles

Zxpenses related 10 acquesitions and 4isnosals

Total non-underlying items

total non underlying items — continuiNg operations

Total non-underlying iterns - discontinued operations

Nates

a) In 2222, the Group completed the disposal of the mapanty 0° s Swetish roads business In Ao hwe disosad of the rental division and in

MNoverbar wa sold thenfasuctu g contracts division, at a combined loss o £1.0m delaills are se’ ou? Delow

Disposal of Swedish rental and infrastructure contracts divisions £m
Progerty, plan® and equipment 20
Right-of-use assets z2
Inventories A
Curren: assets Jz
Currens: latiities C.2)
cease hatilines (2 0)
Net assets disposed 3.2
Conside-ation recerved 25
Currulatve exchange di*erences 03
Loss on disposal 1.0

The Grouz also incurred costs of disposal of £0 5mr, whech arc included within ‘expenses related to acquisitions and dispesals’ in the tanle above
Alongside the disnosals, assetimoarrments of £0.2n and reorgamsation costs of £0.3m were ncuried 0 relation 10 the remaming Jusinass The

total of non unde-lying n

Stock Code HILS

charges relating o the Swedish ousiness is theiefore £2.0m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

5. Non-underlying items continued
in October 20322, the Grous completad the disnosal of —ance Galva, 1is —rench galvarizing and hghting colunsn business, as a loss 0f £0 4™
Detalls o7 the disnosal are set our Halow

Disposal of France Galva Em
Property, olant and equipmon: 284
Intanginles a7

Right oi use 19
Inventarnes 240
Current assots 176
Cash and cash aquivalents 59
Jefenied tax 14
Lease lahilines 08
Current liabilities (202)
Loans & borrowings 03
Frovisiong 29)
Retirament bensdt obligation [46)
Net assets disposed 64.6
Corsideanon recerver 620
Currulative exchange differences 77
Loss on disposal 0.4
. The Grocunalsomewred cos!s of disposal of £12m, which are included within ‘expenses related 0 acquisiions and disoosals’ in the “asle above

In 2027, thetoss on disposal o £0 am related to the sale of Technocove Dimied, the Group's small acress covers pusiness

by In May 20272, the Grous toox the decisian to exit the low-ra-gin plastic oraducts operations that formed patt of ou” LS roads busmess Ne:
charges on closure totalled £2 9, compnsing Dusnass e gamnsation ¢os:s of £1 Tmand asset imaai-ment charges of £1 8m
In adaincn, following the closure of the G:oup's vanable message sign (VMS) busimess that was announced in March 2021, the Grous has
incurred a further £1 5 of costs in 2022 1in ~elation to the corrpletion of legacy cont-acts The business rearganisation costs of £4 S
2027 also -elated o the VMS closure

¢} Imparrrent charges of £6 4in 2022 conrprise the nart*olio management acuons exolained above (totaling £2 0m) and a charge of £4 4m
{2027 £52m)inresoect of acquisttion intangible assets relating o Pasking Facilizies, one o° the Group's UK secunty ousinesses Parking
Maciities manufaciures and sells a range of Jenmeter access secunty products, oedomimantly to specalist secu ity installe s in the UK.
The COVID sandemez esuled in 2 weax trading peiiod in 2020 as saveral cusiomer cont-acts were cancelled or nostponed and whilst the
Business saw a marginal iImorovement in revenue and profitaoiity In 2021, ongeing constram:s on custorer budgets conunued to wetgh
ondemrand. In 2022, custome” activity continued 1o oe weak and suaply chain chatlenges, input costinflation and operational 1ssues led to
adeteno-ation inmargins The Board's reassessment of the future outlook for Parking Facihities, which alse took into account the impact
oh g-oss marginsg of developments in the competitive landscape, concluded that there was hmited prossect of the business returning to
the levels of orofitabibity previously antrcipated and therefore that the expected future cash flows were not sufficient to suppart the carrying
valug The resulting impairment charge of £4 4m comprises £4 Om in respect of acquired customer lists and £0 4m inrespect of acquired
arand names, meaning those assets have een fully impaired as aF 31 December 2022 1n 2021, impaii ment charges also included £10.8man
-agoect of acquisition goodwill and intangiale assers relating to ATG Access, another of the Group's UK security businesses.

INCLUDED IN TAXATION

The tax effect ot the above izems s a credit to the iIncome statement of £3 7m (20271 £1.1m)
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6. Employees

SINAWILVYLS TYIONYNIA

The average number of people employed by the Group during the year

Roads & Secunty

“ngmeerved Solutiig
1086
3876

Galvanmzing Sewvioes

Total Group

2027
£mn

Total employee benefit expense for the year
Wages and salanes

Share-based payments (note 25)

Social secunity costs

Pensicn costs {note 27)

Both the average numbe: of nenale emrployed by the Groun and the total ersloyee benefit exnense inboth years anove have been presentedd for
CONLNWING operations

Remuneration of key management personnel
Remuneration i elation to shot terie benefits

Terrrination bercfits

Share based paymen's 10
Comreany conmibunons to money purchase pension olans nz
a7

Key management pe-sonnel are those acrsans having authanty and responsizility for Aanning, directing, and contralhing the activities of the
Group, directly or indrectly, ncludmg any diectars (whether executive o7 otherwise) of the Group At the beginning of 2021 the Group announced
a new senior managemen: structure and the estashshment of an Executive Board The structure includes the bxecutive Directors, Group
Presidents and the Coroorate Develoomaeant Director, who all report into the Chief Sxecutive Since 1 January 2027, key management personnel
are considered to oe the Soa-d of Direcrars of HIll & Smith PLC and the mempoers of the Zxecutive Board who a2 ndt also Direcio’s of the Groun

Further details of the Directors' remuneration and share imme ests are given In the Director ' Remuneration Repert on pages 97 (0o 104

7. Net financing costs — continuing operations

Interest on bank deoosits

Financial income

Interest on loans and borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16)
Financial expenses related to refinancing activicies

Interest cost on net pension scheme deficit (note 27)

Financial expense

Net financing costs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

8. Expenses and auditor's remuneration

2321
fro
income statement charges
Derectanon of prooe:ty blant and equizment (20 Y]
Right of use asser dedeciabon 03
Shors e leases A
Low value lenses Ly
Loss on disposal o nor-curent assets
Reseach and development expenditure (07
Amortsation of acquizimion intangiies 6.1}
Armortisation of development costs rn
Amortisation of other intangible assets C3
Impairment losses.
Intangible hxed assels {16 70)
Tangiple fixed asse's -
Right-o™-use lease assets -
Income statement credits
Foreign exchange gan 37
Profi- on diszosal of non cusren: assers 17
5 oants rezewvable ar
06

. Subtease income (note 7 6H)

Arounts elanng to discontinued caerauans micluded in the table asove comprise depreciation of property, plant and cquipmen: of £1 8
(2021 £4 0ir), nght-cf-use asset denreciation of £0AM (207 FO 7/m), and ame-tisation of acqusiion intangibles of £0 3m (2027 £24m)

A dealed analyais of the audi'os remuneration worldwide 1s as follows

£m

Aucht of the Company's Annual ACCounts 0o
Audit of the Company's subsidiaties 10
7.5

A descriotion of the work of the Audis Commitien 15 set out in the Audic Committee Repart on 2ages 86 10 91 and includes an exolanauon of
how audito” ohjectivity and independence 13 safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditor, Auditrelated assurance se'vices
totalled £3.000 (2021, £4.050)
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9. Taxation

Current tax
LK COTI0rEnN Hy

Qvergeas tax ot provallig local rates

Adjusiments inresnect 57 0107 youis

Delerred Lax (nule 17)

UK defe-ed 1ax

Qverseas tax at prevalling lozal rates
Adistiments in respect of poor years

Effects of changes intax “ates and laws

Tax on profit in the Consolidated Income Statement

Deferred tax (note 17}

2elating 1o defined benefiz pension scheTes

Tax on items taken directly to other comprehensive income

Current tax
Relsting o share nased payments
Deferred tax (note 17)

Relating o share-oased payments

Tax taken directly to the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

The tax charge in the Consobdated Income Slatamen: for the pennd s hugher (232

The differences arc explaned below

lighes) than the standaid -ate of corporation taxsn the LK

2027
£m

Profit sefore taxation fom zonminuing operations

Profit oefore taxation fronr discontinued oaerations

423
8.1

Profit before taxation - total Group

509

Profit vefore taxation mullipled by the effective rate of coragration tax in the UK of 19 0% {2027 19 0%)

Expenses not deductible/incore not cha-geable for tax su-poscs

Non-deductible goodwill imoarmen:

Benefits from international financing arrangements — current and onoan years

Local tax incontives

Overseas profits taxed at higher rates
Recognimon of fosses

Dverseas losses not relieved

Impacts of rate and law changes
Adjustments in respect of prnior years

97
09
24

{0 5)

{0.8)
33

0.1
0.5
23

02

Tax charge

167

Tax charge attributable to continuing operations

Tax charge attributable to discontinued operations

14 4
2.3

167

Stock Code HILS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

9. Taxation continued

In October 2317 the zwrapean Commssicn opened - Jation g the Group Financing Exerption in the UK Controlled =oreign
Campany JCHC e n, Uoreleved moert ar circimstances e Uieg ’ gle Aot T 20201
Group receved a chasging nolice from HMRE requisng 110 pay 17 o resaect of state ad thot MR conau nunlaw ully iecenved
N previcus yeass, which was dac in *ullin Senruary 2027

2 did e

Anplhcations L annul the Commission's decison had been mrade in 3997 years by he LK Governmrent, the Gioun and other aftected taxpaye s
The ZU Geneal Cours delivarad its decrsion on these aopphagtons i June 2022, “inding in favous o7 the sson Many of those affected,
mehuchng the Grouo, have anoealed *his demsion o the Sours of Justic
15 lkely 10 oe successiul 45 3 asil, we Contnue T TenDISe A Tax TR
that the amcunt paid will ultirmately ce recove od

10. Discontinued operations

O 25 July 2022 e Grodp arnaunesd e croposcd diznosal of France Galva SA CFraree Gahva’), our French galvamzing ard ighting column
operations, and on thar dare entered inta a Jut C3T0N with the picsdective auichasers. On 5 Septemoer 2022, the sha eholdeis of the Group
approved the plan to sell The sale of rrance Galva comaleted on 4 Octoser 2022 for £62 0m, resulting it a 1oss on disnosal o £0.4m {note o)

France Galva has been classified as a disposal groud as «equired by IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discantnued aperations As the
disposal resulted in the Group's withdrawal f-om all oserations in -rance and noting that the business accounted for aop-oximately 10% of Group
revenues prno- o disposal France Galva's results have ocen reported within discontinued oderations in accordance with IFRS 5

2022 2027

Non- Nan

Underlying underlying* G underiying= Total

£m s £m £

Revenue 3 - 798
Cost o' Sales : {53 5) - 533
Grass Profit ; 263 7263
. Osstribution costs 3 : {40y - 43
Adrriristrative expenses : {136} {06} "42)
Operating profit g7 [06) 81
Snancing costs - -
Profit before taxation : 87 (e 87
Taxaucn (23 : (2.3)
Profit from discontinued operations 654 10.6) 58
= Tne Groun's defivton of non-underlying tems 1s inc uded in the Group Accouaung Policies on page 137 and furtber detas s sn non-underying items are ing uded in

nate 5
== Rgjresenis nine months of activity 5nor to the saie or 4 October 2022

The net gash flows generated “rom the sale of France Galva are as follows

Cash received from sale

Cash and cash equivalents disposed

Net cash inflow on disposal

The net cash flows generated/{incurred) by France Galva included in the consclidated cash flow statement are as follows:

2021

£iiy

Net cash flow from ope-ating actwities 89
Net cash flow from investing acovities 27
Net cash flow from “mancing aclivities 67
5.5
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11. Earnings per share

The wmghted average number of ordinary shares in igsue dunng the year was 79 9 (2021, 79 6, diluted fo the effects of the outstanding
dilutive share nalionsz 8 2 (2071 82 &), Diluted earnings ner shae takes account of the diutive effezt of all outsianding share options
discinsed in note 25 coloulated Lsing toe treasury share meihod Lnderiying earnings per shase have been shown secause the Directors
conside that shig prosiddes valuaale addimonal inforrration asous the unde lving pe-formance of the Grous

SINIWILVYLS TVIONVNIG

2021
Pence Pence
per share aer share £m
Basic ea mings e
- confinuing 308 28.4
discontinued 7.2 58
Total basic earnings 43.0 31.7
Non-underlying items*
- continumg 342 27.3
discontinued 0.7 06
Total non-underlying items 349 2739
Lnde lying earnings
— contrnuing £ Sh S
disconunued 79 64
Total underlying earnings 779 62
Dluted sarmngs
— zontinuing 354 254
— discontinued 7 58 .
Total diluted earnings 425 342
Non underlying items*
= continuing 333 273
— discontinued 07 06
Total non-underlying items 346 273
Lnderlying diluted earnings
— continuing 693 55 7
- discontnued 78 54
Total underlying diluted earnings 771 6521
* Non-underying items as detalled ir note 5
12. Dividends
DIVIDENDS PAID DURING THE YEAR
2022 ] 2021
Pence Pence
per share per share £m
Interim dividend paid in relation w0 year ended 31 December 2020 - R . 9.2 73
Final dwvidend paid in relation to year ended 371 December 2020 17.5 13.9
Interim dividend paid in relation 1o vear ended 31 December 2021 - E
Final dividend paid in relation tc year ended 31 December 2021 - -
Total 267 212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

12. Dividends continued
DIVIDENDS DECLARED IN RESPECT OF THE YEAR

2210
Pence Pence
per share per shae £
intenm dividend decla-ad i retanion o yeas ended 31 Docerroe: 2027 ! V| 35
“inal diwvidend dezlared in relation o yea ended 31 Deceirber 2027 a0 Tai
Intenm dividend dectared in ~2lazion o year ended 31 Jecemier 2077 -
=gl dviderid oraposecl i @laton o oyea s ended 31 Desomnber 2027
Total 310 247

The final dvidend fo- 2022 was arooosed a*er the year end date and was not recogrised as a haoility at 31 December 2022, m acco dance with
14510

13. Intangible assets

Capitalised Contracts,
Customer Development  licences and
Goodwill Brands Lists Costs  other assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At T January 2527 169.1 350 264 17 175 790/
Zxchange adjustrents 17 (7 o2 - (27)
Azquisition of subsiliary oh a7 30 - 18 el
Addinions - - : v 0.2 T4
() Disposat of sugaidiary 19 (03 (39) - (18 (7 9
At 31 December 2G21 170 307 553 189 75 2029
Exchange adjustments 90 21 2.2 0z 08 143
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 93 12 98 - - 233
Additions - - 23 02 25
Disposals of subsidiaries ’ 149 - (34 9)

Amortisation and impairment losses

AT January 20027 353 142 30.3 13.4 90 1022
Exchange adjustments 7 (0.2) {03) (R - (2.3)
Disaosal of suosidiary (1.9 03 39 - 18 (7.9
Amortsation charge for the yea” - 19 34 11 20 7.5
Irmnarment lsses 124 0.3 33 - 160
At 31 December 2021 441 150 328 144 a2 1155
Exchange adjustments 13 11 13 31 0.5 43
Disposals of subsidiaries (169) (38) (0.5) - {0.5) {217)
Amortisation charge for the year - 10 3.3 11 29 a3

Impairment losses

Carrying values
At 1 January 2021 1338 15.8 26.1 43 8.5 188.5
At 31 December 2021 ] 152 22.5 45 8.3 1774

152 Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



13. intangible assets continued
2022
NATIONAL SIGNAL INC

e 2022 the Groun acquired the ausmess and assets of Natiznal Sigral 'ng UNanonal Sigral | 907 12z shareholders for an initial

arn slus afuttnes £/ refaling 1o 08 eomplenon worrg camtal adjusimearts sle gl n 2023 Fusther cash
siceratan of un e £3 300 s oayanle, condibonal on Natonal Signal's achrovement of fmancial serforrancs tegets m e th ee years post
acquiation Natrnal Bigoal, located in “ullerton, Catforia, 15 a designes mantu‘a e and suouhar of o5-gnt o a0 hghimg salutions inthe LSA,
ard s tho-ofore hughly zomoementary @0 he Group's 2021 azquisiion o1 P oolaoeis Sevvices, discussedin derait szl andbwall furthor acoelerare
she Srouas sTartagy m this Fast growing ket

Details 0f the auquisiion dre se0 ous 0e.0w

Provisional
Pre- palicy
acquisition alignment
carrying and fair value
amount  adjustments Total
£m £m £m
Imangible Assers
Brands - 12 12
Custorer lists - 349 89
Prope-ty, nlant and equipmen ) (27) 13
Right-of-use asse's - BN 10
Inverrases a7 04y 33
Cuirant assets 54 (0.3) 52
Total assets 11.0 10.2 21.2
1 ease haoilities - o, o
Current hazilties 2m {05 (25)
Provisions - 07 07
Total liabilities {2.0) (2.2) (4.2)
Net agsets 9.0 8.0 17.0
Consideration
Total consideration 242
Goodwill 7.2
Cash flow effect
Consideration 1n the year 215
Cash acquired with the husiness -
Net cash consideration shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 21.5

Brands and custorrer lists have been recognised as soeci®ic intangible assets as a esul: of the acgusition The residual goodwitl arising, which
has been allocated 1o the Roads & Security segment, ormanly rearesents the hughly skilled workforce, future technological advantages and
notential for geograshizal exaansion afforded to the Group Policy alignment and farr value adjustments have oeen made o algn the accounting
aohzies of the acquired business werth the Group's acoouning aolicies and to reflect the fair value of assets and latilitics acquired. In respect of
leases, the Groun measured the acquired lease liatlities using the aresent value of the remaining lease payments at the date of acquisition. The
nght-of-use assets were measured at an amount equat to the lease habilities and adjusted to reflect the terms of the leases relative to market
terms The fair value of the current assets acquired mcludes £5 5m of trade receivables, which have a gross value of £57m

As part of the acquisition agreement, additional consideration has been agreed The amount of additional consideration 1s dependent on Naticnal
Signal's gross profit for the three years to 31 December 2025 Below the 'tnggers’ (as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement), nc addiional
consideration 1s due If the 'triggers’ are achieved, additional consideration of £3 3m becomes payable.

Post-acquisition the acquired business has contributed £8.3m revenue and £1 4 operating profit, which are included in the Grous's
Consolidated Income Statement If the acquisition had been made on 1 January 2022, the Group's results for the year from continuing operations
would have shown revenue of £754 6, underlying operating profi of £102 0m and reported operating profit of £83 4m.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

13. Intangible assets continued
WIDNES GALVANISING LIMITED

0N 30 Seotemae 2022 the Groun asaquired 190% of the sha-e caprral of Widnes Galvanising Lirrited "Widnes™) toan iminial cash consideiauon
of £3 5, olus FO 2m elating o post coalenon wor<ng 2aoital adiss rents and a further £5 20 defeniad urtd 2024 The acquistinn o° Widnes
funthe expands the geogradiie footaan: of the G oun's LK gatvanizing Jusiness into the north wes: of the UK and 13 ahgned 0 the Grous's
growth strategy

Detalls of the aoguisiien are et ot below

Provisional
Pre- policy
acquisition alignment
carrying and fair value
amount  adjustments Total
£m £m £m
Intangible Assets
Custamer lists - 0.9 09
Prooerty, plant and equiziment 05 - 05
Inventoies 03 - a3
Current assets 09 - a9
Cash 04 04
Total assets 2.1 0.9 3.0
Curent hatiltes D4 - oM
Defaried tax - amn omn
Provisions - 0.7 07
. Total liabilities 0.4) (0.8) (1.2)
MNet assets 1.7 0.1 1.8
Consideration
Total consideration 25
Goodwill 2.1
Cash flow effect
Congideration in the year 25
Cash acquirad wath the husiness 0aN
Net cash consideration shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 3.1

Customer hsts have been recognised as soecfic imangible assets as a result of the acquisition The residual goodwilt ansing, which has been
allocated to the Calvaniving segment, pnmarily represents the highly skilled wor<orce, futu-e technological advantages and potenual for
geographical expansion afforded to the Group Policy alignment and fair value adjustments have been made to ahgn the accounting policics
of the acquired business with the Group's accounting policies and 1o reflect the fair value of assets and liabilnes acquired The fair value of the
current assets acquired includes £0.8m of trade recevables, which have a gross value of £6 8m

Post-acquisrion the acquired business has contributed £0.8m revenue and £nif onerating profit, which are included in the Group's Cansolhdated
Income Statement. H the acquisiuon had 2een made on 1 January 2022, the Group's results for the year from conuinuing operations would have
shown revenue of £734 6m, underlying operating profit of £97 6m and reported noerating prefit of £79 Om
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13. Intangible assets continuad
2021
PROLECTRIC SERVICES LIMITED

On " March 2027 the Groun acquired 100% of the share 23ntal of Proiect

an oAl consideratnn ot £72 2ro—usthe considesation of uo 0 £5 /i was pavaste deoending on P

ae formance targess n the Y 2-month penod 9 31 March 2022 which ultirataly were not achieved Pralestr
Somerses 15 & UK rar<et leade in ot gad salar ene gy soltmions, algnimg slosealy with the Groun's suipose o
and providing e echinatogy that the Gioug can loveragein is exsting maskers Jetals o7 tho aciularfion an

sevices  mirad CProlecmic and its donmant subsidianes for
s achieverens of fmanaial

e in Clevedon, North

eabng sustananle nfrastucture
2 527 0L Delow

Pre- Palicy
acquisitian alignment
carrying and fair value
amount adjustments Total
£m £m £m
Intangizle Assats
Brands a7 2.7
Custamer lists - 30 30
Conlac:s, lcences and other assets 01 i) T h
Praoserty, alant and equinmeant ?h ) T
Right-of-use asse's - 24 24
Inventories O - a4
Current assets 19 - "9
Cash 02 - 07z
Total assets 5.2 6.1 11.3
ease habilites s 3]
Currens llabilities {101 - )]
Current interest beanng hatihities {12) T2
defer-ed ‘ax an 1M o
Total liabilities (2.3) (1.6) (3.9)
Net assets 2.9 4.5 7.4
Consideration
Consideration in the year 120
Fair value of contingent consideration due within one yoar Onizial assessment) a9
Goodwill 5.5
Cash flow effect
Caonsideration in the year 120
Cash acquired within the business {02)
Net cash consideration shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 11.8

Brands, customer lists, contracts, izences and other assets were recognised as specific intangible assets as a result of the acquistion.

The residual goodwitl anising, which was allocated to the Roads & Secunty segment, primanly represents the highly siilfed workforce, future
technological advantages and potential for geographical exsansion afforded 1o the Group Policy aignment and fair value adjustments were

made to align the accounting policies of the acquired business wrth the Groun's accounting policies and to reflect the fair value of assets

and habilities acquired. In respect of leases, the Group measured the acquired lease habilities using the present vaiue of the remaining lease
paynents at the date of acquisition. The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount egual to the lease labiities and adjusted to reflect the
terms of the leases relative 1o market terms The fair value of the current assets acquired included £1.3m of trade recewvables, which had a gross

value of £1.3m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

13. Intangible assets continued
CASH GENERATING UNITS WITH SIGNIFICANT AMOUNTS OF GOCDWILL

202"

Engineered Solutions
LG Composies

VES Ltifries

Qthiers <£5m individually
Roads & Security
National Signal

ATS Azcess

HES Inc

VRS Solutiong Group
Mallaute

Prolectiic

Orhars =Fam individually
Galvanizing Services
Srance Galva A

LJGA

UK

Orhers <E5m individually

Goodwill irpairrent reviews have neen carned out on all CGUs o which goodwill 15 allocaied

METHODOLOGY AND ASSUMPTIONS

Irpairmen: tests on the carmyng values of goodwill and certain srand names of £8 5m (2021, £7 5m), whizh aie the Grouwp’s only other indefinte
Iite ntanginie asse's, are performed by analysing the car-ying value allocated to sach signifizant CGL aganst 173 value inuse All goodwill s
allocated 1o spacitic CGUS, which are in all cases na larger than operating segments Value inuse s calzulated for each CGL as the net present
value of that urits discouned future cash “lows These cash flows a-2 based on budget cash flow in‘orraton for a senod of one year and
strategic plans ‘o0 2024 through 2026, both of which are prepared taking inzo account a range of factors including past experience, the orecas:
future trading envi-onent and sracroegona iz conditions in the Groun s xey markets The cash ‘lows boyond the strategic plan aenod use
growsh rates winch -eflect the long term histornical growth in GOP of the econorries in which each CGU s located, excluding 2020 and 2027 given
the sharp econoTic movaments in those years due to COVID-19 The long term grow:h rates are 2 0% 1n the UK and 2 5% 10 the USA

SUMMARY OF RESULTS OF GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT REVIEWS

The caloulated head oom between value in use and car-ying value of each o the Group's CGUs weth significant amounts of goodwill, together
with the pre-tax discount rates apaiied, ave set out below The pre-tax discount rates are derived fiom a markel oartcipant’s cost of capitat and
risk adjusted for individual CGUs' circumstances.

2021
Headroom/ Headroom/

Goodwill  (impairment} Discount Goodwill  {impairnent) Discount

£m rate £m £m rate

US Composites L 0 157 1067 13.1%
V&S Utilities 53 a1 14.0%
VRS Solutions Group 104 044 130%
ATG Access 155 (108} 13.0%
Mallatite 57 271 13.0%
Prolectric - -
Par<ing Facilities 16 i57) 13.0%
il & Smuth Inc 86 273 147%
Galvamzing Services - L3A 252 2076 14.0%
Galvanizing Services — LK 4.8 84.3 13.0%
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13. Intangible assets continued

Based on the Tethodolagy se” out azove and as explaimed in note 5, the imparrentieviews for Parking Facilines concluded that while the
assoziated gondwill oF £7 & had been fully impared 10 2021, the remaming carrying value of tho susiness at 31 Decarrber 2027 exceeded 155
‘ecoveraole amount and accosdingly animparment charge of £4 4an respect 5F the “ermaimrg acguisition ntangioles has oeen -ecogmsed.

Paking raciites manufactures and sells a -ange of permeter aceess secunity soducts, predoamnantly 1o speciahs: secuity instalfers in the
UK Tha COVID nandamiciesutiad in @ weac Uading nenod in 2020 as several customrer contracts were cancelled or postoonad and while

the business saw a marginat imorovement i revenue and profitatility in 2077, ongoing consiamts on custome budgess contued 10 weigh
ondenand In 222, custo var asiviny 2omtimuad 1o baweax and suooly chain challenges, mpu® 2ostinflauon and onartonalissues led o
adetenoration in e ging The Boad+ reassassmeant of the future outlon< 7o Pas<ing raclities, whuch also too< ino ancount the imoacs on

g oss Margins of develon pents in the competinive landscaoe, concluded that there was hvied prosnect of the buginess ~eturmning to the levels
of profrraviity previously anticipated and therefore that the expected future cash flows were not sufficient 1o sua0oit the carying value The
resulting 1rparment chasge of £4 4m comaises £4 0m inrespect of acquired customer hsts and £0 47 respect of acquired prand names

SENSITIVITIES

The Groun has applied sensitivities o assess whether any reasonasle posaible changss in assumotions could cause animparmen: of the
goodwill in any CGU that would ne matenal 10 these Consolidated Financiat Statements The sensitivity analyses did not idenufy any potential
nimaarment for any CGU, with the exception of ATG Access and Hill & Smith Inc

ATG Access

ATS's future performance 15 lagaly desendant on the face of nos-pandamic recovery 1 UK and giobal secunty orodusts markets, which itsel
15 inherently deoendent on both public/custionrer behaviour and p-oader economic condiions 171s plausible that the nace of iecovery could be
more gradual than that assumed in the miparrment tests that have heen carried our, 1 wihich case a further mateaalimoainment could anse
evenue growth, gross margms, long term cash flow growth and the discount raze are the key assumptions on which the goodwill impairment
review 15 maos: sensitve The follawing sasdle provides information on theampact on calculated headroom of vanious scenanos for each o7 those
kay assumptions (indedendently in each case}

Sensitivity Headroom/
applied (impairment)

input Seenarns

Compound annual revenue grawth 2022 202/ Base case
A8S sensitivity 1%

HAS sansitivity 27

Grossmargin % 2073 27 % Base case

&3 sensitised

Annuat cash flow growth 2027 onwards Base case
H&S sensitised

Pre tax discount rate Base case

&S sensitised

* lystrates the impacts of comaound reverus growtn at 2% (consisien: with long term U< growth rates) and 0% (1 e revenues do not grow from 2022)

= The base case assurmes that gross profit margins across the penod 2023-27 are shightly below the 27% aghieved 1n 2022 The H&S sensitused case assumes a
gross profit margin 2023-27 of 24% 1r e with the average grass marge across 2021-22

Hill & Smith Inc. (HE&S Inc.)

H&3 inz. manufactures, sells and rents a “ange of work zone protection praducts including crash attenuators, trailer-mounted message boads,
and *emporary road safety barriers, to construction contractors and traffic specialists across the US roads market, White undertying narke”
conditions remaim healthy, the business’ performance in 2022 was imnactad by operational and cost input challenges The ca-rying value of the
H&S Inc. CGU also increassed by o £7 Om during the year as we invested in renzai barrier assets and inventories in anticipation of future demand,
driven by projected investment in US road infrastructure, supported oy increased spend from the llJA. Consequently, calculated impairmeant
headroom fell to £9.6rm (2021: £21.3m), noting that pre-tax discount rates also increased by 90 basis points to 15 0%. The Group's projections
for H&S Inc assume that actions taken 10 address the operational 1ssues will be successful, and that short to medium term revenue growth

will be above long term averages due to the anticipated increase in federal and state highway spend from the IlJA over the next five years. The
main diivers of that revenue growth are exoected to be temporary road safety barrier rentals, supported by the business’ investment in building
its rental barrier fieet over the past two years, and crash attenuator sales, whe-g the nusiness has developed a complementary offering to its
exisiing market-leading product that will begin to be markeated in 2023, We recognise, however, that there could be varations in the pace of
mprovement and growth and therefore we have modelled a range of scenarios “or the outlook. Revenue growth, gross margins, long term

cash flow growth and the discount rate are the key agsumptions on which the impairment calculations are most sensitive. The following table
arovides information on the iImpact on calculated headroom of three possible scenanios for each of those key assumptions (independently in
each zase), the first showing the Board approved orojection, the second the assumptions that result in zero headroom and the third a severe but
nlausible downside scenario’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

13. Intangible assets contnued

Sensitivity Headroom/
applied (impairment)
Inpu Seans 9

Comnpound annsal ovenue g owth 2523-2027 Base case
Zis haadroom

125 soasiivity

Corpound annual gioss o ofit maiyin glowh 202327 7 Baze case
Zero hieddiou

H&S sensitivity

Annual cash flow growth 2027 snwards Base case
Zero headroom

HRS sensitivity

Pretax discount 1ate Base case
Foro headroom

HES sensiivity

¥ T1g 3352 case assures a gross srofit margie of 20 3% 1 2023 nsing ic 34 3 0 2027 3% a comiacund anrua growth rate of 3 6% The sensiivity scerarnc shows
e antenualimoarmertif the gross margir of 30 3 L remarms corstas tianghout the sened 2023 27
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14. Property, plant and equipment

Plant,
'and and machinery
buddings  and vehicles Toral
£ [ i"m

Coat
AT Lanuay 2020 275 2297 357 2
Zxchange adustirents {16 27 43
Acquisition of sunsidiry {note 13) - 1 "
Addiions 66 297 357
Disposal of subsidary {note /) a7 on {28)
Trans‘eis o INyentones - 16 T h
Dispusals [ "33 (14 5)
Trans‘ers to assets held for sale {(note 15) - (6 6) {6 6)
At 31 December 2021 1294 2378 367
Exchange adjustments 82 93 81
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 13} 03 15 T8
Additions 35 257 29.2
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 5) 1378 (384 700
Transfers from inventories : 03 J3
Disposals e 5 93) 7 5)
Transfers 1o assets held for sale (note 15} 129) : (29

Depreciation and impairment losses

At 1 January 2023 437 799 1736
Exchange adjus:man®s (.7 (7 (2.8)
Disposal of subsidiary (note 5) 0 3) 108) n
Disposals 0o {(109) (11.9)
Charge “or the year 4.9 16 L 209
Transfers (o assets held for sale (hote 19) - {46) 4 6)
At 31 December 2021 462 t279 e

Exchange adjustments 26 3.8 64

Disposals of subsidiaries (note 5) {1o8) (218) {41.6)
Disposals (6) {63) 69)
Transfers to assets held for sale {note 15) (. - (")
Charge for the year 40 197

Impairment -

Carrying values
At 1 January 2021
At 31 December 2027

The gross book value of land and buildings includes freehold land of £317 5m (2021 £17.0m). Included within olant, machinery and vehicles are
assets held for rental with a cos: of £98 6m (2021, £98 91) and acourulated depreciation of £47.6m (2027 £46 7my}

The gross book value of plant, machinery and vehicles includes assers under construction of £20.6m (20271 £15 3m)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

15. Assets and liabilities held for sale

Land asd Huldings
Plant, mashimey and vehic'es

Righs-ofuse assets

Total Assets held for sale

Lease havlites
Oihen lranlities

Total Net Assets held for sale

[ales

Assets hald for sale at 37 December 2027 represent the arpaerty tha® was vazated “ollowing the Groua's exit from s low margin WS traffic
control orodusts nusiness, further details of which are set out in note o. The property 1s expected to oe soldin March 2023,

Assets and habilities held ‘or sale at 31 December 2021 related to the Group's Swedish renzal operations, which were dispased of in Aonl 2022 as
explamed in note 5

16. Leases

The leases held oy the Group can be solit inio wo calegn2s fand and buldings, and plant and equiarnent The Group leasaes vanous piopertes
‘or 1ts manufacturing and distribution activities Plant and equizvent ncludes ail other leases, such as vehicles and machinety

The movementsan the car-ying value o the fght-of-use asscis and lease haoilities in the years ended 31 Decemrber 2027 and 31 Dezember 2077
were as follows

v and and Plant and
Sulkdings eaquIoment Io-al
Right-of-use assets £ £ g
. At 1 January 2021 ) 14 309
Acquistion of subsidiary 06 T8 74
Additiong 127 41 168
Dizansal of suasidiary - amn omn
Tarmmanons 03} Q2 05)
Charge for the year (52) 51 (103)
Ee measurement 09 - 09
Transfers to assets held ‘or sale {note " 5} - 16) (e
=ffect of moverrents in foreign exchange (02 0 03
At 31 December 2021 2813 102 382
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 10 - 1.0
Additions 51 40 91
Disposals of subsidiaries (13) {1} 4
Terminations - {0.3) 03
Charge for the year 1) (4.7} B
Re-measurement o1 - a1
Impairment 0 - (0.2)

Effect of
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16. Leases continued

Lease liahilities

At 1 January
Addicns
Terrinaticns
inmeost ex 0nse
Dwposals of suosidianes
Acquisitions of sunsidianes
Lease paynents
Re measurement
rans‘ars to haoilities held for sale (note 5}
Effect aof movernents in foreign exchange
At 31 December

The *ollowing tadle shows the sreakdown of the lease expense between antounts charged 'o onerating orofir and amounts charged
finance costs

2027
£im
Depreciation o nght-o®use asses 03
Short-seim lease expense 04
Law-value lease exoenss 0t
Sublpase mee e (06}
Charged to operating profit 102
Inte-est expense “elatng o lease haohiucs g
Charged to profit before taxation 13
The matunty of the lease abilities at 3™ Decerrber was as follows
2021
£fn
Due within one year 88
Due betweaen one and two years 72
Due between two and three years 50
Due between three and ‘our years 39
Due between four and five years 79
Due after more than five years 1]
Total lease liabilities 389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

16. Leases continued

The Group has several lease contracts that nclude extension and termination oplaons These ootions are negotiated by management 1o 0-ovide
fleaxibiiry in managing the leased asset noflio and atyn with the Grouda dusingss needs Manajgement exerZise judgament in derainiing
whethe these extenaion and ermimansn ophons a8 reascnably cortan o be exercised

Setou below are the
Undiszounted potential futue o ontal payranis elanng o peniods follawing the exercise date of extension at a-e notincluded in the leasa
fer, and

Undazanrted tuture rental naymens alanng o oenods that a2 nsluded in the lease 12m as the areak Slanses aa not axoesiod 1099
exarazed

202"
Within five More than Within five Maie than
years five years YEUrs five years Toral
£m £m £n £m fm
Extension options expectod not to be exarcised 3 01 6.5 66
Termination options expected not to be
exercised 30 43 73

The Grous has lease zontracts that have nat yer commenced as at 37 Jecemoaer 2022 The total future lease paviments for these non-cancellable
lease contracts are £3 6 (207" F26T)

17. Deferred taxation

Pronerty,
Intangiole stant and Rotiremen: Other Jmung
assols SUISTEN Imventaes aoligation differences Total
£ £n £m £ £im £m
® A1 Januay 202° (9 9) {7 9) a6 47 5.1 (78
Fxchange adjusirents - - {0 {21} f02)
Acquission o7 sunsidiaty (note 13 (rm {03 - 02 N
Crediteds icharged) Tor the yearin the
Consohdated Income Statement {note 9) {035) 7.8) 26) )] J5 33
Credited for the vear m the Consohdated
Swaterren of Changes in Equity (note 9) - - - - 08 BE:]
At 31 December 2021 (11.0) (10.0) - 31 6.5 (11.4)
Exchange adjustments {0.4) (0.6) - - 0.3 (0.7)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 13} (0.2) {0.1) - - 0.2 (0.1}
Disposals of subsidiaries {note 5) 0.3 0.3 (0.3) (1.2) (0.5) (1.4)
Credited/(charged) for the year in the
Consclidated Income Statement {(note 9) 2.6 (2.4) 0.2 {0.8) 3.0 2.6
Credited for the year in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income (note 9} - - - 07 - 0.7

Charged for the year in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity (note 5)

Deferred tax asse’s

Deferred tax liabities

Deferred tax liability
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17. Deferred taxation continued
The deferred tax assar of £8 370 (2027 £6 5rm)inresoect of other trminy differences includes £4 32521 £39m) 0 redation to tax lossas
and SO 8m 2021 £2 400 i retauon to share pased nayieents The devar ed rax assath nisod i ol as there are expected o oe
suTicent taxable »ofits n the “oresceanle futare againa: which the deferred tax Assets can be wnilksed

IR

asset as acen recoynised N mespest oF otner tax losses of £7/7 6o net 1202
5 The deferred tax azset has not been recognisad As no capital gains aro exiocien (o

1

Y e

ne deferred tax latliues or caial gains against which the defe -ed tax asael could 2o o sel
the losses

£ nen) The lossas are gredorimancly canral
gene-ated in the ' eseeanle future and thao e are
Taereas na o e it on the carymng o was il of

(

No defer-od tax hahihty 15 recognised on lemporary diferences 0F £0 4m {2227 £7 2my) relaung 1o the unemrited earnings of overseas
sunsidiares as the Grou i able o control the imimngs of the reversal of these tempara-y differences and 1715 probasle that they will nat reve se
nthe foresesadle future The Graup does not exaect tis o crystaliise nto 4 cash expense in the near “uture

The UK headhine corparation tax rate for the year was 19 0% {2021 "3 0%) In the Spring Budget of 2021, the LK Sovernment announged that
fom 1 Apnl 2023 the rate of UK comomation tax will increase from 19% {0 25% This rate change was substanively enacted on 24 May 202° UK
defened ‘ax assels and habilmes have therefore been calzulated at a rate of 25% (2327, 25%)

18. Inventories

2921

Err

Raw matenals and consumrables 43
Work i srogress ‘0.7
Finished goods and goods for -esale 331
LR

The anount of rventoies expensed 1o the Consalidyed Income Statement in the year was £443 7m (2027 £333 8m) The value i nven ones
wrtten down and exdensed in the Congsolidated Inzone Siate nent dusig the yeas amounted *o £ 3m (2021 £341) The anount of nveniones
held at fair value less cost to sellirciudedin the above veas £mil (2027 Cnil)

19. Trade and other receivables

2027
Erm

Trade and cther current receivables
Trade ~ecewables 123
Presayments /3
Other recevables T2
Fair value dervatives 32
Contact assets 872
1302

The movenents in contrac: assets, and deferred inco re {note 21}, duning the year correspend to the completion of performance obligations
partially satisfied as at 31 December 2021 offset by contrac’s that are in 2rogress at 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

20. Cash and borrowings

2321
£m
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents 25
Ban<ave-dra” {note 21} o (7
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft 8

interest bearing loans and other borrowings

Amounts due within cne yea™ (nore 21}

Amounts due after mare than one year {note 22}

Leasa haxhiies ctassified as hadihizes hald far sale {note 15)
i ease lialives due wathin one year {(ncte 16)

Lease hamhties due afar more than one yea’ (note 16)

Net debt

Change in net debt

Ope-ating piofit

= M SONUINUING GIeralons A8 9
o disconanued aseranons 9
Taral Grouo operaung orofit 5710
Non cash rems 553
Operating cash flow before movement in working capitat 1128
. Net roverment in working capiial 6 8)
Changes m srovisions and employee penefits 29
Operating cash flow 1031
Tax paid 152)
Net financig costs paid 4
Caotal expenditu-e (359)
Proceeds on disnosal of non-current assets 37
Free cash flow 516
Dividends 2aid (note 17) 2123
Acquisiions oF subsidia ies (note 13) (136}
Disposals of subsidianes (note 3) 16
Amaortisation of costs associated with refinancing activities (note 7) {08)
Purchase of shares for empioyee senefit trust {18)
Issuc of new shares (note 25} 26
{ease additions, Larmmnations and remeasurements {note 16) (71

Leases disposed of (note 5)
Loans and borrowings disposed of (note 5)

interest on lease habihines (note 16)

Net debt decrease
Effect of exchange rate fluctuanons

Net dent at the bagnning of the year
Net debt at the end of the year
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20. Cash and borrowings continued

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Interest bearing loans and other borrowings and lease liabilities
AT T Lanuary
New loans and o7 owings
=epayments of loans and borowlngs
Payment of lease kabihties

Cos:s of refinancing dunng the year

2021
Fm

1601
553
@1

(103

Cash flows used in financing activities
Other changes
£ffect of exchange rate fluciuations
Amorisaton of costs associated with refinancing activizies (note 7)
Loans and borrowings disnosed of [note b}
_ease changes

=*ect of exchange rate fluctuations

New leases

Ternmations

Re measurarant

Acausitions of subsidianes

Msposals of subsidianes

Inlerest expense

Inzeres: said

160)

©8)
08

{c2
67
n

oA

39

0 8)

At 31 December

525

21. Current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Loans and borowings

Bank overdrafts

2077
£m

T2
07

T g

Trade and other current liabilities
Trade payables

Other raxation and social expenses
Accrued expenses

Deferred income

Other payables

/83
35
355
a7
37

1327

The amount of contract iabilities included in deferred income as a3 2ecember 2022 was £2 1m (2021, £4.7m) Dunng the year, £4.3m (2021

£6.1m) of revenue was recognised in ~espect of contract Iahilities present as at 1 January 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

22. Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Loans and horrowangs

Other non-current liabilities
Deferred considetanon on acguisons
Deferred governmeant gran’s

Accrued expenses

23. Provisions

Environmental  Restructunng Other Total

£mn £m £y Em

AT January 2027 21 07 30 58
“xchange adjusiments (01) - - {0 1)
Charged dunng the year - 45 04 49
Utihsed during the year - (15 (2 6) (A1)
Relessed duning the yea- i - (071)

2021

£n

Amounts due within one yea- 473
Amounta dug afrer more than one year and less than five years 2.4
64

ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISIONS

Frwvironmental provisions recognise the estineated cost of remediating contaminated land at a numaer of the Group's cperating sites, where it
15 considered prosable that the Group will be abliged 10 carry cut the necessary remediation work Primanly thessues identified relate to sites
acquired through acquisiiions of businesses. As a consequence of the nature of the liabilities, the smescales a.e uncertain and the provisions
represent the Directors’ best astimate of the associated costs The Group has sought expert external valuations where appropriate.

RESTRUCTURING PROVISIONS

Restructuring provisions represent the cash costs of clusing or rationalising coerations. The provisions rexesent the Directors’ bes? estimate of
ihe liabilities ansing and a-e expected 10 be settled within the next twelve months The provision of £3 6m at 31 December 2027 included £3 2m
relating to the closure of the Grouo's vanable message sign business that was announced in March 2021 £1 8m of this provigion has been
utihsed during 2022 and & further £1 5m charged, as explained m note 5.

OTHER PROVISIONS

Other provisions refate to varous obligatons including obligations in respect of onerous leases, property dilasidations and claims or disputes.
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24. Financial instruments
(A) MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS

Overview
The Goup has exdcsure w0 @ numrser o7 nsks associated with 125 use of financisl instruments

~

Thig note presents s¥oraticn anout the Group's 2x20sure 1o each 0f thesa 1sks, the & oud's oujectves, delizies and processes ‘or Teasu Ing
and managing nsk, and the Sroan's management of caoital Turther quantiatve dizclosures are ncluded thraughout these Consolidated
Srancal Slagtements

The Board of Dirgetar s has ovesatl responseahity for the estabiashment and oversighs of the Group's sk manageont fiantework

The Sronn’s fisk 1ranagement poilzies a-e established (o ident’y and analyse the sxs faced oy the Group, w0 set app opnate nisk hnes and
controls, and 1o monitor ns«s and adherence to limits Risk manage rent pohoes and sysiams are reviewed regularly (0 eflect changes in
rmarket conditions and the Group's activities The Group, through its taming and manageiren: standards and procedures, arms to develop a
disciphned and constructive conrol envirenment m which all employees understand their roles and obligatans

Ihe Gioup Audcht Committee oversees how management monitors comahanse with the Groud’s nsk managaimen: pohizies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management frameworkan relation to the rnizks faced by the Group A program ne of commercial, operating,
financial and third sarty reviews 12 10 2lace 10 assist the Groun Audit Coimnittee with ts assessment of the effectiveness of nsk management
and miernal coniol procedures

Credit risk

Credr: nsk s the nisk of fimangial loss to the Groun i a customer o7 counie party to a iinancial instrumen: fails o meet 113 contraztual obhgations,
and anses ‘ron cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial inst-uments and pancipally from the Group's - ecevaples #om customers The
maximum exdosu-e to credit fisk for recervables and other financial assets 1s represented by ther carrying amount

The Goup has a policy of insuning a suastantal majonty of -ecervanles in its UK businesses, which account for 43% (2021 49%) of the Gauss
‘rade recevanies Any residual umnsured (15K s spread across a significant number of custoTers In our LS businesses, which account for

A48% (2027 30%) o the Group's trade recenanles ou ooe aning corpanies have a nolioy o taking cut rade referances safore grantiing credit
llizs and selectuvely insuning against credr nswhere 1t 13 deemed apsoprate oy Tanagerent Purchase lin'is are estabhshed for each
zustame and ave reviewed ragularly Customers that fal o meet the Group's senchrark sradimworthiness may Tansact with *he Sroud only on
aprepayment basis. The G oup's othe overseas businesses operate an a simitar basis to the US As aresult of these polizies, imparment [osses
are not significan:

Liquidity risk

iquidity nis< s the risk that the Groun will not be able to meet its finanoal obligations as they fall due The Groun's aporcach 10 managing
lguidrty 15 to ensue, as far as possible, that 1t will always have sufimien' hguidity o meet s iabilines when due, under both normal and stress
conditions, without incurimg unacceptable osses o nsking damagez 10 the Gioud's ieputaton.

It1s the Group's cehicy to minnmise s haudity ns< n terms of imiting the amounts of loans and oo rowmngs matunng within the next "2 months
As at 31 December 2077 all such debt was covered by cash and cash equivalents nething to £24 5 positive current hguiciny (2027 £16 9}

The Grouns princinal UK revolving credit faciity was refinanced in November 2022 The new facitity 1s unsecu-ed, has a value of £250m and an
intial maturity in Noverrther 2026, with an option to extend this maturity by one year at the first anniversary Along with vanous other secured and
on demand lines of credit, including bank overd-afts, the Grouo has access to bank porrowing faciities of £262 2m a1 37 Dezember 2027 (2071
£287 3m)

in additien, 1n 2079 the Groun signed an agreement with an nstiiutional investor for a prvate placement of $70m new seror unsecured notes
("Semor Unsecured Notes”). The sssue consisted of two equaf tranches with matunties in June 2026 and June 2328 respectively.

At 31 December 2022, the Oroup’s total committed borrowang faciites were £309 0 (2021 £327 6m) and the amount undrawn at this date was
£201 6m (2077 F202.4m)

Market risk

Market risk is *he risk that changes in markar onices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodily prices will affect the Group's
income or the value of its holdings of financial nstruments The abjective of maiket risk management I1s to manage and control maiket iisk
exposures within acceplaple parameters, while optimising the -eturn on sk The Group buys and sells derwatives in the ordinary course o°
business, and also ncurs financial haiities, in order to manage market riskg All such transactions are carried cut within the guideiines set by the
Board. Refer to note 24(f) for further details.

Counterparty risk

A group of relationship banks provides the bulk of the banking services, with ore-approved credit limits set for each institution Financial
dervatives may be en‘ered into with ‘hese core banks and the underlying credit exposure *o these instruments is included when considering
the credit exposure to the counterparties At the end of 2022 credit exposure including cash deposiced did not exceed £6.8m with any single
Institution (2021 £6 2my).

Currency risk

The Group pubhshes its Consolidated Financial Statements in Sterhing, but conducts business in several foreign cur-encies, including signficant
operanons based in the US This results in foreign currency exchange nisx due te exchange rate movements, which will affect the Group's
rransaction costs and, more significantly, the translation o the results and net assets of its foreign operations. The Group's ranslation reserve
mncludes a gamn of £27 4m (20271 1oss of £2 3m), prncipaily as a ~esult of Ste'ling's depreciation against the US Dollar in 2022, resresaning this
ranslation effect on overseas earnings and net assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

24 Financial instruments continued
The tading cur-ency of each operation 15 o:adommantly 0 the sa-re denonenanon However, the Group uses “orward exchange contrasts 1o
minTise cuTensy sk whee a3 onnale The Sroun does Aot aooly hedge azlouning fo these denvative finanzial mstumeats

The Groun has hedgad its investment ints US operations vay of iinancing the acquisimons thiough ke denonunanicns of 125 bana He owings
and the Senior Unsecur=d Notes The Group's mvas ients it other subsidiones a-2 not hedged because fluctuatons on oanslation of tharr
assets N Swerlng are no” sigmifisant To the Groun

Interest rate risk

the Semor Lngecued NDles azcount for 55% 12021 4270 0 *he Uroun's ouisianding gross bonowings at 31 Docencoer 2322 and athact a fiked
rate of Interest avoraging 3 92% . 2027 3 92%) per annun Al othe borowings sea mierest at floaing rates At the current ume the Group feels
that this ratin b hiked 1o floating horrowings s anpoprate 2ut continues to Toniar i n the context of econonic indicatois and wider market
conditions The Grouo believes that usng fixed interes! rate tor short Lerm day (o day trading is not aporopriate

Insurance
The Groun surchases insuranse for comme:cial, legal and cont
commercially viable.

tual reasons The Groud retains misurable ns< where extainal insurance is not

Capital management

The Group maintains a strong casital base so as o mamtam nvestor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain ‘uture develooment of the
business The Board monitors both the demographic sa-ead of sharehoide-s, as well as the retun, which the G-oun defines as total sha-cholders’
aquity and the level of dindends 1o 2 dinary shareholders

The Boa'd see<3 (o naintain a Halanse betwaen the highe ~eturns that mmight ne passible with igher levels of boniowings and the advantayes
and secuaty afforded by a sound capital posttion

There a2 fmanzial covenants asscoated with the Orouns sorrowings, which areinteres: cover and EBITDA o net dent The Gioup com®ortanly

conraled with these covenanis in 20722 and 2027, as se7 outin the Ope-ational & Sinancial Review on pages 22 1o 31
Theie were no signdficant changes i the Graud's approach 1o caodal managerment during the year

(BY TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The zable selow sets out the Group's accounting classiticanon of s inancial asze.s and lamhties and ther ‘a7 values as at 31 Decemper The

. Fan values of all financial asses and habihities are not matenally different <o the carrying values
Designated at Amortised Total carrying
fair value cost value Fair value

£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents net of oank overdraft - 181 81 181

Loans and other bo:rowings due within one year - [12) 1.2} (1.2)
Loans and borrowings due afte more than one year - (121 3) {121 0} {121.0)
Lease Habiities classified as held for sale - (17 (1.7} (17
Lease habilities due within one year - [88) (B 8) (8.8)
Lease liablities due afier more than one year - (331 (30.1) {30.1)
Derivative assets a2 - 02 02
(ther assets - 1735 "135 1135
Orher habilities - {(""80) (" 18.6) {118 6)
Total at 31 Decembe 2027 02 (*198) {149 5) {149.6)
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24. Financial instruments continued

Fair value hierarchy
The rande oelow analyses nanoial inst uments carred at far value, Dy valuation method The d

20 lavels have neen dehined as follows

cevel T unadusted quoted poces . actve imarkets foridenucal assats o liahilities
evel 7 mputs othe thar guoted proes included within Level 1 thas are auservable for tne 3zzer o sty erhor as o direct once or mdirectly
derreed from ooes

_ovel 3 1npuss “or the asset o7 hanility That ave not nased on oosarvable Taket data

Level ~ Level 3 Total
[N m £m

bamincii o darsvshed ikt i

Je-wvatve financial assets - a2 - 07z
Totalat 31 December 2021 - 0z - 02

At 31 December 2022 the Group did not have any assets or habiliues classified at Level 1 or _evel 310 the fai- value hierarchy (2021 ni). There
have been no transfers in any direciion in the year
The Groun's hnancial agsets excluding short term recevables, consist mainly of cash and call deposit acooun:s

Whe e cash su-pluses anse in the shart term, interest 1s earned Sased on a floating rate elated 10 vank base rate or SONIASO-R/ELRIBOR
Whe e the Groups fundimg requiresrents allow longer terminvestrent of surplus cash, management will »eview availlasle options to oblan “he
hest possinle return whilst maintaining an appropnate degree of access to the funds

The Group's fSinarcial iabilizies, excluding ahottterir crediiors, are set our below Fixed -ale financial habihties comprise LS Dollar dencminated
Senior Unsecured Motes Sloating ate finanaal haodities 2o prse Sterhing, Eurn and US Dolla- bank loans and overdiats, and lease aoiliies
The Aoaung rate aan< loans and aveidiaf*s pear interest at -ates ralated "o ban< 2ase -ates or SONIA/SO7R/ZLRIBOR The floatung -ares or the
lease labilities are determmined using the Groun's increrental borrowing -ate, being the -ate that *he lessee would have to Jay to borrow the “unds
necessary 1o chtain an asse? of simila: value in a simular econarric envirenment with similar Te'ms and condions

Zach subsidiary has financial assets and hasihites which are predormminantly in the same denorrination as thar subsidiary's functional currency
The financial assets and haohties not denomimated in the tunctional cur-ency of these entriies are insignificant o the Group

Cetan UK subsicianes hold Euro £mi 12020 £9 7m) and US Dollar £66 7n0 (2021 £51.9m) denominated mte-est beanng loans which are
predominantly used 1o fund the Groun's Curcoean and United Stales operations and include £66 71 (2021 £67 61) designaled as a hedge of
the net mvestnent in a ‘oreign operation The foreign curency 1085 of £4 8m {2627 gain of £8.6m) “or the o*fectve sortion was recognised in
the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensie Income netted agains: exchange differences on translation of foreign ooerations Any meffestive
po-tion ~ecognised in the Conschidared Income Statement 1s tnsigmificant

Fixed rate financial liabilities

Wweighted

average

Weighted period for
average  which rates
nierest rate fixed
% Years

US Dollar at 31 December 2021 39 &0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

24. Financial instruments continued
(CYMATURITY PROFILE

he table below 325 out the contaziual cash fows ass
analysed by maturity

sated wth the Srouw's Ananzial liabibties, including estimatad nterast pay nants,

Due hetween  Due belween Ju= after
Carrying Sontantual Jue within ane and wwoand  moe than five
AMounis i one yea’ WO yea s flve years yea s

£m £mn £ £ £ £

el

Secured loans and

baT owings Floazing 18 {18} QIS 03] {02y -
Lnsecyred lcans and

Do owInNgs Floating 635 (736) (17 (719 - -
Senio- Unsecured Notes 3.9% 576 {64) 20 20 31 5) 28 5)
Lease labilities Sloanng 389 {38 9} {8 8) 70 (1" 8) ey

. cease habilties classihed as

held for sale “ioating 7 a7 {0 86) {08) 95 -
Othe- liaaihites nia 237 {125, (124 5) (04 - -
To*alat 31 Deceber 2321 2872 {3950) {1387) (327) {44 0y (396)

The unsecured banx horrowings bear interest based on SONIA/SOFR/ELRIBOR, plus a margin {as defined in -he faciities agreement) which
varies depending on the G-ouo's ratio of net debt 10 EBITDA The secured loans and bor-owings are held oy subsidianes in the LSA and sear
Interest at varying rates iinked to underlying US bond imarxets.

The Group had the following undrawn committed facihities at 37 December. in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met

2321
fin

2024

Undrawn commit:ed bor-owing facilities

(D) FAIR VALUES

The fair value of “orward cur-ency exchange contracts realised in the Consolidated Income Statement as par: of farr value derivatives amounted
to £ril (2027 £nil) The farr values of the Group's other finanaial mstruments at 31 December 2022 and 2021 we-e not materially different to ther
carrying value Fair values we-e calculared using market rates where available, otherwise cash flows were discounted at drevailing rates.

tmparrment charges of £6 411{2027 £76 0m) were recognised in respect of the carnying values of non-cuirent assets as detaled innotes 13, 74
and 16,

(E) CREDIT RISK

Exposure to credit risk

The exposure to credit ris< is substantially ritigated by the credit insurance employed by the Group. In the aosence of thisinsurance the
maximum credit exposure on the carrying value of financial assets at the reporting date was®

Carrying amount

Trade and other ~ecervables and contract assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash cquivaten:s at the end of the year

Total
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24, Financial instruments continued
Carrying value of trade receivables by geography

Surone
Nocth Amsina

Rest o' the world

Total

Carrying value of trade receivables by business segment

Roads & Security
Fngineered Selutions
Galvamzing Service

Total

173

Impairment losses

The Graup mamtams a level of credit insurance covering a significans par: of 1§ trade ~ecevanles which mitigates agaimst 2ossible Impanmeant
losses Anrrparment assessment 13 perfarmed at each renorting date to assess whether there has been a significan: increase in the c-edit

nsk Txoected credr loss 5 are caloulated ndmdually for cach business withun the Group and a7e based or hstonizal observed default -ates,
adjusted for forwa d-looking info manon Whilst giooal econo mies have continued ther post-pande e ecavery in 2022, supnly chain and
nflatanaiy chatlenges 3 e aresent and thess remains uncatanty & ound condrtions i the short o redium tern parncularly n the UK Az such,
*he Groud ebeves the nisk of an inseased nurrbes of defaul's stll exis's Accordingly, defaul: [0ss rates incaroo-ate forward-looking intormation
oased on availlalle racioeconoms mformanon | he assessent of the corretation natween forecast economic condinans and exnected future
credit losses 1s an estimate sutis not determened (o De @ significant estimate as the Group does not expect futwe credit lesses to be matanally
different 1o the ¢ edit losses estmated at the reporung date The charge to the Consolidated Income Staterrent in the year in respect o the
expected loss of frade recervables was £0 4 {2021 £0 7m) The Groun does nat require collaterabin resnect of trade and other recevables The
Group does not have Tade “ecevables o contract assers for which no loss atlowance 1s recognised because of collazeral

I he ageing of rrade recewabdles at the redorting date was

2027
Gross Provisions Gross Prowvisions Net
£m i £m £
No’ nast due R 749 (0.2) 74 7
Pas: duc 1-30 days 230 an 255
FPas due 31-120 days 949 (03) 96
Pas: due mere than 120 days 61 (36) 25
Total 165 (42) 1123
The movemenis in srovisions formasairnent of trade receivables asc as follows
£m
At January 2021 63
Disposal of subsidiary (0.7)
Charged in the year 0.1

Utilrsed during the year _ {2.1)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

24. Financial instruments continued
(F} MARKET RISK — SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

[ managing interest e and o ency 158 the Group ams to - aduse e nnoact oF short term flustuations on the Grous's earnings Over the

lenger tern, howeves perTaren: changes m “‘wreign exchange and e 25t sates Tay have an impact on consolidated eanings At the end of the
ranGiIng Heaods, the eftants of hyaothetical charges i ores: and currency rares ae as ‘allows

+ Based on average rorh ond nel deb balances
the yoa's ‘esulwodld have seen £ 5m whie

+ Based on 3 " 0% weakenng i Stecling agamst all sucencies thooughous the year e imioast on the total gioud underving 0 eaung 2240 0
the Consoldated Incarme Staterrent would have peen a gain o° £6 8m and the impact on equity would have been an ncrease of £29 One

- Bascdon a 12% strengthering in Sterling against all cur-ensses *hroughout the year, the wmpact on the total groun undestying aperating profs
i the Consolidazed Income Sraterent would have oeen o loss of £5 6mr and the umzast on equity would have been a decrease 0 £237m

25. Called up share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid
80 0 ordinary shares of 252 each {2021 79 8my)

021 03m), realising £1 97 (2027 £2 Him)

In 2022 the Companyssued 3 2m shares under 1's vanous share ooion scheme:
Zach ordhinary share carnes equal voung nghts and there a-e no restrictions on any shae
OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OVER THE COMPANY'S SHARES

The Group ooerates a numoe of erployee share schemes categonsed as follows

< Bava AsVau oo, SAY T schomes - BAYZ S 2 LA, quaify ng morthly savings soaene fashtanieg the nusiase of snares at 3 d scount as
parmited by the apoheable legislaton [curently dp to a maximeum discouns oF 20%) SAYE ootions may be exercised in the cvent of a change
of control to the extent permitted by the -ules of the scheme Such schemes ace typically issued annually, ase erther three or Tive years and

. a-e offered to enoloyees In the LK,

. onig fenm izentve Plans CLTIPY and Execctive Srare Gotior Schames CzSuS) — [he Rerareation Zommitize may, al s diseatian,
siructute awasds as anpproved awards corpnsing a tax quahfying oouon granted under both the ESCS and I TIP awards LTIP awards ae at
nil cost and £305)13 a costed ootian, and

- Buy-out awards — On joining the Company, caitan senior managers forfeitad long mern incentive awasds at ther drevious emaloyer The
Company comoensated the for these awards by grantng awards over Hil & Smith shares The awards ae at nil cost

The number of options outatanding by scheme s as follows

2021
Number Option Numner Option
of shares price range {p} o shares arice range (o)
SAVE schemes ks /14243 89 pto 14850
_TIP awards 499,741 -
ESOS awards ® 385,489 216p 10 7,17 3p
Buy-out awards 459255 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,649,428
oxercizable at the year end 431715
Not exercisable at the yea end 1,197,773
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,649,428

" Options may be exercised early urder the terms of this scheme If employees meet the crnitena of 'good leaver', which encomoasses circumstances such as
retirernent or redundancy, otherase, awards wil vestif the participants continue to be in armployment at the vesting date

~ vesting of awards under the LTI= and E50S scnemes 1s subject to various financial performance critena.

The remaining weighted ave-age Iife of the outstanding share options is 3 years 17 months (2021- 3 years 3 months)
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25. Called up share capita! continued
The mroventent and weighlad averaye axeiise onces of share options dunng the year are as follows

SINIWILYLS TviONVYNIA

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Millions of exercise Millions of
price (p) options price {p) options
2022 2021 2021
Qutatanding al the bheanning of the y=ar 212 i
Granted during the year 471 0.4
kxernisad durning the year {843) 03
“ansed dunng the year (907) (0.2}
Outstanding at the end of the year 635 1.7

The weighted average share 27ice on the dates of exercise of shase options during the year was 1.550p (2021 1,567p), and the weaighted average
fair value of options and awards granted in the year was 560p (2021 1,16/p) The waighted average exercise anice of outstanding options
exercisanle at the year end was 1,103p (20271 1.052p). The prior year weighted average exarcise price of gutstanding onons exercisadle at

the yea” end, has been restated 10 1.052p -om 566p, as a result of a clerical error This restaement does not maact the arior year share based
saynent chalge disclosed

Share-based payments - options

The farr vatue of se-vices recerved in-eturn “or share couons granied is measured by reference 1o the farr value of the share options granted

The estimate of the “ar- value o the servizes -ccoived 18 measured based on the Black—-Scholes model whee vesting 1s based on non-market
conditions, or a Monte Carlo Simulation where vesung s based on maket conditions The conrractual life s the life of the opticn o questen and
the growth in dividend yizld 15 baged oa the 2est current estimate of “‘uture yields aver the contraciual pericd

1he expected volatihty 15 wholly 2ased on the histonical volazility
adjusred for any exnected changas to future volatldy due o pubhc

I~ulated oased on “he waighted average remaiming iie of the sha-2 onuons),
Iy avallanle information

Share gptions have peen granted ‘o gualfying emaloyees in hne with either HM Qevenue & Customs aparoved o unaduroved schemes Othes .
-han the _TIF and Buy-out awards, the s2ike price ‘o the oouon s Tade pased on the nrarxet values of shares at the date the oiuon s offerad

As explained in the Directors Rermune ation Report on pages 92 10 104, bonuses awarded to the Executive Drectors inglude an elemen: awarded
in shares, deferred for a peniod of two years The Group has detenmined the fair value of such awards o be equal 1o therr cash equivalent The
resulting charge is Included n the exaonse ansing from share based sayments in the year to which the awards relate

The key assumotions for the grants i the cusrent and prior year were as follows

2021
Buy-out Buy-out
awards SAYE LTIP awards
Zxnected share price volatlity (%) 26%/16% 32% 0%
Dividend yield (%) 1 55% 0.0% 0 0%
Option life (years) 345 3 a8
sk free interest 1ate (%) 0 5%/0.1% 02% 0%

The ‘otal expense recogrised for the penod ansing from share based payments 1s as follows:

2321

£

zquity-settled 2.5
Cash-settled 0.3
Total expensed during the year 2.8

The carrying amount of the liability in relation to cash-settled share based payments at the end of the year was £0.3m (2021: £0.7m)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

26. Guarantees and other financial commitments
(A} GUARANTEES

Subsidiary audit exemnptions

Fiil & Smith PLC has issued quarantees over the frabiities of the 'ollowing o edorinantly non-tading UK suzsidianes as at 31 Jecembor 2072
under Section 4/9C oi the Comrpanies Al 2006 These entulies are exeny: fro 1 the enuirements of the Ast relanng to the audi o indradual
ACCOUNTS by virtue o Section 4794 of the Act

Company Name Company Number
gorgen Pioe Suppots umited 0oa26044
Bergen Pine Suppoerts Group imited C1m3en
il & 5ith {(Internanicnal) Limiced 11331411
Hill & Smuth {Americas) Limized 07269581
Hill & Smith {Amenzas) 2 amied 10783462
Hill & Smith {Amenizas) 3 _imited 12060645
Hill & Smith {France) Limted 06768033
Hilb & Smith Overseas Limited 06674400
Hill & Smith Treasu-y) Limited 06874150
Hill & Snuth (USA) Limiced 0687677
Hardsa® Barriers | irred 02791285
Cooaco Holdings _imited 08377270
Signnost Solunong Lirrred J1-384535
Mallaine Minor Structures & Produsts Lid 13717429
Bowarer Doors Limited 13738120

. “xpamet Limited 137486793
VME Newsae Lirred 12968560
Varley & Sulliver Limized 00330433
Ash & Lacy Limited 10047159
Ash & Lacy Manufastunng Limved 030035684
Ash & Lacy Services Limited 02798286
Hawkshead Prope-ties Limited 00562451
Redman Fisher Engimeenng Larited 00169316
Hill & Sith {Australia) Limited 14411306
Widnes Galvanising Limrited 02206443

The Group had aa financial gua-antee contracts outstanding as a* 31 Decerrber 2022,

(B) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Contracted for hut not provided i the accounts

(C) OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES

The *otal future minimum commitmonts recervasle under non cancellable operating leases are analysed as follows

2021

Land and cand and
Buildings Buidings Other
£m £m £m

Group

Within one year o 46
Between one and five years 11
ARerfve years - -
0" 5.7
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27. Pensions
TOTAL

Tha wotal Gious airemen et 3

LK D erseas 2020

£ Lm £ir
Total far value of schemie ass AR 34 657
Presen: value of schene fundoed anligations 59 5) 78 773
Presenl value of scheme unfunded osligations - - - 0N G.2)
Retiremant benefit obligation A {1 &) ("2 3)

UNITED KINGDOM
ihe Groud opeiates one man ponsion schame iy tae UK, the Hill & Smita 2016 Person Schene [the Scheme’), aiovizing bensflitg ona
defined benefit and defined coninbution basis The Scheme is closed to future accrual and s subject 'o the statutary schere specific funding
requirements outlined in UK leqgislation The weighted average maturty (the ‘durazion’) of the defined benefit plan abbgations at the end of the
reno-ting penod 1s approximately 11 years {2021, 14 years)

The assets of the Scheme ae adrimistered by Trustees and are ken entirely sesarate ‘rom thosea of the Groun. The Trustees underrake a full
funding valuation of the Scheme evary three years, which s used to determine the -ates at which the Grouo cantinutes 1o the Scheme, with the
oojectve of oroviding the funds ~egured to meet nensicn obligatons as they faft due

The Group rerraimns actively engaged in dhalogue with the Scheme's Trustees with cega-d to managemen?, funding and inves.ireant suategy

The previous tnenmal funding valuation of the Scheme as at Apail 2019 was finalised in 2020, alongside an uadate ' the mvestment

strateqgy resutting in the Grou) agreeing a deficit recovery plan with the Trustees that requires cash contisutions of £3 7m per annun until
Sentemrber 2027

The mos recen: of these fiznmial valuaions s 0 amogress having an e¥ecive date of 5 Apnl 2022 The oreliminary results o this valuation have
2ceennzoraocated inthe undated 1A% 13 oosimion ar 31 Decerba 2222 oy an indelendent qualified actuary

The Consolidated Income Statement for the yea  nciudes a zensian charge within oaerating profit of £3 0ne {2027 £3 1m), which includes the
coests of the defined contrbunion and the defined senefit sections of the Schere Al actuanal gains and losses are 1ccognised rrmnediately in the
Consohdaied Statement of Comarshensive Income

Tha Scheme expases the Group ‘o a numbes o risks, the moast sigrfizant baing

Risk Description
Volatlle asset The defined benefi. obligation 1s calculated using a discount -ate set with reference to fugh quality corporate bond yields. If
retuins assets underperform agamst this discount rate, this will create & plan de®icit The Scheme holds a prapo-tion of its assets

N growth assers which are expected to outperforn: corporate bonds in the long term However, returns are likely to be
volatile in the short term, potentially resulting in short tferm cash requirerments and an increase in the defict recarded in the
Consolidated Statement of Finanaial Pasition The allocation 10 growth asseta 1s monetored o ensure it rermains aporoonates
given the Scheme’s long tarm abjectives

Changesin A decrease in corporate bond yields witl increase the *unding and accounting habidities, although this will be partally offset by
tond yields an mecrease in the value of the Scheme's investments in _iability Drven Investment and bond funds.
Inflation nisk A signiticant prooortion ¢f the defined senefit ealigation s ndexed in ine with price inflation, with higher inflation leading to

higher liabiites This nisk will be partially offset oy the Scheme's Liability Driven Investments, which will increase in value
hine with market inflation expectations.

e expectancy  The majonty of the Scheme's obligations are to provide a pension for the life of 2ach of the members, so Increases in Iife
expectancy will resul® in an increase In the haxities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

27. Pensions continued
The principal assumptions used to value the Scheme’s liabilities at 31 December

2021

Rare of increase n salaes n/A
Rae of NS 2ase N DENSICNS Jay1ment 33
Migzountrae HIERR
Inflation — *P 359,
Inflasign CRI 279,
Metaly table 114%177%
CMI 2020

L 25%

The mortality assumotions imaly the following expected future Iifetimes from age 63

22 4 years
24 3 years

Males currently aged 4b
cemales cuently aged 45
tMales currently aged 65 271 years

“erales cuvently aged 65 foy L] : 23 3 years

The assuotions have bean chosen oy the Directors fromt a range of possible actuanal assumptions which, due to the tirrescales covered, may
not be borne cut in oractce 1he Group takes advice f-om an indenendent actuary regarding the approonateness of the assumsuong used
Juang the latar past of 2027 and throughout 2022, shor-term inflztion n the UK has been sigrificantly gher than we have seenin recent
years The Groun haz made an allowanze for this high inflation experience within the as 3

ries of tha Schere Over the durgtion of “he Scheme's
hamhties, marke” expectancas of in‘lation {which have been used "o derive the 1nflation assumptions above) ase significantly lower than this
recen: expenence

Assets and liabilities

The Scheme holds assets and labilities in respect of deined contrioution Denefits which are equal i valuc and are excluded from the following
figures The fair values of Scheme assets in raspect of the defined Hene® scheme, which are notinvended 1o se realised 1 the short term and
may oe subject to signdican: changs befors they are realised are derailad aelow In additon, the value of the Scheme abities, whichs derwved
From cash flow projections over an average oenod of aporoxirrately 17 years {the weighted average te'm matunty of the Scherne’s hatablies) and
which s therefore inherently unceram is also set out below

Market value JENENCWVEIT]

2022 2021
£im

Assets

Squities 73
Bonds 258
With profits aolicies 09
labdity Daven Investment (LDE) funds 16.6
Cash 5.2
Alternatives* 0.0
Total fair value of Scheme assets 67.8
Present value of Scheme funded obligatians (69.5)

Retirement benefit obligation

* Alternatives are investments in asseat clazsas other than tradibional equities, bonds, property and cash They include investmeants in piwate equity private credit,
hadge funds, infrastructure, and renewable 21213y investments

In 2017 the Group and the Trustees undertook an investment review of the Scheme The intention o* the strategy for the Scheme s to reduce

a proportion of interest rate and inflation nsk by investing a portion of the Scheme's assets in Liability Driven investment funds This strategy
resulted in an inral shi‘s petween bonds and LD funds in the asset categories in 2017 The strategy was reassessed as part of the Apnt 2019
trienmial valuation exercise, which resultad in a further shift from growth assets 10 bonds n 2020, reducing the level af nisk in the Scheme's

asset sirategy The Scheme's LDE invesimant 1S structured as investment in a nunrber of unit-linked funds of shert and long dated nominal and
index-linked government sonds, some of which are leveraged, held with the Scherne’s investment manager Thig s designed o reflect the size
and shape of the Scheme’s interast rate and mflation exposure, The Aprit 2022 triennial valuation exercise 1s substantially comoalete and there has
been no further change to the 2ieviously agreed strategy.
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27. Pensions continueg

Assetsin the bonds and equinies categones, which account for aso-oximmarely 33% (2021 54%) of total Scherre assets, have guoted maiket
onses inactve matke’s Exaluding sash, ine salance of £24 6m rearesents the Schemesinvesimantin i 01 funds and Secure Income Asset
“unds The D0 funds are invested iminfiauon inked bonds issued by the UK Sovernrent as well as ‘xed rane aends Secure Income Assets
—unds Altenatrves) are nvested in 3 diversified porfolio of mfrast uctuce delits, orvate corposate dests and
‘hese tinds 1o changes oy intereg ra-es
deterrined o a sunsl of poservable har<e: data

Total expense recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement

eal estate dasts The sensitivity of
Teasdred usirg hedymg rulinles Where asset prices ae no' di ety dervasle, an acourale price 1s

2027

Defined Defined Sehined Defined

contribution henefit contibuuen benefit
schemes schemes schemes schemes Total
£m £m Em £fm £m
CUTTENT Service So5ts : 2" - 2.1
Expenses ] 05 T0
Charge to operating profit 26 05 31

Intevest on net Schere defioit - 072 0

Total charged to profit before tax 26 07 33

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

Onening defined beneit aoligatons
Past servioe zost
Interest cost

Actuanal {gain)/loss ansing from

W

Financial assumpiions
Demagrashis assumptons

=xpenence adjustrent

Bencfits Daid {40)
Closing defined benefit abligations
Changes in fair values of Scheme assets

2021

£m

Opening fair value of assets 620
Inteest income 07
Return on olan assets excluding interest ncome (03}
Employer contributions 36
Bencfts oaud (4.0
Closing fair value of assets 61.8
Actual return on Scheme assets 0.2
Expected employer contributions in the following year
Defined benefit scheme 4.1
Defined contnbution schemes 2.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

27. Pensions continued
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

% of Scheme Qg
assets/ assets! 2021
liabilities hanhies £
alury on plan assels excluding inte-est incone ) (02
Changes i assuratons undelying tho present value 0F Sooente onliganans E 34
4 29

Amount recognised in the year

The table celow shows the senaitvity of the Consolidated Sratement of Financial Posiion o certain changes inthe significant sension assumptions

Inz-easein Decreasen

Balance 2eNSInNg JeNSIONS Giscount Discount Inflation Inflation Life Life
at 31 Jayment DayImen. rate ate rate ate exoeclancy exDeclancy
DERIINLET (+01%pa) 01%pa) (+0"%oa) (01%pa) (+01%pa) {0 %pa) [+ year) (-1 yean)
£ £m £Em EFm £m £m £ £m

Value of funded
noligations 517 LN (50.9) 519 517 L1 (53 5} {49 3)

Farvalue of

nlan assets 449 449 449 449 449 449 449 449
Deficit (6 8) i6 2) (60 7 0) {6 8) 67 (86) 4 4)

The sensitivity analyses anave have been determined based on a method that exiranclates the impact on the dofined henefit obhigation

as aresult of changes m kay assuTplions occurming &' the end of the year The sensitivity analyses are nased on a change in a significan:
assuiration, keeping all other assurphions constant As such the sensitvity analyses may nat e resresentatve of an actual change in the
dafined baaeft ooligation as mis unh<ely that changes in assunptions would accu misalation finm on2 anothe”

Ihe Groun has considered the require ments of 1-4C "4 The terrs o the Scheme give the $roup the right to recover any surplus assets i1 the
Schenre upon wind uz and thelefore rranagerment have concluded that there 1s no Impact on The amrounts ccognised in resaes: of etiremrent
henefit abligations

OVERSEAS
Ihe Groun operared two overseas pension schees in “rance and the USA duning the year As arasiit oF the sale of France Galva {see note 3),
asat 37 December 2022 the Gioud now operates Just one overseas pension scheme in the USA
In the USA, Borgen Pipe Suppo-ts, Inc ooerates a defined benefit pension sian comprising cur-en: and deferred pensione~s such that no
future benefits accrue The average duration of the defined benefi olan oohgation at the end of the resarting period 15 asnroximaiely 8 years
(2327 "0Oyears)
The Groun also operates defined contriaution olans in a number o° other overseas operations. The amount contibuted 10 these plans duning the
yearwas £1.1m (2027 £1.0m)
The Consoldated incomre Statement fo the year includes a pension charge within aperating profit of £1.3m (2027 £1 2m), which includes the
costs of the defined contizution schemes and the defined benefit schemes A further chasge o £0 21 is included in the profit “rom discontinued
Operalons.

ctuanal valuations of the above schemes were camed out by indedendent actuanes as at 31 Decenmnber 2022 All actuarial gains and losses are
recognised iImmediately 1n the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The principal assumptions used by the actuaries

2021
France* USA France
Rate of increase in salaries R 0.00% 2.50%
discount rate 2 75% 0 98%/0 b%
Inflation 000% 2.00%

Mortality table 2074 50A  THOO-02, TFOQ-02

* Avaluation of the Franch schame was underia<en immediately pnor to the France Galva disposal on 4 October 2022
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27. Pensions continued

Assets and liabilities

The tar vaiies 0° schome assets whizh gare notintended (o be realised in the shor e and ay Do sub)f
shey are realised, and the value of the sche e habilnies, which s denved from cash flow D oecions Svar long 5
1mherently unceam, a'e as ollows

SIgnFeant change nefore
enads and whizh s therefore

Market Marke:
Value Value
2022 2321

£m £

Assets

Cashand othern insured fixed interes: assets

Total fair value of scheme assets
Present value of scheme fundead obhgations

Pregent value of scheme unfunded o2hgations

Retirement benefit obligation 16}

Cash and othe msured fued nterest assets - where assets are held in cash or a policy with a fixed interest asser allocation, the expected long
term rate ot retuon 1 ta<en To he the vields generally orevading on such assets as a* he year end date

Total expense recognised in the Consclidated Income Statement

2007
Defined Defined Defined Defined
contribution benefit contrzunon senefis
schemes schemes schemes soheres Total
£m £m £ £m £
Current sevvice cost and exdenses R i.0 a2 12
Charge to operating profit 10 07 T2
Interest on net sension schame defr
includad within orofit from disconinued
opeationg - _
Total charged to profit for the year 10 0.2 12
Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
2027
£m
Opeming defined benefi: obligation 8.8
Current seivice COsts Q7
inzerast cost on scheme obligations 0"
Actuanal {gaing)/losses ansing from
-inancial assumplions {04)
Jemographuc adjustments (03
=xnenance adjustment an
Benefits naid 02
Tisposal of subsidiary -
Cxchange adjustments (03)
Closing defined benefit obligation 8.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

27. Pensions continued
Changes in fair values of scheme assets

Openny far value of asses

Roturn on olan assets excluding nverest mcame
lirerest on plan assets

Admin expenses

Renefims pair

Disnonsal of subsidiary

=xchange adjustments

Closing fair value of assets

Actual return on scheme assets

Expected employer contributions in the following year
Jefined benefic schenres

Nefined contiouton schemes

Amounts recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

% of scheme % of scheme
assets/ assets/ 2021
liabilities llabiities £
“xosience loss on scheme obligations 3 1 M
Retum on Zlan assets excluding interest ncome -
Changes 1n assumotions underlying the present value of scherre obligaticns 9 0.6
-xchange “ate adjusiment on assets and habilities g Ch
Amount recognised in the year 13 10

The Groua considers thar any reasonable sensiivities asnhed 12 the assunrphions for the overseas schemes would not have 4 matenahimpact on
the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. Related party transactions

As explamed in note 6, the xey management sersonnef are considered o be the Board of Directors of Hill & Smith PLC and the members of the
Cxecutive Board who are not also Directors of Hill & Smith PLC The Board of Directors’ rermuneration can be seen in the Directos’ Remuneration
Report on pages 92 0 104 The cormbinad remunaration of key manageTent personnal 2an be seen in note 612 the financial stafements on

page 147

29. Subsequent events

I “ebruary 2023, the Group acquned Enduro Composites, ne 1 Enduro’) for aniritial cash corsideratior of £08 7m, 01 a dest and cash free
pasis —nduro, located in Houslon, 1exas, 1s a designer, manufacturer and supolicr of engineered composite soluuions ‘ocused on industrial and
nfrastructure market segments 1ts products can be used in a wide variety of applications in conditions that require high strength, hght weight
and resistance to corrosian

Ir W3 ch 2323, the Group acquired Korns Galvaizing Company Ine (Korns') for a cash consideration of £9 4m, on a d=bt and cash frea basis
Korns, focated in Johnstown, Pennsybhvamia, has a single site specialsing i spin galvarnzing and has a customer base spread acioss a wide
range of infrastructure rela‘ed end rma-kes, including commercial construction, fire protection, ol & gas and utilities.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2022

Restated
2021
Notes £m
Non-current assets
Tangible assers o3
Righr-0%-use assens C4
lnvestments 37298
3303
Debtors due in more than one year Q4 7
4245
Current assets
Debtors 12.8
Cash and cash equivalents 01
12.9
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Bank Ioans and overdrafts " 2)
Lease hasilmes 07
Other creditorg 159 8)
RAND]
Net current liabilities 158 2)
Total assets less current liabilities 366 3
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (369
Provisions: pension liabilities (02
Net assets 372972
Share capital and reserves
Called up shae capial 200
Shate prermium 40.9
Capral redemption reserve g2
Rerained eainings 2681
Total equity - 3252

The Company has taken advantage of the exempuaon permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to publish its individual profit and
Inss account and related notes The Company made a profit attirinutable <o the equity shareholders of £12 Tmin the year (2027 £34 6m)

Approved by the Board of Directos on 8 March 2023 and signed on its behalf by

A C Giddins H K Nichols
hractos Director

Cormpany Number, 671474

Stock Code HILS
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2022

Shae Capital
Called up preTium redermption Retainer Total
share 1At reserve 23 TUNYS 2Lty
i £ £ &m
Zanance at ¢ January 2077 39 02 2535 3120
Comprehensive income
Peofir for the year - - 346 31h
Thei comarehensive expense (o7 the year - - - 21 a1
Transactions with owners recognised directly in equity
Dividends - - - 22 212
Cred to equity of share-based payrrents - - 25 25
Sansfacton of long term incenuve and defe-rad 20nus awards - - - (" 8) a8
Tax taken directly to the Staterment of Changes in Equity - - 04 G4
Issue of shaes 0- 25 - - 26

Details of share canons and related share-based sayments are contained in note 25 to the Group Financial Staterrents

Transactiors of the Giolp sponsored =mployec Benent T-ust (CBT ) are meoluded i the Corpany Firarcial Slate rerts Inpaticular e EBT s
pu-chase of shares In the Comrpany "o satis®y shares awarded unde- _ong Term Incentive Plans and other remunaration agree ents 15 debited
directly o equity

Distributable reserves

The Company maintaing a policy oF recognising gams ansing omintra-group fransactions as distrisutadle only once a forral legal opimian has
been sought to confirm the position, after all steps required 0 execute a ‘ransaction have been duly completed The legal opinions reguired under
this solicy will be sought no Yazer than the point at which the reserves in question are required 1o be accessed fo- the zurnoses of distribution.

In ine with this policy the Company has availasle -0 17 distnibutaole reserves of not less than £78.71 (2027 £88 1m), representing 2 8 tres
(2027 3.6 umes) caver of the current year proposad cividend. When required the Comoany can receve dividends from its subsidianies to further
ncrease its distributable reserves, the Company's UK t-ading subsidianes had reserves of approximately £49 8m availabie for distnbution at

31 Decemoer 2022 (2321 £44 2m) Furthe reserves are available for distrbution from t-ading subsidiaries located overseas, subject to local
regulations
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3
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1. Company Principal Accounting Policies =z

The “cllowing accouniing aolicies have been angaled consistently in dealing with renrs which are considered matenat 11 refation to the T

Zomaany's financial statements, exaent as noted solow j

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Thgse s pann al Ltatome Vs Wit v end ed noats ndarce vtk Tnancal Reos ing cFoeeas] 0T Reeuns saloslry raeeank TR0

Irr preparng these Finansial Statemen's, the Co roany anshes the recognition, measu-enten: and discloswie equacnients 27 International

SE T 2 1y Stanaarts as it ' o0 iFRSET) bet yakas amin-d T soabers caraag gy 1o fa to enaly vt

Comaanies Az 2050 and has sor oot selow whe e advantage 0f the FRS '3 disclosu 2 exe notions has Desn Liken

Lndar soction 408 o the Comaamas Act 2006 the Company 18 exemp’ fro 1 the sequirement to presenst its own Do and loss account

As the Consolidated Financ.al Statements include the eauvalent disclosures, the Consany has ta<en the avaranle exemptions under RS 10° 10

respest of the following disclosu-es

+ P35 2 Shaie Based Payments in resaest of Grous settled share based paymen's,

+ A Cash Flow Staterment and related notes,

- Disclosures in “espect o transactions with wholly owned Group companies, and

+ The e“ects 0F new out not yer effectve |=RSs

The Axeounting Pobcies set out on 2ages 133 10 185 have, unless otherwise srated, Deen anohad consistently 2 all 2enods resented in these

Financial Sratements.

Sollowing a review of the Company's ustenc practice and futu-e olans not to call on certam inzercomrpany ecevables in the short ter £87 2m

of patances that were ~epar-ed as curantintercs roany recerables at 31 Decerher 2027 have heenreclassified 'o non cusrent in ing with 1AS

1 Motwirhsanding this classification, these batances remain repayanle on demand and, of -equired, can be calied unon a' the aote discretion of

the Company Thus -eclassification has no rmpact on net assets, result 7or the yea or cash flows The imoaact onthe 31 December 207G balance

sheet would De 1w reclassify £75 7 of current inarempany receivanias 1o non cuTent ntercomaany recevabes

Measurement convention

The Financial Statements ave preaarcd on the histoncal cost vass excent that the following assets and haxlives are stated al ther far value

denvazive financial instruments, Snancial mst-uments classified as fair value through moafit o loss or as fan value through other corprehensive .

incorre and haoimes for cash-settied share-nased payments Non-current assets and disposal groups held fo- sale are stated a: the lower of
nrevious carying amount and far value less costs o sell

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

he oreoaratton oF the Company's Zinancial Starements requires managaent o nhake judgements, estimaies and assumptions that afiec:
the apakeanon of accounting pahcies and reporzed amounts of Income, expenses, assets and habilites Actual results may diffe- from these
estimates

Significant estirates are required in dete-mining whether impairnent of the Company's investmen:s exis*s, which -eqguires esuimation of the
Investmen:s valugin use A process similar to the imaarment review oerfa-med on the Group's goodwill and ather indefinite life intangitzle
assets s undertaen Key assunotions include the esuimation of future cash flows, growsh factors and discount -ates

There a2 no significan® judgements used 2y managament n prepanng e Company’s “inancial Statements.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

In*he Company’s SInancial Statements, investments 1n subsidiary under:aings are cared at cost less imparment

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comonse cash dalances and call deposits Bank overdrafts that a‘e repayable on demand and form an integrai par: of
the Comoany's cash management are, where there 1s a nght of offset, included as a comiponent of cash and cash equivalents

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company's functional currency at he foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
[ransaction Monetary assets and llabidities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences aiising on translation are recognised in the profit and loss
account

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Trade and cother debtors and amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings

T-ades and other debtars and amounts owed by subsichary undertakings are recognisestimtially at fair valug. Subsequent to initial recognition they
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any imoarrment 10sses

Trade and cther creditors and amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Trade and other creditors and amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings ae recognised inzially at farr vahue Subsequent to inihal recoaniion
they are measured al amo! lised vousl using the effective interest method
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

1. Company Principal Accounting Policies continued

Interest-bearing borrowings

Inizrast-oening barowings ae recognised imually at iar value l23s atinadranls T ansacion oo Supnsequant o indal recogniiion, mierest
DeANg NG TowINgs a%e stated a1 antoitsed cost using the effectve inte est ethed fess any irmsarment losses

PROVISIONS
A provigion s recogmised mthe Balance Sheetwhen the Coroany has a prasent leg

s maasured and e arananie that an autllow o econgmic bane
lows a7 3 2 ax Ag nar o

al orconsrdetve anligaten 4s 4 rasul ol a
Vil e requred o settle the obhygauon Provs
313y saech s 10 the habiliry.

mined oy discountng the exoeried future zash

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Tarnmle freer Assela Are stated at cnat less acanrrilated depreniation and accumilated mparmment Ipsses
Whee pa-ts of an ten of tangible fixed assets have different use®ul ives, they are accounted o as sepaqate rems of tangible fixed assets

Depreciation s charged to the profit and joss account on a s'raight-line Hasis over the estimated useful ives of each pa~” of an e of tangible
fixed assets Land 1s not depreciated. The estimated usetul hves are as iollows

_easehold improvements e of the lease
Plant, machinery and vehicles u to 20 years

Depreciation methods, usefut hves and residual values are “eviewed ai each Balance Shee: date

LEASES

To the exctant that a nght-of-control exists over an asset subject 1o 2 lease and with a lease te'm exceeding one yea, the Comnany recogmses a
nght-of-use asser, representing the underlying lease asses, and a lease hanility, resreszenting the Company’s ooligation to maxe lease pay nents
The nght-of-use assen s iNtially neasu-ed at cost, which corrprses the mual arount of the lease kambity adjusied for any lease sayments
made at o before *he cormroncenens date, any imtial drect costs mourred and an estirate of the dismanthng. removal and restoiation costs as
“equired by 'he rerms of the fease contract

The right-of-use asset 1s subsequently deprociated using the straight ing method fror the commeancement date 1o the eather o7 the end of tha
usetul Fe of the aght-ot-use asser of the end of the lease term T owne: of the leased asser tansfers (o the Conrpany at the end of the lease
serm o the cost reflects the exer cise o° a purchase option, depiecation s calculated using the esumrated usefut Iife 0% the asset The nght-of-use
. assels are also subject to imaairmen:

The lease hability 1s measured at the 3-esent value of the future lease payents discounted using the Company's incremental borrawing

qate being the rate thar the lessee would have to 2ay to borrow the *unds necessary to obtan an asset of simiiar value ina simijar economic
environment with simila- terms and conditions Future lease oayments include fixed payiments, vanable lease payments that deosend on an index
or a -ate pnitially measured using the ndex or rate as at the coirmenceent date), amounts expected 0 e payanle unde- a ~esidual guaiantee
and the exercise price of purchased options whe-e 1115 "easonably cersain that the option will be exe cised Finance charges. representing the
unwinding oF the discount rate, are ~ecognised in the orofit and 10ss account over the 2enod of the lease

Lease payments for low value assets and short term leases (less than 2 months) are -ecognised as an xpense on a straight hne hasis over the
lease term

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENTS

Defined benefit plans

Adefined nenefit plan 1s a sest-employment senefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Comaany's net ebligation in respect of
defined benefit pension plans s calculated separately for each plan by estimating the arnount of future benefi: that erployees have earned in
return for their service In the current and pror perieds, that benefit 1s discounted o deternvine its presen: valug, and the fair values o° any plan
assets (at id price) are deducied The Company determines the net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset for the peniod by applying
the discount rate used to measure the dafined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual penod tc the net defined beneft iabilily/asset

The discoun: -ate 1s the yield at the reporing date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have maturity dates aporoximating o the
termng of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected 10 be pad

Remeasurerments anging from defined benefi, plans compnse actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (exclueding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceding (If any, excluding interes:) The Company recognises them immediately in other comprehensive incorme and alt other
expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee henefit exnenses in profit or loss.

Certain of the Company's employees are members of Groun-wide defined benefit schemes. The net defined benefit cost of the plans 1s
allocated to participating entities based on the contracting entity of the participating employees of the scheme The contrnibutions payable by the
participating entities are determined on the same hasis.
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1. Company Principal Accounting Policies continued
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share-nased payment a-angemens mwhich the Comaany -eceives goods 2- seviges as conadoration 07 s own eguity Insirumants aic
aczonnied for as equity settled share naged sayment transactions, regasdiess of how the equity mstruments arg onzained ny the Comoany

Ihe grant date “an vaiue of share-oased davinents awa ag granted (o emiloyees i3 recognised as an erplayes exnense with a corresisonding
mgrease i equity, over the peniod N which the emnloyees beconre uncordiionally entizled o the awads The “ai value of the awa de granted
15 measuted using an opior valuaton Model taking inie account the terms and candiions uncn which the awa ds were graniad The antour:
recogrised as an oxpense 15 adjusted 2o eflect the actual numoe: of awards @ which *he -ela condifiions
are exaecied to e uch tha® he amrount uitirmately recognised as an exoense s based on the nurbe of awards that do reet the related
service and non rrar<e’ pedformance conditons at the vestiing date =or share-based daynrent awards with non-vasting condifions, the grant
date far value of the share-bazed paymrent i measuored 19 reflect such conditions and there s no true-us for differences netween expenied and
actual outcomes

Share based sayment transacuons n which the Company recewves goods o7 services by incurnng a hability 1o transfer cash or other assets tha:
18 based on the price of the Company’s equity inst-umen's a-e accounted for as cash-sertled share-based nayments The fair value of the amount
payable 1o employees 1S 1ecognised as an exoense, with a correspanding increase in kabilities, over the peniod nwhich the emrployees becorme
unconditionally enttied 1o payment. The hahiity is remeasured at each Balance Sheet date and at settlement date Any changes in the fair value
of the liazihty are ecognised as personnel expense in profrt or loss

TAXATION

Tax on the profit or loss for the yea comonses curent and deferred tax. Tax)s recognised in the 20fit and loss account exgent t0 the extant
~har ¢ -elates taftems recognised directly in eguity or other comprehensive incame, in which case 1t is recognised directly in equity o other
comprehensive Incere

Curent tax 1s the expected tax 2avanle or recavanle on the taxable mcome or loss forthe year, using ax rates enacted or sunstanively enacted
al the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payasle in resvect of previcus years

Datarrad tax s provded on temporary differences betwoon the carying amoonts of assats and habilitizs for finanoalieasing vuoses

and the amounts uzed 7o~ taxation pua0ses The following tomaorary o are no! provided to- thential recogninion of goodwill, the
initial recogniuon of assets o7 haoilines that affect neither aczounting nor mxanle o7ofit othar than n a business combinaton, and differences
‘etating to mvest ments in subsidianes 1o the extent that they wiit prooably no* 1everse i the foreseeable future The ammount of deferrad tux
grovided 15 based on the expected marner o realisatior or sefillermen: of the carryimg arrount of assets and habihues, using tax -ates enacted or
subsiantively enacted a: the Balance Sheet date.

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only o the extent that 1t1s o coable that future taxante orotits will be avalable agamst which the temoorary
diffe ence can 2e uthsed

ORDINARY DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised in the Financal Statements in the oenod in which they are app-oved by the Comipany's sharehaiders. Dividend income
is recognised in the Profir and _oss Account on the date the Comrpany's right 16 receve payment is estaslished

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Where the Coraany enters inta financial guarantes contracts 1o guarantee the inded edness of sussidiary comzanies, the Company considers
these o be nsurance contrasts and treats the gquarantes contract as a conungent lability untl such 1me as 12 becormes orobable that the
Comoany will be required to make a payment under the guaraniee
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

2. Profit before taxation

Jees paid o Znst & Young LLP and 175 associates for audis and non audis secvices o the Company rsel® are not disclosed in the indidual

“inanctal Stataments of HIL& Smitn P O secause the Croup minanaial Sratements are -equirad 12 disclose such fees on a consolidated Dasis

3. Dividends
DIVIDENDS PAID DURING THE YEAR

Inrenm chvidend pard inrelatinn o year ended 37 Necomeer 2020
Mnal dividend paid inrelation to year ended 37 Decenber 2020
Ine1m dwadend oaid in relation *o year ended 37 Decemner 20721

Tinal dividend pard inrelation *o year ended 3" Jeserber 2021

Total

DIVIDENDS DECLARED IN RESPECT OF THE YEAR

e dvidend declared in relation (o year ended 37 December 2023
Final dividend declared inrelasion o yeo ended 31 Jecerber 2021
ntean diedend declared in -clation o year ended 37 December 2022

mimal devidend 2 ooosed mrelanion myeas ended 371 Decemoer 2022

Total

Pence
per share

20210
Pence
He shate £
G972 73
175 139
267 2172
2021
Pence
e share £
124 96
90 15°
310 247

The “inal dradend for the year was proposed after the year end dave and was no” recognised as a lanility at 31 Decemoer 202210 accodance

with 1AS 10

4. Tangible fixed assets

Sho~ Plan:,
leasehold machmery
properties  and vehucles 1otal
£m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At January 2022 o1 0.5 3.6

Additions

o1 07

Depreciation
At 1 sanuary 2022

Charge for the year

Net book value

At 31 December 2021

a4 0.5
31 01

0.1 0.1
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5. Leases
The moverenis i the cairyng value oF the right-of usze assets and bease habilmes in the yeas ended 31 Decermhe 207715 a3 follows

SINIWILYLS T¥IONVYNIL

and ane
suildings Total
Right-of-use assets [y Fm
Balance at 1 January 2027 R .4
Cha-ge io" rhe year W) on
Total
Lease liabilities £m
Balance at ' Lanuary 2022 34
Lease paymentsin perod _ o

¢

The followang tanle shows the oieakdown of the tease expense hetween amounts charged o operating Lrofit and amounts charged to
Is ~ ~, -
finance costs

Deareciation of nght-of-use assets

Charged to operating profit

Charged to profit before taxation

The matutities of the lease habilites at 31 December were as fuliows

Dug within one year
Due aetween one and two years

Due between two and five years

Total lease liabilities

6. Fixed asset investments

Shares in
subsidiary
undertakmgs Total
m £m
Cost
At T Lanuary 2022 3/96
Addition i 67
Provisions
ALT January 2022 498 498
Imparrment 46 4 46 4

AL 31 December 2021 3298 3298

A st of the susinesses owned by the Company is given innote "6 All of the Company's subsidianies are wholly owned.

Following the Group's disposal of France Galva on 4 Octobe: 2027, the Company received a dividend from Hill & Smith {France) Limited, France
Galva's immediate pa‘ent company, amounting to £5C &1 Payrent oF *he dvidend reduced il & Smith (Srance) Limited's net assets to £0 '
and as a result, the Company has recognised an impairment charge of £46 4mn relatiaon to 125 nvesiment in Hill & Smith (France) Limited
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

7. Debtors due in more than one year

Rasrared
2020
£

Ancounts owed oy sunsichaty underzakings due after more than Hne year 9537 947
95.7 947
Qe o tho 2ass of orevaraton rode wrhin the Camoany Printigal Aczountng Pohoies i furhar details antha 5in year -astatemoen:
8. Debtors
Resated
202"
[ 3301
Amounts owed by subsidiary underta<ings 37
Corporation tax 47
De‘ered tax {note 11) T3
Othee dobtors 03
Pianayments and azciued ncome 18
128
Refer tothe basis oF preparation noe wirhin the Company Principal Accountng Policies o further details on tha prior yoar restatement
9. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2021
£m
. Bank loans and overdrafts (note 10)
Banx overdra‘s t 7
T2
Other creditors
T:ade creditors 14
Other taxation and socal secunty 32
Accruals 5"
Other creditors a9
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 622
59 8
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10. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

The Comnany's mteres: bea ing loans and norowings ase detailed below. Furthes inforration on the Comnany's exposu e o nteres: rate and

Toren cunency fa< s rovided i nate 24 o0 the Groun Tinancial Statemrents

2021
£
Bank Ioans 366
Laase koies a3
369
The Conrsany's bank laans and borrowings are also analysed below inta the nenads in which they ratire
2021
Bank loans and overdraft £
Amounts due within one year {note §) 12
Amounts due after more than one yea:
Between one and two yea s 366
Between two and Tve years -
366
3/8
11. Deferred tax
237
£m
Jeferied tfax assel — AU T Januaty 03
Credit o0 the year in the profit and loss account 06
(Chargel/credit “or the year diectly in equry v
Deterred tax asset - At 31 December i3
Other amning differences 1.3

12. Pension liabilities

The Corraany coninbures ta the Group's <ill & Sith 2016 Pension Schee, which has sections providing penefits acc-uing i the future on a
defined benefit basis and on a defined contrbution vasis Details of the Scherre and the most recen: actuarial valuations are contamned in note

27 to the Group Financial Statenrants. There a-e also separate persanal pension nlans

The Comoany's profi far the year inzludas a oension charge of £3 4m {2021 £0 3m), which includes the costs of the defined contribution

schemes and the definad oenefit schemes

13. Called up share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid

80m (Ordinary Shares of 25p each (2021: 79.8m)

In 2022 the Company 1ssued 0 2m shares under its vanous share option schermes (2027 037, realsing £1 9m (2027 £2 ém) Details of share
options and related share-based payments are contained in note 25 to the Group Financial Siatements

Each o dinary share carries equal voting nghts and there are no restrictions on any share

Stock Code HILS
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

14. Guarantees

SUBSIDIARY AUDIT EXEMPTIONS

=Ml & STith PLC has issued guarantees ove: the abilities of the following xedammantly non sading UK sudsidianes as at 37 Decembe 2022
under Secuon 4792 of the Comparies Act 2006 These enutes are examrdt from the requirevents of the Actrelating to the audit of mdradual
ancounts by virtue of Section 4794 o° the Aot

Company Name Company Number
Beigen Prae Suniotts Jimited J09255644
Bergen Pize Suazocts Grous Cimited 21387
il & Srch (Internationall Lavited RN I
il & Savrh {Americas) amited 27269587
Hill & 3ith {Amencas) 2 Limited 107834672
Hill & Smith Amrencas) 3 Limited 12060545
Hill & Smuth {France) Limited 26768033
Hill & Smith Overseas Limited 26614400
Fhll & Sruth (Treasury) Limited I6814150
Hill & Srnith (USA) Lirnited D6B7HTTS
Hill & Srith {Australa) ivited “4411306
Hards:a*f Barners Limited 02797285
Copaco Holdings Lemited N8317212
Signooat Solutonsg Hinted 21084535
Mallatte Mino: Siruztures & Produsts Limited '3717429
Bowarer Doors Limited "3738120

. Cxpamaot Lirrted T37486729
YMS Newce Limited 2968569
Variey & Gulliver Lirmited 00330433
Ash & Lacy Linmited 00047169
Ash & Lacy Manufactunng Limized 03008964
Ash & Lacy Services Limited 027982806
{awkshead Properties amited 20562457
Redman Sisher Fngineering Limited 00169316
Widnes Galvamsing Limited 12206443

The Company guarantees the bank loans, overdrafzs and other horrowings of certain subsidiary unde ta<ings The amount outstanding at
31 December 2022 was £38 8m (2021 £103 2my)

15. Related party transactions
The Company has related party relationshins with 1ts key management personnel and with its subsidianies (either directly or indirectly controlted)

The related paity transactions with key managemen: personnel are considered by the Company o be the same as those of the Uroup and are
set out In note 6 to the Group Financial Statements

The Company has taken the available exemnption unde- FRS 107 not to disclose transactions with wholly owned Group companies
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16. Subsidiaries
INCORPORATED IN THE UK

AALG mtdings Litad (M)

Access Jeg:gr & SngineaTing Limpted (D)
Ash & any arred (e

Aah B Cacy Manufactunng Jmeted (H)y
Ash & Lacy Services Lirried ()
Asser Intenanional imited (D)

ATG Access 1T (R

A W Thome cmited (07

Barkers Encpneering Linrited (iR, G)
Bergen Pipe Supports Grousd Linized (H)*
Begen Pipe Suopars Lintited (H)
Bery Salety Systems Lirmited (Dy*
Be'ry Systers Limited (D)
ipal Group ple ()

Sirtley Group _imrted {E GY
Bowater Doors Linmited [2)
S-ovford Sreel Limited D)
Bytes Limited (D)

Carangton Packaging Linrized (D)
Conace Holdings Limited {H)

Cooazo Limted (D)

Coooer Secunties (Dudley) Limited ()
Cooper Securities imited (D)

Tee Qrgan Limited (D}

—xpamet Bulding Products Limpted {2)
zxpamet cimited (r)

Torgen Jenewabies Limized (D)

H&S 2xpamet Limited (5)

Hawsxshead Properties uimited (H})
Hardszaf Barers Limited (R)

Hill & Smith (Americas) Limited {H)

Hill & Sruth iAmericas) 2 Limited (H}

Hill & Smich (Americas) 3 Limited (H)

Hill & Smith (Austiaha) Limited (H)

Hill & Smith (France) Limited (H)*

Hill & Smich {Treasury)y Limited (Hy*

Hill & Srruth (LUSA) Limited (H)

Hill & Struth (VSG) Limited (D)

Hill & Srith Galvarized Produsts Lirnited (H)
Hill & Smuth Groun Limited (D)

Hill & Sruth PLC (G E)

Stock Code HILS

- A Sth Inrernanonal) Lincired )

Al & Sntth In®astructuce Producs Group
_iated (DY

i L& Sauth Intrastructure Linopsed R

ul & Soeh Dversaas Lielted (H)*
11 & Srith Pension [rustees irmited (D)
o & F Poollinited (D)
wevons loals amited ()
Joseph Ash Limited (G)
_ionweld Steel Limited (D)
Lionweld Kennedy Flooring Linuted (E)~
Mallatite Limited (R)*

Mallatse Mings Stuctues & Produsts
_imited (R)

iedway Galvanising Company Lrited (G)
Parking racilities Lirmited {R)

Fioe 3uo10tts Overseas mred [H)F

Post & Column Linvied 1.3

Premier Galvanizing Limred (5)

Prolecing Services Ltd (R)*

Redman Architectural Metabaor < mitad (D)
Redman misher engineenng Limited (2)

Safety and Security Bar-ier Holdings
Limited ()

Signature Limited {D)

Signpos: Solutions Limited (D)
Tegrel uimited (D)

The Globe Tank and Foundry
{(Wolverhampton) Limized {3)
vananle Message Signs Limited {D)
Varley & Gulliver Linited (D)

Vista Galvanizing (UK) Lirited (i)
VMS Newco Limited (R)

Western Galvanizers Limited (D)
Wombwell =oundry Limited (D)
Widnes Galvanising Limited (G)

All of the anove subsidianes have a year end
date of 31 December and are inctuded in

the consohdated results of the Group The
Company holds "00% of the share caoiial

of all businesses, either directly or indirectly,
unless otherwise stated All of the above
subsidiaries have a registered office address
at Westhaven touse, Alleston Way, Shirley,
Solihull, Ba0 414, Zngland

Y Sngesad Solunions
"1 Roads & Secunty

(GY Galvanizng

(DY Dorany

(-1 Holchng Company

fwrecty e d by Hil & S 2L
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

16. Subsidiaries continued
INCORPORATED IN AUSTRALIA

AR Samth Pry bimirad {R)

INCORPORATED IN JERSEY
S & STith e Dimned {A)

Vit Jmited ()

INCORPORATID IN INDIA
Bergen Pipe Supports (India) Private
Limitad (E)

Hill & Srnith Infrastructure Products Inda
Private Lined (D)

INCORFPORATED IN IRELAND

Redman Fishe Limited {r)
Hill & Sevuth slrefand) Unlimied Comoany (D)

INCORPORATED IN NORWAY
ATAHIll & Smch AS LR

INCORPORATED IN SWEDEN
. ATA HIL & Srsth AG 1Ry
TMK Trafixproduicer AB (1)

INCORPORATED IN SPAIN

Prolect-ic Solar Lighting Si ()

INCORPORATED IN THE USA

Berger Prye Supnorts Inn (5)

Carmenter & Paterson, Ino S

Croate Pultrusions Ino (=)

SRR Manutactuing LoC o)
CPCAManufaciunng L_C {=)

B & Soeith Group Heldings Ine ()
& Srirh US Croup Ing (H)

Hilt & Sith, Ine, (R)

Natonal 3ignal _L.C R}

vorgt & Schwerizer LLC (H)

V&S Aoy Galvanizing LT (G)
V&S Columous Galvanizing _LE (B)
V&S Delaware Galvanizing LLE (G)
V&S Detror. Galvamzing LLC (G}
V&S Lenanon Galvanizing _LC (G

V&5 Memphis Galvanizing . _C [5)

V&S New Yo'k Galvamzing LT {5)
V&S Schuler Engineering, tne (C)
VS Sohuler Tusular Products L C{Z)
V&S Taunton Galvamizing, L1 C{0)

Al of the above sudsidianes have a year and
date of 371 Decernber, with the exception of
Be-gen Pipe Suoports (India) Private Limited
and il & Smith Infrastructure Products
India Private Limited, which each have a
year end of 31 March. All of the subsidianies
listed anove are ncluded in the consolidated
results of the Group The Comoany holds
102% 2f the share capital of all businesses,
aither directly or indirectly

=) Engineered Solutions
(R] Rnads & Secunity

(G) Galvanmzing

(D) Dormant

(-4 Holding Comoany

* Dyractly held by Hill & Smith PLC
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

2021 2024 2079 2018

£'m £im Fm £n

Reyorig” 5707 5884 G172 o042
Crelerdy g o abg ol 73 647 8013 744
Dy g I bemtinte L atens ‘419 771 373 724 6
Shareholders ‘unds 7 305.0 3308 3205 3070 2922
Pence Pence Fence Pence

Underiying earivgs per shares 00 R7G 715 721
Praposed dividends per share 310 267 10 6* 318

* The pronosad final Jnadoerd for 20139 of 23 32 par 5har2 was witndiawn ard not pard

* 207N g opEtaT N

Stock Code HILS

SINIWILIVIS TYIDNVYNIA
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual General Meeting Thursday 25 May 2023

Trading Update Thursday 25 May 2023
Ex-dividend date for 2022 final dividend Thursday 1 June 2023
Record date 2027 final dividend Friday 2 June 2023
Dividend Reinvestment Plan - last date for election Friday 16 June 2023
Finat 2022 ordinary dividend payable Friday 7 July 2023

Announcement of 2023 interim results Wednesday 9 August 2023

Trading Update Wednesday 29 November 2023

Ex-dividend date for 2023 interim dividend Thursday 30 November 2023
Record date 2023 interim dividend Friday 1 December 2023
Dividend Reinvestment Plan — last date for election Tuesday 12 December 2023

Payment of 2023 interim dividend Friday 5 January 2024
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder base
Haoldings of shares at 28 Fenruary 2023

Range of shareholders Number of holders % Number of shares %
1-50% 595 32 113100 014
S501-1300 269 "4 b1 08225 075
1507 =5000 507 27 36 1,200,722 " 50
5307 -53000 326 5ol 4 599 599 5750
55,001 =-100220 o8 313 4,190,229 523
TO0.001=-500.000 80 432 19002 627 2334
H00G0T - 1,000 550 19 IR 12,794,887 1hag
Above 7,000,007 *9 133 37,882854 47 30
1853 10000 30,083 243 120,00
Shareholder base

Number of holders % Number of shares %
Individuals 1,37C 7393 3430168 425
Ingtitutiong 05 2549 76,664,464 95 /3
Other cornorate 7 038 185871 502
1,853 100 00 B0,083213 100 G0

Dividend History — proposed dividend per share
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Intenn s 130 123 32 106 0
Final 220 90 175 - 218
3h10 310 267 06 3.8

Communication with shareholders
and analysts

Jrectors meet weth imajor sharsholders and
aotencal investars ‘ollowing imienm and
final ~esults, and at other times if requested
Presentations for analysts are also heid

on the day of these announzerments and

we keep in regular contact with analysts
throughout the yea~,

Corporate infermation

The Annual and Interim Reports are the
main forms of communication with our
shareholdes We have updated our website
to suppiement :hese regorts with additienal
information The weosite address is

www hsgroun com and includes share price
nfosmanon, investor relations information
and contact details.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be held

At 1100 am on Thirsday 25 May 2023

at Cranmore Park Conference, Event &
Exhibition Centre, Cranmore Avenue, Shirley,
Wes* Midlands, B9J 41— United Kingdom
Full details are contained within the Notice of
AGM. A proxy casd s alse enclosed with this
statement or vaiing Alternatively, you can
vose elect-onically as explained below.

Electronic proxy voting

To lodge your aroxy vote via the interne?, log
D11 S0 WWW INVes oicente oo uk/eproxy

Stock Code HILS

You will need the Control nurrber,
Shaiesholder Raferarce number (SRN) and
PIN numner ofnted on your Form of Proxy
wheie you will Tind the full instucicns

Shareholding online

Computershare Investor Centre gives access
o view your holdings online. To ~egister ¢lick
on Investor Centre on the Compute share
homre nage www.computershaie com and
follow the instrusions

You will oe able 1o

View alf your holding detads

for comrpanies registered with
Computershare,

View the market value of yous porifolio
Update your contact addiess and
personal details online.

Access current and historical market
prices

Access trading graphs.

Add additional shareholdings to your
portfolio

Share dealing

Share dealing services are available through
Computershare Investor Services P.C

Log on to www comautershare.com/
sharedealingcen:re for internet share dealing
and for telephone dealing ning

0370 703 0084,

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 'DRIP’

The Conraany offers shareholders the

facibty

o remves: ther cash dvidends to suy moe
shares in the Contpany

The service aliows you 0 INcrease
your shareholding in an easy and
convenient way

Onine apalication 0yocess enadles
you 10 paclizipate easily and securely
www invastorcentre oo uk.

Chck on 'Register’ to sign up 1o the
Investor Centre. This will allow you to
cary out a number of share related
transactions ondine, including opting
for the DRIP

You will be required to fillin your SRN
and your posteode, together with
your email address You will also be
as«ed to select a user name (1D} and
password of your choice

Once registered select ‘Dividend
Plans’ fram the left hand menu and
amend your current cash dividend
instruction, confirming acceptance of
the DRIP terms and conditions.

New sha-es will be purchased as soon
as possible on or after the dividend
Day date

Shareholder helpline number

There s a helpline for shareholders who have
enquirnies adout therr shareholdings. The
dedicated helpline number is Q370 707 1058

NOBYIWHOANT 830 TOHIYYHS
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PRINCIPAL GROUP BUSINESSES

Roads & Security

UNITED KINGDOM

ATG Access Ltd*

Mancfacture and imstallaton of hostile
vaehunle mgannn dnd e eer s
soluuans noisding nollads, ~oad Hockers
Bare s and gates

Conacs House Noth =
Inclusinal Est
WA DT

1ia Road Haydock
te, Haydoo« Merseyside,

Tel +44 (0} BA56 757574

www afgaccess com

Hill & Smith Infrastructure Limited
Highway and off-highway safety bariers,
permanant and ‘emanary solutons for
vehicle restraints, and -elained earih sysiems
‘or Highway & 2a/l consl-uclion sectors

Spnngvale Business and Industnal Par<,
Bilston, Wolverharoton W14 00

Tel +44 (0171907 499400
Sax +4400) 1932 493479

wewew Pl srmith co Lk

Barkers Engineering Limited*
Pemetar seculy solutions and fastenass

PDu<e Street, ~enton, Stoke on irent,
Staffordshire 514 3NS

Tel +44 (0) 1782 379264
~ax +44 (D) 1782 599724

www Dar kersenginesr ing.com

Mallatite Limited

Viandfactuse of lighting columns bossoks
SURDOC stucures, ratic sign coiumns
posts and assooiated hghling o eduss

Hobrawond Induatral Z3tate, Hatdwisk
view 20ad Holrewoond Chesterfeld,
Dersyshire, 542 H3A

Tel 44 (0) " 246 593280
Fax —44 [0} " 246 583281

wiww Tallatite.co uk

Parking Facilities Ltd*

Design, manufactu-e and supply of parking
and actess control oroducts ncluding
gates, barmers, bollasds, 15ing xers and
speed amos

Lnis Gne, Kingsaury Link Trory Road,
Tamworth Staffordshire, B/8 22X

Tal +A4(0) " 82/ 8/5253
Tax, 44 (D) 1827 87575

wanw parkingfaciities co uk

Prolectric Services Ltd*
UK's Teading expert on susamaile hghting,
power and securly

25 Heher Green Industnal Estate
Clevedon BS?2™ 6XU

Tel +44 (011275400570

WAWW DIDTECINE S0 Uk

* The Company's effective interest s ald wdireztly for tiese undertakings
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REST OF THE WORLD

ATA Hill & Smith AB*

Road signage and tra*fic safety solutions
Incoporaed in Sweden

Sraffana vay 7,192 78, Sollentuna, Sweden
Tel +4013440 771 01

Fax +40{018292515

iy Al se

Hill & Smith, Inc.*

Termporary road barnier soluticns for warx
zone protection providing smart, safe,
mnovative solutions for the traffic safery
and tighway Infrastructure businesses
tncorpoiated In the USA

2740 Airport Deive, Sute 3107320 Columbus,
Ohio, S

43219Tel <1 (614) 340 5294
Fax 1 {614) 340 6295

www hillandsmith.com

National Signal LLC*

Manufacturer of portabie sola hght towers,
partaste hybaid solar hght towe s and other
hghtmg ower solutions

2440 Actesta Are =ullertan, Califorma, LS

Tel +~ [BB8) 994 0300
www nationalsignabne carr

Hill & Smith Pty Ltd*
Wice rope and temporary sa‘ety aners
Incorporated i Austrahia

PO Box 89436, Wynnum Plaza, Wynnum West,
Queensland, 4178, Australia

Tel. +61(0) 7 3162 6078

www hsroads com au

Nowes

The abave ists the Company's substdiary
undertakings axcept for some ntermedrate hetding
compaties and certain other underta<ings of
minon irponance Except where mdicated, the
Jndertakings are suhsidianes ncorpaiated in Grea:
Britair ard -e share capita’ consists of ordinary
shares arly



Engineered Solutions

UNITED KINGDOM

Birtley Group Limited

Galvamzed hntels, congucion fitings,
comransre doors, buicers melalwak &
plasiore s’ accessories

Mary Avonug, Birtley, County durbam,
OH3 1=

Tei ~44{0) 191 410 6637
W DIFtleygouD co uk

Lionweld Kennedy Flooring Limited
Open steel flocning, handrahng and ancillay
products

Marsh Road, Middlesorough, TS1 5JS

Tel «44 (DY 1542 245151
Fax 44 (0) 642 224770

WwWw I <-us cor

UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA

Creative Pultrusions, Inc.*
Manufacture of finre reinforced polymer
(=P comnoarte oflles

214 Indusinal _ane, Alum Banx,
Pennsylvania, 15521 US4

Tel +11814) 8334185
Toll free # 888-CPI-PULL {274-7855)
-ax +1{814)83% 4276

Wiww Crealivecnmposiiesyroud Som

E.T. Techtonics (D)
Design and congtruction of fiberglass
bridge and beardwalk systems

WWwW.CreaTvern moositesgroud com

MNotes

Tke anove Ists e Corrpany's subsidiary undertakings, except for some inteimediate nolding comparies and certaim other undertakings of minor impartance Excegt

Kenway Composites (D)
Advanced cusiom comnosile
vapufaciunng and orofessional field
serices far varous ndustres

WAL LY REHWH\J el

Tower Tech (D)

Manu“acture of coohng tower products
“hat effeciively biidge the gao between
sustainability and energy efficiency

www fowe techine com

Composite Advantage (D)

Aleading manufacturer for Finre Rainforced
Palvime: composite bridge, waterfront and
rallinfrasiruciure markens

WWW.CreagliveoImposHesqg oun Som

V&S Utilities**

Fabrication ¢f elecical nansnmiszion
and substation structu-es and susphe of
sunslation packaging services

987 Buc«eye Park 2oad, Columbus, Ohio,
43207, USA

Tel =7 {674) 4119 828"

www.vsschuler com

Bergen Pipe Supports, Inc.*
Manufac:uie ard suoply of 2108 sudporis
solutions, including constan: and vanable
effort suoports

484 Galfa J-ive, Donora, Pennaylvania,
15033, USA

Tel, +1(724) 3795212
Fax, +1 (724} 379 93563

WWW HDEeSUDI0™S Com

Carpenter & Paterson, Inc.*
Industial zoe hange s, metal T amring
channel and fasteners

2720 Merrimac Streel Wooinn,
Massachus CONEST LUSA

lel 11(787935295)
www pioehangers com

Novia Corporation, Inc.*
Yinration and serismic control manufacturer
1 Northwestern Jnive, Salem, NH 03079, USA

Tel -1 (503} 808 8600
Fax +1 (603) 898 7755

AW DD NOVIA 201

India

Bergen Pipe Supports (India)
Private Ltd*

Manufacire and supoly o pioe suports
sotutions, including cryogenic sunpor:s
Inco-porated in India

Plot No 12, Ground Floor, RADHA, Mangala
Nagar Main Road, Porus, Chennal 530170

Tel =971 8576 305 666

WWW DIDESURDO-ts com

wherg irdizated, the Lndertakings are suasichanes incorporated in Great Britar and the share capital corsists of ordirary snares only

=~ Tre Company's effective irterest 1s held incirectly for these undertakings

“ Trading name tor VBS SzaLler tngineering Ing and V&S Schuler Tupular 1 oducts LI 2 39th aig indirectly held, wnoly owned a d incorporated in the USA,

L) Operanng Aasinn o0y ant A erited camoany

Stock Code HILS

NOLEYINEOINT H HIOHILVHS
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PRINCIPAL GROUP BUSINESSES continued

Galvanizing Services

UNITED KINGDOM

Joseph Ash Limited*

Galvaruzing soivices

Abzora Bulding 2, Mucklow -1 Halesowen,
Wast Midlands, Ba? 300

Tel +44°3) 127 5734 7260

Fax -44{0) "2° 504 2559

wavw naenhash roox

Medway Galvanising Company
Limited*

Galvanizing, shotbiasting and powda-
Coatng services

Castle Foad, Surohin< Industral Centre,
Siungoouine, Ken!, METS 3RN

Tel 44 (0) " /95 479485
Fax +44,0) 7735 477538

wivwy medgaly co ux

Premier Galvanizing Limited*
Galvanizing and powder ceaiing services

Unit 25, Steneferry Business Pax
Toster Stieet, Cast Riding of Yorkshire,
U8 86T

Tel +44 {0) " 487 587587
Fax +44{0) " 482 588599

WWW Dreergaly co uk

Widnes Galvanizing Limited*
Galvamzing senices

—airway frading Park, Ditton Road, Widnes,

Cheshire, WAB ONZ
Tel +44 (0) 151 4957939

www.widnesgalvanising co uk

Notes

Barkers Engineering Limited*

Salvanizing and sowder coanng seryizes

oot Fenton, Stoke-on frent,
e, ST4 3NS

Ouxe St
Guatio

Tel 413 1732 34381
Fax -441(2) 1782 344074

W WY .’)H!KEI'SQB|V6IT\ZI g Com

Birtley Group Limited

Galvaniing services

Mary Avenue, Brrtley, County Durham,
DH3 1"

Tel: +44 {3) 131 410 442
Fax +4470) 191462187

www irtleygalvanizing co uk

United States of
America

Voigt & Schweitzer LLC*

SGalvanizing se'vices

987 Buckeye Park Road,
Columbus Ghio, 43207 USA

Tel + (674) 449 8781
Fax +1(614) 449 8851

www hotdingalvanizing com

The above lists the Cornpany s subsdiary urdertakirgs, excent for some ntermediate holding companies and certain other under takings of mimor rmportance Exceo:
whers ingicated, the underakings are sabsidiaines incordaratad in Great Brimar and the share sapiial consists of ordinary shares anly

* The Company's effecrtive interast y3 need wndiractly for these urdertakings
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DIRECTORS, CONTACTS AND ADVISORS

DIRECTORS

Alan Giddins

Sxecutivae Char

Hannah Nichols
Criet Simanmal Ofoe

Tony Quinlan
Sanor Indapondant Mo oxesutie

Annette Kefleher
Non-executive

Mark Reckitt

Non-axecutive

Pete Raby

Non-cxecutive

Leigh-Ann Russell

Non-execltive

Farrokh Batliwala
Non execulive

Stock Code HILS

CONTACTS

Hill & Smith PLC

Registered Office
W aven Flouse
Alegton Way Shirley,
Solihel west Midlands
Bad 4L H

Teb =dd:5) 7 21704 7440
—ax 44101121 704 7439

Registration Details
Registered in England and Wales
Compoany Number 671474

Company Website

WWW NSgroup com

Company Secretary
Alex Henderson FCI15S

Registrars

Comouershare Investo” Services PLO
PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Rzad

Bristol

BS99 677

PROFESSIONAL
ADVISORS

Nt s O AN A 0] PRI HS

Auditor

Zrnst & Young _LP
Mo Y Zolrore Sgua e
Brungham

B4 640

Brokers and Financial Advisors
NuTis Sccunties Limnited

45 Greshar Strear

_ondon

=C2v 7Bl

Principal Bankers

Barclays Ban< Ple

Midlands Corpoate Banng Centre
PO Box 3333

1 Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway

BranghaT

B3 7WN

Lawyers

Gowling WLG

Two Snowhilt

Birminghan .
B4 6WR

Silks Soliciots

Barzlays Bank Chamioers
Birmmgham Street
Oldoury

B69 4E7

Financial Public Relations
MHEP Communications

A0 Great Portland Street

London

WIW 7RT
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The production of this repart supports the work o the Wocdland Trust,

the UK's leading woodiand conservation charity Zach tree planted will
grow into a vital carbon store, helping to reduce environimental imaast
as well as zreating natural havens for wildlife and peodie

Eofﬂmy ChletiCrs aNET CrOCILC Y by
@ Jonesandpalmer.co.uk
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